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KB Financial Group
is Korea’s premier
financial institution with
a comprehensive line-up
of products and services
ranging from banking to
IT system development

Established in 2008 with the nation’s foremost
business foundation in assets, customer base,
and distribution network, the Group pursues
preeminence in the financial services industry
through its nine subsidiaries. By increasing
synergies among these subsidiaries, the Group
is able to bolster its core competencies in
banking, credit card, securities, insurance,
and asset management, while continuing to
improve upon its comprehensive financial
system. In particular, the Group is focused on
strengthening the capabilities of its non-bank
subsidiaries by leveraging group synergies in
line with its vision, “A Global Financial Group,
Leading the Asian Financial Industry.”
By delivering the best customer value, the
Group progresses towards “Global Financial
Group Leading the Asian Financial Industry”
while steadfastly serving its shareholders
and customers.

Group
at a Glance

KB Kookmin Bank leads Korea’s banking industry with an aim to
become “global bank leading the Asian financial industry” while
growing into one of “Asia’s top 10 and the world’s top 50.” The Bank
endeavors to offer the best possible products and services at all times.
It intends to grow alongside its customers and community by keeping
its business operations more customer-focused, delivering stable
financial performances, nurturing sustainable growth drivers from
their earliest stages, and setting an example in corporate citizenship.

KB Financial Group will realize its
vision of becoming a global financial
group by combining the expertise
of its affiliates with its shared value,
“We Think of You First”

Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Total Assets 		

257,748.7

Total Shareholders’ Equity 		

19,957.6

Net Income		

1,415.8

* As of December 31, 2012

KB Life Insurance was established as bancassurance specialist in
June 2004, and the Company became a full member of KB Financial
Group in August 2009. It excels in the bancassurance business by
leveraging KB Kookmin Bank’s nationwide branch network along
with the advanced insurance expertise gained through its partnership
with ING Group. Through bancassurance agency marketing, direct
marketing channels as well as a total consultant channel which
provides face-to-face service, KB Life Insurance offers financial
insurance services that are comprehensive and tailored to customer
needs.
Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Total Assets		

5,987.9

Total Shareholders’ Equity		

393.2

Net Income		

16.6

* As of December 31, 2012

KB Investment supports the growth of enterprises through capital
investments. The company’s investment targets include non-listed
venture firms and SMEs, companies engaging in restructuring
business, and corporations seeking M&A funds. In addition to
supporting the growth of its investment targets, KB Investment
provides business support services in key management aspects –
personnel management, finance, marketing, and business strategy
including listing on the KOSDAQ – all to enhance the value of its
investments.

KB Credit Information specializes in managing unpaid receivables. The
Company was founded in 1999 to manage the collection of unpaid
receivables of KB Financial Group’s subsidiaries. It is the industry
leader in asset size, profitability, and service quality. By efficiently
handling unpaid receivables, KB Credit Information contributes to the
circulation of financial transactions, a vital component to economic
growth as well as to the establishment of a sound credit-based
society.

Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Total Assets		

504.5

Total Assets 		

30.4

Total Shareholders’ Equity		

123.4

Total Shareholders’ Equity 		

22.8

Net Income		

5.5

Net Income		

0.3

* As of December 31, 2012

* As of December 31, 2012

KB Kookmin Card is a specialized card company focused on making
people’s daily lives easy and convenient. Spun-off from KB Kookmin
Bank in March, 2011, the Company has been achieving steady growth
by focusing on four strategic initiatives: establishing a customeroriented marketing system, optimizing the risk management system,
securing leadership in new markets, and retooling internal systems
with an emphasis on profitability. Its contributions to improving
customer lives have started to pay off: the Company was ranked
first in the credit card category in the 2012 NCSI, the nation’s most
prestigious customer survey.

KB Investment & Securities provides a full range of financial services
including wholesale banking, asset management, investment advice,
and brokerage. It endeavors to become a true financial partner for the
success of each and every one of its customers, who form the core
of its values. A member of KB Financial Group since March 2008, KB
Investment & Securities continues to thrive based on its competitive
edge in the wholesale business and on the Group’s extensive financial
network.

Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Key Financial Indicators

Total Assets		

14,046.2

Total Assets		

3,357.2

Total Shareholders’ Equity		

3,079.6

Total Shareholders’ Equity		

545.1

Net Income		

291.6

Net Income		

18.7

(Unit: KRW in billions)

* As of December 31, 2012

* As of December 31, 2012

KB Asset Management prides on its extensive product line-up
encompassing equities, fixed income, derivatives, commodities,
real estate and infrastructure. While continuously improving the
management competency, the Company has generated optimal returns
for clients by consistently maintaining best-in-class performance and
leading on global standard for risk management. Fast emerging as
an industry leader, the Company was awarded with the Best Asset
Management Company from the “2012 Korea Securities Awards.”

KB Real Estate Trust manages real estate on consignment and returns
to the owners the revenues thus generated. Major products offered
include land development trust, collateral trust, management trust,
disposal trust, administration support, REITs, and AMC. Whollyowned by KB Financial Group, KB Real Estate Trust enjoys stable
credit ratings. It is building on its foundation of a sound balance sheet
for sustainable growth in an effort to realize its vision of becoming
Korea’s best in the real estate trust business.

Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Total Assets		

164.6

Total Assets 		

201.6

Total Shareholders’ Equity		

127.0

Total Shareholders’ Equity 		

166.2

Net Income		

35.9

Net Incomez		

21.4

* As of December 31, 2012

* As of December 31, 2012

KB Data Systems is a pioneer of Korea’s financial IT. Since its
founding in 1991, KB Data Systems has played a crucial role in KB
Financial Group’s growth by facilitating smooth systems integrations
in the Group’s incorporation of a number of M&As. Leveraging the
experience and know-how accumulated from the various financial
IT projects it has undertaken over the years, the Company tailors
its advanced IT systems to the rapidly evolving needs of financial
companies as well as of its KB affiliates.

KB Savings Bank was established as the tenth subsidiary of KB
Financial Group in January 2012. Its main business areas include loan
services, such as general loans and discounting of bills, and deposittaking, such as time deposits and installment savings. By embodying
the basics of “clean bank”, KB Savings Bank contributes to the
stability of the banking sector dedicated to low-income households
and small businesses by offering financial products and services
tailored to their needs, thus fulfilling the fundamental role of savings
banks.

Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Key Financial Indicators 		

(Unit: KRW in billions)

Total Assets 		

25.5

Total Assets 		

646.7

Total Shareholders’ Equity 		

14.8

Total Shareholders’ Equity 		

136.4

Net Income		

-1.5

Net Income		

-34.9

* As of December 31, 2012

* As of December 31, 2012
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CEO’s
Message

Dear valued shareholders and customers,
Last Year the world economy remained subdued amid the fallouts of
the global financial crisis as the Eurozone crisis lingered, developed
economies faltered, and the growth of emerging markets slowed.
The Korean economy could not stay immune to these effects either,
ending the year with 2% in growth, its lowest since the Asian financial
crisis in 1999. In the face of these challenges, all of us at KB Financial
Group strove to the best of our abilities to strengthen the Group’s
business lines.
We stayed at the forefront of key developments in the industry.
KB Kookmin Bank became the industry’s first to attract more than 5 million
smart-banking customers. It also maintained a leading position in
investment banking and was selected as the treasury bank for five
municipalities.
The Bank outperformed its peers through innovative products and
services: namely, “KB Rock Star,” a branch channel tailored to youth
customers, and “KB Hidden Star 500,” a program to foster sound
small and medium-sized companies. Moreover, the Bank led the wealth
management service sector with “KB Golden Life Service” and “KB Real
Estate R-easy Service”. Meanwhile, the Bank established a subsidiary
in China and a branch in Osaka, Japan as part of its strategy to secure
global competitiveness.
In the non-banking business, we further strengthened the foundation
for sustainable growth against a backdrop of intensifying competition
and deteriorating profitability. KB Kookmin Card maintained its No. 1
position in the check card business; KB Investment & Securities
continued its unrivalled market leadership in underwriting; KB Life

Annual Report 2012
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Facing daunting challenges,
KB Financial Group stayed at
the forefront setting records
and leading change in 2012

Insurance reached KRW 5 trillion in total assets;

ratio played big roles in increasing deposits and

and KB Asset Management achieved the industry’s

decreasing borrowings.

highest return rate. These triumphs are attributable to
the subsidiaries’ sustainable efforts to “Change and
Innovate.”

In asset quality, we took a number of pre-emptive
measures to address growing concerns over
household debt while sustaining our bad debt

We actively carried out various social contribution

reduction efforts. As a result, the Group’s overall NPL

programs as a caring corporate citizen. Some of these

ratio decreased by 0.04%p over the year to 1.40%,

programs include financial support for low-income

while the NPL coverage ratio rose by 7.14%p to

customers, economics and financial education, and

170.54%.

promotion of “KB Goodjob,” a job program linking
employers and job seekers.

Operating income before provisions decreased by
KRW 892.1 billion to KRW 4,019.2 billion while net

In recognition for these efforts, the Bank was ranked

income decreased by KRW 670.1 billion to KRW

first in the NCSI, Korea’s most prestigious customer

1,702.9 billion due mostly to downward market

survey, for the seventh consecutive year and KB

interest rates and increased losses on securities.

Kookmin Card received the top score in the credit

Meantime, our efforts to diversify the Group’s business

card sector. The Group also enjoyed the highest

portfolio through acquisition of ING Life Korea did not

brand recognition among financial companies in

bear satisfactory results.

Korea.

We are very conscious that we could not fully leverage

Meanwhile, the Group increased its total assets by

the growth and business diversification opportunities,

KRW 4.4 trillion during 2012 to KRW 282.0 trillion.

and I express a sincere regret in that regard. This

Of this amount, total loans were KRW 212.7 trillion,

year we will do our utmost to deliver performances

an increase of KRW 0.6 trillion. Deposits increased

that will be meaningful and satisfactory to all of our

by KRW 4.1 trillion to KRW 194.4 trillion while

shareholders.

borrowings and debentures combined decreased
by KRW 3.8 trillion to KRW 40.1 trillion. The general
preference of banking customers for safe assets and
the Group’s continued focus on its loan-to-deposit

KB Financial Group
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At the start of each year, we forecast the new year

First, we will devote our foremost attention to

to be challenging; but given the current business

producing consistent financial performances and

environment at home and abroad, the year 2013 is

bolstering risk management. We will concentrate

expected to be particularly difficult compared with

on managing the financial performance of each and

the past several. The on-going Eurozone crisis and

every one of our subsidiaries to better control high-

slowing emerging markets are fueling uncertainty

cost products and marketing expenses, optimizing

throughout the world, raising the possibility of a long-

investments through the select-and-focus approach,

term stagnation.

and realizing stable profit flows through sound asset

Facing such challenges on the horizon, we resolve to
focus our attention and resources on strengthening
inner values and enhancing customer trust. This
objective is in line with our mid-to-long term strategy

growth and NIM management. In addition, we will
establish an integrated risk management system at
the Group level and take decisive actions to reduce
household debts.

of “Maximizing profitability through value-focused

Second, we will hone our competitive edge by

growth.”

reinforcing our core business lines and expanding

In the midst of persisting economic uncertainty and a
new government taking shape, demand has intensified
for active social roles and higher ethical standards for
financial institutions. With these daunting obstacles in
place, we feel all the more compelled to concentrate
on our new management objective, “Stronger Inner
Value and Higher Customer Trust.” We will undertake
the following four tasks to execute this goal efficiently.

the base for new growth engine. We will continue to
expand the customer base by strengthening our core
business areas such as retail banking and credit card
where we excel by far, and by adopting innovative
marketing approaches that better appeal to blue
chip corporations and promising new companies.
In addition, we will bolster our smart-banking
capabilities, asset management services, overseas
businesses, and other new-growth businesses
underpinning the Group’s future competiveness.

Annual Report 2012
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We will unite our forces in taking
on the coming challenges and
turning them into opportunities to
grow into a leading financial group

Third, we will earn more trust from our customers

The year 2013 is expected to be a year of exceptional

by staying committed to our social role and the

challenge. However, like the saying, “Behind every

principles of management. We believe customer trust

moving cloud awaits a clear blue sky,” we will unite

is our most valuable asset. We have worked hard for

our forces in taking on the coming challenges and

customer trust through various efforts carried out

turning them into opportunities to grow into a leading

under our slogan of “We Think of You First.” With our

financial group.

focus on customer trust and social respect, we will
actively take part in resolving household debt issue,
offer financial support to low-income customers, and
protect customer rights.
Lastly, we will take all measures necessary to
strengthen the Group’s long-term competitiveness.
By listening to shareholders and board members, we

I would like to express my deepest gratitude to all of
our shareholders and customers for their continued
support and encouragement. On behalf of everyone
at KB Financial Group, I wish you and your loved
ones health and prosperity.
Thank you.

will seek out ways to diversify the Group’s business
portfolio and develop additional sources of income.
We will offer our employees continuous training and
development opportunities and prepare talented
individuals for key roles in the Group. We will continue
to pursue change and innovation from the bottom
and promote our corporate culture based on the KB
spirit to pursue “customer focus, professionalism,
creativity, speed, and performance.”
By executing these tasks outlined above, all of us will
deliver a financial performance worthy of the support
and expectations of our shareholders.

Yoon-Dae Euh
Chairman & CEO
KB Financial Group Inc.

KB Financial Group
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2012 Highlights
KB Financial Group is laying the foundation for its future
competitiveness by cultivating its achievements today into
sustainable growth for tomorrow

KB Financial Group
Group Competitiveness
Strengthened and Diversified
KB Financial Group maintains strong leadership in many financial
areas, including retail banking, retirement pension, and check card.
In 2012, the Group increased its dominance in key markets and
honed its competitiveness in the non-banking financial sector.
These actions have diversified the Group’s income sources,
improved the efficiency of its operations, and stabilized its profit
base. KB Kookmin Card ranked first in the check card market,
KB Investment & Securities increased its dominance in wholesale
banking, and KB Life Insurance exceeded KRW 5 trillion in total
assets, to name but a few of the Group’s achievements. Despite
difficult market conditions, KB Asset Management recorded stable
rates of return, and KB Savings Bank established a competitive
position in the market. These accomplishments are the evidence of
KB Financial Group’s continuous efforts to build a strong foundation
for sustainable growth.

develop products and services tailored to customers’ needs.
These efforts led to tangible results, including the Company’s No. 1
positions in the check card market as well as in various customer
satisfaction indices.

KB Investment & Securities
Enhancing Stature as Leader in Underwriting
Corporate Bonds
KB Investment & Securities ranked No. 1 for the past two
consecutive years in the Bloomberg tally of the domestic corporate
bond issuance market. It launched a new online brand, “KB
Smartalk,” to offer high-quality stock trading services. Furthermore,
the Company became the first in the securities industry to launch a
stock trading application for smartphone users, thus taking the lead
in the high-growth potential MTS market. Meanwhile, it steadily
increased its number of branches reaching ten at the end of 2012.
Therefore, KB Investment & Securities is increasing its market
dominance and competitiveness in both online and offline markets.

KB Kookmin Bank
Strengthening Reputation as
Korea’s Leading Bank
In 2012, KB Kookmin Bank focused on “Change and Innovation”
as part of its vision of becoming a “global bank that leads the Asian
financial industry” and strengthened its stature as Korea’s leading
bank. In retail banking, an area where it excels by far, the Bank
further reinforced its competitiveness by opening multiple specialty
branches to better accommodate changing customer needs and
lifecycles. In the field of asset management, KB Kookmin Bank
bolstered its customized, comprehensive asset management
system by launching “STARTABLE,” an asset management brand,
opening a “Star PB Center,” and offering a “KB Golden Life” service.
Notably, KB Kookmin Bank established itself as a leader in smartbanking by becoming the first bank to attract more than 5 million
smart-banking customers.

KB Kookmin Card
Building a Customer Value-Oriented System
Placing its highest priority on customer value, in 2012 KB
Kookmin Card took innovative steps towards enhancing customer
satisfaction. To render its operations more customer-focused, the
Company adopted a number of creative measures to put greater
emphasis on customer service while exploring many ways to

KB Asset Management
Flagship Fund Ranks No. 1 in Return Rate
KB Asset Management’s flagship fund, “KB Value-Focus Fund,”
ranked No. 1 among domestic equity funds in return rate for the
three years since its release in 2009. It became the industry’s
leading fund by achieving the most outstanding long-term
performance. “KB Mid Small-cap Securities Master Fund,” another
of the Company’s flagship funds, posted an annual return rate of
36.15% in 2012 and maintains the No. 1 position in the less-thana-year yield rate. “KB Growth Focus Fund,” a growth fund, ranks
among the top 5% in the five-year yield rate category.

KB Investment
Achieving Substantial Growth in AUM
In 2012 alone, KB Investment took part in the KoFC-POSCOHanwha-KB Joint Growth PEF worth KRW 200 billion, the KoFC
Value Up PEF amounting to KRW 65 billion, the KT Global
Investment Partnership PEF totaling KRW 475 billion, and formed
the KB12-1 Venture Fund worth KRW 50 billion. As a result, the
Company’s total AUM went up by a whopping KRW 790 billion
from the previous year to reach KRW 1,425 billion as of the end
of 2012. KB Investment is assuming leadership in the venture
investment and PE investment markets.

Annual Report 2012
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2012 Awards & Recognitions
KB Financial Group’s efforts to shape a better future
for finance garnered various awards. The Group and
its affiliates together received 226 awards in 2012

KB Financial Group

KB Investment & Securities

Best Company in Corporate Governance

Certified as Leader in DCM

KB Financial Group received the Grand Prize at the 2012 Transparent
Management Awards hosted by the Korean Accounting Association
and the Korean Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The award
was in recognition of the Group’s maintenance of the highest level of
transparency in management among the listed companies in Korea.
The Group also received the 2012 “Excellent Company Award in
Corporate Governance” from the Corporate Governance Service.
Additionally, the Group made the DJSI Asia Pacific and Korea Index
for a fourth consecutive year, confirming its international standards
in management transparency and business sustainability. These
awards have strengthened further the market leadership of KB
Financial Group and enhanced its brand value. In fact, “KB” was
the most recognized brand in 2012 in the financial industry as the
Group received the “Most-Popular-Brand-of-the-Year” award and
was selected by 1,000 college students across the nation as the
best place to work for.

KB Investment & Securities received the “Best Straight Bond
House Award” at the 2011 thebell League Table Awards in January
2012, followed by the “Best Award” in the bonds category from
Asia Business Daily. The Company thus reinforced its leadership
position in DCM. The Company’s CEO received the “This Year’s
CEO” award in the communication management category from
the Joongang Monthly and another CEO award in the trust-based
management category from the Korea Economic Daily.

KB Kookmin Bank
Best Bank in Customer Satisfaction
KB Kookmin Bank became the first in the industry to rank No. 1 for
a seventh year in a row in the banking category of the prestigious
NCSI (National Customer Satisfaction Index). It also took first
place for a sixth consecutive year in the banking category of the
KCSI (Korean Customer Satisfaction Index). The recognitions
are reaffirmations of the Bank’s unrivaled leadership in customer
satisfaction. The Bank’s excellence in customer satisfaction
extended to its business realm as well. It received the highest credit
ratings among Korea’s commercial banks from Moody’s, S&P,
and Fitch, the troika in the world of credit rating. It was chosen
as “Korea’s best export and import finance bank” for a second
consecutive year by ‘Trade Finance’, which is owned and run by
Euromoney in UK. These accolades make it clear that the Bank
is well on its way towards becoming a global financial institution
leading Asian financial industry.

KB Life Insurance
Best Customer Service
KB Life Insurance ranked No. 1 for the seventh consecutive year
in the call center category of KSQI (Korean Service Quality Index).
KSQI is based on customer evaluations of the quality of call center
services, and is an important barometer of the competitiveness
and potential success of businesses that rely heavily on customer
satisfaction. Call centers play an important role in the increasingly
competitive world of the life insurance business. The Company also
maintained the top rating for four consecutive years in the Financial
Supervisory Service’s annual survey of life insurance-related civil
complaints.

KB Asset Management
Emerged as Best Asset Management Company
KB Asset Management received the Grand Prize in the asset
manager category of the “2012 Securities Awards of Seoul
Economic Daily.” In addition to this recognition for its outstanding
management capabilities, the Company received many other
awards, including the Best Domestic Small- to Mid-Sized Fund
Award of the “2012 Herald Business Fund Awards,” Best Domestic
Equity Fund Award of the “2012 Money Today Fund Awards,” and
the Gold Prize in the asset management category of the Maeil
Economic Daily’s “2012 Securities Man Awards.”

KB Financial Group
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SMART VALUES

Vision & Strategies
By pursuing customer value-focused innovation based on
clear objectives and strategic plan, KB Financial Group will
continue its march towards “Global Financial Group Leading
the Asian Financial Industry”

Vision & Strategies

Group Vision & Core Strategies
KB Financial Group has set “maximizing profitability through stable
growth” as its mid- to long-term strategic direction in its path
towards realizing its vision of becoming a “global financial group
leading Asian financial industry” and to accomplish its management
goal of becoming one of “Asia’s top 10 and the world’s top 50.”
The Group is implementing eight major strategic initiatives –
optimized bank portfolio, diversified non-banking services, firm
global business foundation, pursuit of M&As, competitive asset
management services, diversified distribution channels, sound risk
management, and comprehensive performance-based HR system.
Specifically, the Group will strengthen its market dominance in
retail banking while bolstering its competitiveness in wholesale
banking in order to optimize its banking business portfolio. As for
its non-banking sector, it aims to bring the sector’s share to 30%
of its total income through selective diversification and synergy
maximization. Expansion of the global network and other efforts
are planned as part of its long-term strategy to secure international
competitiveness beyond its dominance in domestic market. To
overcome the limits of organic growth, the Group will continue
to explore M&A opportunities that are rational and realistic given
the market conditions and the Group’s fundamentals. It will shift
from the current sales-centered business approach to consultingbased asset management services. To further solidify its market
dominance, the Group will build a network of complementary
diverse channels, including that of smart-banking. Moreover, the
Group will pursue preemptive risk management in earnest by
building an integrated risk system at the group level and adopting
advanced risk monitoring techniques. Lastly, by upgrading its
performance-based HR system, the Group will attract and foster
financial experts in various areas.
Against the backdrop of increasing competition in the Korean
financial market, KB Financial Group will actively make inroads into
strategically important overseas markets and build the foundation
for sustainable presence in the global market.

2012 Management Strategies & Results
The Year 2012 saw a number of challenges both at home and
abroad, including the global financial crisis, intensifying competition,
and a transfer of government administration, to name a few. In the
backdrop of such unsettling business conditions, KB Financial
Group set “maximizing management efficiency through enhanced
productivity” as its strategic management direction for 2012, and
took the following four major initiatives:

First, the Group focused on increasing the productivity of its
business operations and fostering a performance-oriented culture.
Changes and innovations were continually adopted to form a basis
for stable profit generation. As a result, the Group successfully
improved its management fundamentals, leading to increases in
management efficiency and business productivity. We also made
progress towards empowering a performance-based culture that
is rational and fair, such as the introduction of “Sales Star Mileage.”
Second, the Group adopted a number of advanced preemptive risk
management measures. The Group maintained its asset quality at
a stable level by strengthening its ERM system and asset quality
controls. The Group also developed regulation index and other
measures to effectively respond to the Basel III and other regulatory
changes.
Third, the Group further improved its synergy creation and marketing
capabilities. Through trend-setting services, including “KB Rock
Star” and “KB Hidden Star, ”the Group enhanced its brand value
in a unique and innovative manner. “KB Golden Life Service” was
launched as part of the marketing strategies to keep pace with
a rapidly aging society as well as to strengthen the Group’s key
customer base. As a result, KB Kookmin Bank became the first
in the banking industry to place first in Korea’s foremost customer
survey for an unprecedented seventh year in a row.
Lastly, the Group strengthened its market position in the nonbanking businesses. KB Kookmin Card ranked first for two
consecutive years in the check card market, and KB Investment &
Securities came in first for the second straight year in underwriting
corporate bond. The Group further sustained its growth in the nonbanking sector by developing new-growth businesses. As a result,
the Group became the first in the financial industry to surpass
the 5 million mark in the number of smart-banking customers.
Moreover, the Group unveiled “KB Real Estate R-easy Service,” a
comprehensive asset management service for real estate owners
looking for higher returns on their properties.

2013 Strategic Business Direction
In 2013, KB Financial Group will focus on strengthening inner
values and enhancing customer trust. The on-going Eurozone
debt crisis is fueling economic uncertainty throughout the world,
while there are stronger voices for financial institutions to take on
greater social responsibilities and practice more stringent ethical
standards. Against this backdrop, KB Financial Group will endeavor
to sustain its growth by being committed to its basic principle of
management: “stronger inner values and more customer trust.” To

Annual Report 2012

stay fully true to this principal, the Group will execute the following
four key initiatives:
First, the Group will pursue stable financial performance. It will
explore ways to deliver stable income and cut costs, including a
select-and-focus investment approach and cost management of
high-cost products and marketing expenses. Moreover, the Group
will institute an integrated risk management system at the group
level and take more proactive steps to nip in the bud a growing
national household debt issue.
Second, the Group will fortify the foundation for growth. It will
increase its dominance of key markets including retail banking
and credit card. To expand its prime customer base, it will channel
marketing efforts and resources towards blue-chip corporations and
promising companies. Furthermore, it will strengthen the foundation
for new-growth businesses to ensure its future competitiveness.
Third, the Group will enhance customer loyalty. To gain more
trust from customers as well as from society, it will strengthen
its corporate citizenship by practicing management-by-principle,
making contributions to solve the housing debt issue and
supporting the low-income-class banking sector. To this end, it
will continue to adopt systems and processes based on customer
needs and interests.
Lastly, the Group will strengthen its future competencies. To
bolster its organizational competitiveness, it will shape its structural
operation to become more customer-focused and synergy-based.
It will secure talent comparable to certified financial consultants in
job expertise and competency to enhance its HR competitiveness.
Furthermore, the Group will continue to promote voluntary change
and innovation at the branch level, encouraging employees at all
levels of the organization to take initiatives and foster a corporate
culture compatible with the KB spirit.

Strategic Direction by Business
Banking
While the banking industry is expected to run into a number of
challenges that could affect growth, profitability and asset quality,
demand for bigger roles in society will continue to grow. Accordingly,
KB Kookmin Bank set “strengthening sustainable management
based on fundamentals and principles” as its strategic management
direction in 2013. While pursuing change and innovation within its
operations, the Bank will promote co-prosperity and cooperation
with society. It will build a sustainable management system that can
operate proactively even in a crisis situation by implementing four
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key initiatives– strengthen social responsibilities, maintain stable
financial performances, enhance the customer-centered operating
system, and develop future growth drivers.

Credit Card
In 2013 tougher consumer-protection laws and industry
regulations are expected, further constricting the credit card
market. In response, credit card companies are likely to take active
steps towards strengthening their profit bases and developing
new markets. Accordingly, KB Kookmin Card has defined its
strategic management direction for 2013 as “overcoming crises
by strengthening the profit base.” To this end, the Company will
enhance its marketing efficiency through detailed customer analysis,
expand the base for future profit generation, and optimize the risk
management system. It also will fulfill its social responsibilities by
actively engaging in community service activities as well as those
aimed at protecting the rights and interests of customers.

Securities
The current sluggish trading environment is expected to continue
for a protracted period, along with anticipation and anxiety fueled
by political changes taking shape and the mounting economic
uncertainty. In the backdrop of such expectations, KB Investment &
Securities will further bolster its competitiveness in its key business
areas, including wholesale banking and corporate sales. It also
will strive to provide cutting-edge securities services in the retail
sector by strengthening its mobile business base, building a sales
infrastructure based on the Group’s extensive distribution network,
and strengthening its HR power by scouting first-rate experts.

Life Insurance
The life insurance market is likely to face a host of difficulties in 2013
as it enters the maturity phase, with insurance companies engaging
in fierce competition in pursuit of bigger market shares, combined
with more stringent regulations. To overcome these difficulties, KB
Life Insurance will revamp its dedicated channels and build up a
stable growth base, continuously upgrading its channel portfolio to
strengthen its stature as a comprehensive insurance company. It will
manage its long-term financial health by implementing profitabilitybased product sales strategies, diversifying asset management,
and revamping risk management. KB Life Insurance will persist
in offering products that stand out among the competition and
engage in customer-oriented marketing to win the hearts and
minds of its customers.
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Asset Management
The looming uncertainty fanned by the on-going Eurozone debt
crisis, the continued sluggishness in the domestic real estate
market, increasing regulations, and intensifying competition are
some of what makes 2013 an exceptionally challenging year for
asset management. Accordingly, KB Asset Management will strive
to maintain its stable rates of return with a renewed focus on equity
funds, one of its key strengths. It will develop flagship funds that
can lead the market. The Company will devote more resources to
promoting its long-term funds, equity-linked life insurance products,
and ETFs and develop them into growth drivers. Moreover, it will
continue to diversify its sales channels by actively exploring all
options available.

Global Business
Facing the limits of the increasingly competitive domestic financial
market and the needs to sustain healthy growth, KB Financial
Group is compelled to make active inroads into overseas markets
that offer great growth potential as well as a competitive advantage
for the Group in the global market. To effectively take advantage of
these markets, the Group will use its domestic strengths to build
up a strong basis for developing global competitiveness. In order
to secure a viable business foundation overseas, it will seek M&A
opportunities and establish a network in major strategic markets.

KB Financial Group is bolstering its competitive edge by continually
overhauling its organization and pursuing seamless cooperation
between its banking and non-banking affiliates. As part of its
efforts to enhance the competitiveness of its non-banking sector,
the Group spun off KB Kookmin Bank’s credit card division in
March 2011 to create KB Kookmin Card, resulting in increased
competitiveness for the Group’s credit card business. KB Investment
& Securities merged with KB Futures as a proactive response
to changes expected in the financial environment following the
introduction of the Capital Markets Act of 2011 and bolstering the
competitiveness of the financial investments sector. KB Savings
Bank was established in January 2012 to promote the stability of
the low-income-class banking sector.
The holding company of KB Financial Group serves as the corporate
center, supervising the entire organization. Major changes to the
holding company’s organization include the appointment of a new
CRO in July 2011 to strengthen independence and expertise in
risk management. CSR & Culture Management Department was
created in January 2012 to enhance social contribution activities
at the group level.

Senior Management
Yoon-Dae Euh

Young-Rok Lim

Jong-Kyoo Yoon

Wang-Ky Kim

Chairman & CEO

President

Deputy President & CFO

Deputy President & CPRO

Seok-Heung Ryu

Min-Ho Lee

Won-Keun Yang

Dong Chang Park

Deputy President & CIO

Deputy President & CCO

Deputy President

Deputy President

Yong-Jin Cho

Kyung-Sup Han

Dong-Cheol Lee

Kyu Sul Choi

Managing Director & CHRO

Managing Director & CRO

Managing Director

Managing Director
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Synergy Creation
Synergy creation drives KB Financial Group’s continued
growth, harnessing energies for the Group to enhance
its corporate value as well as customer satisfaction

Strategic Direction
The first step of KB Financial Group in creating synergy is to build a
platform for synergy creation. The next step focuses on broadening
the scope of synergy creation and strengthening synergy
competencies. The third step is to maximize the combined effect of
the synergies employed in business operations.

2012 Performance
The basic direction for KB Financial Group’s 2012 synergy
creation strategy was to “maximize the Group’s synergies and
marketing capabilities by offering top-notch, comprehensive
financial services.” Specifically, the Group focused on solidifying
the customer base, bolstering the competitiveness of products and
services, and taking initiatives in smart-banking.

Group Customer Base Solidified
For better utilization of its customer database, the Group upgraded
the CRM system and thus enabled its affiliates to generate more
detailed customer analyses. The upgraded CRM system provides
the affiliates with tools and information to identify potential customers
and targets for cross-selling. In addition to the expansion of the BIB
(Branch In Branch) system applied to KB Kookmin Bank and KB
Investment & Securities, the Group created in 2012 a BWB (Branch
With Branch) system to bolster the competitiveness of its securities
operations.

Product and Service Competitiveness Enhanced
In April 2012, KB Financial Group rolled out an ambitious hybrid
product, “Time Deposit Plus KB Fund.” This is the Group’s fifth
multi-product that caters to customers who want the stable income
guaranteed by time deposits combined with the extra income that
funds can offer. In the service area, the Group featured “KB Golden
Life” to establish a comprehensive customer asset management
system at the group level. The Group also raised the concept of
customer-tailored service by a notch by introducing “R-easy,” a
real estate related total asset management service that covers the
entire lifecycle of real estate, from pre-purchase market search to
management to liquidation.
In May 2012, “KB Financial Wealth Management Festival Together
with Star Table” was held in Seoul. With participation by KB
Kookmin Bank, KB Kookmin Card, KB Investment & Securities, KB
Life Insurance, and KB Asset Management, the festival served to
promote the Group’s brand power in wealth management services.

Securing Leadership in Smart-Banking
The number of customers using “KB Star Banking,” a smartphone
banking service, exceeded 5 million in October 2012. This service
was the first of its kind to break this important industry milestone.
The Group also rolled out “KB Talking Installment Savings,”
which was well received by customers for its use of an endearing
interactive character. In addition, the Group opened Smart Branch
No. 1, a new-concept branch model, and released an integrated
smartphone application to help customers use the Group’s various
financial services with ease and convenience.

2013 Plans
The basic direction for KB Financial Group’s synergy creation
strategy 10 2013 is “maximizing the Group’s synergy effects
through balanced growth among affiliates.” Towards this end, KB
Financial Group plans to focus on the following tasks:

Maximizing Synergy
To strengthen cooperation among its affiliates, the Group will adopt
ways in which the affiliates collectively can identify any potential
sources of synergy. The Group will effectively utilize its purchasing
power to create synergy in saving on costs.

Generating Group CRM-based Synergies
The Group will rely on its CRM system to conduct customer
analysis at the group level and use any information thus generated
to identify evolving customer needs and create marketing initiatives
and opportunities. The Group will promote and supervise joint
marketing among its affiliates.

Expanding the Synergy Base through
Enhancing Customer Value
The Group plans to expand its synergy base through better focused
management of customers, products, services, and channels at
the group level. It will strengthen the market monitoring system
to keep abreast of constantly evolving customer needs and will
develop market-leading multi-products that reflect social trends
and customer expectations. Plans have been drawn up to advance
customer asset management services at the Group level and to
bolster the competitiveness of multi-branch channels.

Strengthening Dominance in Smart-Banking
The Group will offer a wide array of smart-banking products and
services to strengthen its leadership in smart-banking and enhance
customer convenience and value.

KB Financial Group
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IT System
With advanced IT system, KB Financial Group
continues to support its subsidiaries’ efficient
management and stable growth

IT System • Risk Management

Strategic Direction
KB Financial Group has adopted ‘improving Group-wide IT
operating systems phase by phase with the goal of maximizing its
synergies’ as a strategic IT objective. For this objective, the Group
sets up and carries out an execution strategy step by step, from
formation of a basis for creating synergies to improvement of IT
management efficiencies which will be followed by enhancement
of IT services.

2012 Results
Establishment of Group IT Operation Process
The Group has established an IT collaboration process by creating
an ‘IT Strategy Committee’ and putting the committee in charge
of examining major IT issues facing the Group and formulating
effective strategies to address them. All subsidiaries play integral
roles in the newly established collaboration process. In addition,
the Group has improved IT investment management by setting up
IT business planning process and operating guidelines in order to
assists its subsidiaries in planning for their IT projects, and to review
such projects and fine-tune them, if necessary. The Group further
arranges collaboration for any similar or overlapping investments
and monitors the project progress on a regular basis.

Generation of Synergy through Joint Projects
The Group operates the unified smart-banking applications of its
major subsidiaries, including KB Kookmin Bank, KB Kookmin Card,
and KB Investment & Securities. This is intended to make its smartbanking services distinctive, improve customer service, enhance its
smart image in smart-banking business. The webmail domains of
its subsidiaries were unified in 2012 into one domain to enhance
the overall image of KB Financial Group and to heighten the brand
value. In addition, the Group’s mobile portal system was built to
promote efficient decision making and effective communication
within the Group. Also, a business information monitoring system
was set up to assist the top management in assessing up to date
business performance of each subsidiary and making decisions in
a timely manner.

Strengthening of IT Security and Increasing
Cost Efficiency
In response to increasing data-breaching incidents and IT security
threats, the Group has implemented a number of IT security
controls and diagnostic programs. Also, a PC security solution is in
place to prevent sensitive data from reaching outside the Group’s
intranet. Meanwhile, by jointly purchasing IT supplies in bulk and
promoting joint project development, the Group endeavors to save
on IT expenses.

2013 Plans
KB Financial Group will actively respond to developments in new
information technologies to increase customer satisfaction and
efficiently support its subsidiaries. For this, it will continually improve
its internal IT development process and thereby boost efficiencies
in the overall IT system operations.
To better comply with regulations set forth by government
authorities, including the Electronic Finance Supervision, the Group
will increase the productivity of its IT staff by adjusting the number
and roles of its IT personnel. In addition, the Group will maintain
close communication with its subsidiaries in regards to major IT
projects so as to minimize insufficiency and promote joint use of
resources. Various measures will be established to increase group
synergy, enhance service quality, and increase the efficiency of the
Group’s IT operations.
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Risk Management
Through rigorous and preemptive risk
management, KB Financial Group assist
its subsidiaries in realizing stable growth
under all circumstances
Risk Governance
The basic risk management objectives of KB Financial Group are
to increase transparency of risks it faces, prevent risk transference
among the subsidiaries, and enhance its capabilities to proactively
respond to rapid changes in the financial environment. Based on
these, the Risk Management Committee and Risk Management
Team at the group level focus their competencies on efficiently
supporting the Group’s long-term business strategy and decision
making.
The Risk Management Committee is the Group’s top decisionmaking organization in the area of risk management. The Committee
formulates risk management strategies, determines the levels
of risk appetite, examines the Group’s risk management status,
and determines the application of risk management systems,
methodologies, and major revisions.
The Risk Management Council is composed of the chief risk
officers of the holding company and the subsidiaries. The Council
deliberates on matters entrusted by the Risk Management
Committee and consults on detailed risk management-related
issues. The Risk Management Department formulates detailed risk
management policies, procedures, and processes of the Group. It
is also responsible for monitoring and managing the Group’s risk
status and economic capital limits.

Risk Management
Credit Risk Management
The Group defines credit risk as expected and unexpected losses
that could arise from a counterparty’s default or credit rating
deterioration.
CREDIT POLICY

Based on its management strategies, the Group formulates
credit policies in consideration of economic outlooks, business
environment, asset soundness trends, and its risk management
capabilities. In accordance with these policies, loan management
policies are implemented by loan type – household, corporate,
and credit card. The basic direction of the Group’s credit policy
is to maximize its value by minimizing the volatility of mid- to longterm credit cost through stable asset quality management, which
ensures steady profit generation.

CREDIT RISK MEASURING & MONITORING

KB Financial Group employs a credit risk measuring system to
determine the credit VaR (Value at Risk) of on- and off-balance
sheet assets. Credit VaR represents the maximum loss that may
arise from changes in the creditworthiness of borrowers and
counterparties under normal banking operations within a certain
confidence level. Credit VaR is computed under simulation which
reflects changes triggered by credit migration and correlation
of cash flow and borrower default. The Group also identifies,
measures, and monitors credit concentration risk that may arise
from excessive concentration of the Group’s portfolio on a certain
individual or category of borrowers.
TOTAL EXPOSURE LIMITS MANAGEMENT

KB Financial Group has in place a total exposure limits system to
prevent asset concentration on a specific area, and to optimize the
Group’s credit portfolio through sound asset management. The Risk
Management Department regularly monitors this and reports its
observation results to the management and the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Department regularly monitors
this and reports its observation results to the management and the
Risk Management Committee.

Market Risk Management
KB Financial Group defines market risk as the threat of potential
loss on a trading position caused by fluctuations in market factors,
including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and stock prices.
It identifies, measures, monitors, controls, and reports market risks
in bond, foreign exchange, equity, and derivatives trading. Market
VaR quantifies the risks in trading accounts. It represents the
maximum loss of a portfolio over a period of time within a certain
confidence level. The Group compares the actual and hypothetical
losses to VaR calculations on a daily basis and test relevance of the
VaR model.

Interest Risk Management
The Group defines interest rate risk as the risk of a fall in net asset
value or net interest income (NII) from unfavorable fluctuations in
market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk management
objectives are to comprehensively manage assets and liabilities
to maximize net interest income within acceptable risk limits, and
to minimize potential losses on net interest margins from adverse
interest rate fluctuations.

018

SMART VALUES

KB Financial Group
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Liquidity Risk Management
The Group defines liquidity risk as the risk that arises from being
unable to respond to maturity mismatch and unexpected demand
or supply of funds. The Group systematically manages liquidity risk
with the goal of satisfying its obligations that arise from customer
deposit withdrawals, redemption of matured debentures, and
repayments of borrowings and maintaining sufficient liquidity for
loans and investments in securities.

Operational Risk Management
The Group defines operational risk as all financial and non-financial
risks arising in the course of operations that may adversely affect
the Group’s capital. The objectives of the Group’s operational risk
management are satisfying regulations set forth by government
authorities, and spreading the risk management culture across
the management and all employees through the reinforcement of
internal controls and improvement of work process.

Economic Capital Management
Economic capital is the capital required to prevent the Group’s
economic insolvency due to unexpected losses. The Group
measures, allocates and manages the economic capital in
accordance with risk types for all financial subsidiaries, thereby
maintaining group-wide capital adequacy. The Risk Management
Committee determines the Group’s risk appetite and assigns
economic capital limits by risk type and subsidiary. Each subsidiary,
in return, manages its capital within the prescribed range.

Stress Testing
The Group conducts stress testing to assess its capital adequacy
and to establish flexible risk management strategies in times of
sudden changes in the external environment, gauging its portfolio’s
potential vulnerability to exceptional but plausible macroeconomic
scenarios and establishing appropriate countermeasures. Stress
test results are reported to top management and the Risk
Management Committee, which use them to set risk levels, assess
capital adequacy, and guide the management’s decision making.

2013 Plans
In 2013 the Korean economy is expected to continue its low
growth and financial uncertainty to increase, amid concerns of
the on-going Eurozone debt crisis. This calls for risk management
in preparation for a system risk transference and a multi-layered
depression that could result from growing household bad
debts. Against this backdrop, KB Financial Group will make
continued efforts to enhance its asset quality and improve the risk
management structure, placing the highest priority on building up
risk management competencies and controlling credit losses, in
addition to actively responding to uncertainties in global finance
and changes in regulation.
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Corporate Governance
The Group will strive to maximize shareholder value
by establishing exemplary corporate governance and
transparent decision-making process

Board of Directors
Structure and Composition
The Board of Directors (BOD) of KB Financial Group comprises
12 members, including nine non-executive directors, as of March
2013, all appointed at the general shareholders’ meeting. The CEO
& chairman is elected by the BOD after receiving a recommendation
from the Chairman Nominating Committee, which consists solely of
non-executive directors. The Chairman of the BOD is elected from
among the non-executive directors. The Chairman presides over
the Board and ensures its active operation. All non-executive board
members have extensive knowledge and practical experience in
their own areas, including finance, management, law, accounting,
and the media, and have high reputation. The Non-Executive
Directors Nominating Committee recommends them in accordance
with the qualification criteria set forth in relevant regulations and in
the Group’s articles of incorporation.

MANAGEMENT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Management Strategy Committee establishes the Group’s
vision and mid- to long-term strategies, yearly business plans,
new strategic initiatives such as new alliances, and major financial
strategies.
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee acts as the top decision-making
unit that sets risk management strategies and policies on behalf of
the BOD to identify, measure, monitor, and control risks associated
with the Group’s and its subsidiaries’ various business operations.
EVALUATION & COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Evaluation & Compensation Committee, consisting of only nonexecutive directors, establishes the basic principles of compensation
structures within the Group. It is in charge of evaluation and com
pensation of key management officers such as directors, and
reviews plans for the succession of the chairman & CEO.

BOD Committees
KB Financial Group has five standing committees – Audit
Committee, Board Steering Committee, Management Strategy
Committee, Risk Management Committee, and Evaluation &
Compensation Committee – and non-standing committees – Nonexecutive Directors Nominating Committee and Auditor Nominating
Committee.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of non-executive directors to
safeguard its independence from the top management of the
Group. It evaluates the internal controls systems of the holding
company and the subsidiaries from an objective perspective. It
provides improvement measures for any vulnerable areas and
takes appropriate post facto action. As of the end of 2012, the
Committee comprised five non-executive directors, including two
accounting and financial experts.
BOARD STEERING COMMITTEE

The Board Steering Committee consists of the CEO, the BOD
chairman, and committee chairmen, and is chaired by the
chairman of the Board. It oversees improvement of the corporate
governance structure and the operational efficiency of the Board
and the committees and the development and monitoring of
training programs for directors, and the collection of shareholders’
opinions.

2012 Major Activities
In 2012, the BOD conducted 14 meetings and passed 28 resolutions
and discussed 33 reports. At each regular quarterly meeting, the
BOD was briefed on the quarterly business performance and
discussed diverse issues relating to the operation of the Group.
An interim board meeting was held to discuss a certain M&A issue.
At the interim meeting held in December, the BOD finalized the
budget and management plans for 2013. Informal gatherings for
discussions were also held to discuss measures on responding to
changes in the market environment and key management issues.

Shareholder Relations
KB Financial Group puts first its shareholder rights and makes
continued efforts to increase shareholder value. Despite the difficult
financial environment of 2012, the Group paid out a cash dividend
of KRW 600 per share.

Written Voting System
The Group is one of a few listed corporations to have a written
voting system in place for shareholders who cannot attend the
general shareholders’ meeting. As a way to respect and ensure
shareholders’ voting right, ballots are sent to all shareholders in
advance. The ballots sent back by shareholders are included in the
tally at the general shareholders’ meeting.
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Board of Directors
Kyung-Jae Lee

Jae-Wook Bae

Young-Jin Kim

- Chairman, Board of Directors, KB Financial Group
- Chairman, Board Steering Committee
- Member, Audit Committee

- Lawyer, Baejaewook Legal Office
- Chairman, Risk Management Committee
- Member, Board Steering Committee
- Member, Audit Committee

- Professor, Seoul National University’s College of
Business Administration
- Member, Audit Committee
- Member, Risk Management Committee

Kun-Ho Hwang

Jong-Cheon Lee

Seung-Hee Koh

- Visiting Professor, Seoul National University’s
College of Business Administration
- Chairman, Evaluation & Compensation Committee
- Member, Board Steering Committee
- Member, Risk Management Committee

- Professor, Dept. of Business Administration,
Soongsil University
- Chairman, Audit Committee
- Member, Board Steering Committee
- Member, Risk Management Committee

- Professor, College of Business Administration,
Sookmyung Women's University
- Member, Audit Committee
- Member, Evaluation & Compensation Committee

Young Kwa Kim

Young-Nam Lee

Jae-Mok Cho

- Senior Adviser, Korea Securities Finance Corporation
- Member, Management Strategy Committee
- Member, Evaluation & Compensation Committee

- CEO, Novas EZ Co., Ltd.
- Chairman, Management Strategy Committee
- Member, Board Steering Committee
- Member, Evaluation & Compensation Committee

- CEO, ACE Research Co., Ltd.
- Member, Management Strategy Committee
- Member, Evaluation & Compensation Committee

Yoon-Dae Euh

Young-Rok Lim

Byong-Deok Min

- Chairman & CEO, KB Financial Group Inc.
- Member, Board Steering Committee
- Member, Management Strategy Committee

- President, KB Financial Group Inc.
- Member, Risk Management Committee

- President & CEO, KB Kookmin Bank
- Member, Management Strategy Committee

Non-Executive Directors

Provision of Transparent, Fair Information
Two weeks before a general shareholders’ meeting, the Group
sends out to all shareholders information materials regarding
issues on the meeting’s agenda. In case of electing a director,
the director’s name, profile, and the recommender’s name are
provided. Prior to the fifth general shareholders’ meeting, an
invitation letter and reference information of the meeting’s agenda
were sent to all 146,897 shareholders. In accordance with relevant
laws, including the Commercial Law, public announcement on the
convocation of the meeting was made on two occasions in two
daily newspapers two weeks before the meeting. Information on
the holding of the shareholders’ meeting was also provided on the
website. Information materials regarding items on the meeting’s
agenda and the activities of non-executive directors were made
available at the headquarters office and posted on the homepage
two weeks before the general shareholders’ meeting. A video of the
meeting was made available on the Group’s homepage to ensure
transparency in corporate governance and Group management.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
To comply with Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act and
Korea’s internal accounting standards, the Group has established
internal control rules in financial reporting, appointed internal
accounting managers, created a unit managing related affairs, and
designated internal control officers in all departments.

Executive Directors

Non-Standing Director

Designing of Internal Controls over
Financial Reporting
KB Financial Group’s internal controls over financial reporting
were designed in consideration of the five components of
COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission), which are generally accepted criteria on internal
controls. The five components are control environment, risk
assessment, control activities, information and communication,
and monitoring. They enable protection of assets, prevention of
irregularities, and prevention and exposure of financial information
distortion. Each department’s relevant personnel and internal
controls manager conduct self-evaluation based on the criteria. A
dedicated organization on internal controls over financial reporting
examines the appropriateness of the evaluations.

Evaluation of Operation of Internal Controls
over Financial Reporting
All members of KB Financial Group conduct internal controls
over financial reporting in the course of business operations. An
evaluation was carried out on the effectiveness of internal controls
over financial reporting by using such criteria as the Internal
Accounting Control System Standards in Korea and the audit
criteria in relation to internal controls over financial reporting in the
US. The outcome of the evaluation indicates that KB Financial
Group’s internal controls over financial reporting are effectively
designed and operated from the perspective of significance as of
December 31, 2012.
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Corporate Culture
By attracting and fostering global talents
KB Financial Group will reinforce its reputation
as a global financial company

HR Management
KB People
The corporate culture of KB Financial Group is “customer-focused,”
“professional,” “innovative,” “speedy,” and “performance-oriented.”
Based on this corporate culture, all members of the Group are
striving to realize the Group’s vision of becoming a “global financial
group leading the Asian financial industry.” The model employee of
the Group is defined as “a professional financial expert who leads
change and improves customer value through creative thinking and
actions.” In particular, KB Kookmin Bank endeavors to discover and
foster experts who can lead the global financial market. A financial
professional is someone who is proactive, responsible, innovative
and can bring about change. He or she has a customer-oriented
mindset and takes initiatives to constantly enhance customer value.
He or she also knows how to respect and embrace different ways
of thinking and seeing things.

HR Principles and Strategies
The Group applies uniform HR principles and methods to the
entire scope of its business operations. To help its affiliates plan
for efficient HR management and deal effectively with major HR
issues, the Group has established an integrated system allowing
them to coordinate and cooperate on HR management, thereby
laying a foundation for generating manpower synergies at the
group level. On the affiliate level, the Group has promoted strategic
partnerships and balanced growth in HR management among the
affiliates through support for improving their personnel systems and
for cooperating on HR issues among them.
A sizable staff reallocation took place within the Group upon the
establishment of KB Savings Bank in 2012, resulting in increased
efficiencies in personnel management. KB Kookmin Bank held “KB
Global Language Exposition” to recruit potential global banking
specialists. “HR Open Space” was launched to promote seamless
communication with sales personnel at the branch level and thus
strengthening the platform for long-term growth. To increase its
market share in the non-banking sector, the Group continues to
explore ideal ways for finding skilled experts in such areas as credit
card, securities, insurance, and asset management.

Human Resources Development Programs
KB Financial Group regards the fortification of HR competencies as
one of its top priorities in bolstering its overall competitiveness. Each
affiliate operates its own in-house and off-site training programs
and has field-specific job competency development courses. For
example, KB Kookmin Bank nurtures banking experts according to
the four objectives of its HR development policy – strengthening job

competency, bolstering leadership competency, developing global
competency, and fostering core talent by, among other incentives,
offering its outstanding employees MBA courses at home and
abroad.
The Group will continue to seek higher productivity and profitability
by promoting active HR exchanges leading to balanced growth
among its affiliates, and strategically allocating manpower at the
group level. It also will keep its HR system a step ahead of its peers
to secure and retain financial talent. Moreover, it will grow into “the
best workplace with the best experts creating the best-possible
value” by firmly establishing a corporate culture that honors
competency and fairly rewards performance.

Labor-Management Relations
The holding company and its affiliates each operate its own labormanagement council, thereby building a culture of participation and
cooperation. Of the affiliates, KB Kookmin Bank, KB Kookmin Card,
and KB Real Estate Trust each have a labor union with not only a
labor-management council but also collective labor-management
relations in place.

Major Labor-Management Issues
In 2009, in response to a nationwide “job-share” campaign, the
labor union and the management reached an agreement for a 5%
across-the-board pay cut and the mandatory use of annual leave. In
2010, to enhance management efficiencies through improvements
in the personnel structure, the two sides again agreed to a
voluntary retirement plan involving 3,244 staff and employees, the
largest of its kind in the history of Korea’s financial industry. In 2011,
although there was initial demand for a substantial wage increase
to compensate for the wage freeze made in 2008, the union agreed
to a salary level suggested by the executive committee.
In 2012, a joint declaration by labor and management on the
future growth of the Bank was adopted to further strengthen labormanagement relations based on trust and cooperation. In addition,
labor and management agreed to donate around 20% of a pay
raise to a social joint fund. Other efforts are underway to build
progressive labor-management relations.
The labor and management of the Bank will together implement
various cooperation programs, and continually develop and
execute diverse measures to promote communications between
them and thus build a stronger partnership. By developing a new
labor-management culture, the Bank will enhance productivity
while fulfilling its social responsibilities.
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Social Contribution
KB Financial Group is doing its part to make a better
place for living by dedicating itself to social contributions

CSR Vision & Directions

Group-Level Social Contribution Activities

KB Financial Group sets an example in corporate citizenship and
applies the same degree of sincerity towards caring for the needy.
Aiming to become “the most respected corporate citizen,” the
Group has defined the following three tasks as its basic directives:
providing focused support to key project areas, making practical
contributions to the local community, and integrating earnest
social contributions into its corporate culture. While leveraging its
competencies and network to contribute more to society, the Group
shuns self-promotional or one-time events and instead conducts
programs and activities in close collaboration with the communities
involved. It also encourages all of its staff and employees through
various administrative support measures to actively take part in
social contributions.

KB STAR ECONOMY & FINANCE CLASS

Major CSR Activities
KB GoodJob
KB GoodJob is a job-matching program that KB Financial Group
launched in January 2011 as a way to promote employment and
alleviate a growing social issue. Information on job opportunities
at sound and promising SMEs is acquired through KB Kookmin
Bank’s approximately 1,200 branches and affiliated organizations
and is posted on a portal site that provides job information (www.
kbgoodjob.co.kr). As of the end of December 2012, the portal site
had about 30,000 job seekers and 12,000 companies registered.
Job seekers and companies that hire regular employees through KB
GoodJob are given preferential services for financial transactions.
KB Financial Group thus is taking the lead actively in resolving the
youth unemployment issue.
To promote KB GoodJob, the Group provides high-quality job
information by identifying promising companies and attracting
qualified and motivated job seekers. In addition, the Group seeks
the support of employment-related institutions such as schools
and trade organizations. In April 2012, the Group signed an
MOU with the Ministry of National Defense on creating jobs for
and promoting the employment of those who have served in the
army. In September 2012, the Group hosted in cooperation with
the Ministry of National Defense a job/business startup fair for
discharged or soon-to-be-discharged commissioned officers. In
May 2012, the Group successfully held the “2012 KB Goodjob
Promising Company Employment Exposition,” attracting some 250
prospective employers and over 18,000 job seekers.

To contribute to society by leveraging its expertise and help people
achieve financial self-reliance, KB Financial Group has chosen
“KB Star Economy & Finance Class” as its leading program. The
holding company and its affiliates each provide volunteers and
class contents. Former and current employees of the Group visit
elementary, junior high, and high schools throughout the country
to provide classes on the subjects of their expertise. The number
of students who took such classes neared 45,000 in 2012 alone,
while employees who participated in the program as lecturers
numbered 570.
SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION ACTIVITY BY KEY AREA

KB Financial Group has designated May as social contributions
month, and November and December as a “winter sharing” period.
Each year during these three months, all employees of the Group
take part in various philanthropic activities in close contact with
their local communities. The Group directs group-wide contribution
activities to the four key focus categories – youth, global, the
environment and wellbeing of the aged. The leading programs
include an excursion program with needy children, a program
aimed at restoring the damaged urban ecosystem and creating a
natural place for people to rest, a program that provides summer
and winter supplies to seniors living alone, and a vehicle support
program for some 50 social welfare facilities around the nation.
KB STAR DREAM VOLUNTEER TEAMS

KB Financial Group supports “KB Star Dream Volunteer Teams”
under the slogan “Thinking of People First” to provide hopes and
dreams to marginalized neighbors. All 1,200 or so branches of
the Group are members of one of the volunteer teams that each
represent one of the four key focus categories and take part in
related activities. All of the Group’s 25,000 or so employees have
taken part in at least one volunteer activity. As of the end of 2012,
the volunteers who have taken part in the program totaled around
80,000 and accumulated volunteer hours exceeding 340,000. The
number of hours an employee volunteered averaged 14 hours.
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KB Kookmin Bank
TEENAGER SPONSORSHIP PROGRAMS

KB Kookmin Bank supports teenagers from low-income families
by engaging them in learning and cultural activities. Its leading
programs include one aimed at reducing the information gap
between those in urban and rural areas; a program creating places
where less-privileged teenagers can study and build dreams; a
program that teams up teenagers of needy families with college
students for one-on-one tutoring and mentoring; and a program for
treating and counseling students involved in school violence.
GLOBAL VOLUNTEERING

KB Kookmin Bank is offering a helping hand to people in other
countries as well. “RaonAtti” is a Bank-sponsored overseas
volunteer team made up of college students. It carries out volunteer
activities for marginalized teenagers in seven Southeast Asian
countries. Another program provides Korean language learning
materials to students in four countries, including Vietnam and
Kazakhstan. This program contributes to increasing Korea’s global
stature and enhancing the image of Korea.
VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES INVOLVING COMMUNITY MEMBERS

KB Kookmin Bank also carries out a program centered on Korea’s
slowly disappearing heritage by promoting traditional markets
while helping needy people. In 2012 the Bank used 33 regional
HQ offices to execute the program, supporting some 7,900
underprivileged people with daily necessities by purchasing them at
traditional markets across the nation. The Bank’s extensive branch
network played a crucial role in adapting the volunteer activities
of the program to local characteristics. The program is one of the
Bank’s many ways to establish itself as a bank that shares and
grows together with the communities it serves.
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACTIVITIES

To promote green growth, since 2009 the Bank has been taking
part in a tree planting campaign with participation by the private
and government sectors as well as the military. In 2012, the Bank
planted around 20,000 trees together with the other organizations
taking part. The Bank’s regional headquarters across the nation
conduct on a regular basis environmental activities in their
respective regions.
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SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS-RELATED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

To carry out social responsibilities related to banking and other
financial services, the Bank develops and offers financial products
that cater to the underprivileged and promote public interests.
Some of these include a loan product designed to help the
financially marginalized achieve a stable and dignified lifestyle.
Another loan product helps people in the low-income class or with
low credit pay off or reduce their high interest-rate loans in the nonbanking sector. Other offerings include a free withdrawal account
that cannot be sequestrated and is exclusive to recipients of basic
living assistance, and a savings account that offers prime rates to
the underprivileged. Through these products, the Bank supports
the financial independence of those less fortunate.

KB Kookmin Card
TEENAGER SPONSORSHIP PROGRAMS

In 2012 KB Kookmin Card provided economic and financial
education to around 9,000 students in 60 schools in the Seoul
and Gyeonggi areas. By so doing, the Company contributed to
increasing the economic knowledge of these teenagers. The
Company also sponsored a “Huddling Concert” promoting the
prevention of and raising awareness about school violence.
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACTIVITIES

KB Kookmin Card conducted a volunteer program that involves
cleaning up a major stream and its banks in Seoul, as part of
its effort to protect the environment of the local community.
The Company also runs an employee volunteer program that
regularly keeps cultural assets and their vicinities clean. Through
these programs, the Company takes the lead in protecting its
communities’ environment and culture.
GLOBAL VOLUNTEERING

In response to a growing social trend, KB Kookmin Card has been
running a program for children of multicultural families for some
time. “Dream Day Camp” offers these children opportunities to
experience Korean culture and to learn about various professions.
By bringing them closer to Korean culture, the Company helps
these children deal with their language as well as cultural problems
and grow into an active member of Korean society. Through this
program, these children will build hopes and dreams for a better
future for themselves as well as for society as a whole.
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Social Contribution

SENIOR WELFARE PROGRAMS

Kookmin Card carries out a wide array of social activities for seniors
living alone. Around 400 employees visit such seniors each year
with daily supplies to comfort them. The Company’s call-center
employees call these seniors to provide them with emotional
support and care. Many teenagers who take part in the Company’s
economic and financial education program also volunteer to deliver
kimchi to the seniors. This kimchi-sharing program is emerging as
a new form of social contribution, as it involves the recipients of
one social contribution program of the Company giving to another.
SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION-RELATED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

KB Kookmin Card also carries out its social responsibilities using
its business expertise. It has recently introduced a product that
sets aside KRW 1,000 every time a customer uses the card to
make a purchase and donates the accumulated funds to the
underprivileged. The money is donated at year end to Good
Neighbors, UNICEF, and the Community Chest of Korea. The
Company also has a program in place that allows customers
to donate their credit card points to an NGO of their choice. As
such, this program encourages customers to take part in a social
program and become an active member of society.

KB Investment & Securities
KB Investment & Securities runs a program called “Rainbow
Classroom” that supports the reconstruction and remodeling
of elementary schools. In 2012, the scope of the program was
expanded beyond national boundaries when an elementary school
in Laos became its latest beneficiary. Voluntary employees of the
Company visited the school to provide education and engage in
other activities intended to build a friendship with people from the
school village. “Happy Food,” designed for unprivileged seniors,
is another of the Company’s leading social contribution programs
that raises funds through donations by employees of their pocket
money. Previously conducted at the company level, the program is
now carried out at each division with voluntary participation of its
employees.

KB Life Insurance
KB Life Insurance conducts diverse social contribution activities
with a focus on seniors and the environment so as to give a
helping hand to underprivileged neighbors and to promote green
growth. The leading programs designed for seniors include “Silver
Sports Festival,” “80th and 90th Birthday Parties for Seniors,”
and a program providing kimchi and briquettes. Programs for
environmental preservation include tree planting, cultivating a forest

in the middle of Seoul, and street cleaning. The Company also
supports teenagers and the underprivileged through economic and
financial education for teenagers and regular volunteer activities at
community welfare centers across the nation.

KB Asset Management
Pursuing responsible corporate citizenship, KB Asset Management
focuses on volunteer activities that encourage employee
participation and donation. For over seven years, the Company’s
employees have been volunteering their time by serving free meals
to the socially marginalized. This volunteer activity has become the
mainstay of the Company’s social contribution. Since 2012, the
Company has been funding the program’s operating expenses
that cover the costs of meals. The Company also provides financial
support to children suffering from diseases and sickness as a way
to help them build their hopes and dreams.

KB Real Estate Trust
KB Real Estate Trust runs an employee volunteer program through
which all employees each spend 10 hours a year volunteering. All
employees have been visiting one or two child welfare centers every
year for the past six years to bring care and love to underprivileged
children. The Company donates books to social welfare centers for
children and teenagers and funds to elderly care facilities and to the
underprivileged.

KB Investment
KB Investment views carrying out social activities as one of its most
important functions with a strong interest and deep consideration
for the communities of which it is part. One of these activities
is spending time outdoors with seniors at nursing homes and
delivering kimchi to needy neighbors around its business sites.

KB Credit Information
To contribute to its local community, KB Credit Information runs a
program through which employees visit community welfare centers
in the Company’s vicinity every month to serve free meals to lowincome residents and the homeless. Every second Tuesday is
designated as the “day of volunteering” as to remind its employees
to volunteer their time for social activities on a regular basis.
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KB Data System
Since the launching a “KDS Volunteer Team” in 2008, KB Data
System has been engaging in diverse social contribution activities
for its local communities and the underprivileged. Leading activities
include regularly visiting welfare centers for the elderly that includes
serving meals, sharing holiday rice cakes, and delivering rice in
the winter. Every November 17, the memorial day for martyred
ancestors, the Company’s employees and their children visit the
Seoul National Cemetery to pay their respects, and police up
surrounding areas.

KB Savings Bank
As part of its effort to promote the development of the local
community, KB Savings Bank runs a free meal program every week.
Held in a wholesale market for agricultural and marine products in
Seoul, the program is manned by volunteer employees who carry
out the entire process, including cooking and washing the dishes.
They also take part in environmental purification activities in the
vicinity and collect pocket change for donations.

Future Plans
KB Financial Group plans to further expand the scope of its
social contributions to become a “respected corporate citizen”
and thus achieve its CSR goal. Towards this end, the Group will
actively identify and execute strategic social contribution activities
that can increase both the level of its social contributions and
its corporate value as well. Moreover, it will create shared value
among the participating members of its social contribution activities
and establish a social contributions model unique to KB Financial
Group. By so doing, the Group will do its best to become true to its
motto, “A financial group that thinks of the people first and earns
the deepest respect from them.”

025

SMART INNOVATION

KB Financial Group

KB Kookmin Bank will make its way beyond being
Korea’s No. 1 through value focused growth

Retail Banking
KB Kookmin Bank
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Despite the worsening business environment in 2012, KB Kookmin
Bank steadily expanded its customer base in retail banking, thereby
demonstrating its growth momentum. By actively responding to
market changes, the Bank increased its low cost deposit base by
KRW 2 trillion and new conforming loans by KRW 3.8 trillion. In the
area of smartphone banking, its key future growth base, the Bank
became the first in Korea to attract more than 5 million “KB Star
Banking” customers. Furthermore, it sold 80,598 “Yellow Umbrella
Deduction” accounts to owners of SOHOs and small businesses.
Through these and other endeavors, the Bank secured a market
position that is overwhelmingly ahead those of its competitors.

No. 1 Bank in Customer Satisfaction
KB Kookmin Bank is a top-quality customer service provider
with advanced follow-up systems run by experts with global
competencies. In 2012 all of its employees made a united effort
towards its goal of “No. 1 bank in customer satisfaction.” Substantial
improvements were made to these systems based on customer
satisfaction competencies developed over a long period. A wide
consensus was reached among the employees on the importance
of customer satisfaction through active communication.

and cultural experiences to 430,000 young customers. In addition,
the Bank conducted distinctive marketing activities targeting
university students, including an overseas backpacking program,
indie band performances, and job seminars. In recognition of its
popularity, “Rockstar Zone” was chosen by KMAC as “The Best
Product Offering PROUD Customer Value of 2012.”
KB Kookmin Bank became the first in the domestic financial industry
to open “pop up” branches – a system where branches can be set
up wherever warranted. This system enables the Bank to provide
financial services even in new housing development districts, where
lack of infrastructure makes regular commercial banking services
difficult to procure, and in urgent disaster situations. The Bank also
opened specialized branches for office workers in two areas of
Seoul with a high density of office buildings in an effort to satisfy
the financial needs of the working population. The branches are
located in areas that are easily accessible to office workers and are
open from noon to 7pm for their convenience.
KB Kookmin Bank has broken away from the traditional uniform
branch structure, and instead developed and expanded a customercentric system that reflects customer needs and lifestyles. Through
these efforts, the Bank is strengthening and diversifying its sales
channels, and enhancing their efficiencies.

Through these efforts, KB Kookmin Bank further strengthened its
reputation as “the best bank in customer satisfaction” and has a
string of recognitions to show for it. The Bank ranked first in Korea’s
most prestigious customer survey, the NCSI (National Customer
Satisfaction Index), becoming the first in the banking sector to
take the top spot for the seventh consecutive year. The Bank also
came in first in the banking sector in the KCSI (Korean Customer
Satisfaction Index), for the sixth consecutive year. In addition, the
Bank received the “Customer Satisfaction Management Award”
at the Korea’s Management Awards and ranked first for the sixth
consecutive year in the banking category of the KNPS (Korean Net
Promoter Score).
Deposits in Won

Sales Channels Diversified
KB Kookmin Bank operates a variety of specialized branches
in accordance with local traits and customer characteristics.
Through such branches, the Bank aims to monitor and respond
in a timely manner to the fast-changing financial environment,
and to constantly evolving customer needs. A leading example is
“Rockstar Zone,” a branch identity for university students with the
goal of attracting potential customers by projecting as a youthful
bank to which they can relate. A total of 41 branches are located on
university campuses across the nation, offering financial services

186.7

(Unit: KRW in trillions)

189.1

177.4

2010

2011

2012
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Distinctive New Deposit Products Launched
KB Kookmin Bank strives to develop innovative new products
that boost customer satisfaction and generate growth. In 2012,
the Bank unveiled 13 new deposit products. A total of 332,280
accounts, amounting to KRW 6,300.1 billion, were opened as
of the end of the year. Various products were highlighted by the
media as hits and received positive customer responses. They
include “KB Talking Installment Deposits,” a specialized product
for smartphone users, featuring a talking, touch-sensitive character
that can guide users through the program steps; “KB FUNDRO
Time Deposits,” an asset management-type savings product that
reinvests principal and interest in funds as they mature; and “KB
Golden Life Installment Deposits,” a retirement savings program.

Wealth Management Service Strengthened
By offering professional, systematic wealth management services,
KB Kookmin Bank is continually expanding its customer base. In
2012, it held for the first finance expo for the banking, “KB Finance
Wealth Management Festival with Star Table,” publicizing its asset
management competencies. By launching “KB Golden Life,” a
wealth management brand for a retirement preparation assessment
system, the Bank laid a foundation for getting into the retirement
and pensions market, a key future growth driver. The Bank also
unveiled “R-easy,” a comprehensive wealth management service
for both real estate and financial assets.
Last year marked the tenth anniversary of the Bank’s PB business
that was launched in 2002 in conjunction with the “GOLD&WISE”
brand. The Bank’s PB business has steadily grown since its
introduction, thanks to its competitive PB-exclusive products,
its advisory services on tax, real estate, and legal matters, all of
which are provided by top-notch experts, as well as its total life
care services that go beyond asset management. As of the end of
2012, the Bank had 23 PB centers across the nation, the highest
number in Korea. On the tenth anniversary of the launch of its PB
business, the Bank made a business alliance with Lombard Odier,
a Swiss bank that specializes in PB. The Bank will fully leverage
this partnership to enhance the expertise of its private bankers and
provide quality overseas investment information and competitive
products, thereby bolstering the quality of asset management.
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Corporate Banking
Despite the economic downturn and subsequent limited growth
opportunities, KB Kookmin Bank recorded stable profits in the
corporate banking sector in 2012. This was largely due to a rise
in non-interest income brought on by the CIB marketing model the
Bank implemented and by the improvements made in provisioning
expenses through rigorous risk management. The Bank focused
particularly on providing distinctive products and services that
satisfy customer needs, and on strengthening relations with its
corporate customers. As a result, the Bank’s market share in loans
in won reached 16.8% (based on shared data among banks) and
its market share in syndicated loans reached 20% (based on the
Bloomberg League Table). These achievements place KB Kookmin
Bank at the top of domestic commercial banks, proving that the
Bank is strengthening its leadership status in the corporate banking
sector.

Leading Bank in Investment Banking
Despite fierce competition in the banking sector in 2012, KB
Kookmin Bank successfully arranged financing for several largescale power plant and SOC projects, including the Dongducheon
LNG-Fired Combined Cycle Power project and the refinancing of
the Busan-Gimhae Light Rail Transit. The Bank also arranged major
deals, including acquisition financings for Hynix and KYOBO Life
Insurance. As such, according to data compiled by Bloomberg the
Bank assumed its leadership position among commercial banks in
the syndicated loan market. The Bank also successfully held the
“KB Power Conference 2012” in October, strengthening its stature
in the power plant market

Loans in Won

183.9

(Unit: KRW in trillions)

184.1

174.2

2010

2011

2012
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Supporting SMEs with Great Potential

Money Trust Balance Continually Increased

In an effort to fulfill its social responsibilities as Korea’s largest
financial institution, KB Kookmin Bank introduced a “KB Hidden
Star 500” program to identify and support outstanding small-to
medium-sized companies in Korea. Launched in February 2011,
the program first identifies promising SMEs with technological
competitiveness and large growth potential, and then helps them
become world-class businesses. As of the end of 2012, a total
of 244 SMEs have been selected and received both customized
financial and non-financial services, including favorable loan interest
rates and free consultation. Moving forward, the Bank will continue
to seek out SMEs with high growth potentials and provide them
with systematic support. By doing so, the Bank will be promoting
export growth and the creation of many high-quality jobs, thereby
contributing to the development of the national economy.

KB Kookmin Bank has been responding proactively to rapid
changes in the financial environment and to varying customer
needs by releasing various MMT (Money Market Trust) products in
a timely manner, including ELS and DLS. The Bank has bolstered its
competencies in the trust business by strengthening its marketing
capabilities and developing customer-oriented IT systems. As a
result, the Bank’s specified money trust balance in 2012 reached
KRW 11.1 trillion, a year-on-year rise of 6.23%. In the unspecified
money trust sector, its pension trust, which is one of the Bank’s
major financial products that help customers prepare for their
retirement, recorded a balance of KRW 2.9 trillion, representing
a solid continued growth. In 2012, the total money trust balance
reached KRW 14.1 trillion, with profits from trust commissions
totaling KRW 133 billion.

Enhancing Competitiveness in DC Pensions

No. 1 Position in Custody Market

In the DC (Defined Contribution) pensions market, the Bank bolstered
its pension plan line-up by enhancing ROIs and diversifying its asset
management methods. As a result, the Bank posted KRW 1,820
billion in total pension contributions, representing a 50% increase
from the previous year. The Bank has maintained its No. 1 position
in the domestic DC pensions market for six consecutive years and
become the industry leader in terms of the number of pension
holders, which was around 240,000 customers as of 2012.

Based on its outstanding services, in 2012 KB Kookmin Bank
enjoyed the biggest share of the investment trust market for the
tenth consecutive year, and the largest portion of the insurance
market. Favorable market responses to KB’s high-quality services
led to coveted recognitions from the media at home and abroad. In
the Global Custodian’s 2012 survey, the Bank ranked first among
domestic banks in the custody business, thus earning the “TopRated” mark, for the seventh consecutive year. Moreover, the Bank
was named the “Best Custodian Bank” two years in a row at the
“2012 Korea Awards,” hosted by Asian Investor and received the
“Service Provider Awards,” also for the second consecutive year.

Expanding Global Network
KB Kookmin Bank continues to expand its overseas network in an
effort to bolster its global competitiveness. Following the opening
of its Mumbai Office in June 2012, the Bank opened an Osaka
Branch in August, and both a subsidiary in China and a Beijing
Branch in November. The Bank also strived to establish business
alliances with renowned overseas banks during the year, including
with India's ICICI Bank in June, Jordan's Arab Bank and UAE's Abu
Dhabi Commercial Bank in September.

Trust
Through its trust products, KB Kookmin Bank offers its customers
opportunities to invest in a variety of capital market products.
As Korea’s largest institution in the trust business, the Bank is
managing around 2,900 funds for 200 asset management, pension
fund, and insurance companies in Korea and abroad. The Bank
aims to achieve steady growth in the trust business and develop
it into a core non-interest income and future growth driver for the
Group.

Chosen as Manager of National Housing Fund
In February 2013, KB Kookmin Bank was selected as the manager
of the National Housing Fund. The National Housing Fund is a
government fund that provides housing finance support to lowincome people. Fund-related work includes creation of new
housing subscription savings deposits, issuance of housing bonds,
and provision and management of fund loans.

Annual Report 2012

Capital Markets
KB Kookmin Bank manages marketable securities and derivatives,
and handles foreign exchange dealings and derivatives marketing.
The Bank is steadily strengthening its dominance of the capital
markets based on its high name recognition and credibility.
Through the stable operations of its CMBS (Capital Market
Business Support) system, the Bank has built a foundation for the
operation and profit generation capital market products. The Bank
has strengthened the compliance of its capital market business by
making improvements to its internal controls.

Derivatives Marketing Competency Strengthened
Even amid the sluggishness in the derivatives market caused by
the global economic downturn and the European financial crisis,
KB Kookmin Bank continued to engage in derivatives marketing
to attract new customers. The Bank focused on diversifying and
expanding the profit base by offering an on-line foreign exchange
rate reservation service. These efforts resulted in a year-on-year rise
of 44% in the size of transactions with institutional financial clients.

Trading Income Sources Diversified
In the area of trading, KB Kookmin Bank focused on improving
its internal processes for managing risks and preparing for the
recurrence of financial turmoil as uncertainty in the global economy
grew. The Bank also reinforced the foundation for sustained growth
by diversifying its trading income sources.
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Leadership Reaffirmed in Smart-Banking
“KB Star Banking” offers convenient financial services and better
lifestyle choices through its customer-centered UI, smartphone
banking products, and other value-added services. As of the end of
2012, the Bank had 5.4 million smart-banking customers, the most
in Korea. The Bank received the Comprehensive Grand Prize in the
financial category at the “Smart App Awards” hosted by the Korea
Internet Professionals Association. In addition, the Bank opened
the “smart branch”, where cutting-edge financial devices featuring
smart technologies are set up to assist customers in conducting
bank transactions and tech-savvy employees are ready to answer
all banking questions. This branch was assessed as a new branch
model that will shape the future of smart banking. Through these
efforts, the Bank is creating a new paradigm in the market.

Green Financial Products for Green Growth
With its wide range of eco-friendly financial products, KB Kookmin
Bank is encouraging customers to lead environmentally-sound lives
and is taking the lead in fostering green companies. In 2012, the
Bank unveiled “KB Wise Green ELS Trust” and “KB Green Focus
Fund (Equity)” products that invest in outstanding green companies.
“Green management” was implemented bank-wide, running the
“KB-GEMS (KB Greenhouse Gases Energy Management System)”.
The Bank is also taking part in pilot projects for “Greenhouse Gas
and Energy Target Scheme (hosted by MOLIT: Ministry of Land,
Infrastructure and Transport)” and “Carbon Emissions Trading
Scheme (hosted by Seoul Metropolitan City)”.

New Growth Business
No. 1 in Internet Banking Service
According to data from the Bank of Korea, KB Kookmin Bank had
16.63 million Internet banking customers as of the end of 2012, the
largest in the domestic financial industry, and the biggest market
share in Internet banking. The Bank was the first financial institution
to launch open Web-based Internet banking services, enhancing
customer convenience by maintaining easy web access. Moreover,
for the first time in the industry, the Bank applied the EV (Extended
Validation) SSL certificate to all of its online services in order to
prevent phishing. The Bank received noteworthy recognition for all
these pioneering efforts, including the Prime Minister’s Award at
the 7th Korea Internet Awards and the Best Award at the 8th Web
Awards Korea.

Market Share in Internet Banking
(Unit: %, As of December 31, 2012)

KB Kookmin Bank
Other Financial
Institutions

No.1

Others
47.2%
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M/S in Internet Banking

A
13.6%
B
13.2%

C
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KB Kookmin Bank • KB Kookmin Card

2013 Plans
KB Kookmin Bank has defined its 2013 management strategic
direction as “strengthening sustainable management based on
fundamentals and principles”. To this end, the Bank will focus on
four core tasks – strengthen social responsibility, maintain stable
financial performance, reinforce the customer-centered operation
system, and develop future growth engines. The growth plan and
strategy for each business area are as follows:

Retail Banking: Maximizing Customer Satisfaction
KB Kookmin Bank will continue to provide customer-centered
services to increase customer loyalty and thus maintain its
leadership position in customer satisfaction. To this end, the Bank
will focus on improving material-based services, including products,
systems, and processes, based on its top-notch human-based
services. Substantial improvements will be made in face-to-face
customer service at the branch level as well as in service quality at
the headquarters level.
The Bank will refine the questions used in customer satisfaction
surveys as a way to enhance customer service and thus strengthen
customer loyalty. Plans have been devised to provide training
for employees through professional CS managers so as to fully
establish a customer-centered paradigm. Based on these improved
CS competencies, the Bank will pursue a higher-level of service by
visiting and assisting customers, thus engaging in more active CSfocused activities.

Corporate Banking: Coping with
the Low-Growth Trend
It is expected that lower growth and profitability will be unavoidable
in the 2013 corporate banking sector due to the global economic
downturn and low interest rates. Accordingly, the Bank will respond
actively in laying a foundation for sustained growth by expanding
its preferred customer base, developing new profit sources, and
engaging in joint marketing with its KB affiliates through the CIB
marketing model.

Trust: Strengthen Competitiveness
The Focus in the trust business will be on increasing trust AUM
and trust commissions. To reach these objectives, the Bank plans
to maintain a stable dividend rate for pension-type unspecified
money trust products, and develop various asset managementtype products for the specified money trust sector. In the area of
specified money trusts, the Bank will develop CP, ELS, and MMT
as leading products. It also will improve the commercial value of
equity-type products and develop a wide range of new financial
investment products that reflect market conditions and satisfy
customer needs. The Bank thereby will strive to develop mid- to
long-term profit models and expand its profit basis.
In the custody business, the Bank has set “reinforcing the Bank’s
stature as a leading bank in the custody market” as its vision
for 2013. The Bank will engage in diverse efforts to achieve this
goal, such as expanding its foundation for the custody business,
securing future growth drivers, and strengthening the customercentered service system.

Capital Markets – Building
a Foundation for stable profitability
In 2013, the Bank will strengthen its sales channels in an effort
to become the nation’s No. 1 bank in derivatives marketing, and
will position outstanding employees in the frontlines. The plan is to
focus on building a stable profit base by enhancing customer flow
management through close cooperation between the trading and
derivatives sales sectors in line with encouraging signs in the global
economy.

Market Share in Smartphone Banking
(Unit: %, As of December 31, 2012)
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With ‘can-do’ spirit, KB Kookmin Card offers various
customized services, making its customers’ daily lives
more convenient and productive

KB Kookmin Card was spun-off from Kookmin Bank on March
2, 2011 with a vision of becoming “Korea’s best daily life
solution provider”. This is part of our attempt to strengthen the
competencies of the credit card business and to bolster the growth
of the non-banking business sector of KB Financial Group. It rolled
out innovative products and services, placing the highest priority on
customer value. KB Kookmin Card expanded its business into the
travel, insurance, and online order sectors, offering various valueadded services to customers and diversifying the Company’s profit
sources.

In the credit card business area, KB Kookmin Card launched the
“Hyedam Card” in line with its “one card” strategy. The number
issued of this versatile point card reached 350,000, reflecting its
popularity. The “one card” strategy centers on packing a variety of
benefits into a single card so that customers can select the benefits
of their choice. This strategy has led to a reduction in the social
costs associated with issuing multiple cards as well as increased
customer value.

As a result, less than two years into the business, KB Kookmin
Card took first place in the credit card category of the 2012 NCSI
(National Customer Satisfaction Index) and placed first in the
check card category of the KCSI (Korea Customer Satisfaction
Index) for the second consecutive year. As of the end of 2012, the
Company’s customers numbered 19.6 million, its assets totaled
KRW 14 trillion, and its credit card transactions reached KRW 88
trillion, thus maintaining its leading position in the domestic credit
card market.

KB Kookmin Card solidified its foundation for sustained growth by
developing a “Save” service and automatic utility bill pay services
based on the vendor lock-in strategy. The “Save” service offers
customers a special installment plan when they purchase a product
from a participating merchant. These customers pay the amount
either in cash or card points during the payment period. In 2012
alone, the service was used for making purchases worth around
KRW 127.7 billion. Services offering a discount on phone bills or
apartment management fees were applied to new products to
induce registrations for automatic payments. The total amount
handled through the automatic payment services reached about
KRW 2.8 trillion annualized.

2012 Results

Business Foundation for Sustained Growth

Innovative Products and Services
The Year 2012 was difficult for the card industry due to the economic
downturn, tougher government regulations, reduced merchant
fees, and deteriorating asset quality. Despite these challenges, KB
Kookmin Card expanded its income base to achieve sustained
growth through innovative products and services. The Company
steadily increased its market share and became No. 1 in the check
card business.
In the check card business area, KB Kookmin Card continued to
enhance product diversity and customer convenience. Various
products were launched to meet the specific needs of different age
groups: “Rockstar Check Card” for customers in their teens and
20s, “Office Worker Bonus Check Card” for customers in their 30s
and 40s, and “Golden Life Check Card” for customers in their 50s
and older. The Company also unveiled “Welcome Check Card,”
a product designed for foreigners residing in Korea. KB Kookmin
Card plans to solidify its No. 1 position in the check card business
by offering innovative products and customized services that reflect
customers preferences and lifestyles.

Transaction Volume*

88.2

(Unit: KRW in billions)

75.1
65.6

* Sum of credit card and
check card usage amounts

2010

2011

2012
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KB Kookmin Card • KB Investment & Securities

Diversifying Profit Sources to Pioneer New Markets
As part of its efforts to enter new markets, KB Kookmin Card moved
into the mobile phone receivables factoring business in September
2012. The Company expects this business to generate an annual
profit of approximately KRW 20 billion. Meanwhile, alliances were
established with a number of online shopping malls and social
commerce-related businesses as a way to strengthen its services
in connection with helping enrich people’s daily lives.

Establishing Customer-Oriented Business System
To make its digital services more accessible to customers, KB
Kookmin Card revamped its homepage in March 2012 and
launched a “KB Kookmin Card Mobile Home App.” The App was
downloaded more than one million times only eight months into
its launch, reflecting its explosive popularity. Official Twitter and
Facebook accounts of KB Kookmin Card were opened to establish
real-time communications channel with customers. As of the end
of the year, the number of Twitter followers reached around 44,000
and the number of Facebook friends numbered approximately
50,000.

Third, we will optimize the risk management system to better
cope with any changes in the market environment and economic
downturns. Forecast models for core risk management indexes
will be fine-tuned and risk monitoring systems upgraded. We will
explore all options available to more effectively manage all segments
of delinquent customers and thus to maximize the collection of
arrears.
Fourth, we will further strengthen our socially-responsible management.
To this end, we will continually engage in social contribution activities
based on four themes – the youth, the elderly, the environment, and
the global community. We will pursue win-win management with a
focus on protecting the rights and interests of customers.

2013 Plans
Amid concerns of the domestic economy facing the continued
global economic downturn and a strong Korean won, the business
environment for the credit card industry is expected to worsen in
2013due mainly to stringent regulations and the emergence of new
market players. KB Kookmin Card has set “overcoming difficulties
by strengthening the profit foundation” as its management strategy
for 2013, and plans to implement the following four core tasks.
First, we will pursue higher efficiencies in profit and cost management
through systematic cost management. A management strategy will
be formulated for each customer segment based on card usage
amounts, profitability, and risks. We will strengthen our CRM
competencies to enable more detailed analysis of customers’
payment patterns and thus carry out more effective marketing.

No. of Card Holders*

19,584

(Unit: Thousand persons)

Second, we will identify and cultivate new growth engines. The
Company is examining new business types and considering an
entry into overseas markets in an effort to deal with the low-growth
trend in the domestic market, and to diversify its sources of income.
It plans to take the lead in nurturing new markets related to mobile
communication.

19,386
18,273

* Sum of credit card and
check card customers

2010

2011

2012
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KB Investment & Securities opens a new chapter
in the world of investments by combining scientific
and expertise based investments together with its
customer-first mindset
KB Investment & Securities is a comprehensive securities company
that provides a wide variety of financial services, including investment
banking, institutional business, trading, and retail business. In
investment banking, the Company leads the industry in underwriting
corporate bond and ABS issues and carries out structured finance
transactions based on advanced risk management techniques. Its
market positions are strengthening in areas such as M&A advisory
services, financial consulting services, IPOs and capital raising, and
issuance of equity-linked notes.
In institutional sales, the Company offers to domestic and overseas
institutional investors a wide array of quality services based on
its outstanding competitive research. These services include
brokerage, ETF LP/AP, and sales of financial products. In the
trading business, the Company generates stable returns through
proprietary trading of equities, bonds, and derivatives. In addition
to the futures business that involves domestic and overseas
derivatives brokerage, the Company conducts an OTC (Over-TheCounter) derivatives business issuing ELS, a structured derivative
product.
In the retail sector, the Company offers comprehensive wealth
management services through the extensive branch network of
KB Kookmin Bank, which has the largest customer base in Korea.
It recently has released the industry’s first smartphone trading
application as a way to expand into new business areas.

2012 Results
In 2012, despite worsening business conditions at home and
abroad and increasing competition in the domestic financial
investments industry, KB I&S further bolstered its comfortable lead
in the wholesale business and achieved qualitative growth in retail,
an area into which it had recently expanded.

Competitiveness in the Wholesale Business Enhanced
In the DCM sector, the Company ranked No. 1 in 2012 for a
second consecutive year in underwriting corporate bonds and ABS
underwriting and further increased its dominant market share. In
the area of financial advisory services for corporate acquisitions, the
Company competed alongside large accounting firms and global
investment bankers, ranking ninth in the industry league table.
This feat represents the initial result of the Company’s efforts to go
beyond the DCM and diversify its income sources.

Investments for Development of Retail Business
Since launching its retail business in February 2009, the Company
has been expanding its branch network and established face-toface channels in 11 major base areas across the nation. It upgraded
its mobile trading system in keeping with the rapid changes in the
online business environment triggered by fast-growing users of
“smart” devices. The Company increased proportion of its mobile
business to 15.3% in 2012 from 8.9% in the previous year. As a
result, despite a noticeable drop in the number of stock-trading
customers in the middle of difficult environment, the Company
made headway in the retail business, improving its market share to
an encouraging 1.84%.

New Growth Opportunities Identified
In 2012, the Company preemptively launched an emergency
management system in anticipation of a possible decline in its
business performance in the wake of the worsening business
environment. The Company cancelled plans to increase its
personnel and branches and implemented cost control measures.
By doing so, it effectively minimized deterioration of profitability. The
Company revamped its organization to seize on new opportunities
in the fast-changing environment; specifically, it restructured the
retail business support structure to respond better to changes in
online trading brought on by an increasing use of smart devices.

2013 Plans
The Company has set its strategic goal for 2013 as “achieving stable
growth by strengthening inner values with a focus on profitability,
and expanding the Company’s customer base.” Accordingly,
it has defined four major tasks – strengthening value-focused
management, developing core competencies, implementing
customer-first policies, and continuing IT improvement. By actively
completing these tasks, the Company will realize continued growth
and develop into a comprehensive financial investments company.

Market Share in DCM (Underwriting CBs/ABS)
2009

2010

2011

2012

No.

3

2

1

1

M/S (%)

11.4

10.8

12.9

13.4

* Source: Bloomberg League Table
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By offering advanced insurance services,
KB Life Insurance will grow into a premier
insurance company alongside its customers

KB Life Insurance is a comprehensive insurance company jointly
founded by KB Financial Group and ING Group, a world-leading
financial firm. The joint venture established its business foundation
with bancassurance, building up manpower and other business
bases. Agency marketing and direct marketing channels were set
up in 2008, followed by a total consultant channel in 2009, the very
first outbound sales channel for KB Financial Group. With these
distribution channels in place, KB Life Insurance has developed
further into a full-service comprehensive insurance company.

2012 Results
Growth Foundation Developed
KB Life Insurance increased its market share by consistently
achieving sales growth based on its 2012 management policy,
“building a foundation for joining the top 10.” It made improvements
in its channel and product portfolio, building a foundation to grow
as a comprehensive insurance company focused on profitability.
The Company was ranked No. 1 for sixth consecutive years in the
call center category of the KSQI (Korean Service Quality Index) in
recognition of its customer value-focused corporate culture and
superior service quality. It also maintained a top rating for four
consecutive years in an evaluation by the Financial Supervisory
Service of civil complaints.

Sales Channels Diversified
The Company has been continually diversifying its sales channels
since 2008 to develop a stable profit base. It operates 11 branches
as its DM channel in pursuit of high-efficiency telemarketing and
the highest productivity in the industry. As for the AM channel,
the Company has established strategic alliances with 18 bluechip corporate agencies that each has a nationwide network. In
terms of the TC channel, 35 branches are dedicated to providing
optimal, comprehensive financial consulting services to customers
nationwide.

Continued Growth
Since 2007, its bancassurance product has ranked No. 1 in market
share among the bancassurance products sold by KB Kookmin
Bank. In 2012 the Company ranked fourth in first premiums in the
bancassurance industry. Thanks to its continued channel portfolio
improvements, in 2012 the Company recorded a year-on-year rise
of 51.6% in premium income, reporting KRW 1,886.4 billion and
thus ranking 13th place in the insurance industry. It posted KRW

5,987.9 billion in total assets and KRW 16.6 billion in net income.
Since its founding, the Company recorded an annual average
growth rate of 57.6% in total assets, the highest in the industry. For
four consecutive years since 2009, the Company consistently has
remained in the black.

2013 Plans
In 2013 the life insurance market is forecasted to experience
difficulties stemming from the ongoing low interest rate trend,
various systems changes, and toughening regulations. With the
market entering its maturity phase, insurance companies are
expected to compete more aggressively. Against the backdrop
of such challenging predictions, the Company will build a stable
growth foundation by focusing on inner values and strengthening
the competiveness of its core distribution channels. It also will
reinforce further its stature as a comprehensive insurance company
by continuously revamping its channel portfolio.
The Company will implement a profitability-based sales strategy
for its products, including those for protection type insurance and
variable annuities. It will focus its competencies on its long-term
financial health through risk management system upgrades and
asset diversification in response to the low interest rate environment.
It will develop products that better reflect market trends, such as
an increasing interest in retirement planning in the aging society. It
also will introduce smart-finance and other services that cater to
emerging social trends through customer-oriented marketing, all as
part of its efforts to earn unwavering customer trust.

Life Insurance
Commission Income

1,886.5

(Unit: KRW in billions)

1,232.2

2010

1,244.7

2011

2012
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KB Asset Management generates higher returns
for its customers with innovative products,
superior strategy and advanced process

Following the global financial crisis, the asset management industry
experienced a fund-run episode that KB Asset Management
managed to turn into a growth opportunity. After posting a
growth rate of 10% year-on-year in operating income in 2010, the
Company recorded a growth rate of 32% year-on-year in 2011 and
an operating income of KRW 27.8 billion in the first half of 2012,
the industry’s second-best performance. This series of outstanding
performances was a result of the Company’s concerted efforts to
increase its long-term rate of return based on its growth-type and
value-type funds in the area of domestic equity funds, one of its
core competencies.

2012 Results
Sustained Growth Achieved
In 2012, KB Asset Management reclassified its domestic equity
fund lineup into growth-type funds, value-type funds, and other
styles in accordance with global industry standards. The Company
focused on increasing the long-term return of the core funds, while
refraining from releasing new products. As a result, the overall
return rate and AUM both grew substantially.

management category at the 2012 Securities Expert Awards of the
Maeil Business Daily, the “Best Equity Fund Award” at the 2013
Korea Economic Daily Funds Awards, and the “Best Fund Award”
in the active equity fund category at the 2012 Korean Fund Awards
of the Maeil Business Daily.

2013 Plans
Having increased the size of its equity funds by more than KRW
1 trillion in the last few years, KB Asset Management plans to
continue the growth trend in 2013. In addition to maintaining the
outstanding long-term return rates of its domestic equity funds,
the Company will invest in emerging-market bond funds that are
developing into alternative investment tools in the era of low interest
rate products, as well as in infrastructure projects, a new growth
driver. By doing so, the Company will strengthen further its stature
as a comprehensive asset management company befitting the
reputation of KB Financial Group.

No. 1 in Domestic Equity Funds
KB Asset Management managed two of the ten domestic equity
funds that each exceed KRW 1 trillion in size: “KB Value Focus
Fund A” and “KB Growth Focus Fund.” With a three-year yield rate
of 70.70%, the former ranked No. 1 among domestic active funds
in 2012. Its cumulative rate of return reached 93.37%.
“KB Mid Small-cap Securities Master Fund A” recorded a return
rate of 34.24% in 2012, more than three times as high as those of
the KOSPI (9.38%) and the industry average (8.37%). In fact, it was
the industry’s best performing equity fund in 2012. It has remained
in the top echelon in terms of return rate since its launch, living up
to the media attention it received upon its introduction.
AUM

Brand Value Enhanced
In recognition of the consistently high return rates and outstanding
performances of its funds, KB Asset Management has been
given various awards. In 2012, it received the grand prize in the
management company category at the Korea Securities Awards
of the Seoul Economic Daily, on top of the “Best Domestic Equity
Fund Award of 2012” from Money Today, the “Best Domestic Fund
Award of 2012” from the Herald Business, a first prize in the asset

22,461

(Unit: KRW in billions)

20,736
17,994

2010

2011

2012
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As a reliable partner in real estate finance,
KB Real Estate Trust will manage customer assets
and increase their value in the most optimal manner

In 2012 Korea’s real estate market continued to experience
difficulties attributable to several factors: a sluggish housing market,
increasing unsold apartments in metropolitan areas, a sharp drop
in the number of housing transactions as a result of growing
household debts, a decline in PF for real estate development
projects, and further restructuring of construction companies.
Against this backdrop, real estate developers are intensifying
their demand for real estate trust products as a way to eliminate
associated risks. However, increasing competition for commissions
fueled by new real estate trust companies has resulted in a drop in
the trust revenue rate.

2012 Results
Business Diversified
In 2012, the Company actively diversified its business despite
the sluggish market conditions, thereby establishing a basis for
continued growth. As part of the diversification effort, the Company
took part in the creation of a blind fund of KB Financial Group and
arranged the successful launch of the “KB Star Office Private Real
Estate Investment Trust No. 1.” By bolstering its competencies
in releasing and managing REITs, the Company released the
“KB Bookook No. 1 Development REIT,” thereby listing the first
development-specialized REITs on the stock exchange. The
Company paid out dividends for its previously established REITs at a
rate above the market average. In addition to holding presentations
in an effort to lead the urban-type housing market, the Company
continued to invest in PFVs for multipurpose facility development
projects, industrial complexes, and other urban development
projects.

to strengthen the risk management of the trust business. The
Company also is improving management efficiencies by revamping
its organization and expanding its performance-centered culture.
It is working on strengthening employee competencies through
systematic training.

2013 Plans
KB Real Estate Trust will strive to offer customers value that goes
beyond real estate services by adopting new investment methods
and financial techniques. To this end, the Company will strengthen
its business network and improve its business environment. It
plans to expand REITs profits with early identification of bluechip investment vehicles. In addition, it will secure various profit
sources by developing low-risk products in relation to the Trust Act
and by diversifying the Company’s business. Moreover, through
management-by-principle the Company will enhance the KB brand
value.

Market Dominance Strengthened
As of the end of June 2012, the Company’s total entrusted assets
amounted to KRW 20,812.3 billion, the largest among the eleven
real estate trust companies in Korea. Its net income also went up
39.2% year-on-year. This is a result of the business activities the
Company carried out in the face of the difficult market environment
and the synergies it generated in cooperation with its affiliates,
including KB Kookmin Bank.

Operating Income

28.6

(Unit: KRW in billions)

20.0

Management Efficiency Enhanced
KB Real Estate Trust amended its risk management policies to
improve the land trust risk management process and adopted
new guidelines to improve customer relations, all part of its efforts

5.0

2010

2011

2012
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KB Investment will grow into an investment
specialist that helps promising companies
succeed by nurturing their growth potentials

As a partner supporting the value enhancement of companies in
which it invests, KB Investment specializes in venture investments in
unlisted SMEs and start-up companies, growth capital investments
in mid-sized companies, and private equity investments. The
Company is nurturing its investment entities into blue-chip
companies with a focus in biotech industries (biotechnology,
pharmaceutical, medical equipment), in clean-tech industries (new
renewable energy and secondary battery), and in next-generation
growth industries (alternative energy)—which will lead our future—
and, most importantly, in IT industries (mobile communication,
semiconductors, and display), Korea’s core strength.

2013 Plans
KB Investment is making diverse efforts for continued growth,
such as increasing personnel competencies and organizational
efficiencies, establishing a solid base for potential profits by
expanding the blue-chip investments portfolio, and maximizing
investment returns by constantly revamping its risk management
system. The Company plans to increase the AUM to KRW 2
trillion by 2014 in order to grow into Korea’s No. 1 venture capital
company, and to secure market competencies through advancing
into Asian investment markets.

2012 Results
IPO Market Dominance Maintained
In 2012, evolving budgetary crises in the US and in the Eurozone
led to increased volatility in the KOSDAQ market, the main source
of investment returns for the Company. Despite these market
conditions, at the end of 2012 KB Investment recorded KRW
123.4 billion in equity capital, KRW 1,425 billion in assets under
management (AUM), and KRW 5.5 billion in net income. As a
top-notch investment company, it is leading the domestic venture
capital and PEF markets. In particular, the Company took public
108 venture firms, or 10.7% of the total, on the KOSDAQ in 2012,
the highest in the industry. As such, the Company has been
effective in playing its investment partner role, fostering the growth
of venture firms and SMEs.

AUM Increased
In 2012, KB Investment created the “KoFC Value Up PEF” worth
KRW 65 billion, the “KT Global Investment Partnership PE” worth
KRW 475 billion, and a venture fund amounting to around KRW 50
billion. As a result, the Company’s total AUM rose to KRW 1,425
billion.

Investments in New Growth Engine Industry
In 2012 alone, KB Investment invested a total of KRW 126.3 billion
in SMEs and mid-value companies in the next-generation IT, cleantech, and life science industries, growth drivers that will shape
the future of the Korean economy. By actively investing in these
industries, the Company is laying a foundation for leadership while
promoting the growth of relevant industries.

AUM

1,425

(Unit: KRW in billions)

895
650

2010

2011

2012
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With outstanding experts and advanced systems,
KB Credit Information will increase market confidence
and contribute to establishing a credible society

In addition to engaging in its main business areas of debt collection
and lease verification, KB Credit Information handles credit checks
and issuance of civil affairs documents. With first-rate experts in
debt collection and lease verification, the Company is offering
services that are top-notch in the industry by effectively leveraging
its nationwide organizational network and state-of-the-art debt
management systems. In addition to these services, KB Credit
Information contributes to the establishment of a sound credit
society by improving the asset quality and minimizing the reputation
risk of creditors. The Company maintains a top market position in
assets, productivity, and services. Its sales in 2012 reached KRW
58.6 billion, a year-on-year increase of 6.7%.

To maximize debt collection within the Group, the Company will
improve incentives scheme for outstanding collection performances
and promote joint debt collection with other affiliates within the
group. The Company will expand its secured NPLs business by
increasing the size of secured NPLs under management, cultivating
secured NPLs specialists, and establishing an efficient secured
NPLs management system. By promoting the non-Group lease
verification business, the Company will increase low-cost sales
and thus enhance profitability. The Company will also improve
its commission system to boost productivity of collectors and to
attract and retain experienced and talented collectors. By building
a debt collection knowledge management system, the business
capabilities of collectors will be strengthened.

2012 Results

Conditions in the debt collection business may worsen in 2013
as costs are expected to rise due to several factors, including
decreasing repayment capabilities of debtors, increasing financial
burdens following some collectors’ lawsuits in relation to retirement
benefit, and strengthening regulations following the amendment of
the Resident Registration Act. However, volume of secured NPLs
are expected to grow as the economic downturn continues to
take hold throughout the year, the entrustment of tax receivables
to the private sector increases, and the adoption of the IFRS will
likely boost NPL sales to third party. The Company will take full
advantage of these developments and take a big step towards
becoming the industry’s top credit information company.

Foundation for Sustained Growth Established
KB Credit Information set “building a foundation for sustainable
growth” by bolstering its competitiveness in collecting debts of
the Group and enhancing management efficiencies as its 2012
strategic direction. It focused mainly on reducing the delinquency
ratio by actively collecting NPLs (Non-Performing Loans), increasing
extraordinary gains through the collection of written-off assets,
keeping its organization and personnel nimble, and expanding the
secured NPL management business.
As a result of these efforts, debt collection within KB Financial Group
went up by approximately 18.7% from KRW 397.4 billion in 2011
to KRW 471.9 billion in 2012 and continued its leadership despite
a fierce competition. The Company curtailed more personnel
expenses than planned by enhancing management efficiencies
and also brought down non-personnel expenses by increasing
efficiencies in branch operations. With secured NPL accounts worth
KRW 215 billion awarded by the Group, the Company expanded
its business scope in managing secured NPLs and thus generated
about KRW 900 million of additional revenue.

Sales

2013 Plans
The Company’s management strategy direction for 2013 is to
build a foundation for stable growth and enhance value within the
Group. Focus will be placed on maximizing the collection of debts
owed to the Group, achieving profitability-centered management
rationalization, and boosting productivity by strengthening sales
capacities.

58.6

(Unit: KRW in billions)

54.9
46.3

2010

2011

2012
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KB Data Systems offers optimal IT services
based on in-depth understanding of finance
and extensive IT expertise

KB Data Systems provides first-rate IT services based on its topnotch technological prowess gained from the wide range of projects
undertaken to advance the IT-based services of KB Financial Group.
The Company’s services include financial IT consulting; integration
of the entire process ranging from system analysis and design to
development and testing; and IT outsourcing that requires stable
maintenance and management of customer information systems
and IT resources in accordance with customer needs.

2012 Results
Leadership in Financial IT
To provide optimal IT solutions in the ever-changing IT environment,
KB Data Systems segmented its business areas into IT systems
integration and IT systems management, and established an
optimal organizational system accordingly. By focusing on thorough
quality management, KB Data Systems builds the most optimal
IT systems and identifies the effective operation measures for its
affiliates within the Group.
Based on its extensive technological prowess accumulated
through various projects, KB Data Systems develops a wide array
of optimal financial IT solutions to help advance its customers’
IT systems. As of the end of 2012, the Company has developed
and commercialized 37 solutions, including the “Wise-Financial
Management System,” a solution for monitoring the fund status of
financial institutions. It has been developing solutions in cuttingedge IT, such as smartphone-based financial services and SNS.

Various IT Projects Conducted within the Group
In 2012, KB Data Systems, in its role as the Group’s IT partner,
successfully completed various projects involving the development
and upgrade of the IT systems of its KB affiliates. These projects
include setting up the “Comprehensive Real Estate Information
System,” an IT system for KB Kookmin Bank’s R-easy service;
upgrading KB Kookmin Card’s “Push Service” and daily life
service parts of Internet banking; enhancing KB Investment &
Securities’ mobile services; and integrating the Group’s smart
device applications. The Company also built systems related to
information management, accounting, call centers, and loan/
collateral management, all to provide IT business support to KB
Savings Bank, the latest subsidiary of the Group.

KB Data Systems has established a “Smart-Banking Research
Institute” and is actively developing smart-banking applications for
its affiliates’ SNS-related operations, including KB Kookmin Bank’s
“Rockstar Blog.”

2013 Plans
In 2013, KB Data Systems will engage in diverse activities to offer
top-quality IT services to its affiliates, placing the highest priority
on increasing user satisfaction and enhancing its technological
competencies. To lead financial IT trends and apply state-of-the-art
technologies to the Group’s IT-based operations, KB Data Systems
will strengthen its internal competencies with a focus on smartbanking. It will also diversify its business structure by expanding
into the social media business, including the establishment and
maintenance of SNS.
In addition, by defining a clear vision and business for each business
sector, the Company will lay a base for sustainable growth from a
mid- and long-term perspective. As for IT systems management,
the Company will pursue full satisfaction in the IT services it offers
through higher technological competencies and thorough quality
controls as well as remain true to its role as an IT cost center and
contribute to improving Group IT cost efficiencies. Moreover, by
taking every preventive measure available against hacking and
other security breaches, the Company will operate its affiliates’ IT
systems in the most secured method possible. As for IT systems
integration, the Company will take steps necessary for carrying out
the role of an IT hub that can link Group operations with “big data”
and other latest IT technologies. The role includes coordinating IT
project operators and managers and being an IT consolidator who
can efficiently apply outstanding third-party solutions to affiliates’
daily operations.

KB Savings Bank
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KB Savings Bank will set standard for industry by
growing into a sound and reliable savings bank that
customers trust and respect

KB Savings Bank commenced business in January 2012 as the
tenth subsidiary of KB Financial Group following the absorption of
a distressed savings bank. Its management philosophy is “leading
savings bank that contributes to the stabilization of the banking
sector catering to low-income class”. The Bank provides loan and
deposit services to households and SMEs that are overlooked by
top-tier banks due to their relatively high risk profiles or insufficient
collateral. Its major deposit products include time deposits,
periodical deposits, and free installment deposits. Its loan products
include “Sunshine Loan,” which provides loans to low income
customers at low interest rates; “KB One Stop Loan,” a loan
offered in connection with KB Kookmin Bank’s loan products; and
a securities-purchase loan that uses securities as collateral.

2012 Results
Business Capacity Strengthened
Since 2011, the business environment of the savings bank industry
has been on a downward trend owing to intensive restructuring
measures applied to insolvent savings banks and stringent capital
requirements. The credit standings of savings banks are declining,
leading to large-scale customer flights. There is also a dire need
for the development of a unique profit model that can help savings
banks achieve sustained growth in the sector dedicated to lowincome class, a highly competitive market.
Against this backdrop, in 2012 KB Savings Bank focused on
management-by-principle, thereby establishing itself as a clean
bank. In addition to leveraging the financial business know-how
of KB Financial Group, KB Savings Bank developed a wide array
of loan products that satisfy customer needs, thereby restoring
the customer relations that had a temporary setback. In addition,
improvements were made to the business process, strengthening
the internal controls. KB Savings Bank expanded its profit base by
increasing collateralized household assets, and diversified its loan
portfolio. It put forward various efforts, including joint sales with
KB Kookmin Bank, to create KB synergy and thus strengthen its
business capacity. As a result, total loans increased to KRW 424.3
billion at the end of 2012 from KRW 395.1 billion at the start of its
business.

Clean Assets
Through a constant monitoring of market and credit risks, KB
Savings Bank endeavors to pre-empt delinquencies. To establish
a system-based loan screening process, the Bank is building CSS

and CRS credit appraisal systems. A taskforce has been launched
to improve the quality of non-performing assets which the Bank
inherited from its predecessor. It customized collection strategies
to the varying types of debtors, resulting in a total debt collection
of KRW 192.1 billion.

Sound Corporate Culture Established
KB Savings Bank has adopted an HR system in line with KB Financial
Group’s HR policy, thus laying a foundation for strengthening
employee competencies and thereby enabling its employees to
share the KB value. Upon the absorption of the distressed bank
in July 2012, the Bank converted most of the workers hired on
a contractual basis into regular employees, resulting in stronger
organizational solidarity and loyalty. Moreover, various training
systems and programs have been instituted to improve job skills.
The Bank also engaged in numerous activities that contribute to
the local community, including running soup kitchens and making
donations.

2013 Plans
KB Savings Bank plans to concentrate on growing sound assets.
In the area of personal loans, it will increase both unsecured loans
through KB Kookmin Bank’s loan program and loans backed
by sound collateral. As for corporate loans, the Bank will pursue
stable growth by strengthening its appraisal capabilities and mainly
focusing on short-term secured loans with a loan period of less
than a year. In the area of deposits of which time deposits currently
make up 89%, the Bank will focus on increasing demand deposits
that carry a relatively low funding cost in order to diversify its funding
structure.
To build a basis for sustained growth, KB Savings Bank plans to offer
various training programs that are designed to strengthen internal
competencies, including job skills and appraisal capabilities. The
Bank will also continue systems development as a way to bolster
its growth foundation. In addition to revamping its internal business
process, it will overhaul its IT infrastructure.
It is forecasted that in 2013 worsening asset quality and household
loans of low credit holders will continue to pose a serious risk due
to the overall economic doldrums. Against this backdrop, KB
Savings Bank will upgrade its risk management system to preempt
delinquencies. It also will promote a rational loan screening process
and systematically manage credit risks by building an integrated
collateral system and improving the loan follow-up system.
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Report of Independent Auditors

Samil PricewaterhouseCoopers, LS Yongsan Tower, 191,
Hangangno 2-ga, Yongsan-gu, Seoul 140-702, Korea
(Yongsan P.O Box 266, 140-600), www.samil.com

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
KB Financial Group Inc.
We have audited the accompanying separate statements of financial position of KB Financial Group Inc. (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related separate statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for
the years then ended, expressed in Korean won. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the separate financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of KB
Financial Group Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and its financial performance and cash flows for the years then ended, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea (“K-IFRS”).
Auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries. The procedures and practices used in the Republic of
Korea to audit such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries. Accordingly, this
report is for use by those who are informed about Korean auditing standards and their application in practice.

Seoul, Korea
March 12, 2013

This report is effective as of March 12, 2013, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances, which may occur between the audit
report date and the time of reading this report, could have a material impact on the accompanying separate financial statements and notes thereto.
Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should understand that there is a possibility that the above audit report may have to be revised to reflect the
impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.
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Separate Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC.

(in millions of Korean won)

Notes

2012

2011

Assets
Cash and due from financial institutions
Loans
Investments in subsidiaries

4,5,6,26

₩

96,234

₩

32,031

4,5,7 		

25,000 		

60,000

8 		

17,944,848 		

17,773,322

Property and equipment

9 		

351		

759

Intangible assets

10 		

9,122 		

10,531

Deferred income tax assets

11,24		

3,800 		

2,445

Other assets

4,5,12		

310,673		

631,602

Total assets 		

₩

18,390,028

₩

18,510,690

₩

-

₩

130,000

Liabilities
Debts

4,5,13

Debentures

4,5,14		

- 		

49,988

Defined benefit liabilities

15 		

1,384 		

992

Current income tax liabilities

24 		

257,535 		

578,729

4,5,16		

46,767 		

34,701

Total liabilities 			

305,686		

794,410

Other liabilities
Equity
Share capital

17		

1,931,758		

1,931,758

Capital surplus

17 		

13,513,809 		

13,513,809

Retained earnings

17		

2,638,775 		

2,270,713

Total equity 			

18,084,342		

17,716,280

Total liabilities and equity		

18,390,028

18,510,690

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.

₩

₩
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Separate Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC.

(In millions of Korean won except per share amounts)

Notes

Interest income 		

2012

₩

2011

6,018

₩

26,999

Interest expense 			

(3,025)		

(41,571)

4,19		

2,993 		

(14,572)

Fee and commission income 			

- 		

-

Net interest income(expense)

Fee and commission expense 			

(4,130) 		

(6,079)

Net fee and commission income(expense)

20		

(4,130) 		

(6,079)

Net other operating income

21 		

687,925		

-

General and administrative expenses

22 		

(41,597)		

(41,711)

Operating profit(loss) before provision for credit losses			

645,191 		

(62,362)

Provision for credit losses 			

- 		

-

Operating profit(loss) 			

645,191		

(62,362)

23		

(312)		

(2,863)

Profit(loss) before tax 			

Net non-operating expense

644,879		

(65,225)

24		

1,356 		

1,547

Profit(loss) for the year 			

646,235		

(63,678)

Other comprehensive income(loss) for the year, net of tax			

- 		

-

Income tax benefit

Total comprehensive income(loss) for the year 		

₩

646,235

₩

(63,678)

₩

1,673

₩

(173)

Earnings(losses) per share
Basic earnings(losses) per share

25

Diluted earnings(losses) per share

25 		

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.

1,668		

(173)
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Separate Statements of Changes in Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC.

Balance at January 1, 2011

(In millions of Korean won)

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income(loss)

Share
Capital

Capital
Surplus

₩ 1,931,758

₩ 13,513,809

₩

-

Retained
Earnings

Total
Equity

₩ 2,375,554

₩ 17,821,121

Comprehensive loss
		 Loss for the year 		

- 		

-		

-		

(63,678)		

(63,678)

Total comprehensive loss 		

- 		

- 		

-		

(63,678) 		

(63,678)

Transactions with shareholders
		 Dividends 		

- 		

-		

-		

(41,163)		

(41,163)

Total transactions with shareholders		

- 		

- 		

-		

(41,163)		

(41,163)

Balance at December 31, 2011

₩ 1,931,758

₩ 13,513,809

₩

-

₩ 2,270,713

₩ 17,716,280

Balance at January 1, 2012

₩ 1,931,758

₩ 13,513,809

₩

-

₩ 2,270,713

₩ 17,716,280

Comprehensive income
		 Profit for the year		

- 		

- 		

- 		

646,235 		

646,235

Total comprehensive income 		

-		

- 		

- 		

646,235		

646,235

		 Dividends		

- 		

- 		

- 		

(278,173) 		

(278,173)

Total transactions with shareholders 		

- 		

-		

-		

(278,173)		

(278,173)

Transactions with shareholders

Balance at December 31, 2012

₩ 1,931,758

₩ 13,513,809

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.

₩

-

₩ 2,638,775

₩ 18,084,342
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Separate Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC.

(In millions of Korean won)

Note

2012

2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit(loss) for the year 		

₩

646,235

₩

(63,678)

Adjustment for non-cash items
		 Depreciation and amortization 			

1,487 		

1,581

		 Share-based payments			

3,641		

2,534

		 Net interest income			

(765)		

(349)

		 Net other expense 			

4,183 		

6,565

					

8,546 		

10,331

		 Due from financial institutions 			

12,000 		

(12,000)

		 Deferred income tax assets 			

(1,355) 		

(1,547)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

		 Other assets 			

1,056 		

2,599

		 Other liabilities			

(3,578)		

(3,766)

					

8,123		

(14,714)

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities			

662,904		

(68,061)

Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries 			

(171,526)		

(100,000)

Collection of loans 			

35,000 		

100,000

Acquisition of property and equipment			

(114) 		

(233)

Acquisition of intangible assets 			

(313)		

(3,850)

Disposal of intangible assets 			

- 		

895

Net decrease(increase) in guarantee deposits paid 			

8,427 		

(7,555)

Others			

(2)		

-

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities			

(128,528)		

(10,743)

Increase in debts 			

170,000 		

130,000

Decrease in debts 			

(300,000) 		

-

Redemption in debentures			

(50,000) 		

(750,000)

Dividends			

(278,173)		

(41,163)

Net cash used in financing activities			

(458,173)		

(661,163)

Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 			

76,203		

(739,967)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

26		

20,028 		

759,995

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

26

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.

₩

96,231

₩

20,028
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Notes to Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC.

1. The Company
KB Financial Group Inc. (the “Company”), in accordance with Financial Holding Companies Act, was established on September
29, 2008, through stock transfer with the former shareholders of Kookmin Bank, KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd., KB Asset
Management Co., Ltd., KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd., KB Investment Co., Ltd., KB Futures Co., Ltd., KB Credit Information
Co., Ltd., and KB Data Systems Co., Ltd. in order to provide management services and financing to associated companies. The
headquarters are located at 9-1 Namdaemunro 2-ga, Jung-gu, Seoul. The Company’s paid in capital as of December 31, 2012, is
₩ 1,931,758 million. In 2011, Kookmin Bank spun off its credit card business segment and established a new separate credit card
company, KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd., and KB investment & Securities Co., Ltd. merged with KB Futures Co., Ltd. The Company
established KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. in January 2012.
The Company is authorized to issue up to 1 billion shares. The Company has been listed on the Korea Exchange (“KRX”) since
October 10, 2008, and listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) for its American Depositary Shares (“ADS”) since
September 29, 2008.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Application of K-IFRS
The Company’s financial statements for the annual period beginning on January 1, 2012, have been prepared in accordance with
Korean-IFRS(“K-IFRS”). These are the standards, subsequent amendments and related interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") that have been adopted by the Republic of Korea. The transition date, according to K-IFRS
1101, from the previous accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of Korea (“Previous K-GAAP”) to K-IFRS is
January 1, 2010.
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the separate financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.4.
The separate financial statements were prepared in accordance with K-IFRS 1027, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements.
New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year beginning January 1, 2012, and not early
adopted by the Company are as follows:
Amendments to K-IFRS 1019, Employee Benefits
According to the amendments to K-IFRS 1019, the corridor approach for actuarial gains and losses is not allowed anymore.
Accordingly, the actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income immediately. Past service costs
incurred under changes of plans are recognized immediately, and the amendment replaces the interest cost on the defined benefit
obligation, and the expected return on plan assets with a net interest cost based on the net defined benefit asset or liability. This
amendment is effective for the Company as of January 1, 2013. The Company is assessing the impact of application of the
amended K-IFRS 1019 on its separate financial statements.
Enactment of K-IFRS 1113, Fair value measurement
K-IFRS 1113 aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across K-IFRS. K-IFRS 1113 does not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provides guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards
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within K-IFRS. K-IFRS 1113 is effective for the Company as of January 1, 2013. The Company expects that the enactment would
not have a material impact on the separate financial statements of the Company.
Amendments to K-IFRS 1001, Presentation of Financial Statements
K-IFRS 1001, Presentation of Financial Statements, was amended to require other comprehensive income items to be presented
into two groups on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently. This is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012, with early adoption permitted. The Company expects that the application of this
amendment would not have a material impact on its separate financial statements.
Enactment of K-IFRS 1110, Consolidated Financial Statements
K-IFRS 1110, Consolidated Financial Statements, builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company. An
investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the
determination of control where this is difficult to assess. K-IFRS 1110 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013, and the Company is reviewing the impact of the K-IFRS 1110.
Enactment of K-IFRS 1111, Joint Arrangements
K-IFRS 1111, Joint Arrangements, aims to reflect the substance of joint arrangements by focusing on the contractual rights and
obligations that each party to the arrangement has rather than its legal form. Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. A joint operation is when joint operators have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities,
and account for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, while parties to the joint venture have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement and account for their interest in the joint venture using the equity method. This amendment will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and the Company is reviewing the impact of the amended K-IFRS 1111.
Enactment of K-IFRS 1112, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities
K-IFRS 1112, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, provides the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate, a consolidated structured entity and an unconsolidated
structured entity. This amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and the Company is
reviewing the impact of the amended K-IFRS 1112.

2.2 Measurement Basis
The separate financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise specified.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
Items included in the separate financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). The separate financial statements are presented in Korean
won, which is the Company’s presentation currency.

2.4 Significant Estimates
The preparation of the separate financial statements requires the application of accounting policies, certain critical accounting
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant impact on assets(liabilities) and incomes(expenses). The managements’
estimate of outcome may differ from an actual outcome if the managements’ estimate and assumption based on its best judgment
at the reporting date are different from an actual environment.
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Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and any change in an accounting estimate is recognized prospectively
by including it in profit or loss in the period of the change, if the change affects that period only. Alternatively if the change in
accounting estimate affects both the period of change and future periods, that change is recognized in the profit or loss of all those
periods.
Uncertainty in estimates and assumptions with significant risk that will result in material adjustment to the separate financial
statements are as follows:
2.4.1 Deferred income taxes
The recognition of a deferred tax asset relies on an assessment of the probability and sufficiency of future taxable profits, future
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and ongoing tax planning strategies.
2.4.2 Defined benefit obligation
The present value of defined benefit obligations is measured by the independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
It incorporates actuarial assumptions and variables such as future increases in salaries, rate of retirement, and discount rate
amongst others.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these separate financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, foreign currency, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.2 Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets which meet the following conditions are classified as loans and receivables:
- Those with fixed or determinable payments.
- Those that are not quoted in an active market.
- Those that the Company does not intend to sell immediately or in the near term.
- Those that the Company, upon initial recognition, does not designate as available for sale or as at fair value through profit or loss.
After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured and recognized in
profit or loss as provision for credit loss.
Impairment loss on loans reduces the carrying amount of the asset through use of an allowances account, and when a loan
becomes uncollectable, it is written off against the related allowances account. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and is objectively related to the subsequent event after recognition of impairment, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an allowances account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in profit or
loss.
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3.3 Investments in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted at cost method in accordance with K-IFRS 1027.

3.4 Property and equipment
Recognition and Measurement
All property and equipment that qualify for recognition as an asset is measured at its cost and subsequently carried at its cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property and equipment includes any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they prolong the useful life or enhance values of the assets but the costs of the
day-to-day servicing of the assets such as repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. When part of
an item of an asset has a useful life different from that of the entire asset, it is recognized as a separate asset.
Depreciation
Land is not depreciated, whereas other property and equipment are depreciated using the method that reflects the pattern in
which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The depreciable amount of an asset is
determined after deducting its residual value.
Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately.
The depreciation method and estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:
Property and equipment

Depreciation method

Estimated useful lives

Leasehold improvements

Declining-balance

4 years

Equipment and vehicles

Declining-balance

4 years

The residual value, the useful life and the depreciation method applied to an asset are reviewed at least at each financial year-end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates or if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

3.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently carried at their cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets, except for membership right, are amortized using the straight-line method with no residual value over their
estimated useful economic life since the asset is available for use.
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Intangible assets

Amortization method

Estimated useful lives

Software

Straight-line

4 years

Others

Straight-line

4 years
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The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Where an intangible asset is not being amortized because its useful life is considered to be indefinite, the
Company carries out a review in each accounting period to confirm whether or not events and circumstances still support the
assumption of an indefinite useful life. If they do not, the change from the indefinite to finite useful life is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate.

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset except for
(i) deferred income tax assets, (ii) assets arising from employee benefits and (iii) non-current assets (or group of assets to be sold)
classified as held for sale, may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset.
The recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the Company determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the
asset's cash-generating unit). A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from an asset or cash-generating unit that are discounted by a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.
If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss and recognized immediately in profit or loss.

3.7 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many events and circumstances
are taken into account in reaching the best estimate of provisions, and where the effect of the time value of money is material, the
amount of provisions are the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provisions are
reversed.

3.8 Equity instrument issued by the Company
An equity instrument is any contract or agreement that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are deducted, net of tax,
from the equity.
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3.9 Revenue recognition
Revenue shall be recognized when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
a) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
b) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company.
c) Specific conditions are satisfied for activities.

3.9.1 Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognized using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or groups of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses.
Interest on impaired financial assets is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.

3.9.2 Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of transaction.

3.9.3 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

3.10 Employee compensation and benefits
Post-employment benefit: Defined benefit plans
All post-employment benefit, other than defined contribution plans, is classified as defined benefit plans. The amount recognized
as a defined benefit liability is the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets at the end of the
reporting period.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit
Credit method. The rate used to discount postemployment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds. The currency and term of the corporate bonds are consistent with
the currency and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations. Actuarial gains and losses including experience
adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.
When the total of the present value of the defined benefit obligation minus the fair value of plan assets results in an asset, it
is recognized to the extent of any cumulative unrecognized past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
Past service cost arises when the Company introduces a defined benefit plan that attributes to past service or changes the benefits
payable for past service under an existing defined benefit plan. Such past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straightline basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested immediately
following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.
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Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service is recognized as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount
already paid.
The expected cost of profit-sharing and bonus payments are recognized as liabilities when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Share-based payment
The Company operates share-based payment arrangements granting awards to directors and employees of the Company.
The Company has a choice of whether to settle the awards in cash or by issuing equity instruments for a share-based payment
transaction at the date of settlement.
For a share-based payment transaction in which the terms of the arrangement provide the Company with the choice of whether to
settle in cash or by issuing equity instruments, the Company determined that it has a present obligation to settle in cash because
the Company has a past practice and a stated policy of settling in cash. Therefore, the Company accounts for the transaction in
accordance with the requirements of cash-settled sharebased payment transactions.
The Company measures the services acquired and the liability incurred at fair value. Until the liability is settled, the Company
remeasures the fair value of the liability at the end of each reporting period and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss for the year.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either the Company’s decision to terminate an employee's
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits as a liability and an expense when, and only when, the Company is
demonstrably committed to either terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement
date or provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy. The Company is
demonstrably committed to a termination when, and only when, the Company has a detailed formal plan for the termination and
is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. Where the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the end of reporting
period, they are discounted using the appropriate discount rate.

Reclassification
As discussed in Note 22, employee benefits for the year ended December 31, 2011, were reclassified to conform with the
December 31, 2012 financial statement presentation. This reclassification has no impact on the previously reported profit for the
year or equity.

3.11 Income tax expenses
Income tax expense (tax income) comprises current tax expense (current tax income) and deferred income tax expense (deferred
income tax income). Current and deferred income tax are recognized as income or expense and included in profit or loss for the
year, except to the extent that the tax arises from (a) a transaction or event which is recognized, in the same or a different period
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and (b) a business combination.

Current income tax
Current income tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for a period. A
difference between the taxable profit and accounting profit may arise when income or expense is included in accounting profit in
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one period but is included in taxable profit in a different period. Differences may also arise if there is revenue that is exempt from
taxation or expenses that is not deductible in determining taxable profit (tax loss). Current income tax liabilities (assets) for the
current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The Company offsets current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities if, and only if, the Company (a) has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and (b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized, using the asset-liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax based of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. However,
deferred income tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
The carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company reduces
the carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred income tax liabilities and deferred income tax assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
The Company offsets deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities when the Company has a legally enforceable
right to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities; and the deferred income tax assets and the deferred
income tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity; or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current income tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred income tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Uncertain tax positions
Uncertain tax positions arise from tax treatments applied by the Company which may be challenged by the tax authorities due
to the complexity of the transaction or different interpretation of the tax laws, a claim for rectification brought by the Company, or
an appeal for a refund claimed from the tax authorities related to additional assessments. The Company recognizes its uncertain
tax positions in the financial statements based on the guidance in K-IFRS 37. A liability related to an uncertain tax position is
recognized as the best estimate of expenditure if the uncertain tax position is probable of resulting in additional payment to the tax
authorities. Meanwhile assets related to uncertain tax positions, caused by a claim for rectification or an appeal for refund claimed
from the tax authorities related to additional assessments, are treated as contingent assets under K-IFRS 37. Therefore, tax
expenses are recognized in the financial statements when the uncertain tax position is probable of resulting in additional payment
to the tax authorities, while tax benefits are recognized only when the tax refund is virtually certain.
The Company classifies interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense.
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3.12 Earnings per share
The Company calculates basic earnings per share amounts and diluted earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable
to ordinary equity holders and presents them in the statement of comprehensive income. Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
including convertible bond and share option.

3.13 Operating segments
The Company is composed of a single operating segment. Therefore, disclosures on other segments are omitted in accordance
with K-IFRS No.1108, Operating Segments.

4. Financial Risk Management
4.1 Summary
4.1.1 Overview of Risk Management Policy
The financial risks that the Company is exposed to are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.
The note regarding financial risk management provides information about the risks that the Company is exposed to, including
the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risks, and the methods used to measure the risks and capital adequacy.
Additional quantitative information is disclosed throughout the separate financial statements.
The Company’s risk management system focuses on increasing transparency, developing the risk management environment, and
the preemptive response to risk due to rapid changes in the financial environment to support the Company’s long-term strategy
and business decisions efficiently. Credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk have been recognized as the Company’s key risks.
These risks are measured in Economic Capital or VaR (Value at Risk) and are managed using a statistical method.

4.1.2 Risk Management Organization
Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee establishes risk management strategies in accordance with the directives of the Board of
Directors and determines the Company’s target risk appetite, approves significant risk matters and reviews the level of risks that
the Company is exposed to and the appropriateness of the Company’s risk management operations as an ultimate decisionmaking authority.

Risk Management Council
The Risk Management Council reviews and makes decisions on matters delegated by the Risk Management Committee and
discusses the detailed issues relating to the Company’s risk management.

Risk Management Department
The Risk Management Department is responsible for conducting work processes, procedures and detailed policies.
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4.2 Credit Risk
4.2.1 Overview of Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of possible losses in an asset portfolio in the events of counterparty’s default, breach of contract and
deterioration in the credit quality of the counterparty. For risk management reporting purposes, the individual borrower’s default risk
is considered.

4.2.2 Credit Risk Management
The Company measures expected losses on assets that are subject to credit risk management and uses it as a management
indicator.

4.2.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk
The Company’s maximum exposures of financial instruments to credit risk without consideration of collateral values as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Due from financial institutions 			

₩

Loans 				

2011

96,234

32,031

₩

25,000 		

Other financial assets 				

60,000

20,226 		

₩

141,460

28,304
120,335

₩

4.2.4 Credit risk of loans
The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses associated with credit risk on loans to manage its credit risk.
The Company recognizes an impairment loss on loans carried at amortized cost when there is any objective indication of
impairment. Under K-IFRS, an impairment loss is based on losses incurred at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the
Company does not recognize losses expected as a result of future events. The Company measures inherent incurred losses on
loans and presents them in the financial statements through the use of an allowance account which is offset against the related
loans.
Loans are classified as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Corporate
loans

Loan before allowances

Neither past due nor impaired

₩

2011
Percentage
(%)

25,000 		

Corporate
loans

100.00

₩

Percentage
(%)

60,000 		

100.00

Past due but not impaired 		

- 		

- 		

-		

-

Impaired 		

-		

- 		

- 		

-

				

25,000 		

100.00 		

60,000 		

100.00

Allowances		

-		

-		

-		

-

60,000 		

100.00

Carrying amount

₩

25,000 		

100.00

₩
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Credit quality of loans that are neither past due nor impaired:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Grade 1 			

2011

25,000

₩

60,000

₩

Grade 2 				

-		

-

Grade 3 				

- 		

-

Grade 4 				

- 		

-

Grade 5				

- 		

-

25,000

₩

60,000

₩

Credit quality of loans is classified as follows, according to the probability of default:
Range of PD(%)
(Probability of Default)

Grade 1

0.0 ~ 1.0

Grade 2

1.0 ~ 5.0

Grade 3

5.0 ~ 15.0

Grade 4

15.0 ~ 30.0

Grade 5

30.0 ~

4.2.5 Credit risk concentration analysist
The details of the Company’s loans by country, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Corporate loans

Korea

%

Allowances

Carrying amount

₩

25,000

100.00

₩

-

₩

25,000

₩

25,000

100.00

₩

-

₩

25,000

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Corporate loans

Korea

%

Allowances

Carrying amount

₩

60,000

100.00

₩

-

₩

60,000

₩

60,000

100.00

₩

-

₩

60,000
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The details of the Company’s loans by industry as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Loans

Financial institutions

%

Allowances

Carrying amount

₩

25,000

100.00

₩

-

₩

25,000

₩

25,000

100.00

₩

-

₩

25,000

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Loans

Financial institutions

%

Allowances

Carrying amount

₩

60,000

100.00

₩

-

₩

60,000

₩

60,000

100.00

₩

-

₩

60,000

4.3 Liquidity risk
4.3.1 Overview of liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of insolvency or loss due to a disparity between the inflow and outflow of funds, unexpected outflow of
funds, and obtaining funds at a high price or disposing of securities at an unfavorable price due to lack of available funds. The
Company manages its liquidity risk through analysis of the contractual maturity of all financial assets and liabilities. The Company
discloses them by maturity group: On demand, up to one month, between over one month and three months, between over three
months and twelve months, between over one year and five years, and over five years.
Cash flows disclosed for the maturity analysis are undiscounted contractual principal and interest to be received (paid) and, thus,
differs from the amount in the financial statements which are based on the present value of expected cash flows in some cases.
The amount of interest to be received on assets or paid on liabilities calculated using a floating interest rate, is measured on the
assumption that the current interest rate would be the same upon maturity.

4.3.2. Liquidity risk management
The liquidity risk is managed by liquidity management principles and related guideline which are applied to the risk management
policies and procedures that address all the possible risks that arise from the overall business of the Company.
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4.3.3. Analysis of remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities
The remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
On
demand

Up to
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Total

Financial 														
assets
Due from 															
financial
₩
11,251 ₩
85,416 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
96,667
institutions1
Loans		

- 		

100 		

200 		

25,300		

- 		

- 		

25,600

Other financial															
- 		
8		
- 		
20,358 		
- 		
- 		
20,366
assets 		
₩

11,251 ₩

85,524 ₩

200

₩

45,658 ₩

-

- ₩

₩

142,633

Financial 															
liabilities
Other financial															
₩
- ₩
874 ₩
- ₩
286 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
1,160
liabilities
- ₩

₩

874 ₩

-

286 ₩

₩

-

- ₩

₩

1,160

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
On
demand

Up to
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Total

Financial 															
assets
Due from 															
financial
₩
20,107 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
20,107
institutions1 		
Loans		

- 		

292 		

583 		

12,335 		

51,460 		

- 		

64,670

Other financial															
- 		
8,608 		
- 		
20,208 		
- 		
- 		
28,816
assets 		
₩

20,107 ₩

8,900 ₩

583

₩

32,543 ₩

51,460

₩

- ₩

113,593

Financial 															
liabilities
Debts

₩

Debentures 		

- ₩

- ₩

-		

- 		

-

₩

50,663		

130,000 ₩
- 		

-

₩

- 		

- ₩
- 		

130,000
50,663

Other financial															
- 		
647 		
880 		
5		
- 		
- 		
1,532
liabilities
₩
1

- ₩

647 ₩

51,543

₩

130,005 ₩

-

₩

- ₩

182,195

	The amounts of ₩ 3 million and ₩ 12,003 million which are restricted amounts due from the financial institutions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, are
excluded.
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4.4 Market risk
4.4.1 Definition of market risk
Market risk is the risk of possible losses which arise from changes in market factors, such as interest rate, stock price, foreign
exchange rate and other market factors that affect to the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments. The most
significant risks are interest rate risks.

4.4.2 Interest rate risk
Definition of interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows arising from interest income and interest cost will fluctuate
because of changes in interest.

Observation method on interest rate risk
The main objective of interest rate risk management is to protect asset values against interest rate fluctuations. The Company
manages the risk through interest rate gap analysis on interest rate maturities between interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing
liabilities and measurement and management of interest rate VaR.

Disclosure of results from each observation method
i. Interest rate gap analysis
Interest rate gap analysis is based on interest rates repricing maturities of interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
It measures expected changes in net interest income by calculating the difference in the amounts of interest-bearing assets and
interest-bearing liabilities at each maturity. The Company conducts interest gap analysis on assets denominated in Korean won
and foreign currency on a monthly basis. However, where there is no maturity of a particular instrument, then a maturity date is set
according to liquidity risk management guideline.
The results of the interest rate gap analysis as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing 													
assets
Due from financial 													
₩
96,231
₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
₩
96,231
institutions
Loans 		
₩

25,000		
121,231

₩

- 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

-

-

-

-

₩

₩

₩

₩

25,000
121,231

Interest-bearing 													
liabilities
Debts

₩

-

₩

Gap		

₩

121,231

Accumulated gap

₩

121,231

Percentage (%) 		

-

₩

₩

-

₩

121,231

100.00 		

-

₩

₩

-

₩

121,231

100.00 		

-

₩

₩

-

₩

121,231

100.00		

-

₩

-

₩

-

₩

121,231

₩

121,231

100.00 		

100.00
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing 													
assets
Due from financial 													
₩
20,028
₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
₩
20,028
institutions
Loans 		
₩

60,000 		

-		

- 		

- 		

- 		

60,000

80,028

-

-

-

-

80,028

₩

₩

₩

₩

₩

Interest-bearing 													
liabilities
Debts

₩

Debentures		

-

₩

50,000 		

130,000

₩

- 		

-

-

₩

-

₩

₩

- 		

- 		

- 		

130,000
50,000

₩

50,000

₩

130,000

₩

-

₩

-

₩

-

₩

180,000

Gap		

₩

30,028

₩

(130,000)

₩

-

₩

-

₩

-

₩

(99,972)

Accumulated gap

₩

30,028

₩

(99,972)

₩

(99,972)

₩

(99,972)

₩

(99,972)

Percentage (%) 		

37.52		

(124.92)		

(124.92)		

(124.92)		

(124.92)

ii. Interest Rate VaR
Interest rate VaR is the maximum possible loss due to interest rate risk at a 99.94% confidence level. The measurement result of
risk as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Interest rate VaR

₩

2011

208

₩

726

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company changed its method of calculating interest rate impact from simulation
method by applying probable interest rate scenario to historical simulation method by making use of historical interest rate data.
These changes are for a more sophisticated interest rate risk measurement, considering the practical scenarios, the model
appropriateness, practical application as well as easy comprehension.
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4.5. Capital Adequacy
The Company is a financial holding company under the Financial Holding Companies Act. It must maintain a consolidated BIS ratio
above 8% based on Basel I in accordance with the Supervisory Regulations and Detailed Supervisory Regulations on Financial
Holding Companies.
The details of the Company’s consolidated BIS ratio as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Equity Capital: 			

₩

2011

26,907,004

₩

25,062,681

Tier I Capital 				

20,595,885 		

19,495,671

Tier II Capital 				

6,311,119 		

5,567,010

Risk-weighted assets: 				

193,510,143 		

192,812,547

Credit risk 				

187,465,230 		

187,851,397

Market risk 				

6,044,913		

4,961,150

Capital adequacy ratio(%): 				

13.90 		

13.00

Tier I Capital(%) 				

10.64 		

10.11

Tier II Capital(%) 				

3.26		

2.89

5. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value or amortized cost.
The carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and liabilities by category as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Carrying amount

Fair value

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
		 Due from financial institutions 			

₩

		 Loans 				
		 Other financial assets 				

96,234

₩

25,000 		
20,226 		

96,234
25,000
20,226

₩

141,460

₩

141,460

₩

1,160

₩

1,160

₩

1,160

₩

1,160

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
		 Other financial liabilities 			
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Carrying amount

Fair value

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
		 Due from financial institutions 			

₩

32,031

₩

32,031

		 Loans 				

60,000 		

60,000

		 Other financial assets 				

28,304 		

28,304

₩

120,335

₩

120,335

₩

130,000

₩

130,000

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
		 Debts 			

		 Debentures 				
		 Other financial liabilities 			

49,988 		
1,970 		

₩

181,958

₩

42,654
1,970
174,624

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability could be settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. For each class of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company discloses the fair value
of that class of assets and liabilities in a way that permits it to be compared with its carrying amount at the end of each reporting
period. The best evidence of fair value of financial instruments is quoted price in an active market.

Methods of determining fair value of financial instruments are as follows:

Loans

Discounted Cash Flow Model is used to determine the fair value of loans. Fair value is determined
by discounting the expected cash flow, which are contractual cash flows adjusted by prepayment
rate, at appropriate discount rate. For those loans with residual maturities of less than three months
as of the reporting date and the ones with interest rate reset period of less than three months,
carrying amount is regarded as fair value.

Debts

Fair value is determined using a DCF model discounting contractual future cash flows at an
appropriate discount rate. However, for those debts with residual maturities of less than three
months as of the reporting date and ones with interest rate reset period of less than three months,
the carrying amount is regarded as fair value.

Debentures

Fair value is determined by using the valuations of independent third-party pricing services, which
are calculated using market inputs.
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6. Due from Financial Institution
The details of due from financial institution as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial
Institutions

Interest rate (%)
(Dec. 31, 2012)

2012

2011

Due from financial										
Due from banking
institution in
		 Kookmin Bank
0.00 ~ 2.85
₩
96,234 ₩
32,031
institution
Korean won

The maturities of due from financial institution, excluding restricted due from financial institution, as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Due in
3 months
or less

Due after
3 months
through
6 months

Due after
6 months
through
1 year

Due after
1 year
through
3 years

Over
3 years

Total

Due from financial 													
institution in
₩
96,231
₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
₩
96,231
Korean won
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Due in
3 months
or less

Due after
3 months
through
6 months

Due after
6 months
through
1 year

Due after
1 year
through
3 years

Over
3 years

Total

Due from financial 													
institution in
₩
20,028
₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
₩
20,028
Korean won

Restricted due from financial institution as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial
Institutions

2012

2011

Reason for restriction

Due from financial institution
Kookmin Bank
₩
₩
12,000
in Korean won							

Share capital payment of 		
KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd.

					
3		
3
									

Pledged as collateral for 		
the overdraft facility

₩

3

₩

12,003
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7. Loans
Loans as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Loans 			

₩

2011

25,000

Less: Allowances for loan losses 				
Carrying amount			

₩

₩

60,000

-		
25,000

₩

60,000

8. Subsidiaries
The details of subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
Name of subsidiary

Number of
Issued Shares

Location

Industry

Kookmin Bank 		
404,379,116
Korea
						

Banking and domestic, 		
foreign exchange transaction

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd 		

92,000,000

Korea

Credit card

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd.		

31,588,314

Korea

Financial investment

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.		

28,152,000

Korea

Life insurance

KB Asset Management Co., Ltd.		
7,667,550
Korea
						

Investment advisory and 		
collective investment

KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd.		

16,000,000

Korea

Real estate trust management

KB Investment Co., Ltd. 		

8,951,797

Korea

Investment in small company

KB Credit Information Co., Ltd.		
1,252,400
Korea
						

Collection of receivables and		
credit investigation

KB Data System Co., Ltd. 		
800,000
Korea
						

Software advisory, development 		
and supply

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. 		

Savings Banking

6,800,000

Korea
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Investments in subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Ownership(%)
(Dec. 31, 2012)

Name of subsidiary

2012

2011

Kookmin Bank

100.00

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd

100.00 		

1,953,175		

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd

100.00		

507,212 		

507,212

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

51.00 		

138,484 		

138,484

KB Asset Management Co., Ltd.

100.00		

96,312		

96,312

KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd.

100.00 		

121,553		

121,553

KB Investment Co., Ltd.

100.00		

104,910 		

104,910

KB Credit Information Co., Ltd.

100.00 		

23,621		

23,621

KB Data System Co., Ltd.

100.00 		

6,334 		

6,334

100.00 		

171,526 		

-

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd.

1

14,821,721

₩

17,944,848

₩
1

₩

₩

14,821,721
1,953,175

17,773,322

The Company established KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. with a capital investment of ₩ 171,526 million in January 2012.

9. Property and Equipment
The details of property and equipment as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Acquisition
cost

Leasehold improvements

346

₩

Equipment and vehicles 		
₩

Accumulated
impairment
losses

Accumulated
depreciation

₩

(278)

Carrying
amount

-

₩

68

₩

4,111		

(3,828) 		

- 		

283

4,457

(4,106)

-

351

₩

₩

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Acquisition
cost

Leasehold improvements

₩

Equipment and vehicles 		
₩

Accumulated
impairment
losses

Accumulated
depreciation

319

₩

(199)

₩

Carrying
amount

-

₩

120

4,024 		

(3,385) 		

- 		

639

4,343

(3,584)

-

759

₩

₩

₩

066
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The changes in property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Leasehold improvements

Acquisition

120

₩

27

₩

Equipment and vehicles 		

639 		

Total

759

₩

Depreciation

(79)

₩

87 		
114

₩

Ending

₩

68

₩

(443) 		

283

(522)

351

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Leasehold improvements

120

₩

Equipment and vehicles 		
Total

Acquisition

88

₩

989 		
1,109

₩

Depreciation

₩

Ending

(88)

₩

120

₩

145		

(495) 		

639

233

(583)

759

₩

₩

Property and equipment insured as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Insurance Coverage
Type of insurance

Asset insured

2012

2011

Insurance company

									
General property insurance
Leasehold improvements
₩
346 ₩
319
			

Equipment and vehicles 		
₩

4,111 		

4,024

4,457

4,343

₩

Samsung Fire & 		
Marine Insurance Co., Ltd.		

10. Intangible Assets
The details of intangible assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Acquisition
cost

Software

₩

Membership rights 		
Other intangible assets 		
₩

1,814

Accumulated
impairment
losses

Accumulated
amortization

₩

(1,650)

₩

11,714 		

- 		

2,536 		

(2,003) 		

16,064

₩

(3,653)

₩

Carrying
amount

-

₩

(3,289) 		
- 		
(3,289)

₩

164
8,425
533
9,122
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Acquisition
cost

Software

1,731

₩

Accumulated
impairment
losses

Accumulated
amortization

(1,270)

₩

Carrying
amount

-

₩

461

₩

Membership rights		

11,667		

- 		

(2,532) 		

9,135

Other intangible assets 		

2,354		

(1,419) 		

- 		

935

15,752

₩

(2,689)

₩

(2,532)

₩

10,531

₩

The changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Software

Acquisition

461

₩

Amortization

83

₩

(380)

₩

Impairment1

Ending

-

₩

164

₩

Membership rights 		

9,135 		

48		

- 		

(757) 		

8,426

Other intangible assets 		

935 		

182		

(585) 		

- 		

532

313

(965)

10,531

₩

₩

₩

(757)

₩

9,122

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Software

₩

805

Acquisition

₩

84

Disposal

₩

Amortization

-

Impairment1

(428)

₩

₩

-

Ending

461

₩

Membership rights		

8,924 		

3,589 		

(846) 		

-		

(2,532) 		

9,135

Other intangible assets 		

1,328		

177 		

-		

(570)		

- 		

935

₩
1

11,057

₩

3,850

₩

(846)

(998)

₩

₩

(2,532)

₩

10,531

Membership rights with indefinite useful lives recognized impairment losses because their recoverable amount is lower than their carrying amount.

The changes in accumulated impairment losses on intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Impairment

Reversal

Ending

Accumulated impairment									
₩
(2,532)
₩
(757)
₩
₩
(3,289)
losses on intangible assets
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Impairment

Reversal

Ending

Accumulated impairment									
₩
₩
(2,532)
₩
₩
(2,532)
losses on intangible assets

11. Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities
The details of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Assets

Share-based payments 			

Liabilities

2,320

₩

Net amount

-

₩

₩

2,320

Membership rights 				

796		

- 		

796

Defined benefit obligation 				

1,602		

- 		

1,602

Plan assets				

-		

(1,267)		

(1,267)

Investments in subsidiaries				

- 		

(493)		

(493)

Short-term employee benefits 				

214		

- 		

214

Others 				

628		

- 		

628

						

5,560 		

(1,760)		

3,800

Off-setting of deferred tax assets and liabilities			

(1,760) 		

1,760		

-

3,800

₩

-

₩

₩

3,800

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Assets

Share-based payments 			

₩

Liabilities

1,507

₩

Net amount

-

₩

- 		

1,507

Membership rights				

613		

613

Defined benefit obligation 				

1,283 		

- 		

1,283

Plan assets				

- 		

(1,283) 		

(1,283)

Investments in subsidiaries 				

- 		

(493)		

(493)

Short-term employee benefits 				

216 		

- 		

216

Others 				

602 		

- 		

602

						

4,221 		

(1,776) 		

2,445

Off-setting of deferred tax assets and liabilities			

(1,776) 		

1,776 		

-

₩

2,445

₩

-

₩

2,445
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Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
No deferred income tax assets have been recognized for the deductible temporary difference of ₩ 2,896,164 million and ₩
77,275 million, associated with investments in subsidiaries and tax loss carryforwards, respectively, as of December 31, 2012, due
to the uncertainty that all these will be realized in the future.
The changes in cumulative temporary differences for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Decrease

Increase

Ending

Deductible temporary differences
Share-based payments

₩

6,228

₩

283

₩

3,641

9,586

₩

Membership rights 		

2,532 		

- 		

757 		

3,289

Investments in subsidiaries 		

2,896,164 		

- 		

- 		

2,896,164

Defined benefit obligation 		

5,301 		

1,554 		

2,873 		

6,620

Short-term employee benefits 		

890 		

890 		

887		

887

Tax loss carryforwards 		

77,275 		

- 		

- 		

77,275

Others		

2,489 		

2,489 		

2,595 		

2,595

				

2,990,879 		

5,216 		

10,753 		

2,996,416

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets:								
Investments in subsidiaries		
Tax loss carryforwards 		
₩
Tax rate (%) 		

2,896,164 						

2,896,164

77,275						

77,275

17,440 					

22,977

₩

24.2						

24.2

Deferred income tax assets from									
₩
4,221 					 ₩
5,560
deductible temporary differences
Taxable temporary differences
Investments in subsidiaries

₩

Plan assets 		
₩
Tax rate (%) 		

(2,395,805)

₩

(5,301) 		
(2,401,106)

₩

-

₩

-

₩

(2,214) 		

(2,149) 		

(2,214)

(2,149)

₩

24.2 						

₩

(2,395,805)
(5,236)
(2,401,041)
24.2

Deferred income tax liabilities from									
₩
(1,776) 					 ₩
(1,760)
taxable temporary differences
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Decrease

Increase

Ending

Deductible temporary differences
Share-based payments

₩

4,149

₩

455

₩

2,534

6,228

₩

Membership rights 		

- 		

- 		

2,532		

2,532

Investments in subsidiaries 		

2,896,164		

- 		

- 		

2,896,164

Defined benefit obligation 		

3,552 		

1,488		

3,237 		

5,301

Short-term employee benefits 		

927		

927		

891		

891

Tax loss carryforwards 		

77,275		

- 		

- 		

77,275

Others 		

1,481 		

1,481		

2,488 		

2,488

				

2,983,548 		

4,351 		

11,682 		

2,990,879

Investments in subsidiaries 		

2,896,164 						

2,896,164

Tax loss carryforwards 		

77,275						

77,275

10,109 					

17,440

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets:

₩
Tax rate (%) 		

₩

24.2, 22.0						

24.2

Deferred income tax assets from									
₩
2,277 					 ₩
4,221
deductible temporary differences
Taxable temporary differences
Investments in subsidiaries

₩

Plan assets		
₩
Tax rate (%) 		

(2,395,805)

₩

(4,232)		
(2,400,037)

₩

-

₩

-

₩

(1,488)		

(2,557)		

(1,488)

(2,557)

₩

24.2, 22.0 						

₩

(2,395,805)
(5,301)
(2,401,106)
24.2

Deferred income tax liabilities from									
₩
(1,379) 					 ₩
(1,776)
taxable temporary differences
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12. Other Assets
The details of other assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Other financial assets
Other receivables 			

8

₩

Accrued income 				

-

₩

362 		

132

Guarantee deposits 				

19,856		

28,172

						

20,226 		

28,304

Other receivables 				

289,656		

601,106

Prepaid expenses 				

788		

2,192

Advance payments 				

3		

-

						

290,447 		

603,298

310,673

631,602

Other assets

₩

₩

13. Debts
The details of debts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Commercial paper

Issued
date

Expiration
date

Annual interest
rates(%)
(Dec. 31, 2012)

2011.12.12

2012.04.02

-

2012

2011

-

₩

₩

130,000

The maturity of debts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Due after
3 months
through
6 months

Due in
3 months
or less

Commercial paper

-

₩

Due after
6 months
through
1 year

-

₩

Due after
1 year
through
3 years

-

₩

Total

-

₩

-

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Due after
3 months
through
6 months

Due in
3 months
or less

Commercial paper

₩

-

₩

130,000

Due after
6 months
through
1 year

₩

Due after
1 year
through
3 years

-

₩

Total

-

₩

130,000

KB Financial Group

072

14. Debentures
The details of debentures at amortized cost as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Issued
date

Annual interest
rates(%)
(Dec. 31, 2012)

Expiration
date

2012

2011

Unguaranteed debentures								
2009.03.20
2012.03.20
₩
- ₩
50,000
No. 2-2
				

Bond discounts				

- 		
-

₩

₩

(12)
49,988

The maturity of debts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Due after
3 months
through
6 months

Due in
3 months
or less

Debentures in Korean won

-

₩

Due after
6 months
through
1 year

-

₩

Due after
1 year
through
3 years

-

₩

Total

-

₩

-

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Due after
3 months
through
6 months

Due in
3 months
or less

Debentures in Korean won

₩

50,000

Due after
6 months
through
1 year

-

₩

Due after
1 year
through
3 years

-

₩

Total

-

₩

₩

50,000

The changes in debentures based on face value for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Debentures in Korean won

₩

50,000

Issue

Repayment

-

₩

₩

(50,000)

Ending

-

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Debentures in Korean won

₩

800,000

Issue

₩

Repayment

-

₩

(750,000)

Ending

₩

50,000
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15. Defined Benefit Liabilities
Defined benefit plan
The Company operates a defined benefit plan which has the following characteristics:
-	The Company has the obligation to pay the agreed benefits to all its current and former employees.
-	Actuarial risk (that benefits will cost more than expected) and investment risk fall, in substance, on the Company.
The defined benefit obligation recognized in the statements of financial position is calculated annually by independent actuaries in
accordance with actuarial valuation method.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit method (the ‘PUC’). The data used in the PUC such
as interest rates, future salary increase rate, mortality rate, consumer price index and expected return on plan asset are based on
observable market data and historical data are updated annually.
Actuarial assumptions may differ from actual result due to change in the market, economic trend and mortality trend which may
impact defined benefit obligation liabilities and future payments. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period it occurs through profit or loss.
The changes in the defined benefit obligation for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Present value of defined benefit obligation (beginning) 			

2011

7,828

₩

5,366

₩

Current service cost 				

1,469 		

1,252

Interest cost 				

337 		

274

Actuarial gains and losses 				

1,066 		

1,711

Benefits paid				
Present value of defined benefit obligation (ending)			

(542)		
10,158

₩

(775)
7,828

₩

The changes in the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Fair value of plan assets (beginning) 			

₩

2011

6,836

₩

4,232

Expected return on plan assets 				

285 		

183

Actuarial gains and losses 				

(62) 		

(45)

Contributions 				

2,342		

2,889

Benefits paid				
Fair value of plan assets (ending) 			

₩

(627) 		
8,774

₩

(423)
6,836
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The details of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Present value of defined benefit obligation 			

2011

10,158

₩

074

7,828

₩

Fair value of plan assets				

(8,774) 		

(6,836)

Defined benefit liabilities 				

1,384		

992

The details of post-employment benefits recognized in profit and loss as employee compensation and benefits for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Current service cost 			

2011

1,469

₩

1,252

₩

Interest cost 				

337		

274

Expected return on plan assets 				

(285) 		

(183)

Actuarial gains and losses 				

1,128 		

1,756

Post-employment benefits 			

2,649

3,099

₩

₩

The actual return on plan assets was ₩ 223 million and ₩ 138 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
The details of plan assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Time deposits 			

2011

8,774

₩

6,836

₩

Key actuarial assumptions used as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
2012

2011

Discount rate (%)

3.55

4.32

Expected return on plan assets (%)

4.19

3.91

Future salary increase rate (%)
			

Mortality assumptions are based on the 2012 Korea standard mortality rates table.

2.50(2013), 			
4.55
4.55(2014~)
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The present value of defined benefits obligation, fair value of plan assets and actuarial adjustments to each items as of December
31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Dec. 31,
2012

Dec. 31,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Jan. 1,
2010

Present value of defined benefits 									
₩
10,158
₩
7,828
₩
5,366
₩
4,345
obligation
Fair value of plan assets 		
₩

(8,774)		
1,384

₩

(6,836)		
992

(4,232) 		
1,134

₩

(3,296)
1,049

₩

Experience adjustments on defined									
₩
264
₩
389
₩
73		
benefits obligation
Changes in assumptions to defined									
802		
1,322 		
569 		
benefits obligation 		
Adjustments to plan assets 		

62 		

45 		

57		

-

The Company's best estimate of contributions expected to be paid to plan during the annual period beginning after the reporting
period amounts to ₩ 1,283 million.

16. Other Liabilities
The details of other liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Other financial liabilities
Other payables 			

₩

445

₩

341

Accrued expenses				

715 		

1,629

						

1,160 		

1,970

Other non-financial liabilities
Other payables 				

3,957 		

4,252

Accrued expenses 				

41,328 		

27,833

Withholding taxes 				

322		

646

						

45,607 		

32,731

46,767

34,701

₩

₩
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17. Equity
17.1 Share capital
The details of share capital as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won, except per share amounts)

2012

2011

Type 				

Ordinary share 		

Ordinary share

Number of authorized shares 				

1,000,000,000 		

1,000,000,000

Par value per share 			
Share capital			

5,000

₩

Number of issued shares 				
₩

1,931,758

5,000

₩

386,351,693 		
₩

386,351,693
1,931,758

The changes in shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
2012
Beginning

Number of issued shares 		

Increase

386,351,693 		

Decrease

- 		

Ending

- 		

386,351,693

2012
Beginning

Number of issued shares 		
1

1

343,028,989 		

Increase

Decrease

43,322,704		

Ending

- 		

386,351,693

Excluding 43,322,704 shares owned by Kookmin Bank.

17.2 Capital Surplus
The details of capital surplus as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Share premium 			

₩

Other capital surplus 				
₩

12,226,597

2011

₩

1,287,212 		
13,513,809

₩

12,226,597
1,287,212
13,513,809
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17.3 Retained Earnings
The details of retained earnings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, consist of:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Legal reserves 			

2011

124,014

₩

₩

124,014

Voluntary reserves 				

982,000 		

982,000

Regulatory reserve for credit losses				

3,306 		

-

Unappropriated retained earnings 				

1,529,455		

1,164,699

2,638,775

2,270,713

₩

₩

With respect to the allocation of net profit earned in a fiscal term, the Company must set aside in its legal reserve an amount
equal to at least 10% of its net income after tax as reported in the separate statement of comprehensive income each time it pays
dividends on its net profits earned until its legal reserve reaches at least the aggregate amount of its paidin capital in accordance
with Article 53 of the Financial Holding Company Act. The reserve is not available for the payment of cash dividends, but may be
transferred to share capital, or used to reduce accumulated deficit.

Statements of Appropriation of Retained Earnings
(Date of appropriation for 2012: March 22, 2013)
(Date of appropriation for 2011: March 23, 2012)
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Unappropriated retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of year 			

₩

883,220

₩

1,228,377

Profit(loss) for the year				

646,235 		

(63,678)

						

1,529,455		

1,164,699

Regulatory reserve for credit losses 				

1,731 		

-

						

1,731		

-

Legal reserve				

64,624		

-

Regulatory reserve for credit losses 				

- 		

3,306

Transfers such as discretionary reserves

Appropriation of retained earnings

Cash dividends 							
		 (Dividends per common share: ₩ 600 (12.0%) in 2012)							
		 (Dividends per common share: ₩ 720 (14.4%) in 2011) 				
231,811 		
278,173
						
Unappropriated retained earnings to be carried over to subsequent year			

296,435 		
₩

1,234,751

₩

281,479
883,220
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Regulatory Reserve for Credit Losses
Measurement and disclosure of regulatory reserve for credit losses are required in accordance with Articles 26 through 28 of
Supervisory Regulations on Financial Holding Companies.
The details of the regulatory reserve for credit losses as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Beginning 			

₩

Amounts estimated to be appropriated				
Ending 			

2011

3,306

-

₩

(1,731) 		

₩

1,575

3,306
3,306

₩

The adjustments to the regulatory reserve for credit losses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won, except per share amounts)

2012

Reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses 					

(1,731)

₩

Adjusted profit(loss) after provision of regulatory reserve for credit losses1 						

647,966

Adjusted basic earnings(losses) per share after provision of regulatory reserve for credit losses1 			

1,677

Adjusted diluted earnings(losses) per share after provision of regulatory reserve for credit losses 		

1,672

1

₩

(In millions of Korean won, except per share amounts)

2011

Provision of regulatory reserve for credit losses 					

₩

2,373

Adjusted profit(loss) after provision of regulatory reserve for credit losses1 						

(66,051)

Adjusted basic earnings(losses) per share after provision of regulatory reserve for credit losses 			

(180)

Adjusted diluted earnings(losses) per share after provision of regulatory reserve for credit losses 		

(180)

1

1

₩

1

	Adjusted profit (loss) after provision (reversal) of regulatory reserve for credit losses is not accordance with K-IFRS and calculated on the assumption that provision (reversal)
of regulatory reserve for credit losses before income tax is adjusted to the profit (loss) for the year.

18. Dividends
The dividends paid to the shareholders of the Company in 2012 and 2011 were ₩ 278,173 million (₩ 720 per share) and ₩
41,163 million (₩120 per share), respectively. The dividend to the shareholders in respect of the year ended December 31, 2012,
of ₩ 600 per share, amounting to total dividends of ₩ 231,811 million, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on March
22, 2013. The Company's separate financial statements as of December 31, 2012, do not reflect this dividend payable.
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19. Net Interest Income
Interest income and interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Interest income
Due from financial institutions 			

2,256

₩

Loans 				

16,075

₩

2,978 		

9,916

Other 				

784 		

1,008

						

6,018 		

26,999

2,447 		

275

Interest expense
Debts 				
Debentures 				

578 		

41,296

						

3,025 		

41,571

Net interest income(expense) 			

2,993

₩

(14,572)

₩

20. Net Fee and Commission Income
Fee and commission income and fee and commission expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Fee and commission income
Fees in Korean won 			

-

₩

-

₩

Fee and commission expense
Fees paid in Korean won 				

3,993		

5,987

Fees paid in foreign currency 				

137		

92

						

4,130 		

6,079

Net fee and commission expense 			

(4,130)

₩

(6,079)

₩

21. Net Other Operating Income
Other operating income and other operating expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Other operating income
Dividend income in subsidiaries 			

₩

Other operating expense				
Net other operating income 			

₩

687,925

₩

- 		
687,925

₩

-
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22. General and Administrative Expenses
The details of general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

20111

Employee Benefits
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits - Salaries 			

₩

19,875

₩

20,564

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits - Others 				

2,673 		

2,245

Termination benefits				

- 		

135

Post employment benefits - defined benefit plans 				

2,649		

3,099

Share-based payments 				

3,641 		

2,534

						

28,838		

28,577

Depreciation and amortization				

1,487		

1,581

Travel 				

354		

364

Communications 				

265		

254

Tax and dues 				

268 		

329

Other general and administrative expenses

Publication 				

217 		

254

Rental expense 				

2,048 		

2,173

Vehicle 				

189 		

175

Service fees 				

2,134 		

1,817

Advertising 				

673 		

614

Training 				

458		

521

Others 				

4,666 		

5,052

						

11,272 		

11,553

					

41,597

41,711

1

₩

Other general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2011, reclassified as employee benefits, amount to ₩ 2,245 million.

₩
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Share-Based Payments
Share-based payment plan, where the number of granted shares is determined by the longterm achievement, for executives and
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012, is as follows:
(In number of shares)

Share grants

Grant date

Number
of granted
shares1

Vesting conditions

(KB Financial Group Inc.)
Series 1
2008.09.29 		
2,543
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 2

Series 2

Service fulfillment3

2009.03.27 		

3,090

Series 3
2010.01.01 		
32,256
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis
of market and non-market performance 4,10

Series 4
2010.07.13 		
218,944
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 5,10

Series 5
2010.12.23 		
13,260
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 6,10

Series 6
2011.08.10 		
8,183
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 6,10

Series 7
2012.01.01 		
42,568
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 4,10

					

320,844

(Kookmin Bank)
Series 23
2010.07.29		
73,650
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 7, 10

Series 24
2010.08.03 		
25,707
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10, 11

Series 25
2010.08.12 		
18,472
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 7, 10

Series 27
2010.09.20 		
6,222
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 28
2010.12.21 		
50,310
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 29
2010.12.23 		
5,559
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 31
2011.01.03 		
16,479
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 32

Services fulfillment, Non-market performance 9, 10

2011.03.24 		

7,986

Series 33
2011.07.07 		
6,025
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 34
2011.08.10 		
10,242
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 35
2011.10.12 		
8,846
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10
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(In number of shares)

Share grants

Grant date

Number
of granted
shares1

Vesting conditions

Series 36
2011.10.18 		
8,596
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 10, 12

Series 37
2011.12.23 		
68,310
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 38
2012.01.01 		
171,100
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis of market
and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 39
2012.01.08 		
120,176
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis of market
and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 40
2012.08.01
8,978
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis of market
and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 41
2012.08.02 		
36,938
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis of market
and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 42
2012.09.20		
8,244
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis of market
and non-market performance 8, 10

Series 43
2012.11.26 		
13,918
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis of market
and non-market performance 8, 10

Deferred grant in 2010

-		

9,578

Satisfied

Deferred grant in 2011

-		

26,884

Satisfied

Deferred grant in 2012

- 		

13,547

Satisfied

					

715,767

(Other subsidiaries)
Year 2010 			
33,822
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 13

Year 2011 			
38,931
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis
of market and non-market performance 13

		

Year 2012 			
63,976
						

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis
of market and non-market performance 13

		

					

136,729

					

1,173,340

1

Granted shares represent the total number of shares initially granted to directors and employees at the end of reporting period.

2

	The vesting condition is fulfill the remaining contracted service period. The number of certain granted shares to be compensated is determined based on the fulfillment of
service requirement. The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of certain granted shares to be compensated are determined upon the accomplishment of the targeted KPI,
the targeted financial results of the Group and the targeted relative TSR, respectively.

3

The number of granted shares to be compensated is determined based on fulfillment of service requirement.

4

	The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined upon the accomplishment of targeted KPI, targeted financial results of the
Group and targeted relative TSR, respectively. However, 50% and 50% of certain granted shares will be compensated based on the accomplishment of targeted KPI and
the accomplishment of targeted relative TSR.

5

	The 37.5%, 37.5% and 25% of the number of certain granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of targeted relative TSR, targeted
relative EPS and qualitative indicators, respectively. The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of other granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the
accomplishment of targeted KPI, targeted financial results of the Group and targeted relative TSR, respectively. The 40%, 40% and 20% of the number of the remaining
granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted relative TSR, the targeted EPS and qualitative indicators, respectively.

6

	The 40%, 30% and 30% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted relative TSR, the targeted KPI
and the targeted financial results of the Group, respectively.

7

	The 40%, 40% and 20% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted relative TSR, the targeted
relative EPS and qualitative indicators, such as a trend of ROA of the last two years, respectively.
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8	

The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted KPI, the targeted financial
results of Kookmin Bank and the targeted relative TSR, respectively.

9
10

The number of granted shares to be compensated is not linked to performance, but fixed.
	Certain portion of the granted shares is compensated over a maximum period of three years.

11

Fair value of compensation per granted share for certain shares is confirmed.

12

	Half of the number of granted shares to be compensated is determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted relative TSR, while the other half is determined by
the targeted KPI.

13

	The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted KPI, subsidiary’s MOU with
the Group and the targeted relative TSR, respectively. The 60% and 40% of the number of certain granted shares to be compensated is determined based on subsidiary’s
MOU with the Group and the targeted relative TSR, respectively.

The share grant award program is an incentive plan that sets, on grant date, the maximum amount of shares that can be awarded.
Actual shares granted at the end of the vesting period is determined in accordance with achievement of pre-specified targets over
the vesting period.
The details of share grants linked to short-term performance as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
Number of
vested shares1

Grant date

Vesting
conditions

KB Financial Group Inc.

Share granted in 2010

2010.01.01		

6,149

Satisfied

			

Share granted in 2011

2011.01.01 		

19,279

Satisfied

			

Share granted in 2012

2012.01.01		

24,257

Proportion to service period

Kookmin Bank

Share granted in 2010

2010.01.01 		

50,155

Satisfied

			

Share granted in 2011

2011.01.01 		

142,778

Satisfied

			

Share granted in 2012

2012.01.01 		

179,905

Proportion to service period

1

The number of shares, which are exercisable, is determined by the results of performance. The share grants are settled over three years.

Share grants are measured at fair value using the Monte Carlo Simulation Model and assumptions used in determining the fair
value as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(In Korean won)

Expected exercise
period (Years)

Fair value
(Market
performance
condition)

Risk free
rate (%)

Fair value
(Non-market
performance
condition)

(KB Financial Group Inc.) Long-term achievements
Series 1-4

0.22

2.78

Series 2-3

0.22

2.78		

- 		

37,800

Series 3-1

0.25~1.00

2.78 		

- 		

37,117~38,564

Series 3-2

0.25~2.00

2.78 		

- 		

37,117~39,366

Series 3-3

0.25~1.00

2.78		

- 		

37,117~38,564

Series 4-1

0.53~3.53

2.78 		

5,401 		

38,961~40,501

Series 4-2

0.53~3.53

2.78 		

5,874 		

38,961~40,501

Series 4-3

0.25~3.00

2.78 		

37,117 		

37,117~40,159

Series 4-4

0.25~3.00

2.78 		

37,117 		

37,117~40,159

Series 4-5

0.25~3.00

2.78 		

37,117 		

37,117~40,159

₩

-

₩

37,800
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(In Korean won)

Expected exercise
period (Years)

Series 5-1

Fair value
(Market
performance
condition)

Risk free
rate (%)

0.25~2.00

2.78 		

Series 6-1

1.00~4.00

Series 7-1

1.00~4.00

Series 23

Fair value
(Non-market
performance
condition)

-		

37,117~39,366

2.78 		

8,321 		

37,616~40,925

2.78 		

17,835 		

37,616~40,925

0.53~3.53

2.78 		

5,713 		

37,635~40,501

Series 24

0.25~3.00

2.78		

- 		

37,117~40,159

Series 25

0.53~3.53

2.78 		

5,673 		

37,635~40,501

Series 27

0.25~3.00

2.78 		

- 		

37,117~40,159

Series 28

0.25~3.00

2.78 		

- 		

37,117~40,159

Series 29

0.25~3.00

2.78 		

- 		

37,117~40,159

Series 31

0.25~3.00

2.78 		

- 		

37,117~40,159

Series 32

1.22~4.23

2.78 		

- 		

37,451~40,894

Series 33

0.50~4.00

2.78 		

5,117 		

37,743~40,925

Series 34

0.61~4.00

2.78 		

8,454 		

37,666~40,925

Series 35

1.00~4.00

2.78 		

10,764 		

37,616~40,925

Series 36

1.00~4.00

2.78 		

11,559 		

37,616~40,925

Series 37

1.00~4.00

2.78 		

17,351 		

37,616~40,925

Series 38

1.00~4.00

2.78 		

17,835 		

37,616~40,925

Series 39

1.00~4.00

2.78 		

17,591 		

37,616~40,925

Series 40

1.58~5.00

2.79 		

23,052 		

37,283~41,706

Series 41

1.58~5.00

2.79 		

23,100		

37,396~41,706

Series 42

1.72~5.00

2.79 		

17,946 		

37,471~41,706

Series 43

1.90~5.00

2.80 		

17,739 		

37,363~41,706

Deferred grant in 2010

0.25~1.00

2.78		

- 		

38,529~39,366

Deferred grant in 2011

0.25~2.00

2.78		

- 		

38,056~39,366

Deferred grant in 2012

0.25~2.00

2.78		

- 		

38,564~39,366

		 Year 2010

0.25~0.65

2.78

		 Year 2011

1.00~1.35

2.78~2.79 		

4,482~11,720 		

37,450~37,616

		 Year 2012

2.00~2.54

2.80~2.82 		

19,787~25,616 		

36,989~37,291

(Kookmin Bank) Long-term achievements

(Other Subsidiaries) Long-term achievements
₩

0~37,117

₩

37,117~37,801
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(In Korean won)

Expected exercise
period (Years)

Fair value
(Market
performance
condition)

Risk free
rate (%)

Fair value
(Non-market
performance
condition)

(KB Financial Group Inc.) Short-term achievements
		 Year 2010

0.25~1.00

2.78

		 Year 2011

0.25~2.00

2.78		

-

- 		

37,117~39,366

		 Year 2012

1.00~3.00

2.78 		

- 		

38,564~40,159

		 Year 2010

0.25~1.00

2.78

-

37,117~38,564

		 Year 2011

0.25~2.00

2.78 		

- 		

37,117~39,366

		 Year 2012

1.00~3.00

2.78 		

- 		

38,564~40,159

₩

₩

37,117~38,564

(Kookmin Bank) Short-term achievements
₩

₩

Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the share price over the most recent period that is generally commensurate
with the expected term of the grant. And the current stock price of December 31, 2012, for the underlying asset price. Additionally,
the average three-year historical dividend rate was used as the expected dividend rate. The Company used the historical data of
Kookmin Bank for the period before the Company was incorporated.
Share-based payment arrangement for the employees of subsidiaries was transferred to the Company from the subsidiaries in
2010 and the related compensation cost paid to the employees of subsidiaries is reimbursed from the subsidiaries. The accrued
expenses representing share-based payments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are ₩ 37,846 million and ₩ 24,454 million,
respectively, and the receivables to be reimbursed from the subsidiaries for the compensation costs are ₩ 28,260 million and ₩
18,226 million, respectively. The compensation costs amounting to ₩ 3,641 million and ₩ 2,534 million were recognized as an
expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

23. Non-operating Income and Expenses
The details of non-operating income and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Non-operating income
Others 			

₩

						

1,580

₩

884

1,580 		

884

Impairment losses 				

757 		

2,532

Donation 				

1,107 		

1,215

Others 				

28		

-

						

1,892 		

3,747

Non-operating expenses

Net non-operating expense 			

₩

(312)

₩

(2,863)
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24. Income Tax
The details of income tax benefit for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Tax payable
Current tax expense 			

-

₩

-

₩

Change in deferred tax assets(liabilities)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 				
Tax benefit 			

₩

1,356 		

1,547

1,356

1,547

₩

The analysis of profit (loss) before tax and income tax benefit for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Ratio
(%)

Profit (loss) before tax 		
Tax expense at the applicable tax rate

24.13

Non-taxable income

1

2011
Ratio
(%)

Amounts

Amounts

₩

644,879 		

₩

(65,225)

₩

155,599

₩

(15,758)

24.16

(25.63)		

(165,287)

-		

-

Non-deductible expense

0.09		

584

(0.93) 		

607

Consolidated tax effect

1.20		

7,748

(20.91)		

13,636

- 		

-

0.05		

(32)

Others
Tax benefit

0.22

1,356

₩

(2.37)

1,547

₩

1

	Applicable income tax rate for ₩ 200 million and below is 11%, for ₩ 200 million to ₩ 20 billion is 22%, and for over ₩ 20 billion is 24.2% as of December 31, 2012.
In addition, for ₩ 200 million and below is 11%, and for over ₩ 200 million is 24.2% as of December 31, 2011.

The details of current tax assets (income tax refund receivable) and current tax liabilities (income tax payable), as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Income tax refund receivable prior to off-set 			

₩

2011

-

₩

-

Tax payable prior to off-set 				

- 		

-

Adjustment on consolidated tax payable 				

257,535 		

578,729

Current tax payable 			

257,535

578,729

₩

₩
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25. Earnings(Losses) per Share
Calculations of basic earnings(losses) per share on the profit(loss) attributable to ordinary shares are as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding :
(In number of shares)

2012
Number of
shares (a)

Beginning (A) 				

Days
outstanding (b)

386,351,693

Total outstanding
shares (a) x (b)

366 		 141,404,719,638

Weighted average number of ordinary 								
386,351,693
shares outstanding (B = A / 366) 							
(In number of shares)

2011
Number of
shares (a)

Days
outstanding (b)

Total outstanding
shares (a) x (b)

Beginning (A) 				

386,351,693

365 		 141,018,367,945

Treasury shares (B) 				

43,322,704

13 		

563,195,152

						

40,984,474

28 		

1,147,565,272

						

37,463,510

42 		

1,573,467,420

						

34,966,962

105 		

3,671,531,010

									

6,955,758,854

Total outstanding shares (C = A – B) 							 134,062,609,091
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 							
367,294,819
(D = C / 365) 							

Basic earnings(losses) per share
(in Korean won and in number of shares)

2012

Profit(loss) attributable to ordinary shares1 (E)

₩

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (F)		
Basic earnings(losses) per share (G = E / F)

646,235,488,149
386,351,693
1,673

₩

(in Korean won and in number of shares)

2011

Profit(loss) attributable to ordinary shares1 (E)

₩

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (F)		
Basic earnings(losses) per share (G = E / F)
1

Profit(loss) attributable to ordinary shares is the same as profit(loss) for the year in statements of comprehensive income.

₩

(63,678,372,821)
367,294,819
(173)
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Diluted earnings(losses) per share
Diluted earnings(losses) per share is calculated using the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding which
is adjusted by the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company’s dilutive potential ordinary shares include share grants.
A calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
market share price of the Company’s outstanding shares for the period) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to the share options. The number of shares calculated above is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of share grants.

Adjusted profit for diluted earnings(losses) per share:
(in Korean won and in number of shares)

2012

Profit(loss) attributable to ordinary shares

₩

646,235,488,149

Adjustment		
Adjusted profit(loss) for diluted earnings(losses) per share

₩

646,235,488,149

(in Korean won and in number of shares)

2011

Profit(loss) attributable to ordinary shares

₩

(63,678,372,821)

Adjustment		
Adjusted profit(loss) for diluted earnings(losses) per share

₩

(63,678,372,821)

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to calculate diluted earnings(losses) per share:
(in number of shares)

2012

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 		

386,351,693

Adjustment
Share grants		

1,193,606

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for			
387,545,299
diluted earnings(losses) per share		
(in number of shares)

2011

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 		

367,294,819

Adjustment
Share grants		

1,173,480

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for			
368,468,299
diluted earnings(losses) per share		
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Diluted earnings(losses) per share:
(In Korean won)

2012

Adjusted profit(loss) for diluted earnings(losses) per share

646,235,488,149

₩

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for 			
387,545,299
diluted earnings(losses) per share		
Diluted earnings(losses) per share 		

1,668
(In Korean won)

2011
Adjusted profit(loss) for diluted earnings(losses) per share

(63,678,372,821)

₩

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for 			
368,468,299
diluted earnings(losses) per share		
Diluted earnings(losses) per share 		

(173)

26. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Due from financial institutions 			

2011

96,234

₩

Restricted due from financial institutions				

32,031

₩

(3)		
96 231

₩

(12,003)
20,028

₩

Significant non-cash transactions for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Changes in receivables and payables from consolidated tax 			

₩

2011

(321,484)

Changes in other receivables and other payables 				

582,880

₩

10,034 		

2,598

Cash inflow and outflow due to interest and dividends for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Activity

2012

2011

Interest received

Operating

Interest paid

Operating 		

3,121		

45,143

Dividends received

Operating 		

687,925		

-

Dividends paid

Financing		

278,173 		

41,163

₩

5,012

₩

29,846
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27. Commitments
The commitments made with financial institutions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2011

2012

Amount of
commitment

Amounts
borrowed

Hana Bank

			

Woori Bank 		

130,000 		

- 		

130,000 		

-

Discounting of bills

Korea Exchange Bank 		

100,000		

- 		

100,000		

-

280,000

-

280,000

-

₩

-

₩

₩

50,000

Amounts
borrowed

General loans

₩

50,000

Amount of
commitment

₩

₩

-

₩

₩

28. Related Party Transactions
Significant related party transactions for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Interest
Income
and others

Rental
expense
and others

Provision
(reversal)

Subsidiaries

Kookmin Bank

			

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd		

6		

-		

-

			

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

- 		

160

			

KB Asset Management Co., Ltd 		

30,000		

-		

-

			

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

- 		

167

			

KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd		

2,455 		

- 		

-

			

KB Investment Co., Ltd. 		

523 		

-		

-

			

KB Data Systems Co., Ltd. 		

-		

-		

652

Key management 			

- 		

-		

-

₩

₩

660,953

693,937

₩

₩

-

-

₩

₩

2,703

3,682
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Interest
Income
and others

Rental
expense
and others

Provision
(reversal)

Subsidiaries

Kookmin Bank

			

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd 		

-		

- 		

1

			

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd. 		

6,559 		

- 		

312

			

KB Asset Management Co., Ltd 		

- 		

- 		

3

			

KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd. 		

2,802 		

- 		

-

			

KB Investment Co., Ltd. 		

555 		

-		

-

			

KB Data Systems Co., Ltd.		

- 		

-		

670

Key management 			

- 		

- 		

-

₩

₩

17,037

26,953

-

₩

-

₩

₩

₩

2,731

3,717

The details of receivables and payables, and related allowance for loans losses arising from the related party transactions as of
December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012
Allowances
for
loan losses

Receivables

Subsidiaries

Kookmin Bank

			

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd 		

55,435 		

-		

251

			

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd. 		

1,141 		

- 		

3,301

			

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 		

363 		

- 		

167

			

KB Asset Management Co., Ltd. 		

8,130 		

- 		

-

			

KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd. 		

19,882		

-		

-

			

KB Investment Co., Ltd. 		

10,284 		

- 		

-

			

KB Credit Information Co., Ltd. 		

216		

- 		

155

			

KB Data Systems Co., Ltd. 		

196 		

- 		

63

			

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd 		

- 		

- 		

406

- 		

- 		

₩

Key management 			
₩

335,710

Payables

431,357

₩

₩

-

-

₩

₩

-

4,343
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The details of receivables and payables, and related allowance for loans losses arising from the related party transactions as of
December 31, 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2011
Allowances
for
loan losses

Receivables

548,861

Payables

Subsidiaries

Kookmin Bank

			

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd 		

92,867 		

- 		

323

			

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd. 		

1,182 		

- 		

4,365

			

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 		

190 		

- 		

-

			

KB Asset Management Co., Ltd. 		

7,695 		

- 		

-

			

KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd. 		

51,431		

- 		

-

			

KB Investment Co., Ltd. 		

10,092 		

- 		

50

			

KB Credit Information Co., Ltd. 		

116 		

- 		

36

			

KB Data Systems Co., Ltd. 		

908 		

-		

52

- 		

-		

₩

Key management 			

713,342

₩

-

₩

-

₩

-

₩

4,826

₩

According to K-IFRS 1024, the Company includes subsidiaries and key management (including family members) in the scope
of related parties. Additionally, the Company discloses balances (receivables and payables) and other amounts arising from the
related party transactions in the notes to the separate financial statements. Refer to Note 8 for details on subsidiaries.
Key management includes the directors of the Company, their close family members, and the companies where the directors and
their close family members have the power to influence the decision-making process.

Compensation to key management for the year ended December 31, 2012, consists of:
(in millions of Korean won)

Short-term
employee
benefits

Registered director
(executive)

₩

2,439

Post-employment
benefits

₩

139

Termination
Benefits

₩

Share-based
payments

-

Registered director
(non-executive) 		

774 		

Non-registered director 		

2,945 		

190 		

-

6,158

329

-

₩

₩

- 		

₩

₩

- 		

Total

1,856

₩

18 		
1,767

₩

3,641

4,434
792
4,902

₩

10,128
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Compensation to key management for the year ended December 31, 2011, consists of:
(in millions of Korean won)

Short-term
employee
benefits

Post-employment
benefits

Termination
Benefits

Share-based
payments

Total

Registered director 											
₩
2,775 ₩
186
₩
- ₩
1,936 ₩
4,897
(executive)
Registered director 											
659 		
-		
- 		
(48) 		
611
(non-executive) 		
Non-registered director 		
₩

2,238 		

307 		

135 		

5,672

493

135

₩

₩

₩

646 		
2,534

₩

3,326
8,834

29. Approval of Financial Statements
The separate financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, were approved on February 28, 2013, by the
Board of Directors.
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Report of Independent Accountants' Review of
Internal Accounting Control System

To the President of KB Financial Group Inc.
We have reviewed the accompanying management’s report on the operations of the Internal Accounting Control System (“IACS”)
of KB Financial Group Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2012. The Company’s management is responsible for designing
and operating IACS and for its assessment of the effectiveness of IACS. Our responsibility is to review the management’s report
on the operations of the IACS and issue a report based on our review. The management’s report on the operations of the IACS of
the Company states that “based on its assessment of the operations of the IACS as of December 31, 2012, the Company’s IACS
has been designed and is operating effectively as of December 31, 2012, in all material respects, in accordance with the IACS
standards established by the Internal Accounting Control System Operations Committee (IACSOC) of the Korea Listed Companies
Association.”
Our review was conducted in accordance with the IACS review standards established by the Korean Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform, in all material respects, the review of management’s report on the
operations of the IACS to obtain a lower level of assurance than an audit. A review is to obtain an understanding of a company’s
IACS and consists principally of inquiries of management and, when deemed necessary, a limited inspection of underlying
documents, which is substantially less in scope than an audit.
A company’s IACS is a system to monitor and operate those policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea (“K-IFRS”). Because of its inherent limitations, IACS
may not prevent or detect a material misstatement of the financial statements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that management’s report on the operations of
the IACS, referred to above, is not presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the IACS standards established by
IACSOC.
Our review is based on the Company’s IACS as of December 31, 2012, and we did not review management’s assessment of its
IACS subsequent to December 31, 2012. This report has been prepared pursuant to the Acts on External Audit for Stock Companies
in Korea and may not be appropriate for other purposes or for other users.

Samil Pricewaterhouse Coopers
March 12, 2013
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Report on the Operations of
the Internal Accounting Control System

To the Board of Directors and Auditor (Audit Committee) of
KB Financial Group Inc.
I, as the Internal Accounting Control Officer (“IACO”) of KB Financial Group Inc. (“the Company”), assessed the status of the design
and operations of the Company’s internal accounting control system (“IACS”) for the year ended December 31, 2012.
The Company’s management including IACO is responsible for designing and operating IACS. I, as the IACO, assessed whether the
IACS has been effectively designed and is operating to prevent and detect any error or fraud which may cause any misstatement of
the financial statements, for the purpose of establishing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes. I, as the IACO, applied the IACS standard for the assessment of design and operations of the IACS.
Based on the assessment on the operations of the IACS, the Company’s IACS has been effectively designed and is operating as of
December 31, 2012, in all material respects, in accordance with the IACS standards.

March 5, 2013
Jong-Kyoo Yoon,
Internal Accounting Control Officer
Yoon-Dae Euh,
Chief Executive Officer
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Report of Independent Auditors

Samil PricewaterhouseCoopers, LS Yongsan Tower, 191,
Hangangno 2-ga, Yongsan-gu, Seoul 140-702, Korea
(Yongsan P.O Box 266, 140-600), www.samil.com

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
KB Financial Group Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of KB Financial Group Inc. and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, expressed in Korean won. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Group's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements, referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Group as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and their financial performance and cash flows for the years then ended, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea (“K-IFRS”).
Auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries. The procedures and practices used in the Republic of
Korea to audit such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries. Accordingly, this
report is for use by those who are informed about Korean auditing standards and their application in practice.

Seoul, Korea
March 12, 2013

This report is effective as of March 12, 2013, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances, which may occur between the audit
report date and the time of reading this report, could have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.
Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should understand that there is a possibility that the above audit report may have to be revised to reflect the
impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(in millions of Korean won)

Notes

2012

2011

Assets
Cash and due from financial institutions

4,6,7,8,39

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

₩

4,6,8,12 		

Derivative financial assets

10,568,350

₩

6,299,194		

9,178,125
6,326,104

4,6,9 		

2,024,784 		

2,448,455

4,6,8,10,11,41		

212,716,251 		

212,107,027

4,6,8,12 		

36,897,139 		

35,432,182

Investments in associates

13 		

1,035,205 		

892,132

Property and equipment

14 		

3,103,597 		

3,186,020

Investment property

14 		

52,974 		

51,552

Intangible assets

15 		

500,023 		

468,441

16,33 		

18,432 		

22,329

Loans
Financial investments

Deferred income tax assets
Assets held for sale
Other assets

17		

35,412		

9,931

4,6,18 		

8,755,217 		

7,478,519

Total assets 		

282,006,578

277,600,817

Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

4,6,19

₩

1,851,135

₩

1,388,079

Derivative financial liabilities

4,6,9 		

2,068,813 		

2,059,573

Deposits

4,6,20 		

194,403,279 		

190,337,590

Debts

4,6,21		

15,969,522		

16,823,838

Debentures

4,6,22,41 		

24,131,770 		

27,069,879

Provisions

23 		

669,729		

797,739

Defined benefit liabilities

24 		

75,157 		

128,488

Current income tax liabilities

33 		

264,666 		

588,825

Deferred income tax liabilities

16,33 		

Other liabilities

4,6,25 		

129,969 		
17,738,498

220,842
15,086,169

257,302,538 		

254,501,022

Share capital 			

1,931,758 		

1,931,758

Capital surplus 			

15,840,300		

15,841,824

35		

359,969 		

191,642

Retained earnings 			

6,377,491 		

4,952,751

26 		

24,509,518 		

22,917,975

		 Non-controlling interests 			

194,522 		

181,820

24,704,040 		

23,099,795

Total liabilities 			
Equity

Accumulated other comprehensive income
		 Equity attributable to shareholders of
		 the parent company

Total equity 			
Total liabilities and equity		
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

₩

282,006,578

₩ 277,600,817
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(In millions of Korean won, except per share amounts)

Notes

Interest income 		

2012

₩

2011

14,155,825

₩

13,956,257

Interest expense 			

(7,039,912) 		

(6,851,745)

5,27 		

7,115,913		

7,104,512

Net interest income

Fee and commission income			

2,778,668 		

2,829,754

Fee and commission expense 			

(1,186,027) 		

(1,035,004)

Net fee and commission income

5,28 		

1,592,641 		

1,794,750

Net gains(losses) on financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

5,29 		

651,203 		

1,035,867

Net other operating income(loss)

5,30 		

(1,455,270)		

(1,092,009)

5,14,15,24,31 		

(3,885,285)		

(3,931,808)

5 		

4,019,202 		

4,911,312

5,11,18,23		

(1,607,804) 		

(1,512,978)

5 		

2,411,398 		

3,398,334

5,13 		

(13,536) 		

4,963

5,32,43 		

(136,534) 		

(142,491)

General and administrative expenses
Operating profit before provision for credit losses
Provision for credit losses
Net operating profit
Share of profit of associates
Net other non-operating income(expense)

Net non-operating profit (loss)			

(150,070)		

(137,528)

5 		

2,261,328 		

3,260,806

5,33		

(549,340)		

(832,234)

5 		

1,711,988 		

2,428,572

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 			

(25,690) 		

5,602

Change in value of financial investments 			

249,647		

(239,596)

Shares of other comprehensive income of associates 			

(44,177) 		

(433)

Cash flow hedges 			

(813)		

(1,321)

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income(loss) for the year, 						
178,967		
(235,748)
net of tax 			
Total comprehensive income for the year		

₩

1,890,955

₩

2,192,824

₩

1,702,913

₩

2,373,026

Profit attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company

5

Non-controlling interests

5 		

		

9,075		

55,546

5

₩

1,711,988

₩

2,428,572

Shareholders of the parent company 		

₩

1,871,240

₩

2,134,096

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 			

Earnings per share

58,728

₩

1,890,955

₩

2,192,824

₩

4,408

₩

6,461

36

Basic earnings per share		

Diluted earnings per share 			
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

19,715 		

4,394 		

6,445
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(in millions of Korean won)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
			
Share
Capital
Capital
Surplus
			

Accumulated		
Other
Retained
Treasury
Comprehensive
Earnings
Share
Income			

Noncontrolling
Interests

Total
Equity

Balance at January 															
₩ 1,931,758 ₩ 15,990,278 ₩ 430,572 ₩ 2,620,888 ₩ (2,476,809) ₩ 1,169,243 ₩19,665,930
1, 2011
Comprehensive income
		 Profit for the year		

- 		

- 		

- 		

2,373,026 		

- 		

55,546 		

2,428,572

		 Exchange differences 															
		 on translating foreign 		
- 		
- 		
5,492 		
- 		
- 		
110 		
5,602
		 operations 		
		 Change in value of 															
- 		
- 		
(242,668) 		
- 		
- 		
3,072		
(239,596)
		 financial investments		
		 Shares of other 															
		 comprehensive 		
-		
-		
(433) 		
-		
- 		
-		
(433)
		 income of associates														
		 Cash flow hedges		

-		

-		

(1,321) 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

(1,321)

Total comprehensive
income(loss) 		

- 		

-		

(238,930) 		

2,373,026 		

- 		

58,728 		

2,192,824

Transactions with 															
shareholders
		 Dividends paid to															
		 shareholders of 		
- 		
- 		
-		
(41,163) 		
- 		
- 		
(41,163)
		 the parent company 		
		 Dividends paid 															
		 to holders of hybrid 		
-		
-		
- 		
- 		
- 		
(46,151)		
(46,151)
		 capital instruments		
		 Redemption of															
		 hybrid capital 		
-		
-		
-		
- 		
- 		 (1,000,000) 		 (1,000,000)
		 instruments 		
		 Disposal of 															
- 		
(148,060) 		
-		
- 		 2,476,809		
- 		 2,328,749
		 treasury shares 		
		 Others 		

- 		

(394)		

-		

- 		

- 		

-		

(394)

Total transactions															
-		
(148,454) 		
- 		
(41,163) 		 2,476,809 		 (1,046,151) 		 1,241,041
with shareholders
Balance at December 															
₩ 1,931,758 ₩ 15,841,824 ₩ 191,642 ₩ 4,952,751 ₩
- ₩ 181,820 ₩ 23,099,795
31, 2011
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(in millions of Korean won)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
			
Share
Capital
Capital
Surplus
			

Balance at January
1, 2012

Accumulated		
Other
Retained
Treasury
Comprehensive
Earnings
Share
Income			

₩ 1,931,758 ₩ 15,841,824 ₩

191,642 ₩ 4,952,751 ₩

Noncontrolling
Interests

- ₩

Total
Equity

181,820 ₩ 23,099,795

Comprehensive income
		 Profit for the year		

-		

- 		

- 		

1,702,913 		

- 		

9,075 		

1,711,988

		 Exchange differences 															
		 on translating foreign 		
- 		
- 		
(25,596)		
- 		
-		
(94) 		
(25,690)
		 operations 														
		 Change in value of															
- 		
- 		
238,913 		
- 		
- 		
10,734 		
249,647
		 financial investments		
		 Shares of other 															
		 comprehensive		
- 		
-		
(44,177) 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
(44,177)
		 income of associates 		
		 Cash flow hedges		

-		

- 		

(813)		

-		

- 		

-		

(813)

Total comprehensive
income		

- 		

- 		

168,327 		

1,702,913		

- 		

19,715 		

1,890,955

Transactions with 															
shareholders
		 Dividends paid to															
		 shareholders of 		
-		
-		
-		
(278,173) 		
-		
- 		
(278,173)
		 the parent company		
		 Others 		

-		

(1,524)		

- 		

- 		

-		

(7,013)		

(8,537)

Total transactions with
shareholders 		

-		

(1,524)		

- 		

(278,173)		

-		

(7,013)		

(286,710)

Balance at December
31, 2012

₩ 1,931,758 ₩ 15,840,300 ₩

359,969 ₩ 6,377,491 ₩

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

- ₩

194,522 ₩24,704,040
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(in millions of Korean won)

Note

2012

2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 		

₩

1,711,988

₩

2,428,572

Adjustment for non-cash items
		 Net loss(gain) on financial assets/liabilities 						
(222,022)		
(391,197)
		 at fair value through profit or loss 			
		 Net loss(gain) on derivative financial instruments 						
15,165 		
(107,371)
		 for hedging purposes 			
		 Adjustment of fair value of derivative financial instruments			

42 		

207,522

		 Provision for credit loss 			

1,607,804 		

1,512,978

		 Net loss(gain) on financial investments 			

148,211 		

(481,459)

		 Share of loss(profit) of associates 			

13,536 		

(4,963)

		 Depreciation and amortization expense			

328,642 		

342,656

		 Other net losses on property and equipment/
		 intangible assets			

40,881 		

18,533

		 Share-based payments(reversal) 			

13,871 		

(7,609)

		 Policy reserve appropriation 			

1,305,730 		

673,259

		 Post-employment benefits 			

202,864 		

204,337

		 Net interest expense 			

229,691 		

84,470

		 Loss(gains) on foreign currency translation			

(148,877) 		

273,971

		 Net other expense 			

2,783 		

130,206

						

3,538,321 		

2,455,333

132,205 		

(2,370,999)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
		 Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 			
		 Derivative financial instruments 			

252,166 		

481,502

		 Loans 			

(2,226,547) 		

(17,023,252)

		 Deferred income tax assets 			

3,211 		

-

		 Other assets 			

2,202,544 		

(877,081)

		 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 			

357,825 		

146,638

		 Deposits 			

1,552,950 		

10,716,619

		 Deferred income tax liabilities			

(166,772) 		

(13,150)

		 Other liabilities 			

630,144 		

48,628

						

2,737,726 		

(8,891,095)

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities 			

7,988,035 		

(4,007,190)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(in millions of Korean won)

Note

2012

2011

Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of financial investments 			

24,848,249 		

22,875,143

Acquisition of financial investments			

(26,141,095) 		

(21,918,460)

Decrease in investments in associates 			

11,543 		

12,120

Acquisition of investments in associates 			

(212,556) 		

(176,105)

Disposal of property and equipment 			

8,740 		

859

Acquisition of property and equipment 			

(143,327) 		

(261,905)

Disposal of intangible assets			

3,785 		

10,353

Acquisition of intangible assets			

(82,400) 		

(105,341)

Business combination, net of cash acquired 			

40,575		

-

Others 			

(838,816) 		

251,888

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 			

(2,505,302) 		

688,552

Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash flows from derivative financial instruments 						
75,761 		
20,733
for hedging purposes 			
Net increase(decrease) in debts 			

(792,778) 		

5,453,721

Increase in debentures 			

10,282,920 		

9,665,174

Decrease in debentures 			

(13,084,093)		

(11,607,211)

Disposal of treasury shares			

- 		

2,281,524

Redemption of hybrid capital instruments			

- 		

(1,000,000)

Dividends paid to holders of hybrid capital instruments 			

-		

(46,331)

Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent company 			

(278,173)		

(41,163)

Others 			

150,109		

48,434

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities			

(3,646,254) 		

4,774,881

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and						
(13,560) 		
32,982
cash equivalents			
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 			

1,822,919		

1,489,225

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

39 		

4,740,804		

3,251,579

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

39

6,563,723

4,740,804

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

₩

₩
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

KB FINANCIAL GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

1. The Parent Company
KB Financial Group Inc. (the “Parent Company”) was incorporated on September 29, 2008, under the Financial Holding Companies
Act of Korea. KB Financial Group Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) derive substantially all of their revenue and income
from providing a broad range of banking and related financial services to consumers and corporations primarily in Korea and in
selected international markets. The Parent Company’s principal business includes ownership and management of subsidiaries and
associated companies that are engaged in financial services or activities. In 2011, Kookmin Bank spun off its credit card business
segment and established a new separate credit card company, KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd., and KB Investment & Securities Co.,
Ltd. merged with KB Futures Co., Ltd. The Group established KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. in January 2012.
The Parent Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩1,931,758 million. The Parent Company is authorized to issue
up to 1 billion shares. The Parent Company has been listed on the Korea Exchange (“KRX”) since October 10, 2008, and listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) for its American Depositary Shares (“ADS”) since September 29, 2008.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Application of K-IFRS
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on January 1, 2011, have been prepared in
accordance with Korean-IFRS(“K-IFRS”). These are the standards, subsequent amendments and related interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") that have been adopted by the Republic of Korea. The transition
date, according to K-IFRS 1101, from the previous accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of Korea (“Previous
K-GAAP”) to K-IFRS is January 1, 2010.
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 2.4.
The Group has prepared the consolidated financial statements in accordance with KIFRS1027, Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements.
New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year beginning January 1, 2012, and not early
adopted by the Group are as follows:
Amendments to K-IFRS 1019, Employee Benefits
According to the amendments to K-IFRS 1019, the corridor approach for actuarial gains and losses is not allowed anymore,
accordingly, the actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income immediately. Past service costs
incurred under changes of plans are recognized immediately, and the amendment replaces the interest cost on the defined benefit
obligation, and the expected return on plan assets with a net interest cost based on the net defined benefit asset or liability. This
amendment is effective for the Group as of January 1, 2013. The Group is assessing the impact of application of the amended
K-IFRS 1019 on its consolidated financial statements.
Enactment of K-IFRS 1113, Fair value measurement
K-IFRS 1113 aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across K-IFRS. K-IFRS 1113 does not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provides guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards
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within K-IFRS. K-IFRS 1113 is effective for the Group as of January 1, 2013, and the Group expects that the enactment would not
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Amendments to K-IFRS 1001, Presentation of Financial Statements
K-IFRS 1001, Presentation of Financial Statements, was amended to require other comprehensive income items to be presented
into two groups on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently. This is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012, with early adoption permitted. The Group expects that the application of this
amendment would not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
Enactment of K-IFRS 1110, Consolidated Financial Statements
K-IFRS 1110, Consolidated Financial Statements, builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company. An
investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the
determination of control where this is difficult to assess. K-IFRS 1110 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013, and the Group is reviewing the impact of the K-IFRS 1110.
Enactment of K-IFRS 1111, Joint Arrangements
K-IFRS 1111, Joint Arrangements, aims to reflect the substance of joint arrangements by focusing on the contractual rights and
obligations that each party to the arrangement has rather than its legal form. Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. A joint operation is when joint operators have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities,
and account for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, while parties to the joint venture have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement and account for their interest in the joint venture using the equity method. K-IFRS 1111 will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and the Group is reviewing the impact of the K-IFRS 1111.
Enactment of K-IFRS 1112, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities
K-IFRS 1112, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, provides the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate, a consolidated structured entity and an unconsolidated
structured entity. K-IFRS 1112 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and the Group is reviewing
the impact of the K-IFRS 1112.

2.2 Measurement Basis
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise specified.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
Items included in the financial statements of each entity of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Korean
won, which is the Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency. Refer to Notes 3.2.1 and 3.2.2.

2.4 Significant Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the application of accounting policies, certain critical accounting
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant impact on the assets (liabilities) and income (expenses). Management’s
estimates of outcomes may differ from actual outcomes if management’s estimates and assumptions based on management’s
best judgment at the reporting date are different from the actual environment.
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Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and any change in an accounting estimate is recognized prospectively
by including it in profit or loss in the period of the change, if the change affects that period only. Alternatively if the change in
accounting estimate affects both the period of change and future periods, that change is recognized in the profit or loss of all those
periods.
Uncertainty in estimates and assumptions with significant risk that may result in material adjustment to the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

2.4.1 Deferred income taxes
The recognition of a deferred tax asset relies on an assessment of the probability and sufficiency of future taxable profits, future
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and ongoing tax planning strategies.

2.4.2 Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available is
determined by using valuation techniques. Financial instruments, which are not actively traded in the market and those with less
transparent market prices, will have less objective fair values and require broad judgment on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty in
market factors and assumptions in price determination and other risks.
As described in the significant accounting policies in Note 3.3, ‘Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments’, diverse
valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value of financial instruments, from generally accepted market valuation models
to internally developed valuation models that incorporate various types of assumptions and variables.

2.4.3 Provisions for credit losses (allowances for loan losses, provisions for acceptances and guarantees, and
unused loan commitments)
The Group determines and recognizes allowances for losses on loans through impairment testing and recognizes provisions for
guarantees, and unused loan commitments. The accuracy of provisions for credit losses is determined by the methodology and
assumptions used for estimating expected cash flows of the borrower for allowances on individual loans and collectively assessing
allowances for groups of loans, guarantees and unused loan commitments.

2.4.4 Defined benefit obligation
The present value of defined benefit obligations is measured by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
It incorporates actuarial assumptions and variables such as future increases in salaries, rate of retirement, and discount rate,
amongst others.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Consolidation
3.1.1 Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are companies that are controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effects of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date when control is transferred to the Group and de-consolidated from the date when control is lost.
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The Group has established various special purpose entities (“SPE”s). Such SPEs are consolidated when the risks and rewards
and substance of the relationship between the Group and the SPE indicates that the SPE is controlled by the Group. These SPEs
controlled by the Group are established with predetermined activities, so that the Group has the rights to obtain the majority of
the benefits of the activities of the SPEs and may be exposed to risks incident to the activities of the SPEs. The Group retains the
majority of the residual or ownership risks related to such SPE or its assets in order to obtain the benefits from its activities.
If a subsidiary uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to its financial statements in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent and to the noncontrolling interests, if any. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions; that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

3.1.2 Associates
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence in the financial and operating policy decisions. If the Group
holds 20% or more of the voting power of the investee, it is presumed that the Group has significant influence.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss of the investee and changes in the investee’s equity after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s share of the profit or loss of the investee is recognized in the Group’s profit or loss. Distributions received
from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Profit and losses resulting from ‘upstream’ and ‘downstream’
transactions between the Group and associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in associates.
If associates use accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to its financial statements in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.
After the carrying amount of the investment is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in the associates are
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associates and its carrying value and recognizes the amount as ‘Share of profit or loss of associates’ in the statements of
comprehensive income.
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3.1.3 Trusts and funds
The Group provides management services for trust assets, collective investment and other funds. These trusts and funds are not
consolidated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements, except for trusts and funds over which the Group has control.

3.1.4 Intra-group transactions
All intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized gains arising on intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains except that they are
only eliminated to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.2 Foreign Currency
3.2.1 Foreign currency transactions and balances
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying the spot exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period foreign
currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate which is the spot exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined and non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognized in profit or
loss in the year in which they arise. When gains or losses on a non-monetary item are recognized in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of those gains or losses are also recognized in other comprehensive income. Conversely, when gains
or losses on a nonmonetary item are recognized in profit or loss, any exchange component of those gains or losses are also
recognized in profit or loss.

3.2.2 Foreign Operations
The financial performance and financial position of all foreign operations, whose functional currencies differ from the Group’s
presentation currency, are translated into the Group’s presentation currency using the following procedures:
Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position. Income and expenses in the statement of comprehensive income presented are translated at
average exchange rates for the period. All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Any goodwill arising from the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising from the acquisition of that foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation. Thus
they are expressed in the functional currency of the foreign operation and are translated into the presentation currency at the
closing rate.
On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation,
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate component of equity, are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the gains or losses on disposal are recognized. On the partial disposal
of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the Group reattributes the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income to the non-controlling interests in that foreign operation. In any
other partial disposal of a foreign operation, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss only the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income.
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3.3 Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments
3.3.1 Initial recognition
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when, the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets (a purchase or sale of a financial
asset under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by market regulation
or practice) is recognized and derecognized using trade date accounting.
The Group classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, availablefor-sale financial assets, or loans and receivables. The Group classifies financial liabilities as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss or other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the nature and holding purpose of the financial instrument at
initial recognition in the financial statements.
At initial recognition, a financial asset or financial liability is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of the financial asset or financial liability. The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is
normally the transaction price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received).

3.3.2 Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial instruments are measured at amortized cost or fair value based on classification at initial
recognition.
Amortized cost
The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured
at initial recognition and adjusted to reflect principal repayments, cumulative amortization using the effective interest method and
any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.
Fair value
Fair values, which the Group primarily uses for the measurement of financial instruments, are the published price quotations based
on market prices or dealer price quotations of financial instruments traded in an active market where available. These are the best
evidence of fair value. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, an entity in the same industry, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.
If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined either by using a valuation technique or independent
third-party valuation service. Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, referencing to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models.
The Group uses valuation models that are commonly used by market participants and customized for the Group to determine fair
values of common over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives such as options, interest rate swaps and currency swaps which are based
on the inputs observable in markets. For more complex instruments, the Group uses internally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry, or a value measured by
an independent external valuation institution as the fair values if all or some of the inputs to the valuation models are not market
observable and therefore it is necessary to estimate fair value based on certain assumptions.
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The Group’s Fair Value Evaluation Committee, which consists of the risk management department, trading department and
accounting department, reviews the appropriateness of internally developed valuation models, and approves the selection and
changing of the external valuation institution and other considerations related to fair value measurement. The review results on the
fair valuation models are reported to the Market Risk Management subcommittee by the Fair Value Evaluation Committee on a
regular basis.
If the valuation technique does not reflect all factors which market participants would consider in setting a price, the fair value is
adjusted to reflect those factors. These factors include counterparty credit risk, bid-ask spread, liquidity risk and others.
The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic
methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, the Group calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using
prices from observable current market transactions of the same instrument or based on other relevant observable market data.

3.3.3 Derecognition
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognized financial asset or financial liability from the statement of financial position.
The Group derecognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when:
Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the financial
assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are also transferred. If
the Group neither transfers nor disposes of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets, the Group
continues to recognize the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

3.3.4 Offsetting
A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, foreign currency, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.5 Non-derivative financial assets
3.5.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
This category comprises two sub-categories: financial assets classified as held for trading, and financial assets designated by the
Group as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
A non-derivative financial asset is classified as held for trading if either:
- It is acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or
-	It is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
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The Group may designate certain financial assets, other than held for trading, upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss when one of the following conditions is met:
-	It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as 'an accounting
mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different
bases.
-	A group of financial assets is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basis to the Group's key
management personnel.
-	A contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; the Group may designate the entire hybrid (combined) contract as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss if allowed by K-IFRS 1039, Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement.
After initial recognition, a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value and gains or losses arising from
a change in the fair value are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income, dividend income, and gains or losses from sale and
repayment from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as net
gains on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

3.5.2 Financial Investments
Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity financial assets are presented as financial investments.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Profit or loss of financial assets classified as available for sale, except for impairment loss and foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in amortized cost of debt securities, is recognized as other comprehensive income, and cumulative profit
or loss is reclassified from equity to current profit or loss at the derecognition of the financial asset, and it is recognized as part of
other operating profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.
However, interest revenue measured using the effective interest method is recognized in current profit or loss, and dividends of
financial assets classified as available-for-sale are recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Available-for-sale financial assets denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate. For available-for-sale debt
securities denominated in foreign currency, exchange differences resulting from changes in amortized cost are recognized in profit
or loss as part of other operating income and expenses. For available-for-sale equity securities denominated in foreign currency,
the entire change in fair value including any exchange component is recognized in other comprehensive income.
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method after initial recognition and interest income is recognized using the
effective interest method.
3.5.3 Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets which meet the following conditions are classified as loans and receivables:
- Those with fixed or determinable payments.
- Those that are not quoted in an active market.
- Those that the Group does not intend to sell immediately or in the near term.
- Those that the Group, upon initial recognition, does not designate as available-for-sale or as at fair value through profit or loss.
After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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If the financial asset is purchased under an agreement to resale the asset at a fixed price or at a price that provides a lender's
return on the purchase price, the consideration paid is recognized as loans and receivables.

3.6 Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred, if and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. However, losses
expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognized.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
holder of the asset about the following loss events:
- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor.
- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.
-	The lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that
the lender would not otherwise consider.
- It becomes probable that the borrower will declare bankruptcy or undergo financial reorganization.
- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
- Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in
the portfolio.
In addition to the types of events in the preceding paragraphs, objective evidence of impairment for an investment in an equity
instrument classified as an available-for-sale financial asset includes a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost. Accordingly, the Group considers the decline in the fair value of over 30% against the original cost as a “significant decline”
and a six-month decline in the fair value below its cost for an equity instrument as a “prolonged decline".
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured and recognized in
profit or loss as either provisions for credit loss or other operating income and expenses.

3.6.1 Loans and receivables
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant (individual assessment of impairment), and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment (collective assessment of impairment).
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Individual assessment of impairment
Individual assessment of impairment losses are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows of a loan at its original
effective interest rate and comparing the resultant present value with the loan’s current carrying amount. This process normally
encompasses management’s best estimate, such as operating cash flow of the borrower and net realizable value of any collateral
held.

Collective assessment of impairment
A methodology based on historical loss experience is used to estimate inherent incurred loss on groups of assets for collective
assessment of impairment. Such methodology incorporates factors such as type of collateral, product and borrowers, credit
rating, loss emergence period, recovery period and applies probability of default on a group of assets and loss given default by
type of recovery method. Also, consistent assumptions are applied to form a formula-based model in estimating inherent loss and
to determine factors on the basis of historical loss experience and current condition. The methodology and assumptions used
for collective assessment of impairment are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.
Impairment loss on loans reduces the carrying amount of the asset through use of an allowance account, and when a loan
becomes uncollectable, it is written off against the related allowance account. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and is objectively related to the subsequent event after recognition of impairment, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in profit or
loss.

3.6.2 Available-for-sale financial assets
When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in other comprehensive income and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss (the difference between the acquisition cost and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss) that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of other operating income and expenses.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, a portion of the impairment loss
is reversed up to but not exceeding the previously recorded impairment loss, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit
or loss as part of other operating income and expenses in the statement of comprehensive income. However, impairment losses
recognized in profit or loss for an available-for-sale equity instrument classified as available for sale are not reversed through profit
or loss.

3.6.3 Held-to-maturity financial assets
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on held-to-maturity financial assets carried at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The amount of the loss is recognized
in profit or loss as part of other operating income and expenses. The impairment loss on held-to-maturity financial assets is directly
deducted from the carrying amount.
In the case of a financial asset classified as held to maturity, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and it is objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment is recognized, a portion of the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed up to but not exceeding the amortized cost at the date of recovery. The amount of reversal
is recognized in profit or loss as part of other operating income and expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.
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3.7 Derivative Financial Instruments
The Group enters into numerous derivative financial instrument contracts such as currency forwards, interest rate swaps, currency
swaps and others for trading purposes or to manage its exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and currency exchange,
amongst others. These derivative financial instruments are presented as derivative financial instruments within the financial
statements irrespective of transaction purpose and subsequent measurement requirement.
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the risk of changes in fair value of a recognized asset or
liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment (fair value hedge) and the risk of changes in cash flow (cash flow hedge).
At the inception of the hedge there is formal designation and documentation of the hedging relationship and the Group's risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. That documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging
instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value attributable to the hedged risk.

3.7.1 Derivative financial instruments held for trading
All derivative financial instruments, except for derivatives that are designated and qualify for hedge accounting, are classified
as financial instruments held for trading and are measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from a change in fair value are
recognized in profit or loss as part of net gains or losses on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

3.7.2 Fair value hedges
If derivatives qualify for a fair value hedge, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in fair value of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in profit or loss as part of other operating income and expenses. Fair
value hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively if the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the Group revokes the designation. Once fair value hedge accounting
is discontinued, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item is fully amortized to profit or loss by the maturity of the
financial instrument using the effective interest method.

3.7.3 Cash flow hedges
The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized directly in
other comprehensive income and the ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in profit or
loss. The associated gains or losses that were previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast cash flows affects
profit or loss. Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively if the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the Group revokes the designation. When the cash
flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the cumulative gains or losses on the hedging instrument that have been recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss over the year in which the forecast transaction occurs. If the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gains or losses that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

3.7.4 Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if, and only if the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the host contract and a separate instrument
with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative and the hybrid (combined) instrument is
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from a change in the fair
value of an embedded derivative separated from the host contract are recognized in profit or loss as part of net gains or losses on
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
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3.7.5 Day one gain and loss
If the Group uses a valuation technique that incorporates data not obtained from observable markets for the fair value at initial
recognition of the financial instrument, there may be a difference between the transaction price and the amount determined using
that valuation technique. In these circumstances, the fair value of the financial instrument is recognized as the transaction price
and the difference is amortized by using the straight-line method over the life of the financial instrument. If the fair value of the
financial instrument is subsequently determined using observable market inputs, the remaining deferred amount is recognized in
profit or loss as part of net gains or losses on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other operating income and
expenses.

3.8 Property and equipment
3.8.1 Recognition and Measurement
All property and equipment that qualify for recognition as an asset are measured at cost and subsequently carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property and equipment includes any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they prolong the useful life or enhance values of the assets but the costs of the
day-to-day servicing of the assets such as repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. When part of
an item of an asset has a useful life different from that of the entire asset, it is recognized as a separate asset.

3.8.2 Depreciation
Land is not depreciated, whereas other property and equipment are depreciated using the method that reflects the pattern in
which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. The depreciable amount of an asset is
determined after deducting its residual value. As for leased assets, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.
Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately.
The depreciation method and estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:
Property and equipment

Depreciation method

Estimated useful lives

Buildings and structures

Straight-line

40 years

Leasehold improvements

Declining-balance

4 years

Equipment and vehicles

Declining-balance

4~5 years

The residual value, the useful life and the depreciation method applied to an asset are reviewed at least at each financial year end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates or if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

3.9 Investment properties
3.9.1 Recognition and Measurement
Properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both are classified as investment properties. Investment properties are
measured initially at their cost and subsequently the cost model is used.
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3.9.2 Depreciation
Land is not depreciated, whereas other investment properties are depreciated using the method that reflects the pattern in
which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. The depreciable amount of an asset is
determined after deducting its residual value.
The depreciation method and estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:
Property and equipment

Depreciation method

Estimated useful lives

Buildings

Straight-line

40 years

The residual value, the useful life and the depreciation method applied to an asset are reviewed at least at each financial year end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates or if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

3.10 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently carried at their cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets, except for goodwill and membership rights, are amortized using the straight-line method with no residual value
over their estimated useful economic life since the asset is available for use.
Intangible assets

Amortization method

Estimated useful lives

Industrial property rights

Straight-line

3~10 years

Software

Straight-line

3~5 years

Others

Straight-line

4~30 years

The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Where an intangible asset is not being amortized because its useful life is considered to be indefinite, the Group
carries out a review in each accounting period to confirm whether or not events and circumstances still support the assumption
of an indefinite useful life. If they do not, the change from the indefinite to finite useful life is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

3.10.1 Goodwill
Recognition and measurement
Goodwill in the Group’s opening K-IFRS statement of financial position is stated at its carrying amount prior to the date of transition
under the previous K-GAAP.
Goodwill acquired in business combinations after the transition date is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, fair value of non-controlling interest and the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss.
For each business combination, the Group decides whether the non-controlling interest in the acquiree is initially measured at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets at the acquisition date.
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Acquisition-related costs incurred to effect a business combination are charged to expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received, except for the costs to issue debt or equity securities.

Additional acquisitions of non-controlling interest
Additional acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as equity transactions. Therefore, no additional goodwill is
recognized.

Subsequent measurement
Goodwill is not amortized and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. However, goodwill that forms part of the
carrying amount of an investment in associates is not separately recognized and an impairment loss recognized is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, which forms part of the carrying amount of the investment in the associates.

3.10.2 Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it enhances values of the assets. Internally generated intangible assets, such as
goodwill and trade name, are not recognized as assets but expensed as incurred.

3.11 Leases (the Group as lessee)
3.11.1 Finance lease
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. At the
commencement of the lease term, the Group recognizes finance leases as assets and liabilities in its statements of financial
position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments,
each determined at the inception of the lease. Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognized as an
asset.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
The depreciable amount of a leased asset is allocated to each accounting period during the period of expected use on a
systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy the Group adopts for depreciable assets that are owned. If there is
reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the period of expected use is the useful life
of the asset; otherwise, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.

3.11.2 Operating lease
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Leases in the financial statements of lessors
Lease income from operating leases are recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. Initial
direct costs incurred by lessors in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Leases in the financial statements of lessees
Lease payments under an operating lease (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the asset's
benefit.
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3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset, except for (i)
deferred income tax assets, (ii) assets arising from employee benefits and (iii) non-current assets (or group of assets to be sold)
classified as held for sale, may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. However, irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Group tests (i) goodwill acquired in a business
combination, (ii) intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and (iii) intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amount with their recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's
cash-generating unit). A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from
an asset or cash-generating unit that are discounted by a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.
If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss and recognized immediately in profit or loss. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit.
An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an asset, other than
goodwill, may no longer exist or may have decreased, and an impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an asset other than
goodwill shall be reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable
to a reversal of an impairment loss cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortization or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

3.13 Non-current assets held for sale
A non-current asset or disposal group is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset (or disposal group) must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly probable. A non-current asset (or disposal group) classified as
held for sale is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell which is measured in accordance with
the applicable K-IFRS, immediately before the initial classification of the asset (or disposal group) as held for sale.
A non-current asset while it is classified as held for sale or while it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale is not
depreciated (or amortized).
Impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell.
Gains are recognized for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of the cumulative
impairment loss that has been recognized.
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3.14 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held for trading. After initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value, and gains
or losses from sale and repayment of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized as net gains on financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

3.15 Insurance Contracts
KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd., one of the subsidiaries of the Group, issues insurance contracts.
Insurance contracts are defined as “a contract under which one party (the insurer) accepts significant insurance risk from another
party by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder”. A
contract that qualifies as an insurance contract remains an insurance contract until all rights and obligations are extinguished or
expire. Such a contract that does not contain significant insurance risk is classified as an investment contract and is within the
scope of K-IFRS 1039, Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement to the extent that it gives rise to a financial asset or
financial liability, except if the investment contract contains a Discretionary Participation Features (DPF). If the contract has a DPF,
the contract is subject to K-IFRS 1104, Insurance Contracts. The Group recognizes assets (liabilities) and gains (losses) relating to
insurance contracts as other assets (liabilities) in the statements of financial position, and as other operating income (expenses) in
the statements of comprehensive income, respectively.
The following table lists numbers of currently available and discontinued insurance products as of December 31, 2012:
Type

Available

Discontinued

Total

Individual annuity 		

- 		

9		

9

General annuity 		

7 		

21 		

28

Other pure endowment 		

- 		

3 		

3

Pure protection insurance 		

13 		

25 		

38

Other protection insurance 		

- 		

28 		

28

Joint insurance 		

7 		

33 		

40

Group protection insurance 		

2 		

5 		

7

Group savings insurance 		

- 		

1 		

1

			

29 		

125 		

154

3.15.1 Insurance premiums
The Group recognizes collected premiums as revenue when a due date of collection of premiums from insurance contracts comes
and the collected premium which is unmatured at the end of the reporting period is recognized as unearned premium.

3.15.2 Insurance liabilities
The Group recognizes a liability for future claims, refunds, policyholders’ dividends and related expenses as follows:

Premium reserve
A premium reserve refers to an amount based on the net premium method for payment of future claims with respect to events
covered by insurance policies which have not yet occurred as of the reporting date.

Reserve for outstanding claims
A reserve for outstanding claims refers to the amount not yet paid, out of an amount to be paid or expected to be paid with
respect to the insured events which have arisen as of the end of each fiscal year.
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Unearned premium reserve
Unearned premium refers to the portion of the premium that has been paid in advance for insurance that has not yet been
provided. An unearned premium reserve refers to the amount maintained by the insurer to refund in the event of either party
cancelling the contract.

Policyholders' dividends reserve
Policyholders' dividends reserve including an interest rate guarantee reserve, a mortality dividend reserve and an interest rate
difference dividend reserve is recognized for the purpose of provisioning for policyholders' dividends in the future in accordance
with statutes or insurance terms and conditions.

3.15.3 Liability adequacy test
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether its insurance liabilities are adequate, using current estimates of all future
contractual cash flows and related cash flow such as claims handling cost, as well as cash flows resulting from embedded options
and guarantees under its insurance contracts in accordance with K-IFRS 1104. If the assessment shows that the carrying amount
of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency is recognized in profit or
loss and reserved as insurance liabilities. Future cash flows from long-term insurance are discounted at a future rate of return on
operating assets, whereas future cash flows from general insurance are not discounted to present value. For liability adequacy tests
of premium and unearned premium reserves, the Group considers all cash flow factors such as future insurance premium, deferred
acquisition costs, operating expenses and operating premiums. In relation to the reserve for outstanding claims, the Group elects a
model that best reflects the trend of paid claims among several statistical methods to perform the adequacy test.

3.15.4 Deferred acquisition costs
Acquisition cost is deferred in an amount actually spent for an insurance contract and equally amortized over the premium payment
period or the period in which acquisition costs are charged for the relevant insurance contract. Acquisition costs are amortized
over the shorter of seven years and premium payment period; if there is any unamortized acquisition costs remaining as of the date
of surrender or lapse, such remainder shall be amortized in the period in which the contract is surrendered or lapsed.

3.16 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many events and circumstances
are taken into account in reaching the best estimate of provisions, and where the effect of the time value of money is material, the
amount of provisions are the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions on confirmed and unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees, unfunded commitments of credit cards and unused credit
lines of consumer and corporate loans are recognized using a valuation model that applies the credit conversion factor, probability
of default, and loss given default.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provisions are
reversed.
If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognized and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the minimum net cost to exit from the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.
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3.17 Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer (the Group) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognized at fair value. After initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are
measured at the higher of:
– The amount determined in accordance with K-IFRS 1037, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and
– The initial amount recognized, less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with K-IFRS 1018,
Revenue

3.18 Equity instruments issued by the Group
An equity instrument is any contract or agreement that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities.

3.18.1 Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are deducted, net of tax,
from the equity.

3.18.2 Hybrid capital instruments
The Group classifies an issued financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Hybrid capital instruments where the Group has an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle a contractual obligation are classified as equity instruments and presented in equity.

3.18.3 Treasury shares
If entities of the Group reacquire the Parent Company’s equity instruments, those instruments ('treasury shares') are deducted from
equity. No gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of own equity instruments.

3.19 Revenue recognition
3.19.1 Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognized using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or groups of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life
of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. In
those rare cases when it is not possible to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of
financial instruments), the Group uses the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group
of financial instruments).
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Interest on impaired financial assets is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.

3.19.2 Fee and commission income
The Group recognizes financial service fees in accordance with the accounting standard of the financial instrument related to the
fees earned.

Fees that are an integral part of the effective interest of a financial instrument
Such fees are generally treated as adjustments of effective interest. Such fees may include compensation for activities such as
evaluating the borrower's financial condition, evaluating and recording guarantees, collateral and other security arrangements,
negotiating the terms of the instrument, preparing and processing documents and closing the transaction and origination fees
received on issuing financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. However, fees relating to the creation or acquisition of a financial
instrument at fair value through profit or loss are recognized as revenue immediately.

Fees earned as services are provided
Such fees are recognized as revenue as the services are provided. The fees include fees charged for servicing a financial
instrument and charged for managing investments.

Fees that are earned on the execution of a significant act
Such fees are recognized as revenue when the significant act has been completed.
Commission on the allotment of shares to a client is recognized as revenue when the shares have been allotted and placement
fees for arranging a loan between a borrower and an investor is recognized as revenue when the loan has been arranged.
A syndication fee received by the Group that arranges a loan and retains no part of the loan package for itself (or retains a part at
the same effective interest rate for comparable risk as other participants) is compensation for the service of syndication. Such a fee
is recognized as revenue when the syndication has been completed.

3.19.3 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investment is recognized in profit or loss as part of net gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and other operating income and expenses, respectively.

3.20 Employee compensation and benefits
3.20.1 Post-employment benefits:
Defined benefit plans
All post-employment benefits, other than defined contribution plans, are classified as defined benefit plans. The amount recognized
as a defined benefit liability is the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets at the end of the
reporting period.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit
Credit method. The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds. The currency and term of the corporate bonds are consistent with
the currency and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations. Actuarial gains and losses including experience
adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.
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When the total of the present value of the defined benefit obligation minus the fair value of plan assets results in an asset, it
is recognized to the extent of any cumulative unrecognized past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
Past service cost arises when the Group introduces a defined benefit plan that attributes to past service or changes the benefits
payable for past service under an existing defined benefit plan. Such past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straightline basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested immediately
following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

Defined contribution plans
The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

3.20.2 Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service is recognized as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount
already paid.
The expected cost of profit-sharing and bonus payments are recognized as liabilities when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

3.20.3 Share-based payment
The Group operates share-based payment arrangements granting awards to directors and employees of the Group. The Group
has a choice of whether to settle the awards in cash or by issuing equity instruments for a share-based payment transaction at the
date of settlement.
For a share-based payment transaction in which the terms of the arrangement provide the Group with the choice of whether to
settle in cash or by issuing equity instruments, the Group determined that it has a present obligation to settle in cash because the
Group has a past practice and a stated policy of settling in cash. Therefore, the Group accounts for the transaction in accordance
with the requirements of cash-settled share-based payment transactions.
The Group measures the services acquired and the liability incurred at fair value. Until the liability is settled, the Group remeasures
the fair value of the liability at the end of each reporting period and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss for the year.

3.20.4 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either the Group’s decision to terminate an employee's
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits as a liability and an expense when, and only when, the Group is demonstrably
committed to either terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date or
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy. The Group is demonstrably
committed to a termination when, and only when, the Group has a detailed formal plan for the termination and is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal. Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, they are
discounted using the appropriate discount rate.
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3.20.5 Reclassification
As discussed in Note 31, employee benefits for the year ended December 31, 2011, were reclassified to conform with the
December 31, 2012 financial statement presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on the previously reported profit for
the year or equity.

3.21 Income tax expenses
Income tax expense (tax income) comprises current tax expense (current tax income) and deferred income tax expense (deferred
income tax income). Current and deferred income tax are recognized as income or expense and included in profit or loss for the
year, except to the extent that the tax arises from (a) a transaction or an event which is recognized, in the same or a different period
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and (b) a business combination.

3.21.1 Current income tax
Current income tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for a period. A
difference between the taxable profit and accounting profit may arise when income or expense is included in accounting profit in
one period, but is included in taxable profit in a different period. Differences may also arise if there is revenue that is exempt from
taxation, or expense that is not deductible in determining taxable profit (tax loss). Current income tax liabilities (assets) for the
current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The Group offsets current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group (a) has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and (b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

3.21.2 Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized, using the asset-liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax based
amount of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates, except for deferred
income tax liabilities for which the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Group reduces the
carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred income tax liabilities and deferred income tax assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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The Group offsets deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities when the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities; and the deferred income tax assets and the deferred income
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity; or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current income tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred income tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

3.21.3 Uncertain tax positions
Uncertain tax positions arise from tax treatments applied by the Group which may be challenged by the tax authorities due to the
complexity of the transaction or different interpretation of the tax laws, a claim for rectification brought by the Group, or an appeal
for a refund claimed from the tax authorities related to additional assessments. The Group recognizes its uncertain tax positions
in the financial statements based on the guidance in K¬IFRS 1037. A liability related to an uncertain tax position is recognized as
the best estimate of expenditure if the uncertain tax position is probable of resulting in additional payment to the tax authorities.
Meanwhile assets related to uncertain tax positions, caused by a claim for rectification or an appeal for refund claimed from the
tax authorities related to additional assessments, are treated as contingent assets under K-IFRS 1037. Therefore, tax expenses
are recognized in the financial statements when the uncertain tax position is probable of resulting in additional payment to the tax
authorities, while tax benefits are recognized only when the tax refund is virtually certain.
The Group classifies interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense.

3.22 Earnings per share
The Group calculates basic earnings per share amounts and diluted earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent entity and presents them in the statement of comprehensive income. Basic earnings per
share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Group
adjusts profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares including convertible bonds and share options.

3.23 Operating Segments
Operating segments are components of the Group about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly
by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.
Segment information includes the items which are directly attributable and reasonably allocated to the segment.

4. Financial risk management
4.1 Summary
4.1.1 Overview of Financial Risk Management Policy
The financial risks that the Group is exposed to are credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and others.
The note regarding financial risk management provides information about the risks that the Group is exposed to, including
the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risks, the methods used to measure the risks, and capital adequacy.
Additional quantitative information is disclosed throughout the consolidated financial statements.
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The Group’s risk management system focuses on increasing transparency, developing the risk management environment,
preventing transmission of risk to other related subsidiaries, and the preemptive response to risk due to rapid changes in the
financial environment to support the Group’s long-term strategy and business decisions efficiently. Credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, and operational risk have been recognized as the Group’s key risks. These risks are measured in Economic Capital or VaR (Value
at Risk) and are managed using a statistical method.

4.1.2 Risk Management Organization
Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee establishes risk management strategies in accordance with the directives of the Board of
Directors and determines the Group’s target risk appetite, approves significant risk matters and reviews the level of risks that the
Group is exposed to and the appropriateness of the Group’s risk management operations as an ultimate decision-making authority.

Risk Management Council
The Risk Management Council is a consultative group which reviews and makes decisions on matters delegated by the Risk
Management Committee and discusses the detailed issues relating to the Group’s risk management.

Risk Management Department
The Risk Management Department is responsible for monitoring and managing the Group’s economic capital limit and managing
specific policies, procedures and work processes relating to the Group’s risk management.

4.2 Credit Risk
4.2.1 Overview of Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of possible losses in an asset portfolio in the event of a counterparty’s default, breach of contract and
deterioration in the credit quality of the counterparty. For risk management reporting purposes, the individual borrower’s default
risk, country risk, specific risks and other credit risk exposure components are considered as a whole.

4.2.2 Credit Risk Management
The Group measures expected losses and economic capital on assets that are subject to credit risk management whether on-or
off-balance items and uses expected losses and economic capital as a management indicator. The Group manages credit risk by
allocating credit risk economic capital limits.
In addition, the Group controls the credit concentration risk exposure by applying and managing total exposure limits to prevent an
excessive risk concentration to each industry and borrower.
The Group has organized a credit risk management team that focuses on credit risk management in accordance with the Group’s
credit risk management policy. For Kookmin Bank which is the main subsidiary, its loan analysis department which is independent
from the sales department is responsible for loan policy, loan limit, loan review, credit evaluation, restructuring and subsequent
events. Kookmin Bank’s risk management group is also responsible for planning risk management policy, applying limits of credit
lines, measuring the credit risk economic capital, adjusting credit limits, reviewing credit and verifying credit evaluation models.
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4.2.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposures of financial instruments, excluding equity securities, to credit risk without consideration of
collateral values as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Financial assets
Due from financial institutions 			

₩

7,718,240

₩

6,556,027

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
		 Financial assets held for trading1 				

5,091,697 		

5,205,149

		 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 				

192,607 		

574,687

Derivatives 				

2,024,784 		

2,448,455

Loans 				

212,716,251 		

212,107,027

		 Available-for-sale financial assets 				

21,834,542 		

19,734,531

		 Held-to-maturity financial assets 				

12,255,806 		

13,055,158

Other financial assets 				

7,554,156 		

6,409,905

						

269,388,083 		

266,090,939

Acceptances and guarantees contracts 				

9,418,281 		

11,542,684

Financial guarantee contracts 				

1,610,269 		

945,167

Financial investments

Off-balance items

Commitments 				

93,193,481 		

91,743,942

						

104,222,031 		

104,231,793

					

373,610,114

370,322,732

1

₩

₩

Financial instruments indexed to the price of gold amounting to ₩39,839 million and ₩28,625 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, are included.

4.2.4 Credit risk of loans
The Group maintains an allowance for loan losses associated with credit risk on loans to manage its credit risk.
The Group recognizes an impairment loss on loans carried at amortized cost when there is any objective indication of impairment.
Under K-IFRS, an impairment loss is based on losses incurred at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group does not
recognize losses expected as a result of future events. The Group measures inherent incurred losses on loans and presents them
in the financial statements through the use of an allowance account which is offset against the related loans.
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Loans are classified as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Retail

Loans
			

Corporate

Amount

%

Amount

Credit card
%

Amount

Total
%

Amount

%

Neither past due													
₩ 100,498,254 97.25 ₩ 98,002,139 97.25 ₩ 11,353,316 95.62 ₩ 209,853,709
97.16
nor impaired
Past due but not													
1,654,029
1.60 		
478,031
0.47 		
399,778
3.37 		
2,531,838
1.17
impaired
Impaired 		
				
Allowances1 		
Carrying amount

1,184,586

1.15 		

2,293,797

103,336,869 100.00 		
(687,833)

2.28 		

100,773,967 100.00 		

0.67 		

(2,251,113)

₩ 102,649,036 		 ₩

120,757

1.01 		

3,599,140

1.67

11,873,851 100.00 		

215,984,687

100.00

(3,268,436)

1.51

2.23 		

98,522,854 		 ₩

(329,490)

2.77 		

11,544,361 		 ₩ 212,716,251
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Retail

Loans
			

Corporate

Amount

%

Amount

Credit card
%

Amount

Total
%

Amount

%

Neither past due													
₩ 101,217,550 97.40 ₩ 96,553,423 97.33 ₩ 11,945,631 96.17 ₩ 209,716,604
97.29
nor impaired
Past due but not													
1,646,070
1.58 		
359,554
0.36 		
368,791
2.97 		
2,374,415
1.10
impaired
Impaired 		
				
Allowances1 		
Carrying amount
1

1,061,585

1.02 		

2,295,483

103,925,205 100.00 		
(635,476)

2.31 		

99,208,460 100.00 		

0.61 		

(2,462,047)

₩ 103,289,729 		 ₩

106,845

0.86 		

3,463,913

1.61

12,421,267 100.00 		

215,554,932

100.00

(3,447,905)

1.60

2.48 		

96,746,413		 ₩

(350,382)

2.82		

12,070,885 		 ₩ 212,107,027

Collectively assessing allowances for loans are included because they are not impaired individually.

Credit quality of loans that are neither past due nor impaired are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Retail

Grade1

₩

82,882,712

Corporate

₩

38,052,477

Credit card

₩

5,674,508

Total

₩

126,609,697

Grade2 		

13,874,487 		

40,862,148 		

3,871,593 		

58,608,228

Grade3 		

2,574,309 		

15,394,849 		

1,568,939 		

19,538,097

Grade4 		

766,957 		

3,429,806 		

153,906 		

4,350,669

Grade5 		

399,789 		

262,859 		

84,370 		

747,018

			

₩

100,498,254

₩

98,002,139

₩

11,353,316

₩

209,853,709
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Retail

Grade1

₩

Corporate

83,790,049

₩

35,746,858

Credit card

₩

Total

5,403,273

₩

124,940,180

Grade2 		

14,532,234 		

39,312,628 		

4,378,523 		

58,223,385

Grade3 		

2,086,575 		

17,058,606 		

1,812,524 		

20,957,705

Grade4 		

451,004 		

4,060,283 		

254,467 		

4,765,754

Grade5 		

357,688 		

375,048 		

96,844 		

829,580

			

₩

101,217,550

₩

96,553,423

₩

11,945,631

₩

209,716,604

Credit quality of loans is classified as follows, according to the internal credit rating:
Range of PD (%)
(Probability of Default)

Retail

Corporate

0.0 ~ 1.0

1 ~ 5 grade

AAA ~ BBB+

Grade1
Grade2

1.0 ~ 5.0

6 ~ 8 grade

BBB ~ BB

Grade3

5.0 ~ 15.0

9 ~ 10 grade

BB- ~ B

Grade4

15.0 ~ 30.0

11 grade

B- ~ CCC

Grade5

30.0 ~

12 grade or under

CC or under

Loans that are past due but not impaired are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
1 ~ 29 days

Retail

₩

1,342,841

30 ~ 59 days

₩

223,653

60 ~ 89 days

87,453

₩

over 90 days

Total

82

₩

₩

1,654,029

Corporate 		

322,512 		

125,503 		

28,153 		

1,863 		

478,031

Credit card 		

293,864 		

57,324 		

47,698 		

892 		

399,778

			

₩

1,959,217

₩

406,480

₩

163,304

₩

2,837

₩

2,531,838

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
1 ~ 29 days

Retail

₩

1,361,218

30 ~ 59 days

₩

181,343

60 ~ 89 days

₩

103,340

over 90 days

₩

Total

169

₩

1,646,070

Corporate 		

196,591 		

138,817 		

24,146 		

- 		

359,554

Credit card 		

242,975 		

71,518 		

53,667 		

631 		

368,791

			

₩

1,800,784

₩

391,678

₩

181,153

₩

800

₩

2,374,415

Annual Report 2012

129

Impaired loans are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Retail

Loans

Corporate

1,184,586

₩

Credit card

2,293,797

₩

Total

120,757

₩

₩

3,599,140

Allowances
Individual assessment 		

- 		

(761,563) 		

- 		

(761,563)

Collective assessment 		

(451,885)		

(236,062)		

(72,373) 		

(760,320)

				

(451,885)		

(997,625)		

(72,373) 		

(1,521,883)

			

732,701

₩

1,296,172

₩

48,384

₩

₩

2,077,257

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Retail

Loans

Corporate

1,061,585

₩

Credit card

2,295,483

₩

Total

106,845

₩

₩

3,463,913

Allowances
Individual assessment 		

- 		

Collective assessment 		

(397,623)		

				

(397,623)		

			

663,962

₩

(999,787) 		
(251,790)
(1,251,577) 		
1,043,906

₩

- 		

(999,787)

(68,513) 		

(717,926)

(68,513) 		

(1,717,713)

38,332

₩

₩

1,746,200

A quantification of the extent to which collateral and other credit enhancements mitigate credit risk as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Impaired Loans
Individual

Guarantees

₩

Deposits and savings 		

18,512

Non-impaired Loans

Collective

₩

200 		

181,979

Past due

₩

19,502 		

Total

Not past due

326,676

₩

60,831 		

25,175,205

₩

2,526,512 		

25,702,372
2,607,045

Property and equipment 		

18,776 		

4,816 		

883 		

1,427,940 		

1,452,415

Real estate 		

329,743 		

478,728 		

1,200,988 		

109,195,555 		

111,205,014

			

367,231

685,025

1,589,378

138,325,212

140,966,846

₩

₩

₩

₩

₩
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Impaired Loans
Individual

Guarantees

₩

Collective

21,210

Deposits and savings 		

Non-impaired Loans

₩

- 		

Past due

124,641

173,708

₩

31,037 		

Total

Not past due

₩

18,345,603

69,880 		

₩

2,654,151 		

18,665,162
2,755,068

Property and equipment 		

12,648 		

4,717 		

1,671 		

1,067,929 		

1,086,965

Real estate 		

176,022 		

398,292 		

1,158,298 		

105,470,158 		

107,202,770

			

209,880

558,687

1,403,557

127,537,841

129,709,965

₩

₩

₩

₩

₩

4.2.5 Credit quality of securities
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments excluding equity securities that are exposed to
credit risk are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Securities that are neither past due nor impaired 			

39,322,368

₩

Impaired securities 				
					

2011

₩

12,445 		
39,334,813

₩

₩

38,531,825
9,075
38,540,900

The credit quality of securities (excluding equity securities) that are neither past due nor impaired as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Grade 1

Grade 2

Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Total

Financial assets held													
₩ 4,816,844
₩
205,577 ₩
29,437 ₩
- ₩
₩ 5,051,858
for trading
Financial assets													
designated at fair value		
84,428 		
108,179 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
192,607
through profit or loss												
Available-for-sale													
20,616,413 		
1,128,960 		
76,669 		
56 		
- 		 21,822,098
financial assets 		
Held-to-maturity													
12,255,805 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		 12,255,805
financial assets 		
			

₩ 37,773,490

₩

1,442,716

₩

106,106

₩

56

₩

-

₩ 39,322,368

Annual Report 2012

131

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Grade 1

Grade 2

Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Total

Financial assets held													
₩ 5,079,469
₩
88,144 ₩
8,911 ₩
- ₩
₩ 5,176,524
for trading
Financial assets													
designated at fair value		
238,085 		
336,602 		
- 		
- 		
- 			
through profit or loss												
Available-for-sale													
18,458,778 		
1,224,835 		
41,911 		
90 		
- 		 19,725,614
financial assets 		
Held-to-maturity													
13,055,000 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		 13,055,000
financial assets 		
			

₩ 36,831,332

₩

1,649,581

50,822

₩

90

₩

-

₩

₩ 38,531,825

The credit qualities of securities (excluding equity securities) according to the credit ratings by external rating agencies are as
follows:
Credit quality

Domestic

Foreign

KIS

KAP

NICE

S&P

Fitch-IBCA

Moody's

Grade 1

AA0 to AAA

AA0 to AAA

AA0 to AAA

A- to AAA

A- to AAA

A3 to Aaa

Grade 2

A- to AA-

A- to AA-

A- to AA-

BBB- to BBB+

BBB- to BBB+

Baa3 to Baa1

Grade 3

BBB0 to BBB+

BBB0 to BBB+

BBB0 to BBB+

BB to BB+

BB to BB+

Ba2 to Ba1

Grade 4

BB0 to BBB-

BB0 to BBB-

BB0 to BBB-

B+ to BB-

B+ to BB-

B1 to Ba3

Grade 5

BB- or under

BB- or under

BB- or under

B or under

B or under

B2 or under

Debt securities' credit qualities denominated in Korean won are based on the lowest credit rating by three domestic credit rating
agencies above, and those denominated in foreign currencies are based on the lowest credit rating by three foreign credit rating
agencies above.

4.2.6 Credit risk mitigation of derivative financial instruments
A quantification of the extent to which collateral and other credit enhancements mitigate credit risk of derivative financial
instruments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Deposits and savings, Securities and others 			

₩

216,906

₩

68,731

					

₩

216,906

₩

68,731
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4.2.7 Credit risk concentration analysis
The details of the Group’s loans by country as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Korea

Retail

Corporate

₩ 103,264,896

₩ 98,921,443

Credit card

₩

Total

11,871,321 ₩ 214,057,660

%

Carrying
amount

Allowances

99.11 ₩

(3,249,627) ₩ 210,808,033

Europe 		

3 		

80,454		

378 		

80,835

0.04 		

(288) 		

80,547

China 		

319 		

429,781 		

287 		

430,387

0.20 		

(2,372) 		

428,015

Japan 		

7,944 		

885,607 		

437 		

893,988

0.41 		

(14,273) 		

879,715

U.S. 		

- 		

308,846 		

454 		

309,300

0.14 		

(478) 		

308,822

Others 		

63,707 		

147,836 		

974 		

212,517

0.10		

(1,398) 		

211,119

Total

₩ 103,336,869

₩ 100,773,967

₩

11,873,851 ₩ 215,984,687

100.00 ₩

(3,268,436) ₩ 212,716,251
(in millions of Korean won)

2011

Korea

Retail

Corporate

₩ 103,855,183

₩ 97,298,342

Credit card

₩

Total

12,420,318 ₩ 213,573,843

%

Carrying
amount

Allowances

99.08 ₩

(3,428,520) ₩ 210,145,323

Europe 		

11 		

69,004 		

110 		

69,125

0.03 		

(555) 		

68,570

China 		

434 		

315,375 		

37 		

315,846

0.15 		

(1,961) 		

313,885

Japan 		

11,914 		

1,014,607 		

301 		

1,026,822

0.48 		

(14,976) 		

1,011,846

U.S. 		

- 		

412,669 		

272 		

412,941

0.19 		

(432) 		

412,509

Others 		

57,663 		

98,463 		

229 		

156,355

(1,461) 		

154,894

Total

₩ 103,925,205

₩ 99,208,460

₩

12,421,267 ₩ 215,554,932

0.07 		
100.00 ₩

(3,447,905) ₩ 212,107,027

The details of the Group’s corporate loans by industry as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Loans

Financial institutions 						 ₩

7,221,302

%

Allowances

7.17 ₩

(10,936) ₩

Carrying
amount

7,210,366

Manufacturing 								

31,319,370

31.08 		

(931,441) 		

30,387,929

Service 								

38,649,493

38.35 		

(477,559) 		

38,171,934

Wholesale & Retail 							

15,124,389

15.01 		

(230,865) 		

14,893,524

Construction 								

4,688,691

4.65 		

(528,284) 		

4,160,407

Public sector 								

520,422

0.52 		

(7,076) 		

513,346

Others 								

3,250,300

3.22 		

(64,952) 		

3,185,348

									 ₩ 100,773,967

100.00 ₩

(2,251,113) ₩

98,522,854
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Loans

Financial institutions 						 ₩

5,839,148

%

Carrying
amount

Allowances

5.89 ₩

(57,335) ₩

5,781,813

Manufacturing 								

31,762,908

32.01 		

(852,707) 		

30,910,201

Service 								

36,305,778

36.60 		

(547,148) 		

35,758,630

Wholesale & Retail 							

15,639,010

15.76 		

(232,482) 		

15,406,528

Construction 								

5,674,858

5.72 		

(729,055) 		

4,945,803

Public sector 								

310,978

0.31 		

(5,190) 		

305,788

Others 								

3,675,780

3.71 		

(38,130) 		

3,637,650

99,208,460

100.00 ₩

									 ₩

(2,462,047) ₩

96,746,413

The details of the Group’s retail and credit card loans by type as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Loans

%

Carrying
amount

Allowances

Housing purpose 						 ₩

44,874,081

38.95 ₩

(109,489) ₩

44,764,592

General purpose 								

58,462,788

50.74 		

(578,344) 		

57,884,444

Credit card 								

11,873,851

10.31 		

(329,490) 		

11,544,361

									 ₩ 115,210,720

100.00 ₩

(1,017,323) ₩ 114,193,397
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Loans

%

Allowances

Housing purpose 						 ₩

45,519,956

39.12 ₩

General purpose 								

58,405,249

50.20 		

(538,513) 		

57,866,736

Credit card 								

12,421,267

10.68		

(350,382) 		

12,070,885

									 ₩ 116,346,472

100.00 ₩

(96,963) ₩

Carrying
amount

45,422,993

(985,858) ₩ 115,360,614
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The details of the Group’s securities (excluding equity securities) and derivative financial instruments by industry as of December
31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Amount

%

Financial assets held for trading
Government and government funded institutions 			

₩

Banking and Insurance 				

1,913,601		

37.88

2,518,715 		

49.86

Others 				

619,542 		

12.26

						

5,051,858 		

100.00

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Banking and Insurance 				

192,607 		

100.00

						

192,607 		

100.00

Government and government funded institutions 				

29,236 		

1.44

Banking and Insurance 				

1,858,862 		

91.81

Others 				

136,686 		

6.75

						

2,024,784 		

100.00

Government and government funded institutions 				

10,355,155 		

47.43

Banking and Insurance 				

8,875,248 		

40.65

Others 				

2,604,139 		

11.92

						

21,834,542 		

100.00

Government and government funded institutions 				

9,854,991 		

80.42

Banking and Insurance 				

1,593,713 		

13.00

Others 				

807,102 		

6.58

						

12,255,806 		

100.00

					

41,359,597

Derivative financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Amount

%

Financial assets held for trading
Government and government funded institutions 			

1,785,624 		

34.49

Banking and Insurance 				

2,972,087 		

57.41

Others 				

418,813 		

8.10

						

5,176,524 		

100.00

₩
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Amount

%

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Banking and Insurance 				

574,687 		

100.00

						

574,687 		

100.00

Government and government funded institutions 				

40,068 		

1.64

Banking and Insurance 				

1,428,140 		

58.33

Derivative financial assets

Others 				

980,247 		

40.03

						

2,448,455 		

100.00

Government and government funded institutions 				

8,483,273 		

42.99

Banking and Insurance 				

8,189,563 		

41.50

Others 				

3,061,695 		

15.51

						

19,734,531 		

100.00

Government and government funded institutions 				

10,732,519 		

82.21

Banking and Insurance 				

1,463,937 		

11.21

Others 				

858,702 		

6.58

						

13,055,158 		

100.00

					

40,989,355

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets

₩

The details of the Group’s securities (excluding equity securities) and derivative financial instruments by country, as of December
31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Amount

%

Financial assets held for trading
Korea 			

₩

						

5,051,858 		

100.00

5,051,858 		

100.00

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Korea 				

192,607 		

100.00

						

192,607 		

100.00

638,817 		

31.55

Derivative financial assets
Korea 				
United States 				

366,827 		

18.12

Others 				

1,019,140 		

50.33

						

2,024,784 		

100.00
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Amount

%

Available-for-sale financial assets
Korea 				

21,657,311 		

99.19

United States 				

176,394 		

0.81

Others 				

837 		

0.00

						

21,834,542 		

100.00

Korea 				

12,255,805 		

100.00

United States 				

1 		

0.00

						

12,255,806 		

100.00

					

41,359,597

Held-to-maturity financial assets

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Amount

%

Financial assets held for trading
Korea 			

5,176,524 		

100.00

5,176,524 		

100.00

Korea 				

574,687		

100.00

						

574,687		

100.00

Korea 				

1,436,182 		

58.66

United States 				

275,429 		

11.25

Others 				

736,844 		

30.09

						

2,448,455 		

100.00

Korea 				

19,552,797 		

99.08

United States 				

180,832 		

0.92

Others 				

902 		

0.00

						

19,734,531		

100.00

Korea 				

13,055,000 		

100.00

United States 				

158		

0.00

						

13,055,158 		

100.00

					

40,989,355

₩

						
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets

₩
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The counterparties to the financial assets under due from financial institutions and financial instruments indexed to the price of gold
within financial assets held for trading are in the banking and insurance industries and have high credit ratings.

4.3 Liquidity risk
4.3.1 Overview of liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of insolvency or loss due to a disparity between the inflow and outflow of funds, unexpected outflow of
funds, and obtaining funds at a high price or disposing of securities at an unfavorable price due to lack of available funds. The
Group manages its liquidity risk through analysis of the contractual maturity of all financial assets, liabilities and off- balance items
such as commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Group discloses them by maturity groups: On demand, up to one
month, between over one month and three months, between over three months and 12 months, between over one year and five
years, and over five years.
Cash flows disclosed for the maturity analysis are undiscounted contractual principal and interest to be received (paid) and, thus,
differ from the amount in the financial statements which are based on the present value of expected cash flows in some cases.
The amount of interest to be received or paid on floating rate assets and liabilities is measured on the assumption that the current
interest rate would be the same through maturity.

4.3.2. Liquidity risk management and indicator
The liquidity risk is managed by ALM (‘Asset Liability Management’) and related guidelines which are applied to the risk
management policies and procedures that address all the possible risks that arise from the overall business of the Group.
For the purpose of liquidity management, the liquidity ratio and accumulated liquidity gap ratio on all transactions affecting the in
and outflows of funds and transactions of offbalance items are measured, managed and reported to the Risk Management Council
and Risk Management Committee on a regular basis.
As the main subsidiary, Kookmin Bank regularly reports the liquidity gap ratio, liquidity ratio, maturity gap ratio and the results of the
stress testing related to liquidity risk to the Asset- Liability Management Committee (‘ALCO’) which establishes and monitors the
liquidity risk management strategy.

4.3.3. Analysis of remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities
The remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities, excluding derivatives held for cash flow hedging, as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
On
demand

Up to
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Total

Financial assets
Cash and due 															
from financial ₩ 5,926,911 ₩
586,856 ₩
75,523 ₩
189,026 ₩
- ₩
136,584 ₩ 6,914,900
institutions1														
Financial															
assets held		
5,947,104 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
-		
5,947,104
for trading2		
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012
On
demand

Up to
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Total

Financial assets															
designated															
at fair value		
352,090 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
352,090
through profit 															
or loss2		
Derivatives held 															
1,841,273 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
1,841,273
for trading2		
Derivatives held 															
for fair value 		
- 		
6,645 		
929 		
18,600 		
125,511 		
163,808 		
315,493
hedging3		
Loans 		

180,872 		

22,270,266 		

24,804,731 		

76,117,318 		

57,614,670 		

78,036,743 		 259,024,600

Available-for-sale														
1,399,487 		
1,144,817 		
1,657,583 		
4,867,026 		 13,522,904 		
3,246,902 		 25,838,719
financial assets4		
Held-to-maturity															
- 		
142,902 		
362,905 		
2,525,112 		
8,753,186 		
2,192,044 		 13,976,149
financial assets 		
Other financial															
34,472 		
5,522,930 		
14,050 		
1,561,002 		
5,843 		
1,853 		
7,140,150
assets 		
		

₩ 15,682,209 ₩ 29,674,416

₩ 26,915,721

₩ 85,278,084

₩ 80,022,114 ₩ 83,777,934

₩ 321,350,478

Financial liabilities
Financial															
liabilities held
₩ 1,381,997 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩ 1,381,997
for trading2
Financial															
liabilities															
designated at		
469,138 		
-		
- 		
- 		
-		
- 		
469,138
fair value through
2
profit or loss
Derivatives held 															
1,868,287		
-		
- 		
- 		
-		
- 		
1,868,287
for trading2		
Derivatives held 															
for fair value 		
- 		
26,041 		
3		
(1,456) 		
189,613 		
2,396 		
216,597
hedging3
Deposits5		

66,973,382 		

16,388,693 		

29,403,451 		

79,020,220 		

7,634,188 		

697,398 		 200,117,332

Debts 		

273,586 		

3,854,683 		

2,854,083 		

5,675,606 		

2,879,533 		

662,557 		

16,200,048

Debentures 		

24,659 		

1,283,340 		

1,028,400 		

3,576,694 		

18,202,836 		

4,020,164 		

28,136,093

Other financial 															
12,878 		
7,069,299 		
8,624 		
75,325 		
272,830 		
22,041 		
7,460,997
liabilities 		
₩

71,003,927 ₩ 28,622,056

₩ 33,294,561

₩ 88,346,389

₩ 29,179,000 ₩

5,404,556

₩ 255,850,489
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012
On
demand

Up to
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Total

Off- balance items
Commit-															
₩ 93,193,481 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩ 93,193,481
ments6
Financial															
guarantee		
1,610,269 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
1,610,269
contracts7 		
₩ 94,803,750 ₩

-

-

₩

-

₩

- ₩

₩

-

₩ 94,803,750

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
On
demand

Up to
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Total

Financial assets
Cash and due															
from financial ₩ 4,453,019 ₩
303,624 ₩
76,508 ₩
89,831 ₩
4 ₩
119,097 ₩ 5,042,083
institutions1
Financial															
assets held		
5,617,257 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
5,617,257
for trading2 		
Financial assets															
designated															
at fair value		
708,847		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
-		
708,847
through profit															
or loss2 		
Derivatives held															
2,220,314		
- 		
-		
- 		
- 		
- 		
2,220,314
for trading2 		
Derivatives held															
for fair value		
- 		
9,502 		
(4,709) 		
28,399 		
148,990 		
346,779 		
528,961
hedging3 		
Loans 		

97,595 		

22,337,365 		

27,042,768 		

76,893,033 		

56,899,525 		

79,060,029		 262,330,315

Available-for-sale														
2,240,727 		
1,408,252		
2,604,981		
4,785,474 		 10,153,262 		
4,012,911 		 25,205,607
financial assets4
Held-to-maturity															
- 		
198,914 		
611,115 		
2,227,089 		
9,397,778		
2,854,547 		 15,289,443
financial assets 		
Other financial															
16,079 		
3,933,496 		
2,253 		
1,569,281 		
14,548 		
11,487 		
5,547,144
assets 		
₩15,353,838 ₩ 28,191,153

₩ 30,332,916

₩ 85,593,107

₩ 76,614,107 ₩ 86,404,850

₩322,489,971
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
On
demand

Up to
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Total

Financial liabilities
Financial
liabilities held
for trading2

₩

550,873 ₩

-

₩

-

₩

-

- ₩

₩

-

₩

550,873

Financial 															
liabilities 															
designated at		
837,206 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
837,206
fair value through 														
profit or loss2 		
Derivatives held															
1,905,343 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
1,905,343
for trading2 		
Derivatives held															
for fair value		
- 		
(378) 		
28,613		
(1,427) 		
129,600 		
6,744 		
163,152
hedging3 		
Deposits5 		

62,496,734 		

19,301,815 		

27,509,188 		

77,736,839		

8,954,242		

509,831 		 196,508,649

Debts 		

365,944 		

2,433,558 		

3,377,097		

7,222,927 		

3,278,067		

605,826 		

17,283,419

Debentures 		

24,260 		

4,098,529		

1,516,938		

6,220,672 		

15,047,649 		

4,737,050 		

31,645,098

Other financial															
- 		
5,488,548 		
20,474 		
24,245 		
187,882 		
122,718 		
5,843,867
liabilities 		
			

₩ 66,180,360 ₩ 31,322,072

₩ 32,452,310

₩ 91,203,256

₩ 27,597,440 ₩

5,982,169

₩254,737,607

Off- balance items
Commit-															
₩ 91,743,942 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩ 91,743,942
ments6
Financial															
guarantee		
945,167		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
945,167
contracts7 		
			

₩ 92,689,109 ₩

-

₩

-

₩

-

₩

- ₩

-

₩ 92,689,109

1

	The amounts of ₩ 3,646,611 million and ₩ 4,177,347 million which are restricted amounts due from the financial institutions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, are excluded.

2

	Financial instruments held for trading, financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives held for trading are not managed by contractual
maturity because they are expected to be traded or redeemed before maturity. Therefore, the carrying amounts of those financial instruments are classified as ‘On demand’
category.

3

Cash flows of derivative instruments held for fair value hedging are shown at net amounts of cash inflows and outflows by remaining contractual maturity.

4	

Equity investments in financial assets classified as available-for-sale are generally included in the ‘On demand’ category because most of them are available for sale at
anytime. However, in the case of equity investments restricted for sale, they are shown in the period in which the restriction is expected to be lifted.

5

Deposits that are contractually repayable on demand or on short notice are classified as On demand’ category.

6

Commitments are included in the ‘On demand’ category because payments can be required upon request.

7

The financial guarantee contracts are included in the ‘On demand’ category because payments can be required upon request.
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The contractual cash flows of derivatives held for cash flow hedging as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Up to
1 month

To be received 			 ₩
To be paid				

3,321 ₩
(3,864) 		

1-3
months

4,931

3-12
months

₩

(6,277) 		

1-5
years

23,486 ₩
(29,702)		

357,927

Over 5
years

Total

- ₩

₩

(366,291) 		

- 		

389,665
(406,134)

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Up to
1 month

To be received 			 ₩
To be paid				

1,139 ₩
(1,446)		

1-3
months

2,864
(3,380)		

3-12
months

₩

11,690
(14,160)		

1-5
years

₩

371,807
(354,042) 		

Over 5
years

₩

Total

- ₩
- 		

387,500
(373,028)

4.4 Market risk
4.4.1 Overview of market risk
Definition of market risk
Market risk is the risk of possible losses which arise from changes in market factors, such as interest rate, stock price, foreign
exchange rate and other market factors that affect the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments, such as securities and
derivatives amongst others. The most significant risks associated with trading positions are interest rate risks, and other risks are
stock price risks and currency risks. In addition, the Group is exposed to interest rate risks associated with non-trading positions.
The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading positions. The Group measures and manages
market risk separately for each subsidiary in the Group.

Market risk management group
The Group sets economic capital limits for market risk and interest rate risk and monitors the risks to manage the risk of trading
and non-trading positions. The Group maintains risk management systems and procedures, such as trading policies and
procedures, and market risk management guidelines for trading positions, and interest rate risk management guidelines for nontrading positions in order to manage market risk efficiently. The procedures mentioned are implemented with approval from the
Risk Management Committee and Risk Management Council.
As the main subsidiary, Kookmin Bank establishes market risk management policy, sets position limits, loss limits and VAR limits
of each business group and approves newly developed derivative instruments, through its Risk Management Council. The Risk
Management Council has delegated the responsibility for market risk management of individual business departments to the
Market Risk Management Committee which is chaired by a Chief Risk Officer (CRO). The Market Risk Management Committee
sets VaR limits, position limits, loss limits, scenario loss limits and sensitivity limits for each division, at the level of each individual
business department.
The ALCO of Kookmin Bank determines operational standards of interest and commission, revises Asset Liability Management
(ALM) risk management guidelines, interest rate and commission guidelines and monitors establishment and enforcement of ALM
risk management policies. The interest rate risk limit is set based on the future assets/liabilities position and interest rate volatility
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estimated reflecting the annual work plan. The financial management department and risk management department measure and
monitor the interest risk status and limits on a regular basis. The status and limits of interest rate risks such as interest rate gap,
duration gap and sensitivity are reported to the ALCO on a monthly basis and to the Risk Management Council on a quarterly
basis. The responsibility for ALM control is delegated to the Risk Management Department to ensure adequacy of interest rate
and liquidity risk management. The Risk Management Department monitors and reviews risk management procedures and tasks
conducted by the Financial Management Department, and reports related information to management independently.

4.4.2 Trading Position
Definition of a trading position
Trading positions subject to market risk management are defined under the Trading Policy and Guideline, and basic requirements
are as follows:
-	The trading position is not restricted for sale, is measured daily at fair value, and its significant inherent risks are able to be hedged
in the market.
-	The criteria for classification as a trading position are clearly defined in the Trading Policy and Guideline, and separately managed
by the trading department.
-	The trading position is operated in accordance with the documented trading strategy and managed through position limits.
-	The operating department or professional dealers have an authority to enforce a deal on the trading position within predetermined
limits without pre-approval.
-	The trading position is reported periodically to management for the purpose of the Group’s risk management.

Observation method on market risk arising from trading positions
The Group calculates VaR to measure the market risk by using market risk management systems on the entire trading portfolio.
Generally, the Group manages market risk on the trading portfolio. In addition, the Group controls and manages the risk of
derivative trading based on the regulations and guidelines formulated by the Financial Supervisory Service.

VaR (Value at Risk)
i. VaR (Value at Risk)
The Group uses the value-at-risk methodology to measure the market risk of trading positions. There have been changes in market
risk measurement technique during the year ended December 31, 2012, and the detailed descriptions are below.
Previous method: The Group used a daily VaR measure, which is a statistically estimated maximum amount of loss that could
occur in one day under normal distribution of financial variables. The Group calculated VaR using the equal-weighted average
method based on historical changes in market rates, prices and volatilities over the previous 550 business days and measured VaR
at a 99% single tail confidence level.
Current method: The Group now uses the 10-day VaR, which estimates the maximum amount of loss that could occur in ten days
under an historical simulation model which is considered as a full valuation method. The distributions of portfolio's value changes
are estimated based on the data over the previous 250 business days, and ten-day VaR is calculated by subtracting net present
market value from the value measured at a 99% confident level of portfolio's value distribution results. However, the KB Investment
& Securities Co., Ltd. calculates ten-day VaR using the equal-weighted average method based on historical changes in market
rates, prices and volatilities over the previous 250 business days and measures VaR at a 99% single tail confidence level.
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These changes in market risk measurement technique are intended to reflect the volatilities of the market more accurately. The
current method immediately reflects the scenario of a day when the financial market shows dramatic moves, and the market risk of
financial instruments with complex risk attributes can be measured more appropriately than under the previous methodology.
VaR is a commonly used market risk measurement technique. However, the method has some shortcomings. VaR estimates
possible losses over a certain period at a particular confidence level using past market movement data. Past market movements
are, however, not necessarily a good indicator of future events, as there may be conditions and circumstances in the future that
the model does not anticipate. As a result, the timing and magnitude of the actual losses can be different depending on the
assumptions made at the time of the calculation. In addition, the time periods used for the model, generally one or ten days, are
assumed to be a sufficient holding period before liquidating the relevant underlying positions. If these holding periods are not
sufficient, or too long, the VaR results may understate or overstate the potential loss.
The Group uses an internal model (VaR) to measure general risk, and a standard method to measure each individual risk. Also,
general and individual risks in some positions included in the consolidated financial statements in adoption of K-IFRS, are
measured using a standard method. Therefore, the market risk VaR may not reflect the market risk of each individual risk and some
specific positions.

ii. Back-Testing
Back-testing is conducted on a daily basis to validate the adequacy of the market risk model. In back-testing, the Group compares
both the actual and hypothetical profit and loss with the VaR calculations.

iii. Stress Testing
Stress testing is carried out to analyze the impact of abnormal market situations on the trading and available-for-sale portfolio.
It reflects changes in interest rates, stock prices, foreign exchange rates, implied volatilities of derivatives and other risk factors
that have significant influence on the value of the portfolio. The Group mainly uses an historical scenario tool and also uses a
hypothetical scenario tool for the analysis of abnormal market situations. Stress testing is performed at least once every quarter.
VaR at a 99% confidence level of interest rate, stock price and foreign exchange rate risk for trading positions with a ten-day
holding period by subsidiary as of December 31, 2012, and one-day holding period by subsidiary as of December 31, 2011, are
as follows:

Kookmin Bank

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Average1

Interest rate risk

₩

Minimum1

12,052

₩

Maximum1

4,742

₩

Ending

18,589

₩

4,747

Stock price risk 		

2,847 		

331 		

5,585 		

4,309

Foreign exchange rate risk 		

26,565 		

9,590 		

39,185 		

11,201

-		

(12,217)

Deduction of diversification effect 		
Total VaR
1

₩

- 		
18,337

₩

- 		
6,902

₩

The average, minimum and maximum amounts are based on the data from the beginning of May to the end of December.

27,542

₩

8,040
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Average

Interest rate risk

Minimum

2,537

₩

Maximum

1,430

₩

Ending

4,019

₩

1,866

₩

Stock price risk 		

725 		

86 		

2,569 		

1,161

Foreign exchange rate risk 		

6,464		

4,187 		

12,610 		

4,882

- 		

(3,141)

Deduction of diversification effect 		
Total VaR

- 		
6,206

₩

- 		
4,000

₩

11,992

₩

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd.

4,768

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Average1

Interest rate risk

Minimum1

1,805

₩

Maximum1

572

₩

Ending

5,054

₩

3,532

₩

Stock price risk 		

2,350 		

486 		

8,683		

658

Foreign exchange rate risk		

309 		

18		

1,329		

224

Deduction of diversification effect 		
Total VaR
1

- 		
3,119

₩

- 		
724

₩

- 		
8,752

₩

(763)
3,651

₩

The average, minimum and maximum amounts are based on the ten day VaR data from the beginning of April to the end of December.
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Average

Interest rate risk

Minimum

410

₩

Maximum

131

₩

Ending

1,046

₩

413

₩

Stock price risk 		

659 		

350 		

1,643 		

Foreign exchange rate risk 		

161 		

15 		

586		

57

Deduction of diversification effect 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

(329)

Total VaR

819

₩

381

₩

1,885

₩

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

444

585

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Average

Interest rate risk

₩

Deduction of diversification effect 		
Total VaR
1

₩

Minimum

1

Maximum1

1

111

₩

- 		
111

₩

58

₩

- 		
58

₩

The average, minimum and maximum amounts are based on the data from the beginning of April to the end of December.

Ending

152

₩

- 		
152

₩

127
127
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Average

Interest rate risk

23

₩

Deduction of diversification effect 		
Total VaR

Minimum

10

₩

- 		
23

₩

Maximum

Ending

53

₩

- 		
10

₩

12

₩

- 		
53

₩

KB Investment Co., Ltd.

12

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Average1

Foreign exchange rate risk

63

₩

Deduction of diversification effect 		
Total VaR
1

Minimum1

39

₩

- 		
63

₩

Maximum1

92

₩

- 		
39

₩

Ending

41

₩

- 		
92

₩

41

₩

The average, minimum and maximum amounts are based on the data from the beginning of April to the end of December.
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Average

Foreign exchange rate risk

₩

Deduction of diversification effect 		
Total VaR

₩

Minimum

31

₩

- 		
31

₩

Maximum

26

52

₩

- 		
26

Ending

28

₩

- 		
52

₩

28

₩

Meanwhile, the required equity capital using the standardized method related to the positions which are not measured by VaR as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:

Kookmin Bank

(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Interest rate risk 			

₩

Stock price risk 				
Foreign exchange rate risk 				
					

₩

2011

578

₩

4,567 		
9,081 		
14,226

₩

23,602
21,279
9,561
54,442
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KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd.

(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Interest rate risk 			

146

2011

4,607

₩

3,911

₩

Stock price risk 				

3,224 		

10,212

					

7,831

14,123

₩

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Stock price risk 			

₩

13

₩

-

					

₩

13

₩

-

KB Investment Co., Ltd.

(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Stock price risk 			

₩

1,385

₩

-

					

₩

1,385

₩

-

As of December 31, 2011, the standardized method was used to measure trading positions’ interest rate, stock price and foreign
exchange rate risk of private equity funds which are in the scope of subsidiaries. Those positions’ market risks have been included
in VaR during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Details of risk factors
i. Interest rate risk
Trading position interest rate risk usually arises from debt securities in Korean won. The Group’s trading strategy is to benefit from
short-term movements in the prices of debt securities arising from changes in interest rates. The Group manages interest rate risk
on trading positions using market value-based tools such as VaR and sensitivity analysis (Price Value of a Basis Point: PVBP).

ii. Stock price risk
Stock price risk only arises from trading securities denominated in Korean won as the Group does not have any trading exposure
to shares denominated in foreign currencies. The trading securities portfolio in Korean won are composed of exchange-traded
stocks and derivative instruments linked to stock with strict limits on diversification.

iii. Foreign exchange rate risk
Foreign exchange rate risk arises from holding assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency. Net foreign currency exposure
mostly occurs from the foreign assets and liabilities which are denominated in US dollars and Kazakhstan Tenge, and the remainder
in Japanese Yen or Euro. The Group sets both loss limits and net foreign currency exposure limits and manages comprehensive
net foreign exchange exposures which consider both trading and non-trading portfolios.
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4.4.3 Non-trading position
Definition of non-trading position
The most critical market risk that arises in non-trading portfolios is interest rate risk. Interest rate risk occurs due to mismatches on
maturities and interest rate change periods between interest sensitive assets and liabilities. The Group measures interest rate risk
arising from assets and liabilities denominated in Korean won and foreign currencies including derivative financial instruments held
for hedging. Most interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities are denominated in Korean won. Most foreign currency
assets and liabilities are denominated in US Dollars and the remainder in Japanese Yen or Euro.

Observation method on market risk arising from non-trading position
The main objective of interest rate risk management is to generate stable net interest income and to protect asset values against
interest rate fluctuations. The Group manages the risk through interest rate gap analysis on interest rate maturities between
interestbearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities and measuring interest rate VaR.

Disclosure of results from each observation method
i. Interest rate gap analysis
Interest rate gap analysis is based on the interest rates repricing dates for interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
It measures expected changes in net interest income by calculating the difference in the amounts of interest-bearing assets and
interest-bearing liabilities in each maturity bucket. The Group conducts interest gap analysis on assets denominated in Korean
won and foreign currencies on a monthly basis. However, where there is no contractual maturity for a particular instrument, then a
maturity date is set according to internal liquidity risk management guidelines.
The results of the interest rate gap analysis by subsidiary as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Kookmin Bank

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩ 91,875,926 ₩ 50,777,686 ₩ 36,985,241 ₩ 23,433,532 ₩ 16,552,365 ₩ 219,624,750
in Korean won 			
Interest-bearing liabilities														
89,554,290 		 35,360,899 		
49,687,125 		
22,185,102 		 15,961,551 		
212,748,967
in Korean won 				
Gap 			 ₩

2,321,636 ₩ 15,416,787 ₩ (12,701,884) ₩

1,248,430 ₩

Accumulated gap 			

2,321,636 		

17,738,423 		

5,036,539 		

6,284,969

Percentage (%) 				

1.06 		

8.08 		

2.29 		

2.86 		

590,814 ₩

6,875,783

6,875,783
3.13

Interest-bearing assets														
₩ 10,105,090 ₩ 2,090,551 ₩
718,802 ₩
641,281 ₩
121,700 ₩ 13,677,424
in foreign currencies 		
Interest-bearing liabilities														
8,218,370 		
3,533,356 		
1,964,078 		
513,647 		
117,821 		
14,347,272
in foreign currencies 			
Gap 			 ₩

1,886,720 ₩ (1,442,805) ₩ (1,245,276) ₩

127,634 ₩

3,879 ₩

Accumulated gap 			

1,886,720 		

443,915		

(801,361) 		

(673,727) 		

(669,848)

Percentage (%) 				

13.79 		

3.25		

(5.86)		

(4.93) 		

(4.90)

(669,848)
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩ 109,769,309 ₩ 53,264,820 ₩ 26,293,288 ₩ 16,619,523 ₩ 9,309,082 ₩ 215,256,022
in Korean won 			
Interest-bearing liabilities														
91,469,293		
0,487,095 		
54,100,542 		
20,867,820 		 13,169,891 		
210,094,641
in Korean won 				
Gap 			 ₩ 18,300,016 ₩ 22,777,725 ₩ (27,807,254) ₩ (4,248,297) ₩ (3,860,809) ₩
Accumulated gap 			

18,300,016 		

41,077,741 		

13,270,487 		

9,022,190 		

5,161,381

Percentage (%) 				

8.50 		

19.08		

6.16 		

4.19 		

2.40

5,161,381

Interest-bearing assets														
₩ 13,009,331 ₩ 2,081,836 ₩ 1,015,797 ₩
899,201 ₩
139,646 ₩ 17,145,811
in foreign currencies 		
Interest-bearing liabilities														
11,246,216 		
3,871,630 		
2,151,126 		
205,522 		
46,132 		
17,520,626
in foreign currencies 			
Gap 			 ₩

1,763,115 ₩ (1,789,794) ₩ (1,135,329) ₩

693,679 ₩

93,514 ₩

Accumulated gap 			

1,763,115 		

(26,679) 		

(1,162,008) 		

(468,329) 		

(374,815)

Percentage (%) 				

10.28		

(0.16)		

(6.78)		

(2.73)		

(2.19)

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd.

(374,815)

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩ 2,743,651 ₩
802,981 ₩ 1,100,429 ₩ 8,453,580 ₩
9,765 ₩ 13,110,406
in Korean won 			
Interest-bearing liabilities														
1,370,000 		
260,000 		
1,310,000 		
3,921,800 		
2,221,000 		
9,082,800
in Korean won 				
Gap 			 ₩

1,373,651 ₩

542,981 ₩

(209,571) ₩

Accumulated gap			

1,373,651 		

1,916,632 		

1,707,061 		

Percentage (%) 				

10.48 		

14.62 		

13.02 		

4,531,780 ₩ (2,211,235) ₩
6,238,841
47.59 		

4,027,606
30.72

4,027,606
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩ 3,057,388 ₩
683,327 ₩
884,063 ₩ 8,288,959 ₩
7,125 ₩ 12,920,862
in Korean won
		
Interest-bearing liabilities														
1,811,500 		
860,000 		
2,530,000 		
3,052,800 		
1,170,000 		
9,424,300
in Korean won 				
Gap 			 ₩

1,245,888 ₩

(176,673) ₩ (1,645,937) ₩

5,236,159 ₩ (1,162,875) ₩

Accumulated gap 			

1,245,888 		

1,069,215 		

(576,722) 		

4,659,437 		

3,496,562

Percentage (%) 				

9.64 		

8.28 		

(4.46) 		

36.06 		

27.06

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd.

3,496,562

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩
342,543 ₩
75,000 ₩
66,032 ₩
100,000 ₩
2,291 ₩
585,866
in Korean won 			
Interest-bearing liabilities														
339,444 		
30,000 		
100,000 		
- 		
- 		
469,444
in Korean won 				
Gap			 ₩

3,099 ₩

45,000 ₩

(33,968) ₩

100,000 ₩

2,291 ₩

Accumulated gap 			

3,099 		

48,099 		

14,131 		

114,131 		

116,422

Percentage (%) 				

0.53		

8.21 		

2.41 		

19.48 		

19.87

116,422

Interest-bearing assets														
₩
2,263 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
2,263
in foreign currencies 		
Interest-bearing liabilities														
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
in foreign currencies 			
Gap 			 ₩

2,263 ₩

- ₩

- ₩

- ₩

- ₩

Accumulated gap 			

2,263 		

2,263 		

2,263 		

2,263 		

2,263

Percentage (%) 				

100.00 		

100.00 		

100.00 		

100.00 		

100.00

2,263
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩
599,877 ₩
103,522 ₩
108,031 ₩
10,002 ₩
2,517 ₩
823,949
in Korean won 			
Interest-bearing liabilities														
482,001 		
70,000 		
- 		
49,470 		
- 		
601,471
in Korean won 				
Gap 			 ₩

117,876

Accumulated gap 			

117,876 		

Percentage (%) 				

14.31 		

₩

33,522 ₩

108,031 ₩

(39,468)

151,398 		

259,429 		

219,961 		

222,478

18.37 		

31.49 		

26.70 		

27.00

₩

2,517 ₩

222,478

Interest-bearing assets														
₩
2,068 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
2,068
in foreign currencies 		
Interest-bearing liabilities														
-		
-		
-		
-		
-		
in foreign currencies 			
Gap 			 ₩

2,068 ₩

- ₩

- ₩

-

-

Accumulated gap 			

2,068		

2,068 		

2,068		

2,068		

2,068

Percentage (%) 				

100.00		

100.00 		

100.00 		

100.00		

100.00

₩

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

2,068

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩
133,084 ₩
100,088 ₩
640,829 ₩ 1,106,126 ₩ 2,482,444 ₩
4,462,571
in Korean won 			
Interest-bearing liabilities														
24,616 		
67,092 		
4,131,620		
20,525 		
531,472 		
4,775,325
in Korean won 				
Gap 			 ₩

108,468 ₩

32,996

₩ (3,490,791) ₩

1,085,601 ₩

1,950,972 ₩

Accumulated gap 			

108,468 		

141,464 		

(3,349,327)		

(2,263,726) 		

(312,754)

Percentage (%) 				

2.43 		

3.17		

(75.05)		

(50.73)		

(7.01)

(312,754)
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩
228,597 ₩
137,620 ₩
386,143 ₩
820,641 ₩ 1,917,627 ₩
3,490,628
in Korean won 			
Interest-bearing liabilities														
60,048 		
45,817 		
2,853,620 		
29,087 		
541,782 		
3,530,354
in Korean won 				
Gap 			 ₩

168,549 ₩

91,803

₩ (2,467,477) ₩

791,554

₩ 1,375,845

Accumulated gap 			

168,549		

260,352 		

(2,207,125) 		

(1,415,571)		

(39,726)

Percentage (%) 				

4.83 		

7.46		

(63.23)		

(40.55) 		

(1.14)

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd.

(39,726)

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Up to
3 months

3~6
months

6~12
months

1~3
years

Over
3 years

Total

Interest-bearing assets														
₩
251,570 ₩
81,607 ₩
90,543 ₩
42,725 ₩
180,729 ₩
647,174
in Korean won 			
Interest-bearing liabilities														
90,061 		
96,665 		
280,717 		
26,750		
2,788 		
496,981
in Korean won 				
Gap			 ₩

161,509 ₩

(15,058) ₩

(190,174) ₩

15,975

Accumulated gap 			

161,509 		

146,451		

(43,723) 		

(27,748) 		

150,193

Percentage (%) 				

24.96 		

22.63		

(6.76) 		

(4.29) 		

23.21

₩

177,941

150,193

₩

ii. Interest Rate VaR
Interest rate VaR is the maximum possible loss due to interest rate risk at a 99.94% confidence level. The measurement results of
risk as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Kookmin Bank 			

₩

2011

179,310

₩

847,865

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd. 				

41,867 		

124,681

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd. 				

5,525		

8,213

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 				

156,474 		

127,328

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd.				

2,224 		

-

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group changed its method of calculating the interest rate impact from a simulation
method which applied probable interest rate scenarios to an historical simulation method which uses historical interest rate
data. These changes are for a more sophisticated interest rate risk measurement, considering the practical scenarios, the model
appropriateness, practical application as well as easy comprehension.
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4.4.4 Financial instruments in foreign currencies
Financial instruments in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
USD

JPY

EUR

GBP

CNY

Others

Total

Financial Assets
Cash and due 															
from financial
₩
868,238 ₩
162,793 ₩
89,429 ₩
13,544 ₩
20,625 ₩
82,967 ₩
1,237,596
institutions
Derivatives held 															
106,215 		
150 		
1,267		
- 		
- 		
- 		
107,632
for trading		
Derivatives held 															
21,794		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
21,794
for hedging 		
Loans 		

9,185,177 		

2,185,242 		

528,812 		

139,134 		

883 		

169,483 		

12,208,731

Available-for-sale 														
805,335 		
21,313 		
17,315 		
1,109 		
- 		
1,504 		
846,576
financial assets 		
Held-to-maturity 															
1		
-		
-		
- 		
- 		
- 		
1
financial assets 		
Other financial 															
542,200 		
51,020 		
100,883 		
1,388 		
- 		
109,452 		
804,943
assets 		
₩

11,528,960 ₩ 2,420,518 ₩

737,706

₩

155,175 ₩

21,508 ₩

363,406

₩ 15,227,273

Financial liabilities
Derivatives held															
₩
180,324 ₩
177 ₩
1,753 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
182,254
for trading
Deposits 		

3,767,148 		

611,386 		

210,837 		

17,243 		

2,793 		

290,124 		

4,899,531

Debts		

5,034,710 		

1,765,338 		

513,294 		

32,745 		

48 		

189,897 		

7,536,032

Debentures 		

2,006,660 		

550,037 		

249,668 		

- 		

- 		

355,382 		

3,161,747

Other financial 															
1,195,579 		
59,932 		
26,234		
109,670		
39		
30,135		
1,421,589
liabilities		
₩

12,184,421 ₩ 2,986,870 ₩

1,001,786 ₩

159,658 ₩

2,880 ₩

865,538 ₩ 17,201,153

Off-balance 															
₩ 15,948,842 ₩
4,537 ₩
5,566 ₩
4,760 ₩
- ₩
7,980 ₩ 15,971,685
items
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
USD

JPY

EUR

GBP

CNY

Others

Total

Financial Assets
Cash and due 															
from financial
₩
600,886 ₩
112,395 ₩
73,159 ₩
12,571 ₩
25,088 ₩
72,379 ₩
896,478
institutions
Derivatives held 															
89,851		
- 		
1,027 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
90,878
for trading 		
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
USD

JPY

EUR

GBP

CNY

Others

Total

Derivatives held 															
37,669 		
- 		
-		
-		
- 		
- 		
37,669
for hedging 		
Loans 		

11,129,173 		

2,589,314 		

753,075 		

46,149 		

215		

220,212		

14,738,138

Available-for-sale 														
1,101,434 		
59,900 		
18,546 		
782 		
- 		
1,595 		
1,182,257
financial assets 		
Held-to-maturity 															
158		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
158
financial assets 		
Other financial 															
1,178,711 		
227,508 		
147,019 		
3,732		
- 		
105,358 		
1,662,328
assets 		
₩

14,137,882 ₩ 2,989,117 ₩

992,826 ₩

63,234 ₩

25,303 ₩

399,544 ₩ 18,607,906

Financial liabilities
Derivatives held 															
₩
221,135 ₩
- ₩
1,695 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
222,830
for trading
Derivatives held 															
34 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
34
for hedging 		
Deposits 		

3,318,285 		

598,055 		

164,087 		

11,959 		

231 		

256,987 		

4,349,604

Debts 		

6,554,932 		

1,987,560 		

839,649 		

4,261 		

217 		

236,713 		

9,623,332

Debentures 		

2,728,700 		

816,320 		

335,169 		

- 		

- 		

68,843		

3,949,032

Other financial 															
866,202 		
132,752		
22,765 		
50,604 		
18 		
27,360		
1,099,701
liabilities		
₩

13,689,288 ₩ 3,534,687 ₩

1,363,365 ₩

66,824 ₩

466 ₩

589,903 ₩ 19,244,533

Off-balance 															
₩ 17,462,188 ₩
123,039 ₩
195,591 ₩
5,438 ₩
62 ₩
69,450 ₩ 17,855,768
items

4.5 Operational Risk
4.5.1 Concept
The Group defines operational risk broadly to include all financial and non-financial risks that may arise from operating activities and
could cause a negative effect on capital.

4.5.2 Risk management
The purpose of operational risk management is not only to comply with supervisory and regulatory requirements but also to
promote a risk management culture, strengthen internal controls, innovate processes and provide timely feedback to management
and employees. In addition, Kookmin Bank established Business Continuity Plans (BCP) to ensure critical business functions
can be maintained, or restored, in the event of material disruptions arising from internal or external events. It has constructed
replacement facilities as well as has carried out exercise drills for head office and IT departments to test its BCPs.
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4.6. Capital Adequacy
The Group assesses its adequacy of capital by using the Internal Rating Based Approach (the ‘IRBA’). The assessment is
conducted by comparing available capital (actual amount of available capital) and economic capital (amount of capital enough to
cover all significant risks under the target credit rate set by the Group). The Group monitors the soundness of finance and provides
a risk adjusted basis for performance review.
Economic Capital is the necessary capital to prevent the inability of payment due to unexpected loss in the future. The Group
measures, allocates and monitors economic capital by risk type and subsidiaries.
The Risk Management Council of the Group determines the Group’s risk appetite and allocates economic capital by risk type
and subsidiary. Each subsidiary efficiently operates its capital within a range of allocated economic capital. The Risk Management
Department of the Group monitors the limit on economic capital and reports the results to management and the Risk Management
Council. The Group maintains the adequacy of capital through proactive review and approval of the Risk Management Committee
when the economic capital is expected to exceed the limits due to new business or business expansion.
The Group is a financial holding company under the Financial Holding Companies Act. It must maintain a consolidated BIS ratio
above 8% based on Basel I in accordance with the Supervisory Regulations and Detailed Supervisory Regulations on Financial
Holding Companies.

The details of the Group’s consolidated BIS ratio as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Equity Capital: 			

₩

Tier I Capital 				

2011

26,907,004

₩

20,595,885 		

25,062,681
19,495,671

Tier II Capital 				

6,311,119 		

5,567,010

Risk-weighted assets: 				

193,510,143 		

192,812,547

Credit risk 				

187,465,230 		

187,851,397

Market risk 				

6,044,913 		

4,961,150

Capital adequacy ratio (%): 				

13.90 		

13.00

Tier I Capital (%)				

10.64		

10.11

Tier II Capital (%) 				

3.26 		

2.89

5. Segment Information
5.1 Overall Segment Information and Business Segments
The Group is organized into the following business segments. These business divisions are based on the nature of the products
and services provided, the type or class of customer, and the Group’s management organization.

Annual Report 2012

Banking

155

Corporate Banking

The activities within this segment include providing credit, deposit products and other related
financial services to large, small-and medium-sized enterprises and SOHOs.

Retail Banking

The activities within this segment include providing credit, deposit products and other related
financial services to individuals and households.

Other Banking
services

The activities within this segment include trading activities in securities and derivatives,
funding and other supporting activities.

business

Credit Card business

The activities within this segment include credit sale, cash service, card loan and other
supporting activities.

Investment & Securities business

The activities within this segment include investment banking and brokerage services and
other supporting activities.

Life Insurance business

The activities within this segment include life insurance and other supporting activities.

Financial information by business segment for the year ended December 31, 2012, follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Banking business
Corporate
Banking

Retail
Banking

Other
Banking
Services

Sub-total

Credit
Card

Investment
& Securities

Life
Insurance

Others

Intra-group
Adjustments

Total

Operating 																					
revenues 																					
₩ 1,952,464 ₩ 3,041,135 ₩ 1,315,417 ₩ 6,309,016 ₩ 1,286,719 ₩ 152,461 ₩ 131,299 ₩
24,992 ₩
- ₩
7,904,487
from external
customers
Segment 																					
operating 		
2,289		
(70,422) 		
280,343 		
212,210 		
(238,094) 		
5,968 		
(62,886) 		
163,555 		
(80,753) 		
revenues 																					
(expenses) 		
₩ 1,954,753 ₩

2,970,713 ₩ 1,595,760 ₩

6,521,226 ₩ 1,048,625 ₩

158,429 ₩

68,413 ₩

188,547 ₩

(80,753) ₩

7,904,487

Net interest 																					
2,593,646 		
2,524,163 		
777,589 		
5,895,398 		
974,419 		
18,950 		
192,011 		
38,282		
(3,147) 		
7,115,913
income 		
Interest income

5,190,403 		

5,681,723 		

1,606,306 		

12,478,432 		

1,387,987 		

38,222 		

191,907 		

85,407		

(26,130) 		

14,155,825

Interest expense (2,596,757)		

(3,157,560)		

(828,717) 		

(6,583,034) 		

(413,568)		

(19,272) 		

104		

(47,125) 		

22,983 		

(7,039,912)

Net fee and 																					
commission 		
232,981		
696,311		
344,704		
1,273,996 		
157,788 		
85,454 		
211		
102,407		
(27,215) 		
1,592,641
income 		
Fee and 																					
commission 		
274,794		
760,802		
422,104		
1,457,700 		 1,427,271 		
96,247		
211 		
115,905 		
(318,666)		
2,778,668
income 		
Fee and 																					
commission 		
(41,813) 		
(64,491)		
(77,400)		
(183,704) 		 (1,269,483)		
(10,793) 		
-		
(13,498) 		
291,451		
(1,186,027)
expense 		
Net gains(losses) on 																				
financial assets/																					
liabilities at fair 		
(501)		
(15,102) 		
612,349 		
596,746 		
- 		
39,137		
7,703 		
7,610 		
7 		
651,203
value through 																					
profit or loss		
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(in millions of Korean won)

Banking business
Corporate
Banking

Retail
Banking

Other
Banking
Services

Sub-total

Credit
Card

Investment
& Securities

Life
Insurance

Others

Intra-group
Adjustments

Total

Net other operating																				
(871,373)		
(234,659) 		
(138,882) 		 (1,244,914) 		
(83,582)		
14,888 		 (131,512)		
40,248		
(50,398)		
(1,455,270)
income(loss)		
General and 																					
administrative 		
(792,533) 		 (1,672,741)		
(840,440) 		 (3,305,714)		
(347,119)		 (128,091) 		
(45,214)		 (134,865) 		
75,718 		
(3,885,285)
expenses		
Operating profit 																					
before provision
1,162,220 		
1,297,972 		
755,320		
3,215,512 		
701,506 		
30,338 		
23,199 		
53,682 		
(5,035) 		
4,019,202
for credit losses
Provision(reversal) 																				
(852,964) 		
(392,354) 		
(49,396) 		 (1,294,714) 		
(314,844) 		
(3,624)		
(479)		
5,841		
16		
(1,607,804)
for credit losses
Net operating profit

309,256 		

905,618		

705,924 		

1,920,798 		

386,662 		

26,714 		

22,720 		

59,523 		

(5,019) 		

2,411,398

Share of profit(loss) 																				
- 		
- 		
(5,712)		
(5,712) 		
- 		
176 		
- 		
1,386		
(9,386)		
(13,536)
of associates 		
Net other 																					
non-operating 		
5,522 		
- 		
(69,768)		
(64,246) 		
(4,334) 		
(2,889)		
(856)		
(62,307) 		
(1,902) 		
(136,534)
revenue(expense)
Segment 																					
profits(loss) before
314,778 		
905,618 		
630,444 		
1,850,840 		
382,328 		
24,001		
21,864 		
(1,398) 		
(16,307) 		
2,261,328
income tax 		
Income tax expense

(76,854)		

(219,173)		

(138,671)		

(434,698)		

(90,736)		

(6,349)		

(5,258) 		

(14,384) 		

2,085		

(549,340)

Profit(loss) for 																					
237,924		
686,445		
491,773		
1,416,142		
291,592 		
17,652 		
16,606		
(15,782) 		
(14,222) 		
1,711,988
the year 		
Profit(loss) 																					
attributable to 																					
Shareholders of 		
237,924 		
686,445 		
491,404 		
1,415,773 		
291,592 		
17,652		
16,606		
(15,782) 		
(22,928)		
1,702,913
the parent 																					
company 		
Profit attributable 																			
to Non- controlling
- 		
- 		
369 		
369 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
8,706 		
interests 		

9,075

Total assets1 		 93,143,686 		 100,591,642 		 64,013,369 		 257,748,697 		 14,046,174 		

3,353,745 		

5,987,928 		 19,987,537 		 (19,117,503)		

282,006,578

Total liabilities1 		 84,489,905 		 115,521,270 		 37,779,967 		 237,791,142 		 10,966,541		

2,808,001		

5,594,727 		

257,302,538

1

1,288,348 		

(1,146,221) 		

Amount before intra-group transaction adjustment.

Financial information by business segment for the year ended December 31, 20112, follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Banking business
Corporate
Banking

Retail
Banking

Other
Banking
Services

Sub-total

Credit
Card

Investment
& Securities

Life
Insurance

Others

Intra-group
Adjustments

Total

Operating 																					
revenues 																					
₩ 2,287,249 ₩ 3,266,610 ₩ 1,634,596 ₩ 7,188,455 ₩ 1,401,669 ₩ 162,835 ₩ 114,616 ₩ (24,455) ₩
- ₩
8,843,120
from external
customers
Segment
operating 																						
(42,943) 		
(54,409) 		
219,044		
121,692		
(276,340)		
(2,323)		
(47,350)		
187,416 		
16,905		
revenues 			
(expenses) 		
₩ 2,244,306

₩ 3,212,201

₩ 1,853,640

₩ 7,310,147

₩ 1,125,329

₩ 160,512 ₩

67,266 ₩

162,961 ₩

16,905

₩

8,843,120
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(in millions of Korean won)

Banking business
Corporate
Banking

Retail
Banking

Other
Banking
Services

Sub-total

Credit
Card

Investment
& Securities

Life
Insurance

Others

Intra-group
Adjustments

Total

Net interest 																						
2,559,260 		 2,779,467 		
674,268 		
6,012,995		
901,487 		
13,256 		
161,717 		
17,220 		
(2,163) 		
7,104,512
income			
Interest income 		 5,107,821 		

5,723,486 		

1,528,099 		

12,359,406 		

1,381,384		

42,221		

161,793		

65,679		

(54,226) 		

13,956,257

Interest expense		 (2,548,561)		

(2,944,019)		

(853,831) 		

(6,346,411)		

(479,897)		

(28,965)		

(76)		

(48,459)		

52,063 		

(6,851,745)

Net fee and 																						
commission 			 242,581		
634,916 		
503,186 		
1,380,683		
241,571		
83,130 		
45 		
96,071 		
(6,750) 		
1,794,750
income 		
Fee and 																						
commission 			 277,579 		
736,098		
545,509 		
1,559,186 		 1,351,103 		
99,803 		
45		
109,296		
(289,679) 		
2,829,754
income 		
Fee and 																						
commission 			
(34,998)		
(101,182) 		
(42,323)		
(178,503)		 (1,109,532) 		
(16,673) 		
-		
(13,225)		
282,929		 (1,035,004)
expense		
Net gains(losses) on 																				
financial assets/ 																					
liabilities at fair 		
(2,205) 		
(1,832) 		
993,680 		
989,643		
- 		
50,209 		
68		
(4,050) 		
(3) 		
1,035,867
value through 																						
profit or loss 		
Net other operating
income(loss) 			

																			
(555,330) 		
(200,350)		
(317,494)		 (1,073,174) 		
(17,729) 		
13,917 		
(94,564) 		
53,720 		
25,821		 (1,092,009)

General and 																						
administrative 		
(728,735)		 (1,757,907)		
(886,055)		 (3,372,697)		
(345,765)		 (117,925)		
(41,556) 		 (114,568) 		
60,703		 (3,931,808)
expenses		
Operating profit 																					
before provision
1,515,571 		 1,454,294 		
967,585 		
3,937,450 		
779,564		
42,587		
25,710 		
48,393		
77,608		
4,911,312
for credit losses
Provision(reversal) 																				
(1,006,656) 		
(302,261) 		
17,384 		 (1,291,533)		
(206,566)		
(5,919)		
(1,241)		
(7,765) 		
46 		 (1,512,978)
for credit losses		
Net operating profit

508,915 		

1,152,033		

984,969 		

2,645,917		

572,998		

36,668 		

24,469 		

40,628		

77,654		

3,398,334

Share of profit 																						
- 		
- 		
1,352		
1,352		
- 		
242 		
-		
2,436		
933 		
4,963
of associates			
Net other 																						
non-operating 			 114,011 		
32,782 		
(192,701) 		
(45,908)		
(1,748)		
(2,579)		
(614)		
(85,139)		
(6,503)		
(142,491)
revenue(expense)
Segment 																						
profits(loss) before
622,926 		 1,184,815		
793,620 		
2,601,361 		
571,250 		
34,331 		
23,855 		
(42,075) 		
72,084		
3,260,806
income tax 		
Income tax expense (158,322)		

(275,747)		

(240,690)		

(674,759)		

(130,177) 		

(8,367)		

(5,283)		

(2,248) 		

(11,400)		

(832,234)

Profit(loss) for 																						
464,604		
909,068 		
552,930		
1,926,602 		
441,073		
25,964 		
18,572		
(44,323) 		
60,684 		
2,428,572
the year 			
Profit(loss) 																						
attributable to 																						
Shareholders of 		 464,604 		
909,068 		
551,588 		
1,925,260 		
441,073 		
25,964		
18,572		
(44,323) 		
6,480 		
2,373,026
the parent 																						
company 		
Profit attributable to 																				
Non-controlling 		
-		
- 		
1,342 		
1,342		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
54,204 		
55,546
interests
Total assets1		 92,399,053 		 102,545,488 		 61,567,719		 256,512,260 		 13,349,351 		

3,336,353 		

4,515,809		 19,499,234		 (19,612,190)		

277,600,817

Total liabilities 		 87,160,301 		 112,167,430 		 38,116,124 		 237,443,855 		 10,567,141		

2,812,128 		

4,161,121		

254,501,022

1

1,363,489		

(1,846,712) 		

1

Amount before intra-group transaction adjustment.

2

Operating revenues by business segment for the year ended December 31, 2011, have been restated due to a change of reportable segments.
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5.2 Services and Geographical Segments
5.2.1 Services information
Operating revenues from external customers by services for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Banking service 			

₩

2011

6,309,016

₩

7,188,455

Credit card service 				

1,286,719 		

1,401,669

Investment & securities service 				

152,461 		

162,835

Life insurance service 				

131,299 		

114,616

Other service 				
					

24,992 		

₩

7,904,487

(24,455)

₩

8,843,120

5.2.2 Geographical information
Geographical operating revenues from external customers for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, and major noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Revenues from
external
customers

Domestic

₩

Major
non-current
assets

7,805,562

₩

Revenues from
external
customers

3,640,701

₩

Major
non-current
assets

8,751,005

₩

3,643,750

United States 		

11,438 		

35 		

12,849		

145

New Zealand 		

8,268 		

35		

7,591 		

60

China		

30,800 		

11,349 		

25,528		

861

Japan 		

30,810 		

2,653		

31,499 		

2,103

Argentina 		

10		

-		

7		

-

Vietnam 		

1,172		

429 		

65		

481

Cambodia 		

4,151		

546		

2,929 		

557

England 		

12,276 		

16 		

11,647		

42

Intra-group adjustment		

- 		

57,230		

- 		

58,014

			

₩

7,904,487

₩

3,712,994

₩

8,843,120

₩

3,706,013
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6. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
6.1 Carrying amounts of financial instruments by category
Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value or amortized cost. Measurement policies for each class of financial assets
and liabilities are disclosed in Note 3, ‘Significant accounting policies’.
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Held for
trading

Availablefor-sale
financial
assets

Loans and
receivables

Held-toMaturity
financial
assets

Derivatives
held for
hedging

Total

Financial assets
Cash and due															
from financial
₩
- ₩
- ₩
10,568,350 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩ 10,568,350
institutions
Financia assets															
at fair value															
5,947,104		
352,090		
-		
- 		
- 		
- 		
6,299,194
through profit		
or loss 		
Derivatives 		

1,841,273		

-		

- 		

- 		

- 		

183,511 		

2,024,784

Loans 		

-		

- 		

212,716,251		

- 		

- 		

- 		

212,716,251

Financial 															
- 		
- 		
- 		
24,641,333 		 12,255,806 		
- 		
36,897,139
investments		
Other financial															
- 		
- 		
7,554,156 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
7,554,156
assets 		
₩

7,788,377

₩ 352,090 ₩

230,838,757

₩ 24,641,333

₩ 12,255,806

₩

183,511 ₩ 276,059,874
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Held for
trading

Financial
liabilities at
amortized
cost

Derivatives
held for
hedging

Total

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair											
₩ 1,381,997 ₩
469,138 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
1,851,135
value through profit or loss
Derivatives 		

1,868,287 		

- 		

- 		

200,526 		

2,068,813

Deposits 		

-		

- 		

194,403,279 		

- 		

194,403,279

Debts 		

- 		

- 		

15,969,522		

- 		

15,969,522

Debentures 		

- 		

- 		

24,131,770 		

- 		

24,131,770

- 		

11,591,868 		

Other financial liabilities		
₩

- 		
3,250,284 ₩

469,138

₩ 246,096,439 ₩

- 		
200,526 ₩

11,591,868
250,016,387
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The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Held for
trading

Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Availablefor-sale
financial
assets

Loans and
receivables

Held-toMaturity
financial
assets

Derivatives
held for
hedging

Total

Financial assets
Cash and due 															
from financial
₩
- ₩
- ₩
9,178,125 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
- ₩
9,178,125
institutions
Financial assets 															
at fair value 															
5,617,257 		
708,847 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
6,326,104
through profit 		
or loss 		
Derivatives		

2,220,314 		

- 		

-		

- 		

- 		

228,141 		

2,448,455

Loans 		

- 		

- 		

212,107,027 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

212,107,027

Financial 															
- 		
- 		
- 		 22,377,024 		 13,055,158 		
- 		
35,432,182
investments 		
Other financial															
- 		
- 		
6,409,905 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
6,409,905
assets 		
₩

7,837,571 ₩

708,847 ₩

227,695,057 ₩ 22,377,024 ₩ 13,055,158 ₩

228,141 ₩ 271,901,798
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Held for
trading

Financial
liabilities at
amortized
cost

Derivatives
held for
hedging

Total

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair											
₩
550,873 ₩
837,206 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
1,388,079
value through profit or loss
Derivatives 		

1,905,343 		

- 		

- 		

154,230 		

2,059,573

Deposits 		

- 		

- 		

190,337,590 		

- 		

190,337,590

Debts 		

- 		

- 		

16,823,838 		

- 		

16,823,838

Debentures		

- 		

- 		

27,069,879 		

- 		

27,069,879

- 		

9,962,105 		

Other financial liabilities		
₩

- 		
2,456,216 ₩

837,206

₩ 244,193,412 ₩

- 		
154,230 ₩

9,962,105
247,641,064
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6.2 Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability could be settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. For each class of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Group discloses the fair value
of that class of assets and liabilities in a way that permits it to be compared with its carrying amount at the end of each reporting
period. The best evidence of fair value of financial instruments is a quoted price in an active market.
Methods of determining fair value for financial instruments are as follows:
Investment securities

The fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets is determined using the quoted
prices. Fair value is determined through the use of independent third-party pricing services where quoted
prices are not available. Pricing services use one or more of the following valuation techniques including
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Model, Imputed Market Value Model, Free Cash Flow to Equity Model,
Dividend Discount Model, Risk Adjusted Discount Rate Method, and Net Asset Value Method.

Loans

Discounted Cash Flow Model is used to determine the fair value of loans. Fair value is determined
by discounting the expected cash flows, which are contractual cash flows adjusted by the expected
prepayment rate, at an appropriate discount rate. For those loans with residual maturities of less than three
months as of the reporting date and the ones with an interest rate reset period of less than three months,
the carrying amount is regarded as representative of fair value.

Derivatives

For exchange traded derivatives, quoted price in an active market is used to determine fair value and for
OTC derivatives, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses internally developed
valuation models that are widely used by market participants to determine fair values of plain vanilla OTC
derivatives including options, interest rate swaps, and currency swaps, based on observable market
parameters. However, some complex financial instruments are valued using appropriate models developed
from generally accepted market valuation models including the Finite Difference Method and the Monte
Carlo Simulation or independent third-party valuation service.

Deposits

Carrying amount of demand deposits is regarded as representative of fair value because they do not
have a fixed maturity and are payable on demand. Fair value of time deposits is determined using a DCF
model. Fair value is determined by discounting the expected cash flows, which are contractual cash
flows adjusted by the expected prepayment rate, at an appropriate discount rate. For those deposits with
residual maturities of less than three months as of the reporting date and ones with interest rate reset
period of less than three months, carrying amount is regarded as representative of fair value.

Debts

Fair value is determined using a DCF model discounting contractual future cash flows at an appropriate
discount rate. However, for those debts with residual maturities of less than three months as of the
reporting date and ones with an interest rate reset period of less than three months, the carrying amount
is regarded as representative of fair value.

Debentures

Fair value is determined by using the valuations of independent third-party pricing services, which are
calculated using market inputs.

KB Financial Group

162

The Group believes that valuation methods used for measuring the fair values of financial instruments are reasonable and that the
fair values recognized in the statements of financial position are appropriate. However, the fair values of the financial instruments
recognized in the statements of financial position may be different if other valuation methods or assumptions are used. Additionally,
as there is a variety of valuation techniques and assumptions used in measuring fair value, it may be difficult to reasonably compare
the fair value with that of other financial institutions.
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Carrying
amount

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Fair value

Financial assets
Cash and due from financial institutions

₩

10,568,350

₩

10,521,612

₩

9,178,125

₩

9,185,763

Loans 		

212,716,251 		

213,730,235 		

212,107,027 		

212,858,247

Held-to-maturity financial assets 		

12,255,806 		

12,837,009 		

13,055,158 		

13,562,430

Other financial assets 		

7,554,156 		

7,554,157		

6,409,905 		

6,409,905

			

₩

243,094,563

₩

244,643,013

₩

240,750,215

₩

242,016,345

₩

194,403,279

₩

194,850,278

₩

190,337,590

₩

190,560,759

Financial liabilities
Deposits

Debts		

15,969,522 		

15,988,246 		

16,823,838 		

16,826,152

Debentures 		

24,131,770 		

25,623,606 		

27,069,879 		

28,636,722

Other financial liabilities 		

11,591,868 		

11,591,962 		

9,962,105 		

9,983,449

			

₩

246,096,439

₩

248,054,092

₩

244,193,412

₩

246,007,082

Fair value hierarchy
The Group classifies and discloses fair value of the financial instruments into the following three-level hierarchy:

Level 1: Financial instruments measured at quoted prices from active markets are classified as level 1. This level includes debt
securities, equity instruments and derivatives that have a quoted market price in an active market.

Level 2: Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques where all significant inputs are observable market data are
classified as level 2. This level includes debt securities, certain private equity funds and general over-the-counter derivatives such
as swaps, futures and options.

Level 3: Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are not based on
observable market data are classified as level 3. This level includes unlisted equity securities and unlisted private equity funds,
complex structured bonds and complex over-the-counter derivatives.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety shall be determined on the
basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an
input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement.
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The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Fair value hierarchy
Level 1

Level 2

Total

Level 3

Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading
		 Debt securities

₩

2,621,732

₩

2,430,126

₩

-

₩

5,051,858

		 Equity securities 		

428,500 		

426,907 		

- 		

855,407

		 Others 		

39,839 		

- 		

- 		

39,839

Financial assets designated at 									
fair value through profit or loss
		 Equity securities 		

- 		

159,483 		

- 		

159,483

		 Derivative linked securities 		

- 		

14,983 		

177,624 		

192,607

Derivatives held for trading 		

2,839 		

1,791,649 		

46,785		

1,841,273

Derivatives held for hedging 		

- 		

180,746 		

2,765 		

183,511

		 Debt securities 		

10,351,980 		

11,300,578 		

181,984 		

21,834,542

		 Equity securities 		

922,206 		

78,432 		

1,806,153 		

2,806,791

Available-for-sale financial assets

1

			

₩

14,367,096

₩

16,382,904

₩

2,215,311

₩

32,965,311

₩

1,381,997

₩

-

₩

-

₩

1,381,997

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities designated at									
- 		
- 		
469,138 		
469,138
fair value through profit or loss 		
Derivatives held for trading 		

2,560 		

1,817,784 		

47,943 		

1,868,287

Derivatives held for hedging 		

- 		

191,226 		

9,300 		

200,526

			

₩

1,384,557

₩

2,009,010

₩

526,381

₩

3,919,948

KB Financial Group

164

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Fair value hierarchy
Level 1

Level 2

Total

Level 3

Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading
		 Debt securities

₩

2,829,456

₩

2,347,068

₩

-

₩

5,176,524

		 Equity securities 		

265,706 		

135,576 		

10,826 		

412,108

		 Others 		

28,625 		

- 		

- 		

28,625

Financial assets designated at									
fair value through profit or loss
		 Equity securities 		

- 		

134,160 		

-		

134,160

		 Derivative linked securities 		

- 		

- 		

574,687 		

574,687

Derivatives held for trading 		

158,649		

2,020,623 		

41,042 		

2,220,314

Derivatives held for hedging 		

- 		

215,656 		

12,485 		

228,141

9,209,662 		

10,344,037 		

180,832 		

19,734,531

Available-for-sale financial assets

1

		 Debt securities 		
		 Equity securities 		
			

1,045,235 		

446,624 		

1,150,634 		

2,642,493

₩

13,537,333

₩

15,643,744

₩

1,970,506

₩

31,151,583

₩

550,873

₩

-

₩

-

₩

550,873

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities designated at									
- 		
- 		
837,206 		
837,206
fair value through profit or loss		
Derivatives held for trading 		

158,261 		

1,695,235 		

51,847 		

1,905,343

Derivatives held for hedging 		

- 		

132,135 		

22,095 		

154,230

			

₩

709,134

₩

1,827,370

₩

911,148

₩

3,447,652

1 The amounts of equity securities carried at cost in “level 3” which do not have a quoted market price in an active market and cannot be measured reliably at fair value are
₩ 150,637 million and ₩ 186,564 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These equity securities are carried at cost because it is practically difficult to
quantify the intrinsic values of the equity securities issued by unlisted public and non-profit entities. In addition, probabilities and range of estimated cash flows of the
unlisted equity securities which are issued by project financing companies cannot be reasonably assessed. Therefore, these equity securities are carried at cost. The
Group has no plan to sell these instruments in the near future.
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6.3 Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy disclosure
6.3.1 Changes in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
Changes in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the year ended December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss

Available
-for-sale
financial
assets

Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Financial
assets held
for trading

Beginning balance 		 ₩

Financial
investments

10,826 ₩

574,687 ₩

1,331,466 ₩

Net derivatives

Derivatives
held for
trading

(837,206)

₩

Derivatives
held for
hedging

(10,805) ₩

(9,610)

(8,246) 		

15,935

Total gains or losses
- Profit or loss 				

- 		

120,779		

(96,637)		

(159,685)		

- Other comprehensive income 			
Purchases				

- 		

- 		

152,877		

-		

-		

-

- 		

129,612 		

120,547		

- 		

28,163		

-

Sales 				

(10,826) 		

(647,454)		

(70,370) 		

-		

(10,211) 		

-

Issues				

-		

- 		

-		

(673,006) 		

(6,903) 		

-

Settlements 				

- 		

- 		

- 		

1,200,759 		

6,844 		

(12,860)

Transfers into level 3 			

- 		

- 		

551,755 		

- 		

- 		

-

Transfers out of level 3			

-		

-		

(1,501) 		

- 		

- 		

-

Ending balance 			 ₩

- ₩

177,624 ₩

1,988,137 ₩

(469,138) ₩

(1,158) ₩

(6,535)

Changes in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the year ended December 31, 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss

Available
-for-sale
financial
assets

Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Financial
assets held
for trading

Beginning balance 		 ₩

Financial
investments

9,807 ₩

139 ₩

1,523,742 ₩

Net derivatives

Derivatives
held for
trading

- ₩

Derivatives
held for
hedging

(71,453) ₩

(29,410)

Total gains or losses
- Profit or loss 				

1,019		

(51,229) 		

373,980 		

57,963 		

52,463 		

32,420

- Other comprehensive income		

- 		

- 		

(140,112) 		

- 		

5,749 		

-

Purchases 				

- 		

636,126 		

136,582 		

- 		

14,733		

-

Sales 				

- 		

(10,349)		

(554,022) 		

-		

(46) 		

-

Issues				

-		

- 		

-		

(919,411) 		

(36,214) 		

-
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(in millions of Korean won)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial
investments

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss

Available
-for-sale
financial
assets

Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

Financial
assets held
for trading

Net derivatives

Derivatives
held for
trading

Derivatives
held for
hedging

Settlements 				

- 		

- 		

- 		

24,242 		

23,963 		

(12,620)

Transfers into level 3 			

- 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

-

Transfers out of level 3 			
Ending balance 			 ₩

- 		
10,826

-		
₩

574,687 ₩

(8,704) 		
1,331,466 ₩

- 		

- 		

(837,206) ₩

(10,805) ₩

(9,610)

In relation to changes in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, total gains or losses recognized in profit or loss for the year, and
total gains or losses for the year included in profit or loss for financial instruments held at the end of the reporting period in the
statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Net income from financial
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Total gains or losses included in profit or loss for the year

₩

(47,152)

Other operating
income

₩

(80,702)

Total gains or losses for the year included in profit or					
(18,063)		
(83,976)
loss for financial instruments held at the end of the reporting period		
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Net income from financial
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Total gains or losses included in profit or loss for the year

₩

60,227

Other operating
income

₩

406,389

Total gains or losses for the year included in profit or					
18,295 		
(30,100)
loss for financial instruments held at the end of the reporting period		

Sensitivity analysis of fair value of financial instruments classified as level 3
Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments is performed, to measure favorable and unfavorable changes in the fair value of financial
instruments which are affected by the unobservable parameters, using a statistical technique. When the fair value is affected
by more than two input parameters, the amounts represent the most favorable or most unfavorable. Amongst level 3 financial
instruments subject to sensitivity analysis are interest rate-related derivatives and equity-related derivatives whose fair value
changes are recognized in profit and loss as well as unlisted equity securities and private equity funds whose fair value changes are
recognized in profit and loss or other comprehensive income and loss.
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Sensitivity analyses by type of instrument as a result of varying input parameters are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Recognition in profit and loss
Favorable changes

Unfavorable changes

Financial liabilities
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

₩

953

₩

(1,888)

		 Derivative linked securities1 		

953		

(1,888)

Derivatives held for trading 		

8,047		

(9,451)

Derivatives held for hedging 		

197		

(202)

2

2

Available-for-sale financial assets 		

405,057 		

(175,785)

		 Debt securities3 		

2,773 		

(2,731)

		 Equity securities 		

402,284		

(173,054)

			

414,254

(187,326)

4

₩

₩

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities designated at 					
₩
13,843 ₩
(7,752)
fair value through profit or loss1
Derivatives held for trading2		

3,934		

(4,321)

Derivatives held for hedging 		

176		

(169)

2

			

₩

17,953

₩

(12,242)

1

For financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, the changes in fair-value are calculated by shifting principal unobservable input parameters such as stock
price fluctuation range of underlying assets by +/- 10%.

2

For equity-related derivatives, the changes in fair-value are calculated by shifting principal unobservable input parameters such as correlation between the stock price and
volatility by +/- 10%. For interest rate-related derivatives, coefficient of correlation between long-term and shortterm interest rates or the volatilities of the underlying
assets are shifted by +/- 10% to calculate the fair value changes.

3

For debt securities, the changes in fair-value are calculated by shifting principal unobservable input parameters such as discount rate by +/- 1%.

4

For equity securities, the changes in fair-value are calculated by shifting principal unobservable input parameters such as correlation between growth rate (0~0.5%) and
discount rate, or liquidation value (-1~1%) and discount rate. Sensitivity of fair values to unobservable parameters of private equity fund is practically impossible, but in the
case of equity fund composed of real-estates, the changes in fair-value are calculated by shifting correlation between discount rate of cash flows from rent(-1%~1%) and
volatilities of real estate selling price(-10%~+10%).
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6.3.2 Day one gain or loss
If the Group uses a valuation technique that incorporates data not obtained from observable markets for the fair value at initial
recognition of financial instruments, there could be a difference between the transaction price and the amount determined using
that valuation technique. In these circumstances, the fair value of financial instruments is recognized as the transaction price and
the difference is amortized by using the straight-line method over the life of the financial instruments. If the fair value of the financial
instruments is subsequently determined using observable market inputs, the remaining deferred amount is recognized in profit or
loss.
The aggregate difference yet to be recognized in profit or loss at the beginning and end of the period and a reconciliation of
changes in the balance of this difference, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Balance at the beginning of the year (A)			

₩

2011

4,082

₩

2,168

New transactions (B) 				

23,677 		

5,878

Amounts recognized in profit or loss during the year (C= a+b) 				

(19,107) 		

(3,964)

a. Amortization				

(7,091)		

(1,314)

b. Settlement				

(12,016)		

(2,650)

Balance at the end of the year (A+B+C)			

₩

8,652

₩

4,082

6.4 Transfer of financial assets
The Group transferred loans and other financial assets to SPEs which were derecognized in their entirety. The maximum exposure
to loss (carrying amount) from its continuing involvement in the derecognized financial assets is as follows :
(in millions of Korean won)

Carrying amount of
continuing involvement
in statement of
financial position

Type of continuing
involvement

KR ABS Ltd. 1
			
			
1

Recognized net loss from transferring loans to the SPEs amounts to ₩ 22,734 million.

Senior debt

₩

Mezzanine/subordinate debt 		
₩

21,288
43,143
64,431
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7. Due from financial institutions
The details of due from financial institutions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial
Institutions

Interest
rate(%)

2012

2011

Due from Bank of Korea
Bank of Korea
0.00~2.77
₩
3,095,038 ₩
3,757,108
										
Due from financial
Due from banking
						
Busan Bank and others
0.00~7.15		
552,672		
371,225
institutions
institutions			
in Korean won										
			
Samsung Securities Co., Ltd. 						
Due from others
0.00~3.62 		
3,177,053 		
1,888,260
					
and others
		

6,824,763 		

6,016,593

		
Due from banks
Bank of Korea and others
0.00~0.15 		
385,798 		
321,689
			
in foreign currencies							
									
Due from financial
						
institutions
Time deposits
China Guangfa Bank
0.15~5.69 		
448,349 		
187,294
in foreign										
Panjiayuan Branch and others
in foreign currencies
currencies										
					
Sumitomo Mitsui						
			
Due from others
Banking Corporation
- 		
59,330 		
30,451
					
and others
									
₩

893,477 		
7,718,240

539,434

₩

6,556,027

Due from financial institutions, classified by type of financial institution as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
In foreign
currencies

In Korean won

Bank of Korea 			

₩

3,095,038

₩

120,143

Total

₩

3,215,181

Other banking institutions 				

552,672		

739,100 		

1,291,772

Other financial institutions 				

3,177,053 		

34,234		

3,211,287

					

6,824,763

₩

₩

893,477

₩

7,718,240
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
In foreign
currencies

In Korean won

Bank of Korea 			

3,757,108

₩

Total

185,050

₩

₩

3,942,158

Other banking institutions 				

371,225 		

337,784 		

709,009

Other financial institutions 				

1,888,260 		

16,600		

1,904,860

					

6,016,593

₩

539,434

₩

₩

6,556,027

Restricted due from financial institutions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Financial
Institutions

2012

2011

Reason for restriction

		
			

Due from Bank
Bank of Korea
₩
3,095,038 ₩
3,757,108 Bank of Korea Act
of Korea											

Due from financial
institutions
in Korean won

Due from Banking
institution

			
Due from others
					

Hana Bank 		
248,603 		
88,827
and others					

Agreement for		
allocation of deposit

The Korea Exchange					
152,235 		
69,437
and others 		

Market entry deposit
and others

₩

3,495,876 ₩

3,915,372

Due from banks in
Bank of Korea					 Bank of Korea Act
₩
128,812 ₩
189,859
foreign currencies
and others
and others		
Due from financial													
Sumitomo Mitsui									
institutions
Time deposit in
Bank Act of the
BKG
CO New York		
6,962 		
48,810
		
in foreign
foreign currencies
State of New York
			
and
others
					
currencies
		

			
Due from others
					

Ong First Tradition					
11,063 		
17,172
PTE and others 		
₩

146,837 ₩

255,841

₩

3,642,713 ₩

4,171,213

Derivatives margin
account and others
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8. Assets pledged as collaterals
The details of assets pledged as collaterals as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Assets pledged

Carrying
amount

Pledgee

Collateralized
amount

Reason of
pledge

Due from financial
Woori Bank and others
₩
89,000 ₩
89,000
institutions							

Borrowings from Bank		
and others

		

Korea Securities 					
321,454 		
306,194
Depository and others 		

Bonds sold under		
repurchase agreements

			
Financial assets
held for trading

Korea Securities 					
1,440,316 		
1,338,186
Depository and others		

Securities lending		
transactions

			

Samsung Futures Inc. 								
80,583 		
72,801
Derivatives transactions
and others 		

			

Others 		

18,917 		

17,945

						

1,861,270 		

1,735,126

Available-for-sale
financial assets
			

Samsung Futures Inc. 								
3,447 		
3,213
Derivatives transactions
and others 		
Others 		

400 		

400

						

3,847 		

3,613

			
			

Others

Others

Korea Securities 					
3,602,681 		
3,602,000
Depository and others 		

Bonds sold under		
repurchase agreements

			
Bank of Korea 		
965,072 		
960,000
									

Borrowings from		
Bank of Korea

Held-to-maturity
Bank of Korea 		
781,389 		
776,800
financial assets		 					

Settlement risk of		
Bank of Korea

			
			

Samsung Futures Inc.								
266,113 		
266,000
Derivatives transactions
and others 		

			

Others 		

1,249,441 		

1,220,500

						

6,864,696 		

6,825,300

Mortgage loans

1,058,470 		

1,054,834

9,877,283

9,707,873

Others 		
₩

₩

Others

Covered Bond
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Assets pledged

Carrying
amount

Pledgee

Collateralized
amount

Reason of
pledge

Due from financial
Woori Bank and others
₩
57,500 ₩
57,500
institutions							

Borrowings from Bank		
and others

		

Korea Securities 					
183,280 		
178,171
Depository and others 		

Bonds sold under		
repurchase agreements

			
Financial assets
held for trading

Korea Securities 					
647,363 		
602,299
Depository and others		

Securities lending		
transactions

			

Samsung Futures Inc. 								
105,457 		
95,956
Derivatives transactions
and others 		

			

Others 		

8,803 		

8,395

						

944,903 		

884,821

			
Available-for-sale
financial assets
			

Korea Securities 					
29,393 		
29,986
Depository and others 		

Bonds sold under		
repurchase agreements

Samsung Futures Inc. 								
5,976 		
5,766
Derivatives transactions
and others 		

						
			
			

Others

35,369 		

35,752

Korea Securities 					
1,678,218 		
1,678,000
Depository and others 		

Bonds sold under		
repurchase agreements

			
Bank of Korea 		
1,063,228 		
1,070,000
									
Held-to-maturity
financial assets
Bank of Korea 		
938,200 		
934,800
		 					

Borrowings from		
Bank of Korea
Settlement risk of		
Bank of Korea

			
			

Samsung Futures Inc.								
661,666 		
666,807
Derivatives transactions
and others 		

			

Others 		

1,224,998 		

1,200,300

						

5,566,310 		

5,549,907

Mortgage loans

1,287,527 		

1,282,791

7,891,609

7,810,771

Others 		
₩

₩

Others

Covered Bond

The fair value of collateral available to sell or repledge, and collateral sold or repledged, regardless of debtor's default, as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Fair value of
collateral held

Fair value of
collateral
sold or repledged

Total

Securities 			

₩

3,609,354

₩

-

₩

3,609,354

					

₩

3,609,354

₩

-

₩

3,609,354
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Fair value of
collateral held

Fair value of
collateral
sold or repledged

Total

Securities 			

₩

1,881,523

₩

-

₩

1,881,523

					

₩

1,881,523

₩

-

₩

1,881,523

Loaned securities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Borrower

Korea Securities Finance Corp., Korea
Government and public bonds
₩
228,912
₩
170,279
								 Securities Depository and others
Stocks 		
			

₩

43,543 		
272,455

26,766

Korea Securities Depository and others

197,045

₩

Securities borrowed as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Borrower

Korea Securities Finance Corp., Korea
Government and public bonds
₩
31,088
₩
18,422
								 Securities Depository and others
Korea Securities Finance Corp., Korea
Stocks 		
47,996 		
52,075
								 Securities Depository and others
			

₩

79,084

₩

70,497

9. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group’s derivative operations focus on addressing the needs of the Group’s corporate clients to hedge their risk exposure and
to hedge the Group’s risk exposure that results from such client contracts. The Group also engages in derivative trading activities
to hedge the interest rate and foreign currency risk exposures that arise from the Group’s own assets and liabilities. In addition, the
Group engages in proprietary trading of derivatives within the Group’s regulated open position limits.
The Group provides and trades a range of derivatives products, including:
-	Interest rate swaps, relating to interest rate risks in Korean won;
-	Cross-currency swaps, forwards and options relating to foreign exchange rate risks,
-	Stock price index options linked with the KOSPI index.
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In particular, the Group uses cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps and others to hedge the risk of changes in fair values and
in cash flows due to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates of subordinated debts in Korean won, structured debts
and financial debentures in foreign currencies.
The details of derivative financial instruments for trading as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Notional amount

Assets

Liabilities

Interest rate
Futures1 			

₩

1,593,818

-

₩

-

₩

Swaps 				

145,046,846 		

839,948 		

948,697

Options 				

10,715,347		

79,942 		

78,149

						

157,356,011 		

919,890 		

1,026,846

Forwards 				

17,280,288 		

264,579 		

342,576

Futures 				

602,051 		

974 		

7

Swaps 				

13,487,378 		

576,857 		

427,227

Options 				

334,912 		

3,215 		

2,638

						

31,704,629 		

845,625 		

772,448

Currency
1

Stock and index
Futures1 				

174,997		

-		

-

Swaps 				

355,995 		

18,056 		

6,879

Options 				

1,938,069 		

56,376 		

60,952

						

2,469,061 		

74,432 		

67,831

Futures1 				

3,856 		

88		

2

						

3,856 		

88 		

2

Other 				

60,000 		

1,238 		

1,160

Commodity

₩

191,593,557

1,841,273

₩

₩

1,868,287

The details of derivative financial instruments for trading as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Notional amount

Assets

Liabilities

Interest rate
Futures1 			

₩

1,924,542

₩

-

₩

-

Swaps 				

110,920,785 		

519,217		

653,983

Options 				

11,997,483		

69,952		

69,979

						

124,842,810		

589,169 		

723,962
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(in millions of Korean won)

Notional amount

Assets

Liabilities

Currency
Forwards 				

31,316,223 		

916,479		

405,570

Futures 				

212,052 		

- 		

125

Swaps 				

16,341,586 		

509,085		

551,918

Options 				

348,643		

3,151		

1,401

						

48,218,504		

1,428,715		

959,014

1

Stock and index
Futures1 				

85,419 		

- 		

-

Swaps 				

97,942 		

1,416		

6,385

Options 				

1,049,752 		

198,295		

213,668

						

1,233,113		

199,711 		

220,053

Futures1 				

3,351 		

279		

-

						

3,351 		

279 		

-

Commodity

Other 				
₩
1

60,000 		
174,357,778

₩

2,440 		
2,220,314

2,314
₩

1,905,343

A gain or loss from daily marking to market futures is reflected in the margin accounts.

Fair value hedge
The details of derivatives designated as fair value hedging instruments as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Notional amount

Assets

Liabilities

Interest rate
Swaps 			

₩

1,921,251

₩

180,719

₩

6,642

Currency
Swaps 				

1,071,100 		

- 		

183,929

Other 				

140,000 		

2,348 		

2,658

₩

3,132,351

₩

183,067

₩

193,229

KB Financial Group

176

The details of derivatives designated as fair value hedging instruments as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Notional amount

Assets

Liabilities

Interest rate
Swaps 			

₩

4,343,294

206,560

₩

12,564

₩

Currency
Swaps 				

1,153,300 		

- 		

127,780

Other 				

190,000 		

- 		

12,800

₩

5,686,594

206,560

₩

₩

153,144

Gains and losses from fair value hedging instruments and hedged items attributable to the hedged risk for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Gains(losses) on hedging instruments 			

₩

2011

(14,654)

₩

Gains(losses) on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk 				

37,641		

					

22,987

₩

₩

108,507
(84,914)
23,593

Cash flow hedge
The details of derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Notional amount

Assets

Liabilities

Interest rate
Swaps 			

₩

1,065,000

444

₩

₩

7,013

Currency
Swaps 				
₩

321,330 		
1,386,330

- 		
444

₩

₩

284
7,297

The details of derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Notional amount

Assets

Liabilities

Interest rate
Swaps 			

₩

350,000

₩

-

₩

1,086

Currency
Swaps 				
₩

345,990 		

21,581		

695,990

21,581

₩

₩

1,086
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Gains and losses from cash flow hedging instruments and hedged items attributable to the hedged risk for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Gains(losses) on hedging instruments			

(27,006)

₩

Gains(losses) on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk 				
Ineffectiveness recognized in profit or loss 			

2011

21,631

₩

(26,838) 		
(168)

₩

21,631
-

₩

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income			

2011

(26,838)

₩

21,631

₩

Amount reclassified from equity to profit or loss 				

25,000 		

(23,193)

Tax effect 				

1,025 		

241

		

			

(813)

₩

(1,321)

₩

10. Loans
Loans as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Loans 			

₩

215,558,351

Deferred loan origination fees and costs 				
Less: Allowances for loan losses 				
Carrying amount 			

₩

2011

₩

215,155,061

426,336 		

399,871

(3,268,436)		
212,716,251

₩

(3,447,905)
212,107,027

Loans to banks as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Loans 			

₩

Less: Allowances for loan losses				
Carrying amount 			

₩

2011

4,397,742

₩

(9) 		
4,397,733

₩

3,987,658
(334)
3,987,324

KB Financial Group

178

Loans to customers other than banks as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, consist of:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Retail

Loans in Korean won

₩

Corporate

102,066,790

₩

Credit card

82,892,571

Total

-

₩

₩

184,959,361

Loans in foreign currencies 		

71,974 		

3,466,302		

- 		

3,538,276

Domestic import usance bills 		

- 		

3,595,143		

- 		

3,595,143

Off-shore funding loans 		

- 		

753,885		

- 		

753,885

Call loans 		

- 		

1,193,334		

- 		

1,193,334

Bills bought in Korean won 		

- 		

30,343 		

- 		

30,343

Bills bought in foreign currencies 		

- 		

2,522,110 		

- 		

2,522,110

Guarantee payments under 									
- 		
45,154 		
- 		
45,154
payment guarantee 		
Credit card receivables in Korean won		

-		

- 		

11,871,313 		

11,871,313

Credit card receivables 									
- 		
- 		
2,538 		
2,538
in foreign currencies		
Bonds purchased under 									
- 		
1,251,000 		
- 		
1,251,000
repurchase agreements		
Privately placed bonds		

- 		

603,667 		

- 		

603,667

Factored receivables 		

1,198,105 		

22,716		

- 		

1,220,821

				

103,336,869 		

96,376,225 		

11,873,851 		

211,586,945

Proportion (%) 		

48.84 		

45.55		

5.61 		

100.00

Allowances 		

(687,833)		

(2,251,104)		

(329,490) 		

(3,268,427)

			

₩

102,649,036

₩

94,125,121

₩

11,544,361

₩

208,318,518

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Retail

Loans in Korean won

₩

Corporate

103,855,183

₩

Credit card

80,355,474

₩

Total

-

₩

184,210,657

Loans in foreign currencies 		

70,022 		

4,071,464		

- 		

4,141,486

Domestic import usance bills 		

- 		

4,277,672 		

- 		

4,277,672

Off-shore funding loans 		

- 		

893,289 		

- 		

893,289

Call loans 		

- 		

1,092,895 		

- 		

1,092,895

Bills bought in Korean won 		

- 		

104,487		

- 		

104,487

Bills bought in foreign currencies 		

- 		

2,723,066 		

- 		

2,723,066

Guarantee payments under									
- 		
56,511 		
- 		
56,511
payment guarantee		
Credit card receivables in Korean won		

- 		

- 		

12,420,308 		

12,420,308

Credit card receivables 									
- 		
- 		
959 		
959
in foreign currencies		
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Retail

Corporate

Credit card

Total

Bonds purchased under									
- 		
829,500 		
- 		
829,500
repurchase agreements 		
Privately placed bonds		

- 		

816,444 		

- 		

816,444

				

103,925,205 		

95,220,802 		

12,421,267 		

211,567,274

Proportion (%)		

49.12 		

45.01 		

5.87 		

100.00

Allowances 		

(635,476)		

(2,461,713) 		

(350,382) 		

(3,447,571)

			

103,289,729

₩

92,759,089

₩

12,070,885

₩

208,119,703

₩

The changes in deferred loan origination fees and costs for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Increase

Decrease

Others

Ending

Deferred loan											
origination costs
Loans in Korean won

₩

448,122

₩

321,090

₩

266,700

-

₩

₩

502,512

Other origination costs 		

201 		

430		

287 		

-		

344

				

448,323		

321,520 		

266,987		

- 		

502,856

Deferred loan											
origination fees
Loans in Korean won 		

43,242 		

53,166 		

26,414 		

- 		

69,994

Credit card 		

106 		

- 		

106		

- 		

-

Other origination fees 		

5,104 		

3,245 		

1,803 		

(20) 		

6,526

				

48,452 		

56,411 		

28,323		

(20)		

76,520

			

₩

399,871

₩

265,109

238,664

₩

20

₩

₩

426,336

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Increase

Decrease

Others

Ending

Deferred loan											
origination costs
Loans in Korean won

₩

365,774

₩

254,099

₩

171,751

₩

-

₩

448,122

Other origination costs 		

- 		

263 		

62 		

- 		

201

				

365,774 		

254,362		

171,813		

- 		

448,323
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Increase

Decrease

Others

Ending

Deferred loan											
origination fees
Loans in Korean won 		

46,245 		

17,723 		

20,726 		

- 		

43,242

Credit card 		

2,438		

- 		

2,332 		

- 		

106

Other origination fees 		

5,379 		

2,211 		

2,487 		

1 		

5,104

				

54,062 		

19,934		

25,545 		

1 		

48,452

			

₩

311,712

234,428

₩

146,268

₩

(1)

₩

₩

399,871

11. Allowances for Loan Losses
The changes in the allowances for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Retail

Beginning

₩

Corporate

635,476

₩

Credit card

2,462,047

₩

Total

350,382

₩

3,447,905

Written-off		

(452,639)		

(1,203,832)			

(540,664)		

Recoveries from written-off loans 		

102,698		

161,333 			

185,027 		

449,058

Sale 		

(6,082) 		

(98,865) 			

- 		

(104,947)

Provision1 		

402,373 		

914,551			

336,356 		

1,653,280

Other changes 		

6,007 		

15,879			

(1,611) 		

20,275

Ending

₩

687,833

₩

2,251,113

₩

329,490

₩

(2,197,135)

3,268,436

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Retail

Beginning

₩

Corporate

520,842

₩

2,907,747

Credit card

₩

Total

327,587

₩

3,756,176

Written-off 		

(286,895)		

(1,481,877) 		

(412,642)		

(2,181,414)

Recoveries from written-off loans 		

119,925		

166,696		

203,658		

490,279

Sale			

(17,947)		

(221,809)		

(94)		

(239,850)

Provision1 		

295,871 		

1,115,831 		

232,932 		

1,644,634

Other changes 		

3,680		

(24,541)		

(1,059)		

(21,920)

Ending
1

₩

635,476

₩

2,462,047

₩

350,382

₩

3,447,905

Provision for credit losses in statements of comprehensive income also include reversal for unused commitments and guarantees(Note 23), reversal for financial
guarantees contracts(Note 23), and provision for other financial assets(Note 18).
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The amounts of written-off loans, over which the Group still has a right to claim against the borrowers and guarantors, are
₩ 15,018,335 million and ₩ 14,118,853 million, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The coverage ratio of allowances for loan losses as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Loans 			

₩

2011

215,984,687

₩

215,554,932

Allowances for loan losses 				

3,268,436 		

3,447,905

Ratio (%) 				

1.51 		

1.60

12. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and Financial investments
The details of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are
as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities:
		 Government and public bonds 			

₩

1,671,956

₩

1,507,503

		 Financial bonds 				

2,498,711 		

2,837,144

		 Corporate bonds				

748,706 		

586,416

		 Asset-backed securities				

20,004 		

134,943

		 Others 				

112,481 		

110,518

		 Stocks 				

197,458 		

187,181

		 Beneficiary certificates 				

657,949 		

224,927

Others 				

39,839 		

28,625

						

5,947,104 		

5,617,257

		 Beneficiary certificates 				

159,483 		

134,160

Derivative linked securities 				

192,607		

574,687

						

352,090 		

708,847

Equity securities:

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Equity securities:

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 			

₩

6,299,194

₩

6,326,104
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt securities:
		 Government and public bonds 			

₩

6,256,380

₩

5,988,659

		 Financial bonds 				

7,476,233 		

6,432,081

		 Corporate bonds 				

6,526,465 		

5,375,387

		 Asset-backed securities 				

1,399,015 		

1,757,482

		 Others 				

176,449 		

180,922

		 Stocks 				

1,927,841 		

1,911,108

		 Equity investments and others 				

109,833 		

87,917

		 Beneficiary certificates				

769,117 		

643,468

						

24,641,333 		

22,377,024

		 Government and public bonds 				

4,449,243		

5,435,754

		 Financial bonds 				

1,315,417		

1,125,326

		 Corporate bonds 				

6,212,850 		

6,155,467

		 Asset-backed securities 				

278,296 		

338,611

						

12,255,806 		

13,055,158

Total financial investments 			

36,897,139

35,432,182

Equity securities:

Held-to-maturity financial assets
Debts securities:

₩

₩

The impairment losses and the reversal of impairment losses in financial investments for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Impairment

Available-for-sale financial assets 			

₩

Held-to-maturity financial assets				
₩

(281,053)

Reversal

-

₩

(154) 		
(281,207)

Net

₩

(281,053)

- 		
-

₩

(154)

₩

(281,207)

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Impairment

Available-for-sale financial assets 			

₩

Held-to-maturity financial assets				
₩

(51,072)

Reversal

₩

(150) 		
(51,222)

₩

Net

-

₩

117		
117

₩

(51,072)
(33)
(51,105)

Annual Report 2012

183

13. Investments in associates
Investments in associates as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Ownership
(%)

Acquisition
cost

Share of
net asset
amount

Carrying
amount

Industry

Location

Associates
Balhae Infrastructure Fund1

12.61 		

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.

1

UAMCO., Ltd.1

121,817 		

125,004 		

125,004

Investment finance

Korea

9.00 		

4,500 		

3,790 		

3,790

Credit Information

Korea

17.50 		

85,050 		

120,916 		

139,760

Other finance

Korea

29.56 		

954,104 		

250,692 		

281,889

Banking

JSC Bank Center Credit
		 Ordinary share 2,4
		 Preference share 2

Kazakhstan

93.15

KoFC KBIC Frontier 											
50.00 		
32,150 		
28,761 		
25,539 Investment finance
Korea
Champ 2010-5(PEF)
KB Global Star Game 											
& Apps SPAC1,4
0.23 		
20 		
48 		
48 SPAC
Korea
Semiland Co., Ltd.

21.32 		

1,470		

2,513 		

2,513

Manufacture

Korea

									
Serit Platform Co., Ltd.
21.72 		
1,500 		
1,517 		
1,517
										

Manufacture of 		
communication
Korea
equipment

									
Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd.
20.95 		
3,508 		
2,955 		
2,955
										

Manufacture of 		
electronic
Korea
components

									
Testian Co., Ltd.3
47.09 		
1,018 		
1,041 		
1,041
										

Manufacture of 		
semiconductor
Korea
equipment

DS Plant Co., Ltd.3

- 		

- 		

- 		

-

									
KT Wibro infrastructure
40.34 		
100,000 		
105,955 		
105,955
										

Manufacture of machine

Korea

Manufacture of 		
electronic
Korea
components

Joam Housing 											
15.00 		
8		
(371) 		
- Housing
Korea
Development Co., Ltd.1
United PF 1st Recovery											
17.72 		
191,617 		
201,182 		
195,425 Other finance
Korea
Private Equity Fund1
CH Engineering Co., Ltd.5
41.73 		
- 		
107 		
										

Architectural design 		
Korea
and Service

									
Evalley Co., Ltd.5
46.24		
- 		
- 		
										

Software advisory, 		
development,
Korea
and supply

Shinla Construction Co., Ltd.5

20.24		

-		

- 		

-

Specialty construction

Korea

KB Financial Group
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Ownership
(%)

Share of
net asset
amount

Acquisition
cost

Carrying
amount

Industry

Location

PyungJeon Industries 											
15.65 		
- 		
- 		
- Specialty construction
Korea
Co.,LTD.5
Kores Co., Ltd. 6
16.01 		
634		
1,384 		
1,384
										

Manufacture of 		
Korea
automobile parts

KB GwS Private Securities 								
26.74 		
113,880		
124,410 		
120,939
Investment Trust

Security investment		
Korea
trust management

Incheon Bridge Co., Ltd.
14.99 		
24,677 		
1,630 		
1,630
										

Operation of Highways 		
Korea
and Related facilities

KB Star office Private real								
21.05 		
20,000 		
20,311 		
19,898
estate Investment Trust No.1

Security investment		
Korea
trust management

KoFC POSCO HANHWA KB 											
shared growth Private
25.00 		
6,250 		
5,606 		
4,983 Investment finance
Korea
Equity Fund
								
Ilssan Elecom(Shenyang)
100.00 		
2,140		
(1,212) 		
Co., Ltd.
										

Manufacture of		
electronic
China
components

								
Qingdao Danam
100.00 		
692		
935 		
935
Electronics Co., Ltd.
										

Manufacture of		
electronic
China
components

₩

1,665,035

₩

997,174

₩ 1,035,205
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Ownership
(%)

Share of
net asset
amount

Acquisition
cost

Carrying
amount

Industry

Location

Associates
Balhae Infrastructure Fund1

12.61 		

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.

1

UAMCO., Ltd.1

₩ 125,597

₩

128,778

₩

128,778

9.00 		

4,500 		

3,766 		

3,766

17.50 		

85,050 		

103,617 		

109,531

Investment finance
Credit Information

Korea

Other finance

Korea

JSC Bank Center Credit 										
29.56 		
954,104 		
271,941 		
365,059 Banking
		 Ordinary share 2,4
		 Preference share 2

Korea

Kazakhstan

93.15

KoFC KBIC Frontier 											
50.00 		
28,850		
28,840 		
28,831 Investment finance
Korea
Champ 2010-5(PEF)
KB Global Star Game 											
0.23 		
20 		
48 		
48 SPAC
Korea
& Apps SPAC1,4
Semiland Co., Ltd.

21.32 		

1,470		

2,247 		

2,247

Manufacture

Korea
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Ownership
(%)

Share of
net asset
amount

Acquisition
cost

Carrying
amount

  Industry

  Location

									
Serit Platform Co., Ltd.
21.72 		
1,500 		
1,451 		
1,451
										

Manufacture of 		
communication
Korea
equipment

									
Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd.
20.95 		
3,508 		
3,454 		
3,454
										

Manufacture of 		
electronic
Korea
components

									
Testian Co., Ltd.3
19.90 		
820 		
789 		
789
										

Manufacture of 		
semiconductor
Korea
equipment

DS Plant Co., Ltd.3

- 		

- 		

- 		

-

									
KT Wibro infrastructure
40.34 		
100,000 		
104,049 		
104,049
										

Manufacture of machine

Korea

Manufacture of 		
electronic
Korea
components

Joam Housing 											
15.00 		
8		
(566) 		
- Housing
Korea
Development Co., Ltd.1
United PF 1st Recovery											
18.50 		
148,000 		
149,099 		
143,437 Other finance
Korea
Private Equity Fund1
								
Ilssan Elecom(Shenyang)
100.00 		
2,140		
(1,270) 		
Co., Ltd.
										

Manufacture of		
electronic
China
components

								
Qingdao Danam
100.00 		
692		
692 		
692
Electronics Co., Ltd.
										

Manufacture of		
electronic
China
components

₩

1,456,259

₩

796,935

₩

892,132

1

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group is represented in the governing body of Balhae Infrastructure Fund, Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd., UAMCO., Ltd., KB Global
Star Game & Apps SPAC, Joam Housing Development Co., Ltd., United PF 1st Recovery Private Equity Fund and Incheon Bridge Co., Ltd., and has business relationships
with those associates. Therefore, the Group has significant influence over the decision-making process relating to their financial and business policies.

2

The Group determined that ordinary shares and convertible preference shares issued by JSC Bank CenterCredit are the same in economic substance except for the voting
rights, and therefore, the equity method of accounting is applied on the basis of single ownership ratio of 41.93%, calculated based on ordinary and convertible preference
shares held by the Group against the total outstanding ordinary and convertible preference shares issued by JSC Bank CenterCredit.

3

The Group’s ownership in Testian Co., Ltd. is 48.41% and 27.39% as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, when the potential voting rights from redeemable
convertible preference shares and convertible bond held by the Group are taken into account. Also, The Group’s ownership in DS Plant Co., Ltd. is 21.05% and 21.05%,
when the potential voting rights from convertible bond held by the Group are taken into account as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

4

Fair value of ordinary shares of JSC Bank CenterCredit, reflecting the published market price, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are ₩ 65,821 million and ₩ 89,669
million, respectively, and fair value of shares of KB Global Star Game & Apps SPAC, reflecting the published market price, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are ₩ 49
million and ₩ 47 million, respectively.

5

Shares of CH Engineering Co., Ltd., Evalley Co., Ltd., Shinla Construction Co., Ltd. and PyungJeon Industries Co.,Ltd. acquired through debt-equity swap, are reclassified
as investments in associates due to termination of rehabilitation procedures.

6

As corporate restructuring is in progress, the Group has significant influence through participation in creditors' consultative council.
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Summarized financial information on associates:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Total
assets

Total
liabilities

Share
capital

Operating
income

Equity

Profit
(loss)

Associates
Balhae Infrastructure Fund

₩

993,838 ₩

2,138 ₩

993,030 ₩

991,700 ₩

67,825 ₩

61,514

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.		

55,944 		

13,834 		

10,000 		

42,110		

47,660 		

5,019

UAMCO., Ltd. 		

4,906,010 		

4,215,061 		

2,430 		

690,949 		

599,570 		

95,828

JSC Bank CenterCredit 		

7,722,114 		

7,124,299 		

546,794 		

597,815 		

269,586 		

3,795

KoFC KBIC Frontier Champ 													
57,779 		
257 		
64,300 		
57,522 		
1,870 		
(6,635)
2010-5(PEF) 		
KB Global Star Game 													
22,108 		
1,310 		
862 		
20,798 		
- 		
303
& Apps SPAC 		
Semiland Co., Ltd. 		

12,472 		

6,901 		

985 		

5,571 		

10,552 		

774

Serit Platform Co., Ltd. 		

8,134 		

5,585 		

1,000 		

2,549 		

9,998 		

304

Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

23,255 		

9,744 		

1,050 		

13,511 		

14,059 		

2,674

Testian Co., Ltd. 		

2,771 		

1,899 		

1,030 		

872 		

707 		

80

DS Plant Co., Ltd. 		

10,253 		

7,530 		

600 		

2,723 		

10,190		

(194)

KT Wibro infrastructure 		

253,906 		

30 		

24,792 		

253,876 		

2,138 		

1,906

Joam Housing 													
117,159 		
119,632 		
50 		
(2,473) 		
36,074 		
1,345
Development Co., Ltd. 		
United PF 1st Recovery 													
1,153,268 		
17,886 		
1,081,400 		
1,135,382 		
98,873 		
48,040
Private Equity Fund 		
CH Engineering Co., Ltd. 		

1,088 		

833 		

158 		

255 		

714 		

(42)

Kores Co., Ltd. 		

75,750 		

67,105 		

11,099 		

8,645 		

72,622 		

190

KB GwS Private Securities 													
465,690 		
503 		
425,814 		
465,187 		
39,881 		
39,373
Investment Trust 		
Incheon Bridge Co., Ltd. 		

765,522 		

754,646 		

164,621 		

10,876 		

68,711 		

(29,451)

KB Star office Private 													
real estate Investment 		
217,732 		
121,256 		
95,000 		
96,476 		
2,865 		
1,476
Trust No.1 		
KoFC POSCO HANHWA KB 													
shared growth Private 		
23,337 		
913 		
25,000 		
22,424 		
106 		
(1,900)
Equity Fund 		
(34)
IlssanElecom (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.
1,122		
2,334 		
1,698 		
(1,212) 		
4,177 		
Qingdao Danam 													
1,676 		
740 		
4,733 		
936 		
3,388 		
(269)
Electronics Co., Ltd. 		
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Total
assets

Total
liabilities

Share
capital

Operating
income

Equity

Profit
(loss)

Associates
Balhae Infrastructure Fund

1,023,825 ₩

₩

2,187 ₩

971,835 ₩

1,021,638 ₩

63,530 ₩

55,069

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.		

51,484		

9,651		

10,000 		

41,833 		

40,535 		

6,357

UAMCO., Ltd. 		

3,738,326 		

3,146,227 		

2,430 		

592,099 		

468,220 		

106,274

JSC Bank CenterCredit 		

8,392,599 		

7,744,111 		

546,794 		

648,488 		

352,383 		

10,627

KoFC KBIC Frontier Champ													
58,015 		
334 		
57,700 		
57,681 		
2,210 		
1,065
2010-5(PEF) 		
KB Global Star Game 													
21,755 		
1,260		
862 		
20,495 		
- 		
173
& Apps SPAC 		
Semiland Co., Ltd. 		

11,074		

6,080 		

985 		

4,994 		

5,996 		

387

Serit Platform Co., Ltd. 		

5,985 		

3,590 		

1,000 		

2,395 		

4,617		

(203)

Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

27,378 		

11,487 		

1,050 		

15,891 		

13,812 		

43

Testian Co., Ltd. 		

2,442 		

1,651 		

1,030		

791		

426 		

62

DS Plant Co., Ltd. 		

10,286 		

7,590 		

600 		

2,696 		

12,518 		

32

KT Wibro infrastructure 		

277,933 		

25,963 		

24,792 		

251,970 		

1,719 		

2,310

Joam Housing 													
85,714 		
89,485 		
50 		
(3,771) 		
18,451 		
(828)
Development Co., Ltd. 		
United PF 1st Recovery													
836,104 		
30,162 		
800,000 		
805,942 		
58,529 		
5,942
Private Equity Fund 		
IlssanElecom (Shenyang) 													
1,094 		
2,364 		
1,698		
(1,270) 		
4,360		
(205)
Co., Ltd. 		
Qingdao Danam 													
1,394 		
702 		
4,733 		
692 		
-		
Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

As Evalley Co., Ltd., Shinla Construction Co., Ltd. and PyungJeon Industries Co., Ltd. are capital deficient as of December
31, 2012, reliable financial information is not available. Therefore, financial information of these associates is not included in the
summarized financial information.
The changes in investments in associates for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Acquisition
and others

Disposal

Gains
(losses)

Dividends

Other
Impairment
comprehensive
losses
income

Ending

Associates
Balhae Infrastructure Fund

₩ 128,778 ₩

2,660 ₩

(6,440) ₩

(7,747) ₩

7,753 ₩

- ₩

- ₩

125,004

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd. 		

3,766 		

- 		

-		

- 		

354 		

(330) 		

- 		

3,790

UAMCO., Ltd. 		

109,531		

- 		

-		

- 		

30,229 		

-		

- 		

139,760
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Acquisition
and others

Beginning

Disposal

Other
Impairment
comprehensive
losses
income

Gains
(losses)

Dividends

Ending

JSC Bank CenterCredit 1		

365,059 		

- 		

- 		

(3) 		

(6,257)		

(43,097) 		

(33,813) 		

281,889

KoFC KBIC Frontier Champ 2010-5(PEF) 		

28,831 		

3,300 		

- 		

-		

(5,477)		

(1,115) 		

- 		

25,539

KB Global Star Game & Apps SPAC 		

48 		

-		

-		

-		

- 		

- 		

- 		

48

Semiland Co., Ltd. 		

2,247		

- 		

- 		

(10)		

276		

- 		

-		

2,513

Serit Platform Co., Ltd. 		

1,451		

- 		

- 		

- 		

66		

-		

- 		

1,517

Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

3,454		

- 		

- 		

- 		

(553) 		

54 		

- 		

2,955

Testian Co., Ltd. 		

789 		

198 		

-		

- 		

54		

- 		

- 		

1,041

KT Wibro infrastructure 		

104,049 		

- 		

- 		

-		

1,906 		

- 		

- 		

105,955

Joam Housing Development Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

-		

- 		

- 		

- 		

-		

-		

-

United PF 1st Recovery Private Equity Fund 		

143,437 		

43,617 		

(402)		

- 		

8,773		

-		

- 		

195,425

CH Engineering Co., Ltd. 2		

-		

- 		

-		

-		

- 		

- 		

-		

-

Evalley Co., Ltd. 2		

-		

-		

-		

-		

-		

- 		

-		

-

Shinla Construction Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

-		

- 		

-		

-		

- 		

- 		

-

PyungJeon Industries Co.,LTD. 2		

-		

-		

- 		

-		

-		

-		

- 		

-

Kores Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

634		

- 		

- 		

273 		

477 		

- 		

1,384

KB GwS Private Securities Investment Trust		

- 		

115,745		

(1,865)		

- 		

7,059 		

- 		

- 		

120,939

Incheon Bridge Co., Ltd.		

- 		

24,677 		

- 		

- 		

(22,916) 		

(131) 		

- 		

1,630

2

KB Star office Private real estate 																	
- 		
20,000 		
- 		
-		
(102) 		
- 		
- 		
19,898
Investment Trust No.1 		
KoFC POSCO HANHWA KB 																	
- 		
6,250 		
-		
-		
(934)		
(333)		
- 		
4,983
shared growth Private Equity Fund		
IlssanElecom(Shenyang) Co., Ltd. 		

-		

-		

- 		

-		

- 		

- 		

- 		

-

Qingdao Danam Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

692 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

175 		

68 		

- 		

935

₩ 892,132 ₩

217,081

₩

(8,707)

₩

(7,760) ₩ 20,679 ₩ (44,407) ₩

(33,813) ₩

1,035,205

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Acquisition

Disposal

Gains
(losses)

Dividends

Other
Impairment
comprehensive
losses
income

Others

Ending

Associates
Balhae Infrastructure Fund

₩ 120,274

₩

9,063 ₩

- ₩

(7,501) ₩

6,942 ₩

-

₩

- ₩

- ₩

128,778

Korea Credit Bureau 																			
3,194 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
572 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
3,766
Co., Ltd. 		
UAMCO., Ltd. 		

85,622 		

- 		

-		

- 		

23,909 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

109,531

JSC Bank CenterCredit 1 		

390,157		

- 		

-		

(3)		

(4,652) 		

45		

(20,488)		

- 		

365,059

KoFC KBIC Frontier 																			
10,438 		
18,350 		
- 		
- 		
554 		
(511) 		
- 		
- 		
28,831
Champ 2010-5(PEF) 		
KB Global Star Game 																			
1,034		
-		
(1,011)		
- 		
17		
(6)		
- 		
14		
48
& Apps SPAC 		
Powerrex Corporation 																			
1,951 		
- 		
- 		
-		
(1,951)		
-		
-		
- 		
Co., Ltd. 		
Semiland Co., Ltd. 		

2,095 		

- 		

-		

(11) 		

163 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

2,247
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Acquisition

Disposal

Gains
(losses)

Dividends

Other
Impairment
comprehensive
losses
income

Others

Ending

Seho Robo Ind. Co., Ltd.		

820 		

- 		

(1,358)		

-		

538		

-		

-		

-		

-

Serit Platform Co., Ltd. 		

1,438		

-		

- 		

- 		

13		

- 		

- 		

- 		

1,451

Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

3,385 		

- 		

- 		

- 		

53 		

16 		

- 		

- 		

3,454

Testian Co., Ltd. 		

857		

- 		

- 		

- 		

(68)		

- 		

- 		

- 		

789

Solice Co., Ltd. 		

2,007		

-		

(2,007)		

-		

-		

-		

-		

- 		

-

KT Wibro infrastructure 		

100,139		

- 		

- 		

- 		

3,910 		

-		

- 		

- 		

104,049

Joam Housing 																			
-		
- 		
- 		
- 		
-		
-		
- 		
- 		
Development Co., Ltd.		
United PF 1st Recovery 																			
- 		
148,000		
-		
-		
(4,563) 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
143,437
Private Equity Fund		
IlssanElecom(Shenyang) 																			
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
Co., Ltd. 		
Qingdao Danam 																			
- 		
692 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
692
Electronics Co., Ltd. 		
			

₩ 723,411

₩ 176,105

₩

(4,376)

₩

(7,515) ₩

25,437 ₩

(456) ₩ (20,488) ₩

14 ₩

892,132

1

Kazakhstan has been experiencing liquidity problems and roll-over of borrowings in the financial sector due to depression of its domestic economy mainly driven by delays
of recovery in the local real estate market and global credit crunch. The Group determined that the decrease in the investment value of its BCC shares were not expected
to recover in the near future due to an adverse economic condition in Kazakhstan, particularly the real estate market and the fact that loan portfolio of BCC consisted
mainly of loans collateralized by real estates. The recoverable amount of shares of JSC Bank CenterCredit, obtained from an independent third-party valuation service as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, amounts to ₩ 281,889 million and ₩ 365,059 million, respectively. Carrying value of shares of JSC Bank CenterCredit before recognizing
impairment losses, amounts to ₩ 315,702 million and ₩ 385,547 million, respectively.

2

Shares of CH Engineering Co., Ltd., Evalley Co., Ltd., Shinla Construction Co., Ltd. and PyungJeon Industries Co.,Ltd. acquired through debt-equity swap, are reclassified
as investments in associates due to termination of rehabilitation procedures.

Accumulated unrecognized share of losses of an associate due to discontinuing the use of the equity method as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Unrecognized change
in equity

Unrecognized loss

Joam Housing Development Co., Ltd.

₩

(371)

-

₩

IlssanElecom(Shenyang) Co., Ltd.		

(1,199) 		

(13)

CH Engineering Co., Ltd.		

(18) 		

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Unrecognized change
in equity

Unrecognized loss

Joam Housing Development Co., Ltd.

₩

IlssanElecom(Shenyang) Co., Ltd. 		

(566)

₩

(1,165)		

(105)
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14. Property and Equipment, and Investment Property
The details of property and equipment as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Acquisition
cost

Land

2,014,527

₩

Accumulated
impairment
losses

Accumulated
depreciation

-

₩

Carrying
amount

(581)

₩

₩

2,013,946

Buildings 		

1,211,056 		

(327,801) 		

(2,661) 		

880,594

Leasehold improvements 		

523,039		

(467,381) 		

- 		

55,658

Equipment and vehicles 		

1,635,134		

(1,492,395)		

- 		

142,739

Construction in-progress 		

893 		

- 		

- 		

893

Financial lease assets 		

55,908		

(46,141) 		

- 		

9,767

			

5,440,557

₩

(2,333,718)

₩

(3,242)

₩

3,103,597

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Acquisition
cost

Land

2,022,943

₩

Accumulated
impairment
losses

Accumulated
depreciation

-

₩

Carrying
amount

(581)

₩

₩

2,022,362

Buildings 		

1,200,813 		

(301,947) 		

(2,661) 		

896,205

Leasehold improvements 		

484,328		

(424,742) 		

- 		

59,586

Equipment and vehicles 		

1,710,477 		

(1,513,746) 		

- 		

196,731

Construction in-progress 		

1,075 		

- 		

- 		

1,075

Financial lease assets 		
			

43,756		
5,463,392

₩

(33,695)		

₩

(2,274,130)

- 		
(3,242)

₩

₩

10,061
3,186,020

The changes in property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Land

₩

Buildings 		

Acquisition

2,022,362 ₩
896,205		

40 ₩
1,806 		

Transfers1

(6,505)

Disposal

₩

14,344 		

Depreciation2

(1,878)
(2,667) 		

₩

-

Others

₩

(28,849) 		

(73) ₩
(244) 		

Ending

2,013,946
880,595

Leasehold															
59,586 		
4,574 		
32,591 		
(272) 		
(44,007) 		
3,186 		
55,658
improvements 		
Equipment															
196,731 		
75,109		
- 		
(365)		
(128,641) 		
(96) 		
142,738
and vehicles 		
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Acquisition

Transfers1

Disposal

Depreciation2

Others

Ending

Construction 															
1,075 		
49,646 		
(49,828) 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
893
in-progress 		
Financial															
10,061 		
12,152		
- 		
- 		
(12,446) 		
- 		
9,767
lease assets 		
		

3,186,020 ₩

₩

143,327 ₩

(9,398)

(5,182) ₩

₩

(213,943)

2,773 ₩

₩

3,103,597

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Land

₩

Buildings 		

Acquisition

2,022,864 ₩
891,220		

Transfers

195 ₩

Disposal

1

(706)

3,019 		

₩

30,207		

Depreciation2

(18) ₩
(26) 		

-

Others

Ending

27 ₩

₩

(28,307) 		

2,022,362

92 		

896,205

Leasehold															
improvements 		
50,634 		
11,414 		
39,195		
(423) 		
(47,447) 		
6,213 		
59,586
Equipment															
and vehicles 		
174,818 		
160,319 		
- 		
(847) 		
(137,559) 		
- 		
196,731
Construction															
in-progress 		
119 		
76,258		
(75,302) 		
- 		
- 		
- 		
1,075
Financial															
lease assets 		
10,605		
10,700 		
- 		
- 		
(11,244) 		
- 		
10,061
		

₩

3,150,260

₩

261,905 ₩

(6,606)

₩

(1,314) ₩

(224,557)

6,332

₩

₩

3,186,020

1

Including transfers with investment property and assets held for sale.

2

Including ₩ 232 million and ₩122 million recorded in other operating expenses in the statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

The changes in accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are
as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

₩

(3,242)

Impairment

Reversal

-

₩

Others

-

₩

Ending

-

₩

(3,242)

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

₩

(3,251)

Impairment

₩

Reversal

-

₩

Others

-

₩

Ending

9

₩

(3,242)
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The details of investment property as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Accumulated
depreciation

Acquisition cost

Land 			

₩

Buildings 				

38,653

-

₩

19,723		

₩

58,376

Carrying amount

₩

₩

38,653

(5,402) 		

14,321

(5,402)

52,974

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Accumulated
depreciation

Acquisition cost

Land 			

₩

Buildings 				
₩

37,451

Carrying amount

₩

37,451

18,961		

(4,860) 		

-

14,101

56,412

(4,860)

51,552

₩

₩

₩

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, fair values of the investment properties amount to ₩ 51,142 million and ₩ 48,996 million,
respectively. The investment properties were valued by qualified independent appraisers with experience in valuing similar
properties in the same location.
Rental income from the above investment properties for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, amounts to ₩ 675 million
and ₩ 683 million, respectively.

The changes in investment property for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Land

₩

Buildings 		
₩

37,451

Transfers

₩

1,202

14,101 		
51,552

₩

Depreciation

1,887

-

₩

685		
₩

Ending

₩

38,653

(465) 		

14,321

(465)

52,974

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Land

₩

Buildings 		
₩

38,633

Transfers

₩

14,288 		
52,921

₩

Depreciation

(1,182)

₩

264 		
(918)

₩

Ending

-

₩

37,451

(451)		

14,101

(451)

51,552

₩
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Property and equipment insured as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Type

			
General property insurance
			
			

Insurance coverage

Assets insured

Buildings1

2012

1,138,216

₩

Leasehold improvements 		

1,061,097

₩

117,600 		

134,595

Equipment and vehicles 					
142,828 		
179,804
and others 		
1,398,644

₩
1

Insurance
company

2011

Samsung Fire & Marine
Insurance Co., Ltd.
and others			

1,375,496

₩

Buildings include office buildings, investment properties and assets held for sale.

15. Intangible Assets
The details of intangible assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Acquisition
cost

Goodwill

₩

Other intangible assets 		
₩

251,209

Accumulated
amortization

-

₩

786,565 		
1,037,774

₩

Accumulated
impairment losses

₩

Carrying
Amount

(35,157)

₩

216,052

(484,749) 		

(17,845) 		

283,971

(484,749)

(53,002)

500,023

₩

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Acquisition
cost

Goodwill

₩

Other intangible assets 		
₩

143,209

Accumulated
amortization

Accumulated
impairment losses

₩

143,209

760,538 		

(421,380)		

(13,926) 		

325,232

903,747

(421,380)

(13,926)

468,441

₩

₩

-

Carrying
Amount

₩

₩

-

₩
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The details of goodwill as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Acquisition
cost

Housing & Commercial Bank

Carrying
amount

65,288

₩

₩

Acquisition
cost

65,288

Carrying
amount

65,288

₩

₩

65,288

KB Cambodia Bank 		

1,202 		

1,202 		

1,202 		

1,202

KB Investment Securities		

70,265 		

70,265		

70,265 		

70,265

Powernet Technologies Co., Ltd. 		

6,454 		

6,454 		

6,454 		

6,454

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. 		

108,000 		

72,843		

- 		

-

₩

251,209

₩

216,052

143,209

₩

₩

143,209

The changes in accumulated impairment losses of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Impairment

-

₩

Others

1

35,157

₩

Ending

-

₩

35,157

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

-

₩
1

Impairment

Others

1

-

₩

₩

Ending

-

-

₩

Industry environment of savings banks has deteriorated continuously since the recognition of goodwill and KB Saving Bank's performance fell short of expectations
primarily due to a decline of benchmark interest rate during 2012. Considering the aforementioned recent downturns, the Group recognized the impairment of goodwill on
KB Saving Bank.

The details of allocating goodwill to cash-generating units and related information for impairment testing as of December 31, 2012,
are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Housing & Commercial Bank
Retail
Banking

Corporate
Banking

KB
Cambodia
Bank

KB
Investment
Securities

Powernet
Technologies
Co., Ltd.

KB Savings
Bank Co.,
Ltd.

Total

Carrying															
₩
49,315 ₩
15,973 ₩
1,202 ₩
70,265 ₩
6,454 ₩
72,843 ₩
216,052
amounts
Recoverable 															
amount 															
86,263 		
106,736 		
2,441 		
52,137 		
5,811 		
-		
253,388
exceeded 		
carrying amount 		
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(in millions of Korean won)

Housing & Commercial Bank
Retail
Banking

Discount rate (%)

14.20 		

Corporate
Banking

KB
Cambodia
Bank

14.40 		

KB
Investment
Securities

17.80 		

Powernet
Technologies
Co., Ltd.

17.40		

KB Savings
Bank Co.,
Ltd.

14.80 		

Total

14.60

Permanent 															
2.90 		
2.90 		
4.90		
2.90		
2.90 		
2.00
growth rate (%) 		

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination for impairment
testing, and cash-generating units consist of an operating segment or units which are not larger than an operating segment. The
Group recognized the amount of ₩ 65,288 million related to goodwill acquired in the merger of Housing & Commercial Bank.
Of those respective amounts, the amounts of ₩ 49,315 million and ₩ 15,973 million were allocated to the Retail Banking and
Corporate Banking, respectively. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the unit, including the goodwill,
with the recoverable amount of the unit.
The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is measured at the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, less the costs of disposal. If it is difficult to measure the amount obtainable from the sale, the Group measures
the fair value less costs to sell by reflecting the characteristics of the measured cash-generating unit. If it is not possible to
obtain reliable information to measure the fair value less costs to sell, the Group uses the asset’s value in use as its recoverable
amount. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit.
The projections of the future cash flows are based on the most recent financial budget approved by management and generally
cover a period of five years. However, KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. used a period of seven years for projection considering the
special characteristics of the business in the early stages. The future cash flows after projection period are estimated on the
assumption that the future cash flows will increase by 2.9% for Retail Banking, Corporate Banking, KB Investment Securities, and
Powernet Technologies Co., Ltd., and 4.9% for KB Cambodia Bank and 2.0% KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. for every year. The key
assumptions used for the estimation of the future cash flows are the market size and the Group’s market share. The discount rate
is a pre-tax rate that reflects assumptions regarding risk-free interest rate, market risk premium and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

The details of intangible assets, excluding goodwill, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Acquisition
cost

Industrial property rights

₩

1,436

Accumulated
amortization

₩

(1,018)

Accumulated
impairment losses

₩

Carrying
amount

-

₩

418

Software		

576,056 		

(408,024)		

- 		

168,032

Other intangible assets		

185,660		

(59,383)		

(17,845) 		

108,432

Finance leases assets 		

23,413		

(16,324) 		

-		

7,089

₩

786,565

₩

(484,749)

₩

(17,845)

₩

283,971
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Acquisition
cost

Industrial property rights

Accumulated
amortization

1,025

₩

Accumulated
impairment losses

(919)

₩

Carrying
amount

-

₩

106

₩

Software 		

556,739 		

(340,421) 		

- 		

216,318

Other intangible assets 		

183,714 		

(69,396) 		

(13,926) 		

100,392

Finance leases assets 		

19,060 		

(10,644) 		

- 		

8,416

760,538

₩

₩

(421,380)

(13,926)

₩

325,232

₩

The changes in intangible assets, excluding goodwill, for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Acquisition

Disposal

Transfer

Amortization1

Others

Ending

Industrial 															
property
₩
106 ₩
429 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
(102) ₩
(15) ₩
418
rights
Software 		

216,318 		

52,576		

(280) 		

- 		

(100,578)		

(4) 		

168,032

Other intangible 															
100,392 		
25,042		
(3,946) 		
- 		
(7,874) 		
(5,182)		
108,432
assets2 		
Finance leases 															
8,416 		
4,353 		
- 		
- 		
(5,680) 		
- 		
7,089
assets 		
₩

325,232 ₩

82,400

₩

(4,226)

- ₩

₩

(114,234)

₩

(5,201) ₩

283,971

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Acquisition

Disposal

Transfer

Amortization1

Others

Ending

Industrial 															
property
₩
85 ₩
28 ₩
- ₩
- ₩
(42) ₩
35 ₩
106
rights
Software 		

257,537 		

64,826		

- 		

435		

(106,480) 		

- 		

216,318

Other intangible 														
96,312 		
34,142		
(9,310)		
(435) 		
(6,361)		
(13,956) 		
assets2 		

100,392

Finance leases 															
7,777 		
5,404 		
-		
-		
(4,765) 		
- 		
8,416
assets 		
₩

361,711 ₩

104,400

₩

(9,310)

₩

- ₩

(117,648)

₩

(13,921) ₩

325,232

1

Including ₩ 45 million and ₩ 41 million recorded in other operating expenses in the statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011.

2

Membership rights classified as other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives recognized impairment losses because their recoverable amount is lower than their
carrying amount.
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The changes in accumulated impairment losses on intangible assets, excluding goodwill, for the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Impairment

Disposal
and others

Reversal

Ending

Accumulated impairment											
₩
(13,926) ₩
(5,166)
₩
72 ₩
1,175 ₩
(17,845)
losses on intangible assets
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Impairment

Disposal
and others

Reversal

Ending

Accumulated impairment											
₩
- ₩
(13,926)
₩
- ₩
- ₩
(13,926)
losses on intangible assets

16. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
The details of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Assets

Other provisions 			

₩

Liabilities

139,412

₩

Net amount

(57)

₩

139,355

Allowances for loan losses 				

1,144		

(2,578)			

(1,434)

Impairment losses on property and equipment 			

2,111 		

- 			

2,111

Interest on equity index-linked deposits 				

722 		

- 			

722

Share-based payments 				

6,191 		

- 			

6,191

Provisions for guarantees 				

50,398		

- 			

50,398

Losses(gains) from valuation on derivatives 				

1,593 		

(39,501) 			

(37,908)

Present value discount 				

2,337		

(7,081)			

(4,744)

Losses(gains) from fair value hedged item 				

30,802 		

- 			

30,802

Accrued interest 				

- 		

(80,459)			

(80,459)

Deferred loan origination fees and costs 				

8,745 		

(94,142)			

(85,397)

Gains from revaluation				

-		

(276,421) 			

(276,421)

Investments in subsidiaries and others 				

49,128		

(57,388)			

(8,260)

Derivative linked securities				

161,642		

(160,131)			

1,511

Others 				

467,144		

(315,148)			

151,996

						

921,369 		

(1,032,906) 			

(111,537)

Off-setting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities			

(902,937)		

902,937			

-

₩

18,432

₩

(129,969)

₩

(111,537)
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Assets

Other provisions 			

₩

Liabilities

113,752

₩

Net amount

(115)

₩

113,637

Allowances for loan losses 				

200		

(2,574) 		

(2,374)

Impairment losses on property and equipment 			

3,065 		

- 		

3,065

Interest on equity index-linked deposits 				

1,785 		

- 		

1,785

Share-based payments				

4,069 		

- 		

4,069

Provisions for guarantees				

75,326 		

- 		

75,326

Losses(gains) from valuation on derivatives				

1,584		

(109,427) 		

(107,843)

Present value discount 				

3,770		

(12,603) 		

(8,833)

Losses(gains) from fair value hedged item 				

26,522		

- 		

26,522

Accrued interest				

- 		

(91,147)		

(91,147)

Deferred loan origination fees and costs 				

49		

(96,848)		

(96,799)

Gains from revaluation 				

- 		

(276,505)		

(276,505)

Investments in subsidiaries and others 				

24,943 		

(41,541) 		

(16,598)

Derivative linked securities 				

444,766		

(446,837)		

(2,071)

Others 				

433,962		

(254,709) 		

179,253

						

1,133,793 		

(1,332,306) 		

(198,513)

Off-setting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities 			

(1,111,464) 		

1,111,464		

-

₩

22,329

₩

(220,842)

₩

(198,513)

Unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities
No deferred income tax liabilities have been recognized for the taxable temporary difference of ₩ 83,745 million associated with
investment in subsidiaries and associates as of December 31, 2012, due to the following reasons:
-	The Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference.
-	It is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
No deferred income tax liabilities have been recognized for the taxable temporary difference of ₩ 65,288 million arising from the
initial recognition of goodwill from the merger of Housing and Commercial Bank as of December 31, 2012.

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
No deferred income tax assets have been recognized for the deductible temporary difference of ₩ 2,492,775 million associated
with investments in subsidiaries and others as of December 31, 2012, because it is not probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future.
No deferred income tax assets have been recognized for deductible temporary differences of ₩ 10 million, ₩ 817 million, ₩ 80,204
million and ₩ 87,342 million associated with sharebased payments, other provisions, loss on SPE repurchase and others,
respectively, as of December 31, 2012, due to the uncertainty that these will be realized in the future.
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The changes in cumulative temporary differences for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Decrease

Increase

Ending

Deductible temporary differences
Losses(gains) from fair value hedged item

₩

109,596

₩

109,596

₩

127,281

₩

127,281

Other provisions 		

470,507 		

430,917 		

537,409 		

576,999

Allowances for loan losses 		

827 		

149 		

4,049 		

4,727

Impairment losses on property and equipment 		

12,666		

12,666 		

8,723 		

8,723

Deferred loan origination fees and costs 		

204		

204 		

36,136 		

36,136

Interest on equity index-linked deposits		

7,378		

7,378		

2,985		

2,985

Share-based payments 		

19,359 		

19,359 		

25,591 		

25,591

Provisions for guarantees 		

311,263 		

311,263 		

208,255 		

208,255

Gains(losses) from valuation on derivatives 		

6,548 		

6,548 		

6,581 		

6,581

Present value discount 		

15,579 		

15,579 		

9,655 		

9,655

Loss on SPE repurchase 		

80,204		

- 		

- 		

80,204

Investments in subsidiaries and others 		

3,401,419 		

917,955		

203,794		

2,687,258

Derivative linked securities 		

1,837,877 		

1,837,877 		

667,942 		

667,942

Others 		

1,847,055 		

1,141,225 		

1,308,709 		

2,014,539

				

8,120,482 		

4,810,716 		

3,147,110 		

6,456,876

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets:
Share-based payments 		

2,546 						

10

Other provisions 		

365 						

817

Loss on SPE repurchase 		

80,204						

80,204

Investments in subsidiaries and others 		

3,299,083 						

2,492,775

Others 		

88,939 						

87,342

				

4,649,345 						

3,795,728

Tax rate (%) 		

24.2						

24.2

Total deferred income tax assets from 									
₩
1,133,793 					 ₩
921,369
deductible temporary differences
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Decrease

Increase

Ending

Taxable temporary differences
Accrued interest

₩

(381,276)

₩

(287,013)

₩

(244,863)

₩

(339,126)

Allowances for loans losses		

(10,636)		

-		

(18)		

(10,654)

Deferred loan origination fees and costs		

(400,199)		

(400,199)		

(389,017) 		

(389,017)

Gains(losses) from valuation on derivatives		

(452,200)		

(452,200)		

(163,225)		

(163,225)

Present value discount		

(57,287)		

(25,102) 		

-		

(32,185)
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Decrease

Increase

Ending

Goodwill		

(65,288)		

- 		

-		

(65,288)

Gains on revaluation 		

(1,142,581)		

(347) 		

-		

(1,142,234)

Investments in subsidiaries and others		

(5,345,703)		

(562)		

(525,003) 		

(5,870,144)

Derivative linked securities 		

(1,846,433) 		

(1,846,433)		

(661,700)		

(661,700)

Others 		

(1,058,606)		

(190,495) 		

(440,703)		

(1,308,814)

				

(10,760,209)		

(3,202,351)		

(2,424,529)		

(9,982,387)

Goodwill 		

(65,288)						

(65,288)

Investments in subsidiaries and others 		

(53,293)						

(83,745)

				

(10,641,628) 						

(9,833,354)

Tax rate (%) 		

24.2 						

24.2

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets:

Total deferred income tax assets from 									
₩
(1,332,306) 					 ₩
(1,032,906)
deductible temporary differences
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Decrease

Increase

Ending

Deductible temporary differences
Losses(gains) from fair value hedged item

₩

129,178

₩

129,178

₩

109,596

₩

109,596

Other provisions 		

584,999 		

894,311 		

779,819 		

470,507

Allowances for loan losses 		

20,269 		

35,642 		

16,200 		

827

Impairment losses on property and equipment 		

6,904		

6,904		

12,666		

12,666

Deferred loan origination fees and costs		

171		

486		

519		

204

Interest on equity index-linked deposits 		

10,388 		

10,388 		

7,378 		

7,378

Share-based payments 		

30,271 		

30,271		

19,359		

19,359

Provisions for guarantees		

414,048 		

428,288 		

325,503		

311,263

Gains(losses) from valuation on derivatives 		

4,468 		

4,451		

6,531 		

6,548

Present value discount 		

- 		

-		

15,579 		

15,579

Dividends from SPEs 		

2,563 		

2,563 		

- 		

-

Loss on SPE repurchase 		

80,204 		

- 		

- 		

80,204

Investments in subsidiaries and others 		

3,484,474 		

83,055 		

- 		

3,401,419

Derivative securities 		

- 		

- 		

1,837,877 		

1,837,877

Others		

1,394,001 		

1,352,107 		

1,805,161 		

1,847,055

				

6,161,938 		

2,977,644		

4,936,188		

8,120,482
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Decrease

Increase

Ending

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets:
Share-based payments 		

15,834 						

2,546

Other provisions 		

1,477						

365

Loss on SPE repurchase 		

80,204						

80,204

Investments in subsidiaries and others 		

3,272,930						

3,299,083

Others 		

92,307						

88,939

				

2,699,186 						

4,649,345

Tax rate (%) 		

24.2, 22.0 						

24.2

Total deferred income tax assets from 									
₩
641,672 					 ₩
1,133,793
deductible temporary differences
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Decrease

Increase

Ending

Taxable temporary differences
Accrued interest

₩

(405,417)

₩

(309,036)

₩

(284,895)

₩

(381,276)

Allowances for loans losses 		

(57,578)		

(40,796)		

6,146		

(10,636)

Deferred loan origination fees and costs		

(312,168) 		

(311,853)		

(399,884) 		

(400,199)

Advanced depreciation provisions		

(460,918)		

(460,918) 		

- 		

-

Gains(losses) from valuation on derivatives		

(502,897)		

(502,836)		

(452,139) 		

(452,200)

Present value discount 		

(70,994) 		

(52,423)		

(38,716) 		

(57,287)

Goodwill		

(65,288)		

-		

- 		

(65,288)

Gains on revaluation 		

(1,142,809)		

(9,529) 		

(9,301) 		

(1,142,581)

Investments in subsidiaries and others		

(3,258,119)		

(7,791) 		

(2,095,375) 		

(5,345,703)

Derivative securities		

- 		

-		

(1,846,433)		

(1,846,433)

Others 		

(882,777) 		

(217,222) 		

(393,051) 		

(1,058,606)

				

(7,158,965)		

(1,912,404)		

(5,513,648)		

(10,760,209)

(65,288)						

(65,288)

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets:
Goodwill		
Investments in subsidiaries and others 		

(26,894) 						

(53,293)

				

(7,066,783)						

(10,641,628)

Tax rate (%) 		

24.2, 22.0 						

24.2

Total deferred income tax assets from									
₩
(921,202) 					 ₩
(1,332,306)
deductible temporary differences
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17. Assets held for sale
The details of assets held for sale as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Acquisition
cost1

Land

5,288

₩

Buildings 		
₩

Accumulated
impairment

Carrying
amount

(2,613)

₩

Fair value less
costs to sell

2,675

₩

2,675

₩

35,883		

(3,146) 		

32,737		

32,737

41,171

(5,759)

35,412

35,412

₩

₩

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Acquisition
cost1

Land

₩

Buildings 		

16,178

Carrying
amount

(2,501)

₩

8,371		

₩
1

7,807

Accumulated
impairment

₩

₩

Fair value less
costs to sell

5,306

5,306

₩

(3,746) 		

4,625		

4,625

(6,247)

9,931

9,931

₩

₩

Acquisition cost of buildings held for sale is net of accumulated depreciation.

The changes in accumulated impairment losses of assets held for sale for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

₩

(6,247)

Provision

₩

(5,708)

Reversal

Others

-

₩

Ending

6,196

₩

(5,759)

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

₩

(3,653)

Provision

₩

(3,931)

Reversal

₩

Others

312

₩

Ending

1,025

₩

(6,247)

As of December 31, 2012, assets held for sale consist of six real estate of closed offices and one real estate acquired through
execution of security right, which the management of the Group was committed to a plan to sell, but not yet sold by December 31,
2012. As of reporting date, two assets out of the above assets held for sale are under negotiation for sale and the remaining five
assets are also being actively marketed.
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18. Other Assets
The details of other assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Other financial assets
Other receivables 			

₩

3,236,027

₩

2,470,405

Receivables in gold 				

- 		

107

Accrued income 				

1,053,687 		

1,253,034

Guarantee deposits 				

1,369,716 		

1,333,370

Domestic exchange settlement debits 				

2,239,607 		

1,403,284

Others 				

247,044 		

304,694

Allowances for loan losses 				

(590,974) 		

(353,905)

Present value discount				

(951)		

(1,084)

						

7,554,156 		

6,409,905

Other receivables 				

32,206 		

7,300

Prepaid expenses 				

266,282 		

307,742

Guarantee deposits 				

4,219 		

3,149

Insurance assets 				

155,676 		

128,450

Separate account assets 				

655,040 		

538,179

Others 				

95,626 		

92,133

Allowances on other asset				

(7,988) 		

(8,339)

						

1,201,061 		

1,068,614

8,755,217

7,478,519

Other non-financial assets

₩

₩

The changes in allowances for loan losses on other assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Other financial
assets

Beginning			

₩

353,905

Other non-financial
assets

₩

Total

8,339

₩

362,244

Written-off				

(30,602)		

(4,439)		

(35,041)

Provision 				

46,508 		

4,088 		

50,596

Others 				

221,163 		

- 		

221,163

Ending 			

590,974

₩

₩

7,988

₩

598,962
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Other financial
assets

Beginning			

₩

364,530

Other non-financial
assets

24,210

₩

Total

₩

388,740

Written-off 				

(19,859)		

(19,800)		

(39,659)

Provision 				

9,505		

3,678 		

13,183

Others 				

(271)		

251		

(20)

Ending 			

₩

353,905

8,339

₩

₩

362,244

19. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The details of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Financial liabilities held for trading
Securities sold 			

₩

1,342,119

₩

522,112

Other 				

39,878 		

28,761

						

1,381,997		

550,873

Derivative linked securities 				

469,138 		

837,206

						

469,138 		

837,206

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 			

₩

1,851,135

₩

1,388,079

The details of credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are
as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

₩

837,206

Changes in fair value resulting from changes in the credit risk 				

3,812 		

(9,442)

Accumulated changes in fair value resulting from changes in the credit risk 				

(5,630)		

(9,442)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss			

₩

469,138
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20. Deposits
Deposits as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Deposits 			

₩

194,403,282

Deferred financing costs				
₩

2011

₩

190,337,890

(3) 		

(300)

194,403,279

₩

190,337,590

The details of deposits as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Demand deposits in Korean won
Checking deposits 			

₩

Household checking deposits 				

116,423

₩

146,658

434,814 		

434,134

Special deposits 				

3,093,868 		

2,691,674

Ordinary deposits 				

21,469,971 		

20,581,481

Public fund deposits 				

68,600 		

85,895

Treasury deposits 				

5,256 		

7,539

General savings deposits 				

24,668,545 		

23,471,543

Corporate savings deposits 				

10,504,790 		

10,209,575

Nonresident’s deposit in Korean won 				

61,255 		

128,630

Nonresident’s free deposit in Korean won 				

17,994 		

15,672

Others 				

186,192 		

308,181

						

60,627,708 		

58,080,982

Checking deposits 				

98,478 		

71,838

Ordinary deposits 				

1,809,712 		

1,661,358

Special deposits 				

1,316 		

1,145

Others 				

9,852 		

9,436

						

1,919,358 		

1,743,777

						

62,547,066 		

59,824,759

Demand deposits in foreign currencies
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Time deposits in Korean won
Time deposits 				

114,496,449 		

114,868,739

Installment savings deposits 				

7,088,988 		

5,454,573

Good-sum formation savings 				

33,586 		

338

Workers’ savings for housing 				

- 		

2

Nonresident’s deposit in Korean won 				

192,945 		

193,765

Long-term savings deposits for workers				

1,692 		

1,862

Nonresident’s free deposit in Korean won 				

76,835 		

85,875

Long-term housing savings deposits 				

3,083,602 		

3,309,833

Long-term savings for households 				

206 		

247

Preferential savings deposits for workers 				

323 		

489

Mutual installment deposits 				

1,143,415 		

1,273,806

Mutual installment for housing 				

1,005,752 		

1,173,404

Others 				

183 		

196

						

127,123,976 		

126,363,129

Time deposits 				

2,954,348 		

2,604,603

Installment savings deposits 				

2,131 		

1,201

Others 				

23,694 		

23

Time deposits in foreign currencies

						

2,980,173 		

2,605,827

						

130,104,149 		

128,968,956

Certificates of deposits 				

1,752,067 		

1,544,175

Total deposits 			

₩

194,403,282

₩

190,337,890

21. Debts
The details of debts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, consist of:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Borrowings 			

₩

Bonds sold under repurchase agreements and others 				
Call money				
₩

12,278,565

2011

₩

14,091,973

1,094,031 		

1,590,400

2,596,926 		
15,969,522

₩

1,141,465
16,823,838
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The details of borrowings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Lender

Annual
interest
rate (%)

2012

2011

		
			

Borrowings from 								
Bank of Korea
1.25
₩
781,787 ₩
650,616
the Bank of Korea

			
			

Borrowings from 								
KEMCO and others
0.00 ~ 5.00		
626,059 		
690,750
the government

			
Borrowings
in Korean won

Borrowings from
banking institutions

			

Industrial Bank of						
2.01 ~ 5.67 		
106,448 		
405,033
Korea and others

Borrowings from 								
The Korea Development
non-banking
0.99 ~ 3.76 		
268,491 		
91,254
Bank and others
financial institutions

				
			
Other borrowings
					

The Korea Finance 						
Corporation
0.04 ~ 5.74		
3,716,879 		
3,538,983
and others 			

									
		

Due to banks

			
Borrowings from
			
banking institutions
					
Borrowings
in foreign
currencies

Off-shore borrowings
in foreign currencies

Citibank N.A. and others

0.00 ~ 1.00 		

5,499,664 		

5,376,636

52,186 		

28,194

Sumitomo Mitsui						
Banking Corp.
0.24 ~ 3.31		
3,382,672 		
4,694,199
and others
Central bank Uzbekistan						
0.25 ~ 2.71		
930,956 		
1,019,279
and others

Other borrowings
					

The Korea Finance 						
1.32 		
5,195 		
Corporation

			
Other borrowings
					

JP Morgan Chase Bank 						
- 		
2,407,892		
2,973,665
N.A. and others

									
₩

6,778,901 		

8,715,337

12,278,565 ₩

14,091,973

The details of bonds sold under repurchase agreements and others as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Lenders

Annual
interest
rate (%)

2012

Bonds sold under repurchase
Individuals, Groups, Corporations
agreements		

1.39 ~ 7.30

Bills sold

1.80 ~ 3.53 		

Counter sale

₩

₩

1,003,348 ₩
90,683		
1,094,031 ₩

2011

1,511,875
78,525
1,590,400
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The details of call money as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Annual
interest
rate (%)

Lenders

2012

2011

Call money in Korean won
			

The Korea Development Bank 						
2.57 ~ 2.72
₩
2,018,100 ₩
314,200
and others

Call money
in foreign currencies

Centralbank Uzbekistan						
0.15 ~ 0.47		
578,826 		
827,265
and others

						

2,596,926 ₩

₩

1,141,465

Call money and borrowings from financial institutions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Bank of Korea

Call money

₩

Borrowings 		
₩

Other Banks

-

₩

Others

1,431,826

Total

1,165,100

₩

₩

781,787 		

6,550,903 		

1,438,969 		

781,787

7,982,729

2,604,069

₩

₩

₩

2,596,926
8,771,659
11,368,585

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Bank of Korea

Call money

₩

Borrowings 		
₩

Other Banks

-

932,410

₩

Others

Total

209,055

₩

₩

1,141,465

650,616 		

9,064,282 		

1,216,359 		

10,931,257

650,616

9,996,692

1,425,414

12,072,722

₩

₩

₩

22. Debentures
The details of debentures as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Annual
interest rate (%)

2012

2011

Debentures in Korean won
Hybrid capital instrument
Structured debentures

8.50

₩

2.00 ~ 8.62 		

100,000

₩

1,699,238 		

100,000
3,424,238
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(in millions of Korean won)

Annual
interest rate (%)

2012

2011

Subordinated fixed rate debentures in Korean won

3.40 ~ 7.70 		

7,896,760 		

7,995,571

Fixed rate debentures in Korean won

2.77 ~ 7.95 		

10,132,425 		

10,791,612

Floating rate debentures in Korean won

2.96 ~ 10.74		

1,068,258 		

803,258

					

20,896,681 		

23,114,679

Fair value adjustments on fair value hedged financial 						
debentures in Korean won
Fair value adjustments on valuation 						
36,417 		
15,964
of fair value hedged items (current period portion) 			
Fair value adjustments on valuation 						
52,572 		
42,494
of fair value hedged items (prior year portion) 			
					

88,989 		

58,458

Discount or premium on debentures in Korean won
Discount on debentures			

(15,647) 		

(52,290)

					

20,970,023 		

23,120,847

759,783 		

1,309,606

Debentures in foreign currencies
Floating rate debentures

1.18 ~ 4.54 		

Fixed rate debentures

0.60 ~ 7.25 		

2,553,814		

2,705,167

					

3,313,597 		

4,014,773

Fair value adjustments on fair value hedged debentures 						
in foreign currencies
Fair value adjustments on valuation 						
(68,212) 		
47,986
of fair value hedged items (current period portion) 			
Fair value adjustments on valuation 						
(69,060) 		
(90,778)
of fair value hedged items (prior year portion) 			
					

(137,272)		

(42,792)

Discount or premium on debentures 						
in foreign currencies
Discount on debentures			

(14,578) 		

(22,949)

					

3,161,747 		

3,949,032

24,131,770

₩

27,069,879

₩

The changes in debentures based on face value for the year ended December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Issues

Repayments

Others

Ending

Debentures in Korean won
Hybrid capital instrument

₩

100,000

₩

-

₩

-

₩

-

₩

100,000
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

Structured debentures 		

Issues

3,424,238		

Repayments

310,000 		

Others

(2,035,000)		

Ending

- 		

1,699,238

Subordinated fixed rate 											
debentures 		
7,995,571 		
1,799,980		
(1,898,791) 		
- 		
7,896,760
in Korean won		
Fixed rate debentures 											
10,791,612		
6,175,300 		
(6,834,487) 		
- 		
10,132,425
in Korean won 		
Floating rate debentures 											
803,258 		
765,000 		
(500,000) 		
- 		
1,068,258
in Korean won 		
				

23,114,679 		

9,050,280		

(11,268,278)		

- 		

20,896,681

Debentures 											
in foreign currencies
Floating rate debentures 		

1,309,606 		

198,478 		

(682,622)		

(65,679) 		

759,783

Fixed rate debentures 		

2,705,167		

1,034,162		

(1,042,992)		

(142,523) 		

2,553,814

				
			

₩

4,014,773 		
27,129,452

1,232,640		
₩

10,282,920

₩

(1,725,614)		
(12,993,892)

₩

(208,202) 		
(208,202)

₩

3,313,597
24,210,278

The changes in debentures based on face value for the year ended December 31, 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

Issues

Repayments

Others

Ending

Debentures in Korean won
Hybrid capital instrument

₩

Structured debentures 		

100,000

₩

3,684,341		

-

₩

500,000		

-

₩

(760,103) 		

-

₩

- 		

100,000
3,424,238

Subordinated fixed rate											
debentures 		
7,323,268		
800,000		
(127,697) 		
- 		
7,995,571
in Korean won 		
Fixed rate debentures 											
13,273,928 		
6,940,000		
(9,422,316) 		
- 		
10,791,612
in Korean won 		
Floating rate debentures 											
833,258 		
690,000		
(720,000) 		
-		
803,258
in Korean won 		
				

25,214,795		

8,930,000		

(11,030,116)		

- 		

23,114,679

Debentures 											
in foreign currencies
Floating rate debentures 		

1,686,459 		

322,800		

Fixed rate debentures 		

2,337,759 		

				

4,024,218 		

			

₩

29,239,013

₩

(789,143) 		

89,490 		

1,309,606

412,374		

(33,217)		

(11,749)		

2,705,167

735,174 		

(822,360)		

77,741 		

4,014,773

9,665,174

₩

(11,852,476)

₩

77,741

₩

27,129,452
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23. Provisions
The details of provisions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Provisions for unused loan commitments 			

2011

236,026

₩

₩

259,427

Provisions for acceptances and guarantees 				

208,753 		

311,502

Provisions for financial guarantee contracts 				

7,383 		

7,959

Provisions for asset retirement obligation 				

65,226		

60,059

Other 				
₩

152,341 		

158,792

669,729

797,739

₩

Provisions for unused loan commitments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Commitments
outstanding

Corporate loan commitments			

₩

40,770,994

Provision

₩

Ratio (%)

106,025 		

0.26

Retail loan commitments 				

14,348,821 		

41,273 		

0.29

Credit line on credit cards 				

36,214,899 		

88,728 		

0.25

236,026 		

0.26

₩

91,334,714

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Commitments
outstanding

Corporate loan commitments			

₩

36,365,468

Provision

₩

102,301 		

Ratio (%)

0.28

Retail loan commitments 				

14,632,998 		

44,499 		

0.30

Credit line on credit cards 				

39,070,550 		

112,627 		

0.29

90,069,016

259,427 		

0.29

₩

₩
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Provisions for acceptances and guarantees as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
2012
Acceptances
and guarantees

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees in Korean won 		

Provision

1,564,128

₩

Ratio (%)

33,554 		

₩

2.15

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees									
3,609,636 		
75,859 		
2.10
in foreign currencies 				
Unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees 				

4,244,517 		

					

9,418,281

₩

99,340		

2.34

208,753		

₩

2.22

2011
Acceptances
and guarantees

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees in Korean won 		

₩

Provision

1,605,167

Ratio (%)

39,318 		

₩

2.45

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees									
4,242,061 		
119,548 		
2.82
in foreign currencies 				
Unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees 				
					

₩

5,695,456 		
11,542,684

₩

152,636 		

2.68

311,502 		

2.70

The changes in provisions for unused loan commitments, acceptances and guarantees for the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Provisions for
unused loan
commitments

Beginning 			

₩

Provisions for
acceptances
and guarantees

259,427

₩

311,502

Total

₩

570,929

Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate				

(770) 		

(10,219)		

(10,989)

Reversal 				

(22,631)		

(68,777)		

(91,408)

Others 				
Ending 			

₩

-		
236,026

₩

(23,753)		

(23,753)

208,753

444,779

₩
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Provisions for
unused loan
commitments

Beginning 			

₩

284,667

Provisions for
acceptances
and guarantees

Total

414,254

₩

₩

698,921

Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate				

132 		

2,130 		

2,262

Reversal				

(25,372) 		

(104,882) 		

(130,254)

Ending 			

259,427

₩

311,502

₩

₩

570,929

The changes in provisions for financial guarantee contracts for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Beginning 					

7,959

₩

Reversal 				
Ending 					

2011

₩

18,866

(576) 		

(10,907)

7,383

₩

7,959

₩

The changes in provisions for asset retirement obligation for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Beginning 					

₩

Provision 				

2011

60,059

₩

49,461

4,115 		

5,893

Reversal 				

- 		

(94)

Used				

(1,296) 		

(1,845)

Unwinding of discount 				

2,483		

2,719

Effects of changes in discount rate				

(135) 		

3,925

Ending 					

₩

65,226

₩

60,059

Provisions for asset retirement obligations are present value of estimated costs to be incurred for restoration of the leased
properties. Actual expenses are expected to be incurred at the end of each lease contract. Three-year historical data of expired
leases were used to estimate the average lease period. Also, the average restoration expense based on actual three-year historical
data and the three-year historical average inflation rate were used to estimate the present value of estimated costs.
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The details of other provisions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Membership rewards program 					

2011

11,108

₩

13,495

Dormant accounts 				

16,028 		

11,292

Litigations 				

21,215 		

49,286

₩

Others 				

103,990 		

							

152,341

₩

84,719
158,792

₩

The changes in other provisions for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Membership
rewards program

Beginning

13,495

₩

Dormant
accounts

₩

11,292

Litigations

₩

49,286

Others

Total

84,719

₩

₩

158,792

Increase 		

15,958 		

13,998 		

18,073 		

51,799 		

99,828

Decrease		

(18,345) 		

(9,262)		

(46,144) 		

(32,528)		

(106,279)

Ending

11,108

₩

₩

16,028

₩

21,215

103,990

₩

₩

152,341

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Membership
rewards program

Beginning

12,437

₩

Dormant
accounts

₩

9,773

Litigations

6,200

₩

Others

₩

Total

224,412

₩

252,822

Increase 		

16,759 		

10,377 		

69,479 		

5,081 		

101,696

Decrease		

(15,701)		

(8,858)		

(26,393) 		

(144,774) 		

(195,726)

84,719

158,792

Ending

₩

13,495

₩

11,292

₩

49,286

₩

₩

24. Defined benefit liabilities
Defined benefit plan
The Group operates defined benefit plans which have the following characteristics:
-	The Group has the obligation to pay the agreed benefits to all its current and former employees.
-	Actuarial risk (that benefits will cost more than expected) and investment risk fall, in substance, on the Group.
The defined benefit liability recognized in the statements of financial position is calculated annually by independent actuaries in
accordance with actuarial valuation methods.
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The defined benefit obligation is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit method (the ‘PUC’). Data used in the PUC such as
interest rates, future salary increase rate, mortality rate, consumer price index and expected return on plan asset are based on
observable market data and historical data are updated annually.
Actuarial assumptions may differ from actual results, due to changes in the market, economic trends and mortality trends which
may impact defined benefit liabilities and future payments. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period incurred through profit or loss.

The changes in the defined benefit obligation for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Present value of defined benefit obligation (beginning) 			

2011

728,884

₩

₩

491,989

Current service cost 				

154,905 		

145,397

Interest cost 				

31,158 		

24,883

Actuarial gains(losses) 				

41,183 		

40,685

Exchange difference on foreign plans				

(85) 		

29

Benefits paid				

(24,308) 		

(17,885)

Past service cost 				

12,855 		

45,538

Curtailments				

(389)		

(827)

Settlements 				

(541)		

(925)

1

Present value of defined benefit obligation (ending) 			
1

943,662

₩

₩

728,884

Past service cost for the year ended December 31, 2011, included ₩ 34,427 million transferred from other provisions.

The changes in the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Fair value of plan assets (beginning)			

2011

₩

366,526

Expected return on plan assets 				

25,009 		

15,382

Actuarial gains(losses) 				

2,019 		

982

Contributions 				

255,078 		

235,736

Benefits paid 				

(23,596) 		

(17,658)

Settlements 				

(221) 		

(572)

Fair value of plan assets (ending) 			

₩

₩

600,396

858,685

₩

600,396
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The details of defined benefit liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Present value of defined benefit obligation 			

2011

₩

728,884

Fair value of plan assets				

(858,685) 		

943,662

(600,396)

Unrecognized past service cost				

(9,820) 		

-

Defined benefit liability 			

75,157

₩

₩

₩

128,488

The details of post-employment benefits recognized in profit and loss as employee compensation and benefits for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Current service cost			

2011

₩

145,397

Interest cost 				

31,158 		

24,883

Expected return on plan assets 				

(25,009)		

(15,382)

Actuarial losses(gains) 				

39,164 		

39,703

Past service cost 				

3,035 		

11,111

Curtailments				

(389)		

(827)

Post-employment benefits 			
1

154,905

₩

202,864

₩

₩

204,885

1	

Post-employment benefits amounting to ₩ 1,179 million and ₩ 548 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, are recognized as other
operating expense in the statements of comprehensive income.

The actual return on plan assets is ₩ 27,028 million and ₩ 16,364 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

The details of plan assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Time deposits 			

₩

2011

858,685

₩

600,396
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Key actuarial assumptions used as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
Ratio (%)
2012

2011

Discount rate

3.00 ~ 3.64

3.76 ~ 4.40

Expected return on plan assets

3.20 ~ 4.19

3.71 ~ 3.91

Future salary increase rate

0.00 ~ 8.90

0.00 ~ 10.00

Mortality assumptions are based on the 2012 Korea standard mortality rates table.

The present value of defined benefits obligation, fair value of plan assets and actuarial adjustments to each items as of December
31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Dec. 31,
2012

Present value of defined benefits obligation

₩

943,662

Dec. 31,
2011

₩

Dec. 31,
2010

728,884

Jan. 1,
2010

491,989

₩

₩

584,404

Fair value of plan assets 		

(858,685) 		

(600,396)		

(366,526) 		

(417,017)

Unrecognized Past service cost		

(9,820)		

- 		

-		

-

Deficit in the funded plans 		

75,157 		

128,488 		

125,463 		

167,387

Experience adjustments 									
on defined benefits obligation 		
20,741		
24,075		
(75,924) 		
Changes in assumptions to 									
defined benefits obligation 		
20,442 		
16,610 		
51,018 		
Experience adjustments to plan assets 		

(2,019)		

(982) 		

6,966		

-

Expected contributions to plan assets for the year ending December 31, 2013, are ₩ 85,915 million.

25. Other liabilities
The details of other liabilities, excluding defined benefits liabilities, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Other financial liabilities
Other payables 			

₩

3,000,703

Prepaid card and debit card 				

18,165		

20,151

Accrued expenses 				

4,191,789		

4,219,075

₩

3,866,824
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Financial guarantee liabilities 				

8,174 		

7,217

Deposits for letter of guarantees and others 				

114,171 		

154,542

Domestic exchange settlement credits 				

167,842 		

133,568

Foreign exchanges settlement credits				

52,456		

88,480

Borrowings from other business account 				

34,367 		

11,827

Other payables from trust accounts 				

2,115,603 		

1,918,766

Liability Incurred by agency relationship 				

499,249 		

197,537

Account for agency businesses 				

402,290 		

134,256

Dividend payables 				

489		

-

Other payables from factored receivables 				

78,025		

-

Others 				

42,424 		

75,983

						

11,591,868 		

9,962,105

Other payables 				

29,027 		

126,666

Unearned revenue 				

117,009 		

125,190

Accrued expenses				

229,441		

184,412

Deferred revenue on credit card points 				

111,838		

106,132

Withholding taxes 				

121,700 		

154,478

Insurance liabilities 				

4,837,166		

3,531,436

Separate account liabilities				

661,782		

543,819

Others 				

38,667 		

351,931

						

6,146,630 		

5,124,064

Other non-financial liabilities

					

₩

17,738,498

15,086,169

₩

26. Equity
26.1 Share capital
The details of outstanding shares of the Parent Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
Ordinary shares
2012

2011

Number of shares authorized 		

1,000,000,000 		

1,000,000,000

Number of shares 		

386,351,693		

386,351,693

Par value per share 			

₩

5,000

₩

5,000

Share capital stock 			

₩

1,931,758

₩

1,931,758

1

1

In millions of Korean won.
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26.2 Capital surplus
The details of capital surplus as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Share premium 			

2011

12,226,596

₩

12,226,596

₩

Loss on sale of treasury shares				

(568,544)		

(568,544)

Other capital surplus 				

4,182,248 		

4,183,772

15,840,300

₩

15,841,824

₩

The changes in the loss on sale of treasury shares for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Beginning

₩

Changes

Tax effect

(568,544) 		

Ending

-		

-

(568,544)

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Beginning

₩

(420,484) 		

Changes

Tax effect

(195,285)		

Ending

47,225

(568,544)

₩

26.3 Accumulated other comprehensive income
The details of accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 			

2011

₩

(1,465)

Change in value of available-for-sale financial assets 				

438,760 		

200,275

Change in value of held-to-maturity financial assets				

(1,225) 		

(1,652)

Shares of other comprehensive income of associates				

(48,372) 		

(4,195)

Cash flow hedges				

(2,133)		

(1,321)

₩

₩

(27,061)

359,969

₩

191,642
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26.4 Retained earnings
The details of retained earnings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, consist of:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

Legal reserves1 			

2011

124,014

₩

124,014

Voluntary reserves 				

982,000		

982,000

Unappropriated retained earnings 				

5,271,477 		

3,846,737

6,377,491

4,952,751

₩

₩

₩

1

	With respect to the allocation of net profit earned in a fiscal term, the Parent Company must set aside in its legal reserve an amount equal to at least 10% of its net income
after tax as reported in the separate statement of comprehensive income each time it pays dividends on its net profits earned until its legal reserve reaches at least the
aggregate amount of its share capital in accordance with Article 53 of the Financial Holding Company Act. The reserve is not available for the payment of cash dividends,
but may be transferred to share capital, or used to reduce accumulated deficit.

Regulatory Reserve for Credit Losses
Measurement and Disclosure of Regulatory Reserve for Credit Losses are required in accordance with Articles 26 through 28 of
Supervisory Regulations on Financial Holding Companies.
The details of the regulatory reserve for credit losses as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Regulatory reserve for credit losses attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company 			

₩

2,136,367

Non-controlling interests				
₩

₩

1,816,074

1,184		
2,137,551

₩

643
1,816,717

The adjustments to the regulatory reserve for credit losses as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won, except earnings per share)

2012

Provision(reversal) of regulatory reserve for credit losses 			

₩

Adjusted profit after provision(reversal) of regulatory reserve for credit losses1 				

2011

₩

512,975

1,382,620 		

320,293

1,860,051

Adjusted basic earnings per share after provision (reversal) 							
3,579 		
5,064
of regulatory reserve for credit losses1				
Adjusted diluted earnings per share after provision (reversal) 							
3,568 		
5,052
of regulatory reserve for credit losses1				
1	

Adjusted profit after provision(reversal) of regulatory reserve for credit losses is not accordance with K-IFRS and calculated on the assumption that provision(reversal) of
regulatory reserve for credit losses before income tax is adjusted to the profit.
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27. Net Interest Income
The details of interest income and interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Interest income
Due from financial institutions 			

160,030

₩

74,663

12,383,831 		

12,226,763

Available-for-sale financial assets 				

801,565 		

775,783

Held-to-maturity financial assets 				

626,763 		

693,605

Other 				

183,636 		

185,443

						

14,155,825 		

13,956,257

Deposits 				

5,318,726 		

4,944,615

Debts 				

394,812 		

324,076

Debentures 				

1,257,316 		

1,508,328

Other 				

69,058 		

74,726

						

7,039,912 		

6,851,745

Net interest income 			

7,115,913

7,104,512

₩

Loans 				
Financial investments

Interest expenses

₩

₩

Interest income recognized on impaired loans and financial investments amounts to ₩ 124,183 million (2011: ₩ 121,221 million)
and ₩ 200 million (2011: ₩ 200 million), respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

28. Net Fee and Commission income
The details of fee and commission income, and fee and commission expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Fee and commission income
Banking activity fees 			

₩

188,652

Lending activity fees 				

89,964 		

88,521

Credit card related fees and commissions 				

1,179,618 		

1,142,306

Debit card related fees and commissions				

217,870 		

192,686

Agent activity fees 				

286,600		

238,216

Trust and other fiduciary fees 				

171,746 		

165,772

Fund management related fees 				

81,477		

75,699

Guarantee fees 				

33,594 		

34,181

₩

169,244
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Foreign currency related fees				

108,611 		

114,722

Commissions from transfer agent services 				

174,829 		

211,776

Other business account commission on consignment 				

30,354		

173,893

Securities brokerage fees 				

67,858		

57,435

Other 				

166,903 		

145,895

						

2,778,668		

2,829,754

Trading activity related fees1 				

14,962 		

3,498

Lending activity fees				

6,605 		

2,743

Credit card related fees and commissions 				

997,368		

842,294

Outsourcing related fees				

62,153 		

61,551

Foreign currency related fees 				

11,638		

18,003

Management fees of written-off loans				

3,169		

6,331

Other 				

90,132 		

100,584

Fee and commission expense

						

1,186,027 		

1,035,004

Net fee and commission income 			

1,592,641

1,794,750

1

₩

₩

The fees from financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

29. Net gains or losses on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
29.1 Net gains or losses on financial instruments held for trading
Net gain or loss from financial instruments held for trading includes interest income, dividend income and gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair values, sales and redemptions. The details for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Gains related to financial instruments held for trading
Financial assets held for trading
		 Debt securities 			

₩

284,225

		 Equity securities				

107,732 		

70,345

						

409,164 		

354,570

₩

301,432
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Derivatives held for trading
Interest rate 				

946,936 		

970,825

Currency 				

2,726,277		

4,194,484

Stock or stock index 				

685,454 		

365,123

Credit 				

- 		

1,107

Commodity 				

486 		

2,421

Other 				

10,482 		

3,775

						

4,369,635 		

5,537,735

Financial liabilities held for trading 				

69,866 		

48,483

Other financial instruments 				

48 		

1,046

					

₩

4,848,713

₩

5,941,834

₩

63,291

₩

76,661

Losses related to financial instruments held for trading
Financial assets held for trading
		 Debt securities			

		 Equity securities 				

69,814 		

96,571

						

133,105 		

173,232

Interest rate 				

961,535		

1,011,068

Currency 				

2,275,295 		

3,308,219

Stock or stock index 				

665,037 		

305,610

Credit 				

- 		

848

Commodity 				

506 		

2,238

Derivatives held for trading

Other 				

11,582 		

3,260

						

3,913,955 		

4,631,243

Financial liabilities held for trading 				

113,929		

107,786

Other financial instruments 				

35		

816

						

4,161,024 		

Net gains or losses on financial instruments held for trading			

₩

687,689

₩

4,913,077
1,028,757
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29.2 Net gains or losses on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
Net gain or loss from financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss includes interest income, dividend income
and gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values, sales and redemptions. The details for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Gains related to financial instruments designated 							
at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 			

117,213

₩

6,231

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 				

5,230		

66,126

						

122,443		

72,357

₩

Losses related to financial instruments designated 							
at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 				

6,753 		

57,084

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 				

152,176 		

8,163

						

158,929		

65,247

Net gains or losses on financial instruments designated 							
₩
(36,486) ₩
7,110
at fair value through profit or loss 			

30. Other operating income and expenses
The details of other operating income and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Other operating income
Revenue related to available-for-sale financial assets
		 Gains on redemption of available-for-sale financial assets 			

₩

118

		 Gains on sale of available-for-sale financial assets 				

149,833 		

551,506

						

150,313 		

551,624

		 Reversal of impairment losses on held-to-maturity financial assets 				

- 		

117

						

- 		

117

Gains on foreign exchange transactions 				

1,095,999 		

1,562,633

Income related to insurance 				

1,730,466 		

1,011,089

Dividend income 				

91,882 		

94,391

Others 				

321,442		

464,340

						

3,390,102		

3,684,194

₩

480

Revenue related to held-to-maturity financial assets
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Other operating expenses
Expense related to available-for-sale financial assets
		 Loss on redemption of available-for-sale financial assets 				

11 		

22

		 Loss on sale of available-for-sale financial assets 				

16,877 		

19,038

		 Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets 				

281,053		

51,072

						

297,941 		

70,132

Expense related to held-to-maturity financial assets
		 Impairment on held-to-maturity financial assets 				

154		

150

						

154 		

150

Loss on foreign exchanges transactions 				

1,412,769 		

2,208,390

Expense related to insurance 				

1,822,178 		

1,088,357

Others 				

1,312,330 		

1,409,174

						

4,845,372		

4,776,203

Net other operating income (expenses) 			

₩

(1,455,270)

(1,092,009)

₩

31. General and administrative expenses
31.1 General and administrative expenses
The details of general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

20111

Employee Benefits
Salaries and short-term employee benefits - salaries			

₩

1,657,823

Salaries and short-term employee benefits - others 				

656,772 		

521,894

Post employment benefits - defined benefit plans 				

201,685 		

204,337

Post employment benefits - defined contribution plans 				

5,463		

4,005

Termination benefits				

(3,960) 		

12,308

Share-based payments(reversal) 				

13,871		

(7,609)

						

2,473,975		

2,392,758

Depreciation and amortization 				

328,365 		

342,493

₩

2

1,600,144
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Other general and administrative expenses
Rental expense 				

276,813 		

255,760

Tax and dues 				

72,228 		

144,716

Communication 				

53,583 		

73,531

Electricity and utilities				

24,946 		

23,535

Publication 				

20,764		

23,308

Repairs and maintenance				

13,447		

15,576

Vehicle 				

12,330 		

11,392

Travel 				

5,701 		

5,405

Training 				

22,443		

25,300

Service fees				

106,272 		

99,706

Others 				

474,418 		

518,328

						

1,082,945		

1,196,557

					

3,885,285

3,931,808

₩

₩

1

Other general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2011, reclassified as employee benefits, amount to ₩ 521,894 million.

2

Reversal of share-based payments was due to the decrease in share price.

31.2 Share-based payments
31.2.1 Share options
The details of the share options as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(In number of shares)

Grant date

Exercise
period (Years)

Granted
shares1

Vesting conditions

Series 15-1

2005.03.18

8 		

165,000

Service period: 3 years3

Series 15-2

2005.03.18

8 		

690,000

Service period: 3 years4

Series 17

2005.07.22

8 		

30,000

Service period: 3 years4

Series 18

2005.08.23

8 		

15,000

Service period: 3 years4

Series 19

2006.03.24

8 		

930,000

Series 20

2006.04.28

8 		

30,000

Service period: 3 years2

Series 21

2006.10.27

8 		

20,000

Service period: 2 years2

Series 22

2007.02.08

8 		

855,000

Series 23

2007.03.23

8 		

30,000

						

2,765,000

Service period: 1, 2, 3 years2

Service period: 1, 3 years2
Service period: 3 years2

1

Granted shares represent the total number of shares initially granted to directors and employees whose options have not been exercised at the end of the reporting period.

2

The exercise price is indexed to the sum of the major competitors’ total market capitalization.

3

The exercise price is indexed to the banking industry index.

4

The exercisability and number of shares are linked to certain performance conditions for the service period.
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The changes in the number of granted share options and the weighted average exercise price for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In Korean won, except shares)

2012
Number of granted shares
Beginning

Series 12 		

Exercised

Expired

Number of
exercisable
shares

Ending

- 		

54,250		

Series 13-1		

20,000		

- 		

20,000		

-		

- 		

- 		

-

Series 15-1 		

125,362 		

- 		

- 		

125,362 		

125,362 		

54,656 		

0.21

Series 15-2		

440,928		

-		

- 		

440,928 		

440,928 		

46,800		

0.21

Series 17 		

29,441 		

- 		

- 		

29,441 		

29,441 		

49,200 		

0.56

Series 18 		

7,212 		

- 		

- 		

7,212 		

7,212 		

53,000 		

0.64

Series 19 		

751,651 		

- 		

- 		

751,651 		

751,651 		

77,063 		

1.23

Series 20 		

25,613		

- 		

-		

25,613 		

25,613		

81,900 		

1.32

Series 21 		

18,987 		

- 		

- 		

18,987 		

18,987		

76,600 		

1.82

Series 22 		

657,498		

- 		

- 		

657,498 		

657,498 		

77,100 		

2.11

Series 23 		

15,246 		

- 		

- 		

15,246 		

15,246 		

84,500 		

2.22

				

2,146,188 		

- 		

74,250 		

2,071,938 		

- ₩

46,787

₩

68,144 ₩

₩

-		

Remaining
contractual
life(Years)

54,250 		

Weighted
average
exercise price

- 		

Exercise
price per
share

- 		

-

2,071,938

68,909 ₩

68,909

(In Korean won, except shares)

2011
Number of granted shares
Beginning

Exercised

Expired

Number of
exercisable
shares

Ending

Exercise
price per
share

Remaining
contractual
life(Years)

Series 10-1 		

40,063 		

23,385 		

16,678 		

-		

- 		

-		

-

Series 10-2 		

51,303 		

51,303		

-		

- 		

- 		

-		

-

Series 11 		

5,091 		

5,091 		

- 		

-		

- 		

-		

-

Series 12 		

54,250		

- 		

- 		

54,250 		

54,250 		

46,100 		

0.11

Series 13-1 		

20,000 		

- 		

- 		

20,000 		

20,000		

48,650 		

0.23

Series 15-1 		

125,362 		

- 		

- 		

125,362 		

125,362		

54,656 		

1.21

Series 15-2 		

450,928		

10,000 		

- 		

440,928		

440,928 		

46,800 		

1.21

Series 16 		

8,827		

8,827		

- 		

-		

-		

- 		

-

Series 17 		

29,441 		

- 		

- 		

29,441 		

29,441 		

49,200		

1.56

Series 18 		

7,212		

-		

- 		

7,212 		

7,212 		

53,000 		

1.65

Series 19		

751,651		

- 		

- 		

751,651 		

751,651 		

77,063		

2.33

Series 20 		

25,613		

-		

- 		

25,613		

25,613 		

81,900		

2.33

Series 21 		

18,987		

- 		

- 		

18,987 		

18,987 		

76,600 		

2.82

Series 22		

657,498 		

- 		

-		

657,498 		

657,498		

77,100		

3.11

228

KB Financial Group

(In Korean won, except shares)

2011
Number of granted shares
Beginning

Series 23 		

Exercised

15,246		

Expired

- 		

Ending

- 		

Number of
exercisable
shares

15,246 		

15,246		

Exercise
price per
share

Remaining
contractual
life(Years)

84,500 		

3.23

Series Kookmin															
22,146		
- 		
22,146		
-		
-		
- 		
Credit Card -1 		
Series Kookmin															
9,990 		
- 		
9,990		
-		
- 		
-		
Credit Card -2 		
				
Weighted
average
exercise price

₩

2,293,608 		
67,108 ₩

98,606 		

48,814 		

40,630 ₩

75,058

₩

2,146,188 		
68,144 ₩

2,146,188
68,144

The weighted-average share price for share options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2011, was ₩ 57,960.

The fair value of each option granted is estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the assumptions in the
table below:
(In Korean won)

Share
price

Weighted
average
exercise
price

Expected
volatility
(%)

Option’s
expected
life
(Years)

Expected
dividends

Risk free
interest
rate (%)

Fair value

Series 15-1															
₩
37,200 ₩
54,656 		
12.63 		
0.11 ₩
33		
2.78 		
(Directors)
Series 15-2															
37,200 		
46,800 		
12.63 		
0.11 		
33 		
2.78		
(Directors) 		
Series 15-2															
37,200 		
46,800 		
12.63		
0.11		
33 		
2.78		
(Employees) 		
Series 17															
37,200 		
49,200 		
20.97 		
0.28 		
86 		
2.78 		
11
(Directors) 		
Series 18															
37,200 		
53,000 		
23.46 		
0.32 		
100 		
2.78 		
6
(Employees) 		
Series 19															
37,200 		
76,726 		
22.99 		
0.61 		
189 		
2.78		
(Directors) 		
Series 19															
37,200		
77,390 		
18.90 		
0.15 		
47 		
2.78		
(Employees) 		
Series 20															
37,200 		
81,900 		
21.49		
0.25		
77 		
2.78		
(Employees) 		
Series 21															
37,200 		
76,600 		
24.73 		
0.75 		
230		
2.78 		
3
(Employees) 		
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(In Korean won)

Share
price

Weighted
average
exercise
price

Expected
volatility
(%)

Option’s
expected
life
(Years)

Expected
dividends

Risk free
interest
rate (%)

Fair value

Series 22															
37,200 		
77,100 		
25.85 		
1.05 		
323		
2.78 		
12
(Directors) 		
Series 22															
37,200		
77,100 		
26.04		
1.03		
316 		
2.78 		
14
(Employees) 		
Series 23															
(Non-executive		
37,200 		
84,500 		
27.27		
1.11 		
340 		
2.78		
9
directors)		

The option’s expected life is separately estimated for employees and directors using actual historical behavior and projected
future behavior to reflect the effects of expected early exercise. Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the share
price over the most recent period that is generally commensurate with the expected term of the option. To reflect the changes in
exercise price which is indexed to the sum of the major competitors’ total market capitalization, cross volatility is used in calculating
the expected volatility.

31.2.2 Share Grants
The Group changed the scheme of share-based payment from share options to share grants in November 2007. The share grant
award program is an incentive plan that sets, on grant date, the maximum amount of shares that can be awarded. Actual shares
granted at the end of the vesting period is determined in accordance with achievement of pre-specified targets over the vesting
period.
The details of the share grants as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
(In number of shares)

Share grants

Grant date

Number of
granted
shares1

Vesting conditions

(KB Financial Group Inc.)
Series 1
2008.09.29
2,543
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 2

Series 2

Service fulfillment 3

2009.03.27

3,090

Series 3
2010.01.01
32,256
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 4,10

Series 4
2010.07.13
218,944
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 5,10

Series 5
2010.12.23
13,260
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 6,10

Series 6
2011.08.10
8,183
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 6,10

Series 7
2012.01.01
42,568
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 4,10

				

320,844
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(In number of shares)

Share grants

Grant date

Number of
granted
shares1

Vesting conditions

(Kookmin Bank)
Series 23
2010.07.29
73,650
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 7,10

Series 24
2010.08.03
25,707
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10,11

Series 25
2010.08.12
18,472
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 7,10

Series 27
2010.09.20
6,222
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 28
2010.12.21
50,310
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 29
2010.12.23
5,559
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 31
2011.01.03
16,479
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 32
2011.03.24
7,986
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of non-market performance 9,10

Series 33
2011.07.07
6,025
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 34
2011.08.10
10,242
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 35
2011.10.12
8,846
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 36
2011.10.18
8,596
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 10,12

Series 37
2011.12.23
68,310
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 38
2012.01.01
171,100
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 39
2012.01.08
120,176
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 40
2012.08.01
8,978
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 41
2012.08.02
36,938
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 42
2012.09.20
8,244
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10

Series 43
2012.11.26
13,918
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 8,10
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(In number of shares)

Share grants

Grant date

Number of
granted
shares1

Vesting conditions

Grant deferred in 2010

-

10,392

Satisfied

Grant deferred in 2011

-

26,884

Satisfied

Grant deferred in 2012

-

13,547

Satisfied

				

716,581

(Other subsidiaries)
Share granted in 2010 		
33,822
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 13

Share granted in 2011 		
38,931
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 13

Share granted in 2012 		
63,976
					

Services fulfillment, Achievement of targets on the basis 		
of market and non-market performance 13

				

136,729

				

1,174,154

1
2

Granted shares represent the total number of shares initially granted to directors and employees at the end of reporting period.
	The vesting condition is to fulfill the remaining contracted service period. The number of certain granted shares to be compensated is determined based on the fulfillment
of service requirements. The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of certain granted shares to be compensated are determined upon the accomplishment of the targeted
KPIs, the targeted financial results of the Group and the targeted relative TSR, respectively.

3

The number of granted shares to be compensated is determined based on fulfillment of service requirements.

4

	The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined upon the accomplishment of targeted KPIs, targeted financial results of
the Group and targeted relative TSR, respectively. However, 50% of certain granted shares will be compensated based on the accomplishment of targeted KPIs and the
remaining 50% of those shares will be compensated based on the accomplishment of targeted relative TSR.

5

	The 37.5%, 37.5% and 25% of the number of certain granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of targeted relative TSR, targeted
relative EPS ratio and qualitative indicators, respectively. The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of other granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the
accomplishment of targeted KPIs, targeted financial results of the Group and targeted relative TSR, respectively. The 40%, 40% and 20% of the number of the remaining
granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted relative EPS ratio, the targeted relative TSR and qualitative indicators,
respectively.

6

	The 40%, 30% and 30% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted relative TSR, the targeted KPIs
and the targeted financial results of the Group, respectively.

7

	The 40%, 40% and 20% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted relative TSR, the targeted
relative EPS ratio and qualitative indicators, such as a trend of ROA of last two years, respectively.

8

	The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted KPIs, the targeted financial
results of the Kookmin Bank and the targeted relative TSR, respectively.

9

The number of granted shares to be compensated is not linked to performance, but fixed.

10

Certain portion of the granted shares is compensated over a maximum period of threeyears.

11

Fair value of compensation per granted share is confirmed.

12

	Half of the number of granted shares to be compensated is determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted relative TSR, while the other is determined by the
targeted KPIs.

13

	The 30%, 30% and 40% of the number of granted shares to be compensated are determined based on the accomplishment of the targeted KPIs, subsidiary’s MOU with
the Group and the targeted relative TSR, respectively. The 60% and 40% of the number of certain granted shares to be compensated are determined based on subsidiary’s
MOU with the Group and the targeted relative TSR, respectively.
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The details of share grants linked to short-term performance as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
Grant date

Number of
vested
shares1

Vesting conditions

(KB Financial Group Inc.)
Share granted in 2010

2010.01.01

6,149

Satisfied

Share granted in 2011

2011.01.01

19,279

Satisfied

Share granted in 2012

2012.01.01

24,257

Proportion to service period

(Kookmin Bank)

1

Share granted in 2010

2010.01.01

54,858

Satisfied

Share granted in 2011

2011.01.01

142,778

Satisfied

Share granted in 2012

2012.01.01

179,905

Proportion to service period

The number of shares, which are exercisable, is determined by the results of performance. The share grants are settled over three years.

Share grants are measured at fair value using the Monte Carlo Simulation Model and assumptions used in determining the fair
value are as follows:
(In Korean won)

Expected
exercise
period
(Years)

Risk free
rate (%)

Fair value
(Market
performance
condition)

Fair value
(Non-market
performance
condition)

Linked to long term performance
(KB Financial Group Inc.)
Series 1-4 		

0.22 		

2.78 		

- 		

37,800

Series 2-3 		

0.22 		

2.78 		

- 		

37,800

Series 3-1 		

0.25~1.00 		

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~38,564

Series 3-2 		

0.25~2.00 		

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~39,366

Series 3-3 		

0.25~1.00		

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~38,564

Series 4-1 		

0.53~3.53 		

2.78 		

5,401		 38,961~40,501

Series 4-2 		

0.53~3.53		

2.78 		

5,874 		 38,961~40,501

Series 4-3 		

0.25~3.00 		

2.78 		

37,117 		 37,117~40,159

Series 4-4 		

0.25~3.00		

2.78 		

37,117 		 37,117~40,159

Series 4-5		

0.25~3.00		

2.78 		

37,117 		 37,117~40,159

Series 5-1		

0.25~2.00		

2.78 		

-		 37,117~39,366

Series 6-1 		

1.00~4.00		

2.78 		

8,321 		 37,616~40,925

Series 7-1 		

1.00~4.00		

2.78 		

17,835 		 37,616~40,925

0.53~3.53		

2.78 		

5,713 		 37,635~40,501

(Kookmin Bank)
Series 23 		
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(In Korean won)

Expected
exercise
period
(Years)

Risk free
rate (%)

Fair value
(Market
performance
condition)

Fair value
(Non-market
performance
condition)

Series 24 		

0.25~3.00 		

2.78		

-		 37,117~40,159

Series 25 		

0.53~3.53 		

2.78 		

5,673 		 37,635~40,501

Series 27 		

0.25~3.00 		

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~40,159

Series 28		

0.25~3.00		

2.78		

- 		 37,117~40,159

Series 29		

0.25~3.00 		

2.78		

- 		 37,117~40,159

Series 31		

0.25~3.00

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~40,159

Series 32		

1.22~4.23

2.78 		

- 		 37,451~40,894

Series 33		

0.50~4.00

2.78		

5,117 		 37,743~40,925

Series 34		

0.61~4.00		

2.78		

8,454 		 37,666~40,925

Series 35 		

1.00~4.00		

2.78 		

10,764 		 37,616~40,925

Series 36 		

1.00~4.00		

2.78 		

11,559 		 37,616~40,925

Series 37 		

1.00~4.00		

2.78 		

17,351 		 37,616~40,925

Series 38 		

1.00~4.00		

2.78 		

17,835 		 37,616~40,925

Series 39 		

1.00~4.00		

2.78 		

17,591 		 37,616~40,925

Series 40 		

1.58~5.00		

2.79 		

23,052		 37,283~41,706

Series 41 		

1.58~5.00		

2.79 		

23,100 		 37,396~41,706

Series 42 		

1.72~5.00		

2.79 		

17,946 		 37,471~41,706

Series 43		

1.90~5.00		

2.80 		

17,739 		 37,363~41,706

Grant deferred in 2010 		

0.25~1.00 		

2.78		

- 		 38,529~39,366

Grant deferred in 2011 		

0.25~2.00 		

2.78		

- 		 38,056~39,366

Grant deferred in 2012		

0.25~2.00		

2.78		

- 		 38,564~39,366

Share granted in 2010 		

0.25~0.65 		

2.78 		

0~37,117 		 37,117~37,801

Share granted in 2011 		

1.00~1.35 		 2.78~2.79 		 4,482~11,720		 37,450~37,616

Share granted in 2012		

2.00~2.54 		 2.80~2.82		 19,787~25,616 		 36,989~37,291

(Other subsidiaries)

Linked to short term performance
(KB Financial Group Inc.)
Share granted in 2010		

0.25~1.00 		

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~38,564

Share granted in 2011		

0.25~2.00 		

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~39,366

Share granted in 2012 		

1.00~3.00 		

2.78 		

- 		 38,564~40,159

Share granted in 2010		

0.25~1.00		

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~38,564

Share granted in 2011		

0.25~2.00		

2.78 		

- 		 37,117~39,366

Share granted in 2012		

1.00~3.00 		

2.78		

- 		 38,564~40,159

(Kookmin Bank)
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Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the share price over the most recent period that is generally commensurate
with the expected term of the grant. And the current stock price as of December 31, 2012, was used for the underlying asset
price. Additionally, the average three-year historical dividend rate was used as the expected dividend rate. The Group used the
historical data of Kookmin Bank for the period before the Parent Company was incorporated.
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the accrued expenses related to share-based payments including share options and share
grants amounted to ₩ 63,315 million and ₩ 27,236 million, respectively, and the compensation costs from share options and
share grants amounts to ₩ 13,871 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 and amounting ₩ 7,609 million were reversed
for the years ended December 31, 2011. There is no intrinsic value of the vested share options as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

32. Non-operating income and expenses
The details of non-operating income and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Non-operating income
Gains of disposal in property and equipment			

5,840

₩

313

Rent received 				

4,349		

3,678

Others 				

51,328 		

56,580

						

61,517 		

60,571

Losses of disposal in property and equipment				

426		

768

Donation 				

80,448		

77,889

₩

Non-operating expenses

Restoration cost 				

945 		

1,981

Others 				

116,232 		

122,424

						

198,051		

203,062

Net non-operating income(expense) 			

₩

(136,534)

₩

(142,491)

33. Tax expense
Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, consists of:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Tax payable
Current tax expense 			

₩

695,135

₩

816,051

Adjustments recognized in the period for current tax of prior years 				

18,017 		

3,639

						

713,152 		

819,690

Changes in deferred income tax assets (liabilities)				

(86,976)		

(80,996)
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(in millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Income tax recognized directly in equity				

(76,836) 		

93,540

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 				

- 		

(11)

Change in value of available-for-sale financial assets				

(78,003)		

46,303

Change in value of held-to-maturity financial assets				

(240)		

(249)

Share of other comprehensive income of associates 				

362 		

31

Cash flow hedges				

1,025		

241

Losses on Sale of Treasury Stock 				

- 		

47,225

Others 				

20		

-

Tax expense 			

549,340

₩

832,234

₩

An analysis of the net profit before income tax and income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

Proportion (%)

2012

2011

Net profit before income tax			

₩

2,261,328

₩

3,260,806

Tax at the applicable tax rate1

24.18 		

₩

546,779

₩

789,089

Non-taxable income

(0.28)			

(6,291)		

(14,325)

Non-deductible expense

0.59 			

13,268 		

16,220

Tax credit and tax exemption

(0.01)			

(187)		

(2,198)

Temporary difference for which no deferred tax is recognized

0.07 			

1,633		

(2,567)

Deferred tax relating to changes in recognition and measurement

(0.32) 			

(7,289)		

(8,459)

Income tax refund for tax of prior years

(0.88) 			

(19,870) 		

23,479

Income tax expense of overseas branch

0.75 			

16,929 		

18,308

Effects from change in tax rate

0.04			

941		

16,436

Others

0.15 			

3,427		

(3,749)

Tax expense

24.29 		

1

549,340

₩

₩

832,234

	Applicable income tax rate for ₩ 200 million and below is 11%, for ₩ 200 million to ₩ 20 billion is 22% and for over ₩ 20 billion is 24.2% as of December 31, 2012.
In addition, for ₩ 200 million and below is 11%, for over ₩ 200 million is 24.2% as of December 31, 2011.

The details of current tax assets (income tax refund receivables) and current tax liabilities (income tax payables), as of December
31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Tax payables
(receivables)
before offsetting

Income tax refund receivables 			

₩

Income tax payables 				

(429,676)

Tax payables
(receivables)
after offsetting

Offsetting

₩

679,822		

415,156

₩

(415,156) 		

(14,520)
264,666
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Tax payables
(receivables)
before offsetting

Income tax refund receivables 			

₩

(228,579)

Income tax payables 				

Tax payables
(receivables)
after offsetting

Offsetting

216,981

₩

805,806 		

₩

(11,598)

(216,981) 		

588,825

34. Dividends
The dividends paid to the shareholders of the Parent Company in 2012 and 2011 were ₩ 278,173 million (₩720 per share) and
₩ 41,163 million (₩120 per share), respectively. The dividends to the shareholders of the Parent Company in respect of the year
ended December 31, 2012, of ₩ 600 per share, amounting to total dividends of ₩ 231,811 million, is to be proposed at the
annual general meeting on March 22, 2013. The Group's consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2012, do not
reflect this dividend payable.

35. Accumulated other comprehensive income
The details of accumulated other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Changes
except for
reclassification

Beginning

Reclassification
to profit or loss

Tax effect

Ending

Exchange differences on											
translating foreign
₩
(1,465) ₩
(25,596)
₩
- ₩
- ₩
(27,061)
operations
Change in value of											
available-for-sale		
200,275 		
386,966		
(70,478)		
(78,003) 		
438,760
financial assets 		
Change in value 											
of held-to-maturity 		
(1,652)		
671		
(4)		
(240) 		
(1,225)
financial assets 		
Shares of other											
comprehensive income 		
(4,195) 		
(44,491)		
(48)		
362		
(48,372)
of associates		
Cash flow hedges		
₩

(1,321)		
191,642

₩

(26,837) 		
290,713

₩

25,000 		
(45,530)

₩

1,025 		
(76,856)

₩

(2,133)
359,969
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Changes
except for
reclassification

Beginning

Reclassification
to profit or loss

Tax effect

Ending

Exchange differences on											
translating foreign
₩
(6,957) ₩
5,503
₩
- ₩
(11) ₩
(1,465)
operations
Change in value of											
available-for-sale 		
443,389		
(37,308)		
(252,109) 		
46,303 		
200,275
financial assets 		
Change in value 											
of held-to-maturity		
(2,098)		
699		
(4)		
(249) 		
(1,652)
financial assets		
Shares of other											
comprehensive income 		
(3,762)		
(464) 		
-		
31		
(4,195)
of associates		
Cash flow hedges 		
₩

- 		
430,572

₩

21,631		
(9,939)

₩

(23,193) 		
(275,306)

241		
46,315

₩

₩

(1,321)
191,642

36. Earnings per share
36.1 Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, excluding the treasury shares, during the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding:
(In number of shares)

2012
Number of
shares (a)

Beginning (A) 				

386,351,693		

Days
outstanding (b)

Total outstanding
shares [(a) x (b)]

366 		 141,404,719,638

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 								
386,351,693
[(B) =(A)/366] 								
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(In number of shares)

2011
Number of
shares (a)

Days
outstanding (b)

Total outstanding
shares [(a) x (b)]

Beginning (A) 				

386,351,693		

365		 141,018,367,945

Treasury shares (B) 				

43,322,704		

13		

563,195,152

						

40,984,474		

28		

1,147,565,272

						

37,463,510		

42		

1,573,467,420

						

34,966,962		

105		

3,671,531,010

										

6,955,758,854

Total outstanding shares [(C)=(A)-(B)] 								 134,062,609,091
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 								
367,294,819
[(D) =(C)/365]								

Basic earnings per share:
(in Korean won and in number of shares)

2012

Profit attributable to ordinary shares (E)

₩

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (F) 		
Basic earnings per share [(G)=(E)/(F)]

1,702,913,550,877
386,351,693
4,408

₩

(in Korean won and in number of shares)

2011

Profit attributable to ordinary shares (E)

₩

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (F) 		
Basic earnings per share [(G)=(E)/(F)]

₩

2,373,026,068,477
367,294,819
6,461

36.2 Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding which is adjusted
by the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Group’s dilutive potential ordinary shares include share grants.
A calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
market share price of the Group’s outstanding shares for the period) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to the share options. The number of shares calculated above is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of share grants.
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Adjusted profit for diluted earnings per share:
(in Korean won)

2012

Profit attributable to ordinary shares

₩

1,702,913,550,877

Adjustment 		
Adjusted profit for diluted earnings per share

-

₩

1,702,913,550,877
(in Korean won)

2011

Profit attributable to ordinary shares

₩

2,373,026,068,477

Adjustment 		
Adjusted profit for diluted earnings per share

-

₩

2,373,026,068,477

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to calculate diluted earnings per share:
(in number of shares)

2012

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 				

2011

386,351,693 		

367,294,819

1,193,606 		

884,974

Adjustment
Share grants 				

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 							
387,545,299 		
368,179,793
for diluted earnings per share 				

Diluted earnings per share:
(in Korean won and in number of shares)

2012

Adjusted profit for diluted earnings per share

₩

1,702,913,550,877

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 			
387,545,299
for diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

4,394

₩

(in Korean won and in number of shares)

2011

Adjusted profit for diluted earnings per share

₩

2,373,026,068,477

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 			
368,179,793
for diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

₩

6,445
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37. Insurance Contracts
37.1 Insurance liabilities
The details of insurance liabilities presented within other liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Individual insurance
Pure Endowment insurance			

3,281,701

₩

2,159,534

Death insurance 				

63,821		

54,008

₩

Joint insurance 				

1,470,755 		

1,301,139

Group insurance 				

1,285 		

266

Other 				

19,604 		

16,489

4,837,166

₩

₩

3,531,436

The changes in insurance liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Individual insurance
Pure
Endowment
insurance

Beginning

₩

Death
insurance

2,159,534 ₩

Provision 		

1,122,167 		

Ending

3,281,701 ₩

₩

54,008 ₩

Group
insurance

Joint
insurance

1,301,139 ₩

9,813 		

169,616 		

63,821 ₩

1,470,755 ₩

Other1

266 ₩

Total

16,489 ₩

1,019 		
1,285 ₩

3,531,436

3,115 		

1,305,730

19,604 ₩

4,837,166

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Individual insurance
Pure
Endowment
insurance

Beginning

₩

Provision 		
Ending
1

₩

Death
insurance

Joint
insurance

Group
insurance

Other1

1,640,681 ₩

51,166 ₩

1,152,599 ₩

234 ₩

13,496 ₩

518,853 		

2,842 		

148,540 		

32		

2,993 		

2,159,534 ₩

54,008 ₩

1,301,139 ₩

266 ₩

16,489 ₩

Consists of policyholders' profit dividend reserve, reserve for compensation for losses on dividend-paying insurance contracts and others.

Total

2,858,176
673,260
3,531,436
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37.2 Insurance assets
The details of insurance assets presented within other assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Reinsurance assets 			

2011

3,751

₩

2,146

151,925 		

126,304

155,676

128,450

₩

Deferred acquisition costs 				
₩

₩

The changes in reinsurance assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Beginning			

2011

2,146

₩

690

Increase (decrease) 				

1,605 		

1,456

Ending			

3,751

2,146

₩

₩

₩

The changes in deferred acquisition costs for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Beginning 			

2011

126,304

₩

Increase 				

₩

71,407

106,959		

102,476

Amortization				

(81,338)		

(47,579)

Ending 			

151,925

126,304

₩

₩

37.3 Insurance premiums and reinsurance
The details of insurance premiums for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012
Pure
endowment
insurance

Insurance premiums earned

₩

Reinsurance premiums paid 		
Net premiums earned

₩

1,307,974 ₩
(196)		
1,307,778 ₩

Death
insurance

19,547 ₩
(2,637)		
16,910 ₩

Joint
insurance

352,482 ₩
(133)		
352,349 ₩

Group
insurance

3,967 ₩
(892)		
3,075 ₩

Others

39,081 ₩
(8,354) 		
30,727 ₩

Total

1,723,051
(12,212)
1,710,839
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(In millions of Korean won)

2011
Pure
endowment
insurance

Insurance premiums earned

₩

Reinsurance premiums paid 		
Net premiums earned

Death
insurance

651,281 ₩

7,073 ₩

(333)		

₩

Joint
insurance

339,204 ₩

(773)		

650,948 ₩

6,300 ₩

Group
insurance

Others

1,640 ₩

(161)		

8,173 ₩

(1,373)		

339,043 ₩

Total

(2,056) 		

267 ₩

6,117 ₩

1,007,371
(4,696)
1,002,675

The details of reinsurance transactions for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Reinsurance expense

Reinsurance revenue

Reinsurance premium paid

Individual

2,966

₩

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance commission

1,150

₩

1,000

₩

Total

2,150

₩

Group 		

892 		

1,138 		

-		

1,138

Others 		

8,354 		

4,127 		

- 		

4,127

12,212

₩

6,415

₩

1,000

₩

7,415

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Reinsurance expense

Reinsurance revenue

Reinsurance premium paid

Individual

1,268

₩

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance commission

623

₩

674

₩

Total

1,297

₩

Group 		

1,372 		

1,133 		

- 		

1,133

Others 		

2,056 		

1,288 		

- 		

1,288

4,696

3,044

₩

₩

674

₩

3,718

₩

Insurance expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

(In millions of Korean won)

2012
Pure
endowment
insurance

Insurance expense

₩

Dividend expense 		

2,659 ₩

Death
insurance

1,637 ₩

Joint
insurance

Group
insurance

6,232 ₩

Others

2,775 ₩

2,423 ₩

12 		

- 		

Refund expense 		

202,965 		

4,043 		

183,061 		

215		

- 		

390,284

Provision 		

1,122,167 		

9,813 		

169,616 		

1,019 		

3,115 		

1,305,730

				

1,327,945 		

15,505 		

358,909 		

4,009 		

5,538 		

1,711,906

Reinsurance claims 		

(184)		

(898)		

(68) 		

(1,138)		

(4,127)		

(6,415)

₩

1,327,761 ₩

14,607 ₩

358,841 ₩

2,871 ₩

- 		

15,726

154 		

Net insurance expense

- 		

Total

1,411 ₩

166

1,705,491
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(In millions of Korean won)

2011
Pure
endowment
insurance

Insurance expense

₩

2,010 ₩

Death
insurance

Joint
insurance

670 ₩

Group
insurance

25,201 ₩

Others

1,663 ₩

Total

206 ₩

29,750

Dividend expense 		

73		

11		

1		

- 		

- 		

85

Refund expense 		

150,627		

3,565 		

171,090 		

276		

-		

325,558

Provision		

518,853 		

2,842 		

148,540 		

32		

2,993		

673,260

				

671,563		

7,088 		

344,832 		

1,971		

3,199 		

1,028,653

Reinsurance claims		

(106) 		

(433)		

(84) 		

(1,133)		

(1,288) 		

(3,044)

Net insurance expense

₩

671,457 ₩

6,655 ₩

344,748 ₩

838 ₩

1,911 ₩

1,025,609

37.4 Insurance risk
Summary of insurance risk
Insurance risk is the risk of loss arising from the actual risk at the time of claims exceeding the estimated risk at the time of
underwriting. Insurance risk is classified by insurance price risk and policy reserve risk.
Insurance price risk is the risk of loss arising from differences between premiums from policyholders and actual claims paid.
Policy reserve risk is the risk of loss arising from differences between policy reserves the Group holds and actual claims to be paid.

Concentration of insurance risk and reinsurance policy
The Group uses reinsurance with the intent to expand the ability of underwriting insurance contracts through mitigating the
exposure to insurance risk, and generates synergy by joint development of products, management discipline and collecting
information on foreign markets.
The Group cedes reinsurance for mortality, illness and other risks arising from insurance contracts where the Group has little
experience for a necessary period of time required to accumulate experience.

The Group’s Reinsurance is ceded through the following process:
i. In the decision-making process of launching a new product, the Group makes a decision on ceding reinsurance. Subsequently,
a reinsurer is selected through bidding, agreements with the relevant departments and final approval by the executive
management.
ii. The reinsurance department analyzes the object of reinsurance, the maximum limit of reinsurance and the loss ratio with the
relevant departments.

The characteristic and exposure of insurance price risk
The insurance risk of a life insurance company is measured by insurance price risk. As the life insurance coverage is in form of a
fixed payment, the fluctuation of policy reserve is small and the period from insured event to claims payment is not long, the policy
reserve risk is managed by assessments of adequacy of the policy reserve.
The Group measures the exposure of insurance price risk as the shortfall of the risk premiums received compared to the claims
paid on all insurance contracts for the last 12 months preceding the reporting date.
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The maximum exposure of premium risk as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Before reinsurance
mitigation

Mortality

After reinsurance
mitigation

8,016

₩

Disability 		

5,905

₩

509 		

176

Hospitalization 		

821		

507

Operation and diagnosis 		

1,914 		

911

Actual losses for medical expense		

121 		

43

Other 		

86 		

66

11,467

₩

7,608

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Before reinsurance
mitigation

Mortality

5,091

₩

After reinsurance
mitigation

3,068

₩

Disability 		

633 		

485

Hospitalization 		

676 		

509

Operation and diagnosis 		

1,162		

908

Actual losses for medical expense 		

60		

32

Other 		

84 		
7,706

₩

65
5,067

₩

Average ratios of claims paid per risk premium received on the basis of exposure before mitigation for the past three years as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, were 68% and 68%, respectively.

The exposure of market risk arising from embedded derivatives included in host insurance contracts as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Policyholders
reserve

Variable annuity

₩

Variable universal 		
₩

524,903

Guarantee
reserve

₩

117,397 		
642,300

2011

₩

Policyholders
reserve

3,937

₩

59 		
3,996

₩

459,174

Guarantee
reserve

₩

70,533 		
529,707

₩

3,444
35
3,479
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Premium reserves and unearned premium reserves classified based on each residual maturity as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Lower than
3 years

3-5 years

5-10 years

10-15 years

15-20 years

20 Years or
more

Total

Premium 															
₩
156,070 ₩
276,101 ₩ 1,615,643 ₩
270,973 ₩
345,853 ₩ 2,109,936 ₩
4,774,576
reserves
Unearned 															
premium 		
741 		
- 		
2 		
- 		
2 		
4 		
749
reserves 		
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Lower than
3 years

3-5 years

5-10 years

10-15 years

15-20 years

20 Years or
more

Total

Premium 															
₩
67,027 ₩
213,331 ₩ 1,198,711 ₩
294,585 ₩
319,018 ₩ 1,389,754 ₩
3,482,426
reserves
Unearned 															
premium 		
35		
- 		
2 		
- 		
2 		
4 		
43
reserves 		

38. Trust Accounts
Financial information of the trust accounts the Group manages as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Total
assets

Consolidated

₩

Non-consolidated 		
₩
1

27,844

2011
Operating
revenues

₩

4,325

Total
assets

₩

Operating
revenues1

28,505

₩

4,139

41,600,085 		

3,321,017 		

46,181,817 		

2,402,180

41,627,929

3,325,342

46,210,322

2,406,319

₩

₩

₩

	Financial information of the trust accounts has been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Korea Accounting Standard 5004, Trust Accounts, and enforcement
regulations of Financial Investment Services under the Financial Investment Services and Capital Markets Act.
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Significant transactions between the Group and the trust accounts for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Revenues
Fees and commissions from trust accounts 			

₩

165,772

Interest income from loans on trust accounts 				

171,746

16,071 		

9,327

Commissions from early termination in trust accounts 				

157 		

226

						

187,974 		

175,325

54,911 		

59,891

33,900 		

37,418

Due from trust accounts 				

206,138 		

264,211

						

240,038 		

301,629

2,115,603 		

1,918,766

₩

Expenses
Interest expenses due to trust accounts 				
Assets
Accrued trust fees 				

Liabilities
Due to trust accounts 				
Accrued interest on due to trust accounts 				
₩

4,264		
2,119,867

₩

6,204
1,924,970

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrying amounts of the trust accounts for which the Group guarantees payment of
principal are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Old age pension 			

2011

₩

5,267

Personal pension 				

1,729,349 		

1,715,696

Pension trust 				

1,344,484		

1,183,155

Retirement trust 				

25,136 		

132,823

New personal pension 				

83,303 		

82,493

New old age pension 				

10,283 		

12,963

₩

₩

4,089

3,196,644

₩

3,132,397

1

	The carrying amount of the trust accounts has been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Korea Accounting Standard 5004, Trust Accounts, and enforcement
regulations of Financial Investment Services under the Financial Investment Services and Capital Markets Act.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there is no amount the Group has to pay in relation to the management results of the trust
accounts in accordance with the guarantees of payment of principal.
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39. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Cash 			

2011

₩

1,840,829

Checks with other banks 				

808,461		

781,269

Due from Bank of Korea 				

3,215,181 		

3,942,158

Due from other financial institutions 				

4,503,059 		

2,613,869

						

10,568,350 		

9,178,125

Restricted due from financial institutions				

(3,642,713) 		

(4,171,213)

₩

2,041,649

Due from financial institutions with original maturities over three-months 				

(361,914)		

(266,108)

						

(4,004,627)		

(4,437,321)

₩

6,563,723

₩

4,740,804

Significant non-cash transactions for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Decrease in loans due to the write-offs 			

2011

₩

2,181,414

Changes in other comprehensive income due to valuation of investment securities 			

249,647 		

(242,668)

Increase in available-for-sale financial assets from debt-equity swap 				

1,388 		

1,914

₩

2,197,135

Cash inflow and outflow from income tax, interest and dividends for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

Activity

Income tax paid (refund) 			

Operating 		

Interest received			

2012

2011

838,073

₩

(121,533)

Operating 		

14,434,239		

14,384,913

Interest paid 			

Operating 		

7,158,510 		

6,830,541

Dividends received			

Operating 		

91,587 		

98,212

Dividends paid 			

Financing 		

278,173		

41,163

Dividends paid on hybrid capital instrument 			

Financing 		

- 		

46,331

Cash flows generated by business combination
As of the acquisition date, the Group acquired cash and cash equivalents amounting to ₩ 40,575 million through the purchase &
assumption(P&A) deal for selected assets and liabilities of Jeil Savings Bank Co., Ltd., and no consideration was transferred.
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40. Contingent liabilities and commitments
Acceptances and guarantees as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees
Confirmed acceptances and guarantees in Korean won
Acceptances and guarantees for corporate purchasing card 			

₩

70,134

Acceptances and guarantees for KB purchasing loan 				

546,480 		

684,445

Bid bond 				

-		

402

Performance bond 				

- 		

649

Other acceptances and guarantees 				

1,017,631 		

849,537

						

1,564,128 		

1,605,167

Acceptances of letter of credit 				

204,764 		

411,145

Letter of guarantees 				

66,535 		

57,903

₩

17

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees in foreign currency

Bid bond 				

85,228 		

41,721

Performance bond 				

529,088 		

437,046

Refund guarantees 				

2,172,006 		

3,025,855

Other acceptances and guarantees				

552,015		

268,391

						

3,609,636		

4,242,061

Acceptances and guarantees for debentures 				

- 		

208

Acceptances and guarantees for mortgage 				

45,123 		

57,079

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees 				

- 		

20,000

Overseas debt guarantees 				

238,670 		

244,929

International financing guarantees in foreign currencies				

21,422		

-

						

305,215		

322,216

						

5,478,979 		

6,169,444

Guarantees of letter of credit				

3,326,326 		

4,023,393

Refund guarantees 				

918,191 		

1,672,063

Unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees

						
₩

4,244,517 		
9,723,496

₩

5,695,456
11,864,900
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Acceptances and guarantees by counter party as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Confirmed
guarantees

Corporations

₩

4,237,305

Unconfirmed
guarantees

₩

Proportion
(%)

Total

2,450,719

₩

6,688,024 		

68.78

Small companies 		

1,185,994 		

763,254 		

1,949,248 		

20.05

Public and others 		

55,680 		

1,030,544 		

1,086,224 		

11.17

4,244,517

9,723,496		

₩

5,478,979

₩

₩

100.00
(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Confirmed
guarantees

Corporations

₩

Small companies 		
Public and others 		
₩

4,571,010

Unconfirmed
guarantees

₩

2,954,567

₩

1,505,137 		

1,005,318		

93,297 		

1,735,571 		

6,169,444

₩

Proportion
(%)

Total

5,695,456

₩

7,525,577 		

63.43

2,510,455 		

21.16

1,828,868 		
11,864,900 		

15.41
100.00

Acceptances and guarantees by industry as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Confirmed
guarantees

Financial institutions

100,647 		

1.04

3,262,542 		

2,198,617 		

5,461,159 		

56.16

Service 		

389,831 		

33,815 		

423,646 		

4.36

Whole sale & Retail 		

924,602 		

725,224 		

1,649,826 		

16.97

Construction 		

754,876 		

284,448 		

1,039,324 		

10.69

Public sector 		

20,650 		

972,777 		

993,427 		

10.22

Others 		

34,441 		

21,026 		

55,467 		

0.56

₩

5,478,979

₩

₩

8,610

Proportion
(%)

Total

Manufacturing 		

₩

92,037

Unconfirmed
guarantees

4,244,517

₩

₩

9,723,496 		

100.00
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(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Confirmed
guarantees

Financial institutions

₩

75,048

Unconfirmed
guarantees

₩

5,176

Proportion
(%)

Total

₩

80,224 		

0.68

Manufacturing 		

4,196,612 		

2,884,922 		

7,081,534 		

59.68

Service 		

162,960 		

49,197		

212,157 		

1.79

Whole sale & Retail 		

991,023 		

858,189 		

1,849,212 		

15.59

Construction 		

639,406 		

177,030 		

816,436		

6.88

Public sector 		

58,129 		

1,663,052 		

1,721,181 		

14.51

Others 		

46,266 		

57,890 		

104,156 		

0.87

₩

6,169,444

₩

5,695,456

₩

11,864,900 		

100.00

Commitments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Commitments
Corporate loan commitments 			

₩

36,365,468

Retail loan commitments 				

14,348,821 		

14,632,998

Credit line on credit cards 				

36,214,899 		

39,070,550

₩

40,770,994

Private placement commitments 				

80,000 		

-

Private indirect reinvestment trusts for the stabilization of bond markets 				

1,778,767 		

1,674,926

Purchase of other security investment 				

93,193,481		

91,743,942

Credit line 				

1,141,554 		

471,951

Purchase of security investment 				

163,500 		

151,000

						

1,305,054 		

622,951

Financial Guarantees

					

₩

94,498,535

₩

92,366,893
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Other Matters (including litigation)
a) The Group has filed 93 lawsuits (excluding minor lawsuits in relation to the collection or management of loans), involving
aggregate claims of ₩ 898,300 million, and faces 322 lawsuits (as the defendant) (excluding minor lawsuits in relation to the
collection or management of loans) involving aggregate damages of ₩ 439,568 million, which arose in the normal course of the
business and are still pending as of December 31, 2012.
Meanwhile, several customers of Kookmin Bank filed lawsuits against Kookmin Bank claiming a refund of fees for putting up
fixed collateral as of December 31, 2012. One lawsuit is on its second trial, while the court ruled in favor of Kookmin Bank during
the first trial. The others are on their first trial. A relatively low probability of an outflow of resources is expected in relation to the
outcome of the lawsuits.
b) According to the shareholders’ agreement on September 25, 2009, among Kookmin Bank, the International Finance
Corporation (“IFC”) and the remaining shareholders, Kookmin Bank granted a put option to IFC with the right to sell shares of
JSC Bank Center Credit to itself or its designee. The exercise price is determined at its fair value by mutual agreement between
Kookmin Bank and IFC. If the price is not agreed by the designated date, it is determined by the value measured by the selected
independent external valuation institution. The put option may be exercised by IFC at any time from February 24, 2013, to
February 24, 2017. However, if the put trigger event defined in the shareholders’ agreement occurs, and consequently, if a put
notice is delivered to Kookmin Bank within 60 days from the date when IFC recognizes such event, IFC may also exercise its put
option at any time after February 24, 2010.
c) The face value of the securities sold to general customers through tellers’ sale amounts to ₩ 116,633 million and ₩ 142,145
million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
d) Kookmin Bank underwent a tax investigation by the Seoul Regional Tax Office and in early 2007 was assessed additional
corporate tax including local income tax of ₩ 482,755 million. Kookmin Bank paid this amount to the Tax authorities. Subsequently,
Kookmin Bank filed a claim for adjudication in August 2007 for repayment of the amount of ₩ 482,643 million. Of this amount,
₩ 117,135 million has been refunded to Kookmin Bank following a successful appeal to the National Tax Tribunal and
administrative litigations. Further, a portion of the claim amounting to ₩ 970 million has been extinguished following litigation.
Meanwhile, the claim for a refund of ₩ 364,538 million, specifically related to the merger of Kookmin Card Co., Ltd. was ruled in
favor of Kookmin Bank in an original case on April 1, 2011, and in a second trial at the Seoul High Court on January 12, 2012.
The ruling has been appealed by the Tax authorities to the Supreme Court, where it is currently pending third trial as of December
31, 2012.
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41. Asset-backed securitization
The Group issued debentures secured by certain transferred assets.
The details of debentures which are secured by loans and other financial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Interest
rates (%)

Expiration
date

Underlying assets

Senior
debentures

Loans

Securities

KB Mortgage Loan 1st									
Securitization
1.29
2039-12-08
₩
249,668 ₩
361,702 ₩
Specialty Co., Ltd.1
KAMCO Value 									
Recreation 3th									
10.73
2014-06-30 		
3,258 		
19,000 		
Securitization
2
Specialty Co., Ltd.
KB Kookmin Card First									
LIBOR+0.48
2014-11-26 		
321,330 		
601,924		
Securitization Co., Ltd.1
Wise Mobile First 									
Securitization
2.90~3.17
2015-09-07 		
570,000 		
533,936		
Specialty
						

1,144,256 		

1,516,562 		

-

Premiums(discounts) on									
(2,495)		
- 		
debentures				
₩

1,141,761

₩

1,516,562

-

₩

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Interest
rates (%)

Expiration
date

Underlying assets

Senior
debentures

Loans

Securities

KB Mortgage Loan 1st									
Securitization
2.57
2039-12-08
₩
335,169 ₩
434,376 ₩
Specialty Co., Ltd.1
KAMCO Value 									
Recreation 3th									
5.16
2012-10-09 		
3,258 		
19,000 		
Securitization
2
Specialty Co., Ltd.
New Star 1st Co., Ltd.3

5.05

2012-01-18 		

50,000 		

- 		

50,218

KB Kookmin Card First									
Securitization Co., Ltd.1
LIBOR+0.48
2014-11-26 		
345,990 		
616,089		
						

734,417 		

1,069,465 		

50,218

Premiums(discounts) on									
(2,566)		
- 		
debentures				
₩
1

Included in the floating rate debentures in foreign currencies (Note 22).

2

Included in the floating rate debentures in Korean won (Note 22).

3

Included in the fixed rate debentures in Korean won (Note 22).

731,851

₩

1,069,465

₩

50,218
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42. The Subsidiaries
The details of subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:
Investor

Investee

Ownership
interests(%)

Location

financial
Date of
information

Industry

KB Financial						
Group Inc.
Kookmin Bank
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
						

Banking and domestic,		
foreign exchange 		
transaction

			

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd.

Credit card

			
			

KB Investment & Securities									
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Financial investment
Co., Ltd.

			

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

			
		

KB Asset Management
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Co., Ltd.				

100.00

51.00

Korea

Korea

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Life insurance
Security investment trust
management and advisory

		
KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd.
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
								

Real estate trust 		
management

			

Investment in small company

KB Investment Co., Ltd.

100.00

Korea

Dec. 31

			
KB Credit Information Co., Ltd.
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
								

Collection of receivables or
credit investigation

			
KB Data System Co., Ltd.
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
								

Software advisory,		
development, and supply

			

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd.

Savings banking

Kookmin Bank
			

Kookmin Bank Int'l Ltd.
100.00 United Kingdom Dec. 31
(London)				

Banking and foreign 		
exchange transaction

			
Kookmin Bank Hong Kong Ltd.
100.00
Hong Kong
Dec. 31
								

Banking and foreign 		
exchange transaction

			
Kookmin Bank Cambodia PLC.
92.44
Cambodia
Dec. 31
								

Banking and foreign 		
exchange transaction

			
Kookmin Bank (China) Ltd.
100.00
China
Dec. 31
								

Banking and foreign 		
exchange transaction

100.00

Korea

Dec. 31

			
			

Principal & interest 									
Korea
Dec. 31
Trust
guaranteed trust1

			
			
			

KB Mortgage Loan First 									
Korea
Securitization Specialty
Dec. 31
Asset-backed securitization
and others
1
Co., Ltd. and 6 others

			
			

KB Evergreen Private 									
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Private equity fund
Securities26 and 25 others1

Kookmin Bank,
KB Investment
Co., Ltd.

KB06-1 Venture Investment

75.00

Korea

Dec. 31

Capital investment

KB08-1 Venture Investment

100.00

Korea

Dec. 31

Capital investment

KB12-1 Venture Investment

100.00

Korea

Dec. 31

Capital investment

KB Asset
Management
Co., Ltd.

KB Wellyan Private Equity 									
95.67
Korea
Dec. 31
Investment fund
Real Estate Fund No. 6

			

KB Wellyan Private Equity 									
47.97
Korea
Dec. 31
Investment fund
Real Estate Fund No. 7

			

Boyoung construction

-

Korea

Dec. 31

Construction
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Investor

Ownership
interests(%)

Investee

Location

financial
Date of
information

Industry

KB Investment
Co., Ltd.

NPS 07-5 KB Venture Fund2

20.00

Korea

Dec. 31

Capital investment

09-5 KB Venture Fund

33.33

Korea

Dec. 31

Capital investment

			
			

NPS KBIC Private Equity									
2.56
Korea
Dec. 31
Capital investment
Fund No. 13

			
			
			

KoFC-KB Pioneer Champ									
No.2010-8 Investment
50.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Capital investment		
Partnership2

			
			

KBIC Private Equity 									
2.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Capital investment
Fund No. 33

			

2011 KIF-KB IT Venture Fund2

			
			

KoFC-KB Young Pioneer 									
33.33
Korea
Dec. 31
Capital investment
1st Fund2

KB Investment
& Securities

KB-Glenwood Private Equity 									
0.03
Korea
Dec. 31
Capital investment
Fund 13

			

New Star 1st. Ltd. 1

2

43.33

-

Korea

Korea

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Capital investment

Asset-backed securitization

KB-Glenwood
Chungkang Co., Ltd.
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Capital investment		
Private Equity											
Fund 1
1

Chungkang
Co., Ltd.

Electronic product		
Powernet Technologies Co., Ltd.
92.64
Korea
Dec. 31
						 manufacturing

KB Kookmin
Card Co., Ltd

KB Kookmin Card First 									
Korea
Dec. 31
Asset-backed securitization
Securitization Co., Ltd.1

			
			

Wise Mobile First Securitization 									
Korea
Dec. 31
Asset-backed securitization
Specialty1

KB Life
Insurance
Co., Ltd.

GS Focus and Concentrate 									
Private Equity Fund No.3
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Private equity fund		
and 6 others1

KB Investment
KB K-Alpha private equity trust 1
80.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Investment trust		
& Securities,											
KB Asset											
Management											
Co., Ltd.
Kookmin Bank,
KB Wise Star Private Real Estate 						 			
100.00
Korea
Dec. 31
Investment trust
KB Investment
Feeder Fund 1st.1
		
& Securities,											
KB life											
Insurance, 											
KB Real Estate											
Trust Co., Ltd
1

The activities of entities, decision-making powers and benefits and risks are considered when special purpose entities are consolidated.

2

Consolidated because the Group controls the entities as an executive member.

3

Consolidated because the Group controls the entities as a general partner.
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The condensed financial information of major subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011, follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012
Assets

Kookmin Bank1

Liabilities

Operating
income
(revenue)

Equity

Profit(loss)
for the year

₩ 257,748,697 ₩ 237,791,142 ₩ 19,957,555 ₩ 19,273,344 ₩

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd. 		

14,046,174 		

1

10,966,541 		

3,079,633 		

2,921,167 		

Total
comprehensive
income(loss)
for the year

1,416,142 ₩
291,592 		

1,555,163
297,423

KB Investment 													
3,357,196 		
2,812,067 		
545,129 		
1,083,947 		
18,741 		
22,610
& Securities Co., Ltd.1 		
KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.1 		

5,987,928 		

5,594,727 		

393,201 		

1,944,103 		

16,606 		

38,514

KB Asset Management 													
164,595 		
37,555 		
127,040 		
89,541 		
35,885 		
36,933
Co., Ltd. 		
KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd. 		

201,572 		

35,363 		

166,209 		

52,021		

21,446 		

21,565

KB Investment Co., Ltd. 		

504,480 		

381,038 		

123,442 		

39,878 		

5,474 		

7,379

1

KB Credit Information 													
30,422		
7,631 		
22,791 		
58,584		
331 		
331
Co., Ltd. 		
KB Data System Co., Ltd.		

25,519 		

10,761 		

14,758 		

78,021		

(1,461)		

(1,461)

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. 		

646,674 		

510,254 		

136,420 		

62,237		

(34,860)		

(34,616)

(In millions of Korean won)

2011
Assets

Kookmin Bank1

Liabilities

Equity

Operating
income
(revenue)

Profit(loss)
for the year

₩ 256,512,260 ₩ 237,443,855 ₩ 19,068,405 ₩ 22,274,350 ₩

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd. 		
1

13,349,351 		

10,567,141 		

2,782,210 		

2,426,030 		

Total
comprehensive
income(loss)
for the year

2,047,881 ₩
319,794 		

1,601,009
328,188

KB Investment 													
3,314,875 		
2,792,356 		
522,519
787,354 		
28,169 		
37,732
& Securities Co., Ltd.1 		
KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.1 		

4,515,809 		

4,161,121 		

354,688 		

1,220,799 		

18,572		

24,842

KB Asset Management 													
177,691 		
57,612 		
120,079		
83,855		
(5,655)		
(5,603)
Co., Ltd. 		
KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd. 		

251,228 		

106,584 		

144,644 		

51,564 		

15,405 		

15,512

KB Investment Co., Ltd. 		

498,506		

382,444		

116,062 		

61,574		

9,322 		

10,360

1

KB Credit Information 													
30,529 		
8,069		
22,460 		
54,874		
(2,391)		
(2,391)
Co., Ltd. 		
KB Data System Co., Ltd. 		
1

30,590 		

Financial information is based on its consolidated financial statements.

14,370 		

16,220 		

117,467		

2,148		

2,148
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Kookmin Bank
Kookmin Bank engages in the banking business in accordance with Banking Act, trust business in accordance with Capital
Market and Financial Investment Business Act and other relevant businesses. As of December 31, 2012, Kookmin Bank has 1,193
domestic branches and offices and five overseas branches (excluding four subsidiaries and three offices). Kookmin Bank’s share
capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩ 2,021,896 million.

KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd.
KB Kookmin Card Co., Ltd. (the “KB Kookmin Card”) was established upon spin off of Kookmin Bank’s credit card business
segment in March 2011, to engage in the credit card business under the Act on Registration of Credit Business and Protection of
Finance Users and other related business. Its headquarters are located in Seoul. KB Kookmin Card’s share capital as of December
31, 2012, is ₩ 460,000 million.

KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd.
KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd. (the “KB Investment & Securities”) was established on August 16, 1995, to engage in
financial investment business services including investment trading services and brokerage services and in other related services
in accordance with the Capital Market and Financial Investment Business Act. On March 11, 2008, the former Hannuri Investment
& Securities changed its name to KB Investment & Securities. KB Investment & Securities Co., Ltd. merged with KB Futures Co.,
Ltd. on March 12, 2011. Its headquarters are located in Seoul. KB Investment & Securities’ share capital as of December 31,
2012, is ₩ 157,942 million.

KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
KB Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (the “KB Life Insurance”) was established on April 29, 2004, to engage in financial insurance
operations. On May 31, 2004, the company merged with Hanil Life Insurance Co., Ltd., undertaking all the insurance contracts
and related assets and liabilities. The life insurance business under the Insurance Business Act is one of the company’s major
business operations. Its headquarters are located in Seoul. KB Life Insurance’s share capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩
276,000 million.

KB Asset Management Co., Ltd.
KB Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the “KB Asset Management”) was established on April 1988 to engage in investment advisory
services including consulting and providing information on investments in securities. On July 1997, it started to engage in
collective investment businesses (previously known as security investment trust operations) under the Capital Market and Financial
Investment Business Act (previously called the Security Investment Trust Business Act). Its headquarters are located in Seoul. KB
Asset Management’s share capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩ 38,338 million.

KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd.
KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd. (the “KB Real Estate Trust”) was established on December 3, 1996, to provide real estate trust
services including land trust. Under the Capital Market and Financial Investment Business Act (previously called the Trust Business
Act), the Financial Services Commission authorized the company to engage in real estate trust service. On September 16, 2002,
the name of the company changed to KB Real Estate Trust Co., Ltd. from Jooeun Real Estate Trust Inc. Its headquarters are
located in Seoul. KB Real Estate Trust’s share capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩ 80,000 million.
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KB Investment Co., Ltd.
KB Investment Co., Ltd. (the “KB Investment”) was established on March 27, 1990, to provide services to small startup
companies. Its main business is to invest in venture companies and small startup companies, and to organize startup investment
cooperatives and private equity funds. On April 3, 1990, the company, under Section 7 of the Support for Small and Medium
Enterprise Establishment Act, was listed on the Small Business Administration as a small startup business investment organization.
KB Investment purchases impaired loans, invests in companies under debt restructuring process, and sells reorganized companies
after normalization. In March 2001, the company, under the Industrial Development Act, registered as a Corporate Restructuring
Company in the Ministry of Knowledge Economy. As approved by its shareholders on June 25, 2009, its name was changed to KB
Investment Co., Ltd. Its headquarters are located in Seoul. KB Investment’s share capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩ 44,759
million.

KB Credit Information Co., Ltd.
KB Credit Information Co., Ltd. (the “KB Credit Information”) was established on October 9, 1999, under the Credit Information
Protection Act to engage in loan collection services and credit research services. On May 2, 2002, the company merged with KM
Credit Information Inc. to improve management of subsidiaries. As approved by its shareholders on October 28, 2002, its name
was changed from Kookeun Credit Information Co., Ltd. to KB Credit Information Co., Ltd. Its headquarters are located in Seoul.
KB Credit Information’s share capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩ 6,262 million.

KB Data Systems Co., Ltd.
KB Data Systems, Co., Ltd. (the “KB Data Systems”) was established on September 1991 to engage in computer system
development and its sales, system maintenance, and information technology outsourcing services. Its headquarters are located in
Seoul. KB Data Systems’ share capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩ 8,000 million.

KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd.
KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. (the “KB Savings Bank”) was established on January 2012, signed a purchase & assumption(P&A) deal
for selected assets and liabilities of Jeil Savings Bank Co., Ltd. and acquired the assets and liabilities on January 13, 2012. KB
Savings Bank operates its business mainly in loan, bill discounting and depository business under the Mutual Savings Banks Act.
Its headquarters are located in Seoul. KB Savings Bank’ share capital as of December 31, 2012, is ₩ 34,000 million.

Kookmin Bank Int’l Ltd.(London)
Kookmin Bank Int’l Ltd.(London) was established in November 1991 and operates its businesses mainly in general banking,
trading finance, foreign currency exchange, and derivatives. Its name was changed from Korea Long Term Credit Bank Int’l Ltd. to
Kookmin Bank Int’l Ltd.(London) when the Bank merged with Korea Long Term Credit Bank in January 1999. The headquarters
are located in London, England. Kookmin Bank Int’l Ltd.(London)’s share capital as of December 31, 2012, is USD 30,392,000.

Kookmin Bank Hong Kong Ltd.
Kookmin Bank Hong Kong Ltd. was established in July 1995 and operates its businesses in general banking and trading finance.
The headquarters are located in Hong Kong. Kookmin Bank Hong Kong Ltd.’s share capital as of December 31, 2012, is USD
20,000,000.
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Kookmin Bank Cambodia PLC.
Kookmin Bank acquired 51% of ownership in Kookmin Bank Cambodia PLC. in May 2009.
As of December 31, 2012, Kookmin Bank owns 92.44% through its participation in paid-in capital increase in December 2010 and
the additional acquisition of equity interests for a purchase consideration of ₩ 8,048 million in July 2012. In particular, Kookmin
Bank Cambodia PLC. mainly operates lending, borrowing, foreign currency exchange services, and other ordinary banking
business. The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Kookmin Bank Cambodia PLC on the date of acquisition was
₩ 8,364 million. Kookmin Bank derecognized non-controlling interests of ₩ 7,013 million and recorded a decrease in equity
attributable to owners of the parent of ₩ 1,035 million. The headquarters are located in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. Kookmin Bank
Cambodia PLC.’s paid-in capital as of December 31, 2012, is USD 16,000,000.

Kookmin Bank (China) Ltd.
Kookmin Bank (China) Ltd. was established in November 19, 2012, and operates its businesses in general banking and trading
finance. The Group established Corporation Limited by integrating local branches in China, Beijing, Harbin, Suzhou, Guangzhou.
The Group owns 100% of ownership. The headquarters are located in Beijing, China. Kookmin Bank (China) Ltd.’s share capital as
of December 31, 2012, is USD 383,874,937.

Special Purpose Entities(SPEs)
Subsidiaries are all entities (including SPEs) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. However, there are some cases where the
Group may still control some entities, mostly SPEs, with less than one half of the voting rights for a single, well-defined, and narrow
purpose. SPEs may take the form of a corporation, trust, partnership or unincorporated entity. SPEs often are created with legal
arrangements that impose strict and sometimes permanent limits on the decision-making powers of their governing board, trustee
or management over the operations of the SPE. Frequently, these provisions specify that the policy guiding the ongoing activities of
the SPE cannot be modified, other than perhaps by its creator or sponsor.
The Group consolidates an SPE when, in substance, the Group controls the SPE as follows:
-	In substance, the activities of the SPE are being conducted on behalf of the entity according to its specific business needs so
that the Group obtains benefits from the SPE’s operations;
-	In substance, the Group has the decision-making powers to obtain the majority of the benefits of the activities of the SPE or, by
setting up an ‘autopilot’ mechanism, the Group has delegated these decision-making powers;
-	In substance, the Group has rights to obtain the majority of the benefits of the SPE and therefore may be exposed to risks
incident to the activities of the SPE; or
-	In substance, the Group retains the majority of the residual or ownership risks related to the SPE or its assets in order to obtain
benefits from its activities.
The types of SPEs include asset-backed securitization specialty companies, project financing companies, private equity funds, and
partnerships. The business activities of SPEs are the asset-backed securitization, providing lines of credit and loans, investing in
equity shares and managing assets.
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Changes in subsidiaries
GS Focus and Concentrate Private Equity Fund No.3 and 27 other private equity funds, KB Wise Star Private Real Estate Feeder
Fund No.1 and 1 other investment trust , KB12-1 Venture Investment , KB Wellyan Private Equity Real Estate Fund No. 6 and 2
other investment fund, Wise Mobile First Securitization Specialty are newly included in the consolidation. Hanwha Private Securities
Investment Trust 25 and 24 other private equity funds, NPS 05-6 KB Venture Fund and 1 other Venture fund have been excluded
from consolidation because these were liquidated. In January 2012, the Group established KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. and
Kookmin Bank(China) Ltd.

43. Finance/Operating Lease
43.1 Finance lease
The future minimum lease payments arising as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

Net Carrying amount of finance lease assets 			

2011

16,856

₩

18,477

Within 1 year 				

2,310 		

754

1-5 years 				

1,427 		

637

						

3,737 		

1,391

₩

Minimum lease payment

Present value of minimum lease payment
Within 1 year 				

2,163		

697

1-5 years 				

1,386 		

601

						

3,549 		

1,298

Contingent rent 				

-		

-

Minimum sublease payment 				

- 		

-

43.2 Operating lease
43.2.1 Operating lessee
The future minimum lease payments arising from the non-cancellable lease contracts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Minimum lease payment
Within 1 year 			

₩

104,327

1-5 years 				

102,855 		

79,970

Over 5 years 				

42,816 		

1,287

						

263,958		

185,584

Minimum sublease payment 				

(154) 		

(15)

₩

118,287
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The lease payment reflected in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

Lease payment reflected in profit or loss

Minimum lease payment 			

2012

2011

₩

188,854

Contingent rent				

201,450

- 		

4

Sublease payment				

(165) 		

(53)

₩

201,285

₩

₩

188,805

43.2.2 Operating lessor
The future minimum lease payments arising from the non-cancellable lease contracts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

2011

Minimum lease payment
Within 1 year 			

₩

2,081

1-5 years 				

443 		

826

Over 5 years 				

- 		

-

						

2,471 		

2,907

Minimum sublease payment 				

-		

-

₩

2,028
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44. Related Party Transactions
Significant transactions with related parties for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012
Gain on
sale of
loans

Interest
income
and others

Associates

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.

			

UAMCO., Ltd. 		

			
			

KB Global Star Game 											
- 		
139		
- 		
- 		
430
& Apps SPAC		

			
			

United PF 1st Recovery Private 											
1,900 		
500		
(7) 		
-		
28
Equity Fund 		

			

Testian Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

104 		

(15) 		

- 		

-

			

Semiland Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

17		

(4)		

- 		

-

			

Powerrex Corporation Co., Ltd.		

- 		

-		

-		

- 		

-

			

Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

35 		

- 		

- 		

153

			

Serit Platform Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

105 		

4 		

- 		

-

			

DS Plant Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

315		

(16) 		

- 		

3

			

CH Engineering Co., Ltd.		

-		

-		

(106) 		

- 		

-

			

Evalley Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

-		

(77) 		

- 		

-

			

PyungJeon Industries Co.,LTD.		

- 		

- 		

343		

-		

-

			

Kores Co., Ltd. 		

-		

326		

325 		

- 		

-

			
			

Joam Housing 											
-		
- 		
- 		
- 		
1
Development Co., Ltd. 		

			
			

IlssanElecom(Shenyang) 											
- 		
- 		
330		
- 		
Co., Ltd.

			
			

Qingdao Danam 											
-		
- 		
159		
- 		
Electronics Co., Ltd.		

			

KB GwS Private Equity Fund 		

Joint venture

₩

- ₩
- 		

- 		

3 ₩

Interest
expense
and
others

Loss on
sale of
loans

Provision
(reversal)

297 		

12,978 		

- ₩
(68) 		

- 		

- ₩
93,266		

- 		

143
-

-

Burrill-KB Life Science Fund		

-		

- 		

- 		

- 		

-

Key management 				

- 		

276 		

(1) 		

- 		

167

Other

- 		

415 		

- 		

- 		

1,699

15,510 ₩

867 ₩

Retirement pension 		
₩

1,900 ₩

93,266 ₩

2,624
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(In millions of Korean won)

2011
Gain on
sale of
loans

Interest
income
and others

Associates

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.

			

UAMCO., Ltd. 		

			
			

KB Global Star Game 											
& Apps SPAC		
- 		
1,443		
-		
- 		
36

			

Testian Co., Ltd. 		

			
			

United PF 1st Recovery Private 											
Equity Fund 		
30,722 		
-		
- 		
-		
-

			

JSC Bank CenterCredit 		

-		

- 		

			

Semiland Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

			

Powerrex Corporation Co., Ltd.		

- 		

			

Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd.		

			

₩

- ₩

Interest
expense
and
others

Loss on
sale of
loans

Provision
(reversal)

13,455 		

- 		

- ₩
1,196		

- ₩
(3) 		

24		

- ₩

168

40,879		

8 		

3

- 		

-

- 		

- 		

218

17		

(3)		

- 		

1

74 		

(104) 		

- 		

1

- 		

21 		

-		

Serit Platform Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

85 		

26		

-		

			

DS Plant Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

376		

39 		

- 		

-

Joint venture

Burrill-KB Life Science Fund 		

-		

- 		

- 		

- 		

17

Key management 			

- 		

397 		

(1) 		

- 		

193

Other

- 		

199 		

-		

- 		

898

3,832 ₩

(38) ₩

Retirement pension 		
₩

44,177 ₩

-

40,879 ₩

19
-

1,554

The details of receivables and payables, and related allowances for loans losses arising from the related party transactions as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012
Allowances
for
loan losses

Receivables

Payables

Associates

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.

- ₩

- ₩

			

UAMCO., Ltd. 		

- 		

- 		

198

			

KB Global Star Game & Apps SPAC 		

2,627 		

-		

899

			

Testian Co., Ltd. 		

413 		

14 		

-

			

United PF 1st Recovery Private Equity Fund		

2,809		

5 		

161

			

Semiland Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

- 		

4

			

Joam Housing Development Co., Ltd.		

-		

- 		

236

			

Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd.		

- 		

- 		

165

			

Serit Platform Co., Ltd. 		

769 		

80 		

48

			

DS Plant Co., Ltd. 		

4,232		

44 		

50

			

PyungJeon Industries Co.,LTD. 		

2,125 		

1,055 		

1

₩

18,049
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(In millions of Korean won)

2012
Allowances
for
loan losses

Receivables

Payables

Associates

Kores Co., Ltd. 		

7,854 		

3,872 		

3

			

IlssanElecom(Shenyang) Co., Ltd. 		

460		

460 		

228

			

Qingdao Danam Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

550 		

209 		

338

Key management 			

5,747 		

21 		

9,013

195 		

- 		

51,417

Other

Retirement pension 		
₩

27,781 ₩

5,760 ₩

80,810

(In millions of Korean won)

2011
Allowances
for
loan losses

Receivables

Associates

Korea Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.

			

UAMCO., Ltd.		

38,745 		

68 		

146

			

JSC Bank CenterCredit 		

- 		

- 		

23,066

			

KB Global Star Game & Apps SPAC 		

2,488 		

- 		

21,766

			

Testian Co., Ltd.		

632		

29 		

-

			

United PF 1st Recovery Private Equity Fund 		

6,761 		

12 		

154

			

Semiland Co., Ltd. 		

151 		

4		

114

			

Joam Housing Development Co., Ltd.		

-		

- 		

58

			

Powerrex Corporation Co., Ltd. 		

- 		

-		

10

			

Sehwa Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

38 		

- 		

649

			

Serit Platform Co., Ltd. 		

768 		

76		

17

			

DS Plant Co., Ltd. 		

3,167 		

54		

97

			

IlssanElecom(Shenyang) Co., Ltd. 		

130 		

130		

-

			

Qingdao Danam Electronics Co., Ltd. 		

50		

50		

-

Key management			

7,359 		

33 		

5,492

Other

₩

Retirement pension 		
₩

- ₩

Payables

225		
60,514 ₩

- ₩

12,575

- 		

37,226

456 ₩

101,370

According to K-IFRS 1024, the Group includes subsidiaries, associates, key management (including family members), and postemployment benefit plans of the Group in the scope of related parties. Additionally, the Group discloses balances (receivables and
payables) and other amounts arising from the related party transactions in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Refer
to Note 13 for details on investments in associates.
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Key management includes the directors of the Parent Company and the directors of Kookmin Bank and companies where
the directors and their close family members have the power to influence the decision-making process. The Group recognized
receivables amounting to ₩ 7,359 million and related allowances for loan losses amounting to ₩ 33 million as of December 31,
2011, from the transactions with key management. Of those respective amounts, receivables amounting to ₩ 1,423 million and
related allowance for loan loss amounting to ₩ 21 million, are from companies where key management has a power to influence
the decision-making process.
Commitments to related parties as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

2012

UAMCO., Ltd.

Loan commitments in Korean won

			

Purchase of security investment 		

2011

127,800

₩

₩

89,077

89,950 		

89,950

United PF 1 							
Recovery Private
		
		
Equity Fund
Loan commitments in Korean won 		
106,395 		
102,443
st

			

Purchase of security investment 		

49,383 		

-

Sehwa Electronics 							
Co., Ltd. and others
Loan commitments 		
2,899 		
2,891
			

Others 		

88,151 		

17,245

Compensation to key management for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, consists of:
(in millions of Korean won)

2012
Short-term
employee benefits

Post-employment
benefit

Termination
benefits

Share-based
payments

Total

Registered directors 											
₩
4,074 ₩
230
₩
- ₩
3,481 ₩
7,785
(executive)
Registered directors 											
1,107 		
- 		
- 		
18 		
1,125
(non-executive) 		
Non-registered directors 		
₩

3,122 		

435 		

- 		

1,984		

8,303

665

-

5,483

₩

₩

₩

5,541
₩

14,451

(in millions of Korean won)

2011
Short-term
employee benefits

Post-employment
benefit

Termination
benefits

Share-based
payments

Total

Registered directors 											
₩
4,614 ₩
284
₩
- ₩
2,654 ₩
7,552
(executive)
Registered directors 											
1,011 		
-		
-		
(48) 		
963
(non-executive) 		
Non-registered directors 		
₩

5,769 		
11,394

₩

505 		

135 		

789

135

₩

₩

840 		
3,446

₩

7,249
15,764
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45. Business combination
The Group established KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. with a capital investment of ₩ 171,526 million in January 2012. KB Savings
Bank Co., Ltd. signed a purchase & assumption(P&A) deal for selected assets and liabilities of Jeil Savings Bank Co., Ltd. with
Korea Deposit Insurance Corporation on January 11, 2012. KB Savings Bank Co., Ltd. obtained an approval to operate from the
Financial Services Commission and acquired the assets and liabilities of Jeil Savings Bank Co., Ltd. on January 13, 2012. The
Group expects synergies from diversification of customers through the P&A deal and has recognized the goodwill attributable to
the synergies in 2012.

The consideration transferred and the assets and liabilities arising from the P&A deal are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

Amounts

Total consideration

₩

-

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and due from financial institutions		

40,575

Loans 		

280,106

Financial investments 		

17,671

Other assets 		

2,207,663

Total assets 		

2,546,015

Deposits 		

2,558,119

Other liabilities 		

95,896

Total liabilities 		

2,654,015

Total identifiable net assets

₩

(108,000)

Goodwill

₩

108,000

Acquisition-related costs 		
1

1

Recorded in fee and commission expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

1,527
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The receivables including loans from the P&A deal at the acquisition date are as follows:
(In millions of Korean won)

Amounts

Fair value
Cash and due from financial institutions

₩

40,575

Loans 		

280,106

Others		

2,207,663

₩

2,528,344

₩

41,127

Contractual cash flow
Cash and due from financial institutions

Loans 		
Others 		

416,116
2,207,663

₩

2,664,906

₩

-

Estimate of the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
Cash and due from financial institutions

Loans 		

119,164

Others		

-

₩

119,164

Through the business combination, the net operating loss and loss for the period from January 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012,
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income were ₩ 3,237 million and ₩ 34,860 million, respectively.

46. Approval of Issuance of the Financial Statements
The issuance of the December 31, 2012 consolidated financial statements was approved by the Board of Directors on February
28, 2013.
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Overseas Network
Company Directory
KB Financial Group Head Office

IR (Investor Relations)

Global Business Dept. (Kookmin Bank)

9-1, 2-ga, Namdaemun-ro,
Jung-gu, Seoul 100-703, Korea
Tel: (82-2) 2073-7114
Swift Code: CZNBKRSE
Call Center: (82) 1588-9999

9-1, 2-ga, Namdaemun-ro,
Jung-gu, Seoul 100-703, Korea
Tel: (82-2) 2073-2869
Fax: (82-2) 2073-2848
E-mail: kbir@kbfg.com

12th Fl. Kookmin Bank Building, 9-1,
2-ga, Namdaemun-ro, Jung-gu, Seoul
100-703, Korea
Tel: (82-2) 2073-7295
Fax: (82-2) 2073-8140

Transfer Agent and Register
Common Share

American Depository Receipts (ADRs)

Korea Exchange: 105560
Kookmin Bank Securities Agency
Business Dept.
36-3, Yoido-dong, Youngdeungpo-gu,
Seoul 150-884, Korea
Tel: (82-2) 2073-8120
Fax: (82-2) 2073-8111

9-1, 2-ga, Namdaemun-ro,
Jung-gu, Seoul 100-703, Korea
Tel: (82-2) 2073-2869
Fax: (82-2) 2073-2848
E-mail: kbir@kbfg.com

Overseas Network
Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Guangzhou, China

Auckland, New Zealand

KB Cambodia PLC.

KB(China) Limited Guangzhou Branch

KB Auckland Branch

No.55, Street 214, Sangkat Boeung Raing,
Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh, Cambodia
Tel: (855-23) 999-300~2
Fax: (855-23) 999-310
Swift Code: CZNBKHPP
E-mail: kbcambodia@kbstar.co.kr

Room 4602~3, Office Building, CITIC PLAZA,
233 Tianhe N. Road, Guangzhou, China
Tel: (86-20) 3877-0566
Fax: (86-20) 3877-0569
Swift Code: CZNBCN22

Level 19, 135 Albert Street, PO Box 7506,
Wellesley, Auckland, New Zealand
Tel: (64-9) 366-1000
Fax: (64-9) 366-6608
Swift Code: CZNBNZ2A
E-mail: auckland@kbstar.co.kr

Harbin, China
Beijing, China

KB(China) Limited Harbin Branch

New York, U.S.A

KB(China) Limited

Room 1605~1612, Development Zone,
Mansion No.368, Changjiang Road,
Nangang Dist, Harbin 150090, China
Tel: (84-451) 8722-2801
Fax: (84-451) 8722-2806

KB New York Branch

19F, SK Tower, No.6 jia, Jianguomenwai
Avenue, Chaoyang District, Beijing, China
Tel: (86-10) 5671-2800
Fax: (86-10) 5671-2701
Swift Code: CZNBCN22BEJ

Suzhou, China
Hong Kong, China

KB(China) Limited Suzhou Branch

KB Hong Kong Limited

Room 201-1, No.1 Huachi Road,
Suzhou Industrial Park, 215028, China
Tel: (86-512) 6292-7227
Fax: (86-512) 6292-7117
Swift Code: CZNBCN22SUZ
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KB Financial Group

Forward Looking Statements
This document contains forward-looking statements. Words and phrases such as “will,” “aim,” “will likely result,” “will continue,”
“contemplate,” “seek to,” “future,” “objective,” “goal,” “should,” “will pursue,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,”
“plan,” “believe” and words and terms of similar substance used in connection with any discussion of future operating or financial
performance identify with forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements are management’s present expectations of future
events and are subject to a number of factors and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described
in the forward looking statements.
The factors that could cause actual results to differ include, but are not limited to, the following:
• KB Financial Group’s ability to successfully implement its strategy;
• future levels of non-performing loans;
• KB Financial Group’s growth and expansion;
• adequacy of allowance for credit and investment losses;
• technological changes;
• investment income;
• availability of funding and liquidity;
• cash flow projections;
• KB Financial Group’s exposure to market risks; and
• adverse market and regulatory conditions.
By their nature, certain disclosures relating to these and other risks are only estimates and could be materially different from what
actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains, losses or impact on KB Financial Group’s income or results of operations
could materially differ from those that have been estimated.
In addition, other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those estimated by the forward-looking statements
contained in this document could include, but are not limited to:
• general economic and political conditions in Korea or other countries that have an impact on KB Financial Group’s business
activities or investments; Korea’s monetary and interest rate policies;
• inflation or deflation;
• foreign exchange rates;
• prices and yields of equity and debt securities;
• performance of the financial markets in Korea and internationally;
• changes in domestic and foreign laws, regulations and taxes;
• changes in competition and the pricing environments in Korea; and
• regional or general changes in asset valuations.
KB Financial Group cautions the reader not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
of this document. Except as required by law, we are not under any obligation, and expressly disclaim any obligation, to update or alter
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All subsequent forward-looking
statements attributable to KB Financial Group or any person acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary
statements contained or referred to in this document.
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CONTACT INFORMATION
For more information on KB Financial Group, please visit
www.kbfg.com

9-1, 2-ga, Namdaemun-ro, Jung-gu, Seoul 100-703, Korea
Tel: +82-2-2073-7114
www.kbfg.com

